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Ms. Carlotta Stauffer 
Commission Clerk 
Florida Public Service Commission 
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850 

October 19, 2018 

DOCKET NO. 20180192-GU 
FILED 10/19/2018 
DOCUMENT NO. 06667-2018 
FPSC-COMMISSION CLERK 

Writer's Direct Dial Number: 850-52 I -1706 

Re: [Undocketed - New Filing] - Application by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation for 
Authorization to issue Common Stocl<, Preferred Stock, and Secured and/or Unsecured 
Debt, and to Enter into Agreements for Interest Rate Swap Products, Equity Products and 
Other Financial Derivatives and to Exceed Limitation Placed on Short Term Borrowings in 
2019. 

Dear Ms. Stauffer: 

Attached for filing, please find the Application of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation for 
Authority to Issue Stock, and Secured and/or Unsecured Debt, and to Enter into Agreements for 
Interest Rate Swap Products, Equity Products and Other Financial Derivatives and to Exceed 
Limitation Placed on Short Term Borrowings in 2019. 

Your assistance in this matter is greatly appreciated. If you have any questions, please do not 

hesitate to contact me. 

BK 

cc: Office of Public Counsel 

Sincerely, 

Beth Keating 
Gunstcr, Yoakley, ewart, P.A. 
215 S. Monroe St., Suite 601· 
Tallahassee, FL 32301 
(850) 521-1706 
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BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In re: Application by Chesapeake Utilities ) 
Corporation for Authorization to Issue Common ) 
Stock, Preferred Stock and Secured and/or ) 
Unsecured Debt, and to Enter into Agreements ) 
For Interest Rate Swap Products, Equity ) 
Products and Other Financial Derivatives 

-in 2019 

Docket: 

Filed: October 19, 2018 

APPLICATION BY CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION FOR 
AUTHORIZATION TO ISSUE COMMON STOCK, PREFERRED STOCK AND 

SECURED AND/OR UNSECURED DEBT, AND TO ENTER INTO 
AGREEMENTS FOR INTEREST RATE SWAP PRODUCTS, EQUITY 

PRODUCTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES, AND TO EXCEED 
LIMITATION PLACED ON SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS IN 2019 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation (Chesapeake, the Company or Applicant) respectfully 

files this Application, pursuant to Section 366.04 (1 ), Florida Statutes, seeking authority 

in 2019 to issue up to 8,600,000 shares of Chesapeake common stock; up to 2,000,000 

shares of Chesapeake preferred stock; up to $650,000,000 in secured and/or unsecured 

debt; to enter into agreements for up to $200,000,000 in Interest Rate Swap Products, 

Equity Products and other Financial Derivatives; to exceed the limitation on short-term 

borrowings in 2019 up to $350,000,000. The Company would utilize its short-term lines 

of credit and revolving credit facility for this purpose. 

1. Name and principal business offices of Applicant: 

a) Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 
P.O. Box 615 
909 Silver Lake Boulevard 
Dover, Delaware 19904 

b) Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 
Florida Division 
1750 South 141

h Street 
Fernandina Beach, Florida 32034 



c) Florida Public Utilities Company (a wholly owned subsidiary of Chesapeake 
Utilities Corporation) 
1750 South 14th Street 
Fernandina Beach, Florida 32034 

d) Florida Public Utilities Company - Indiantown Division 
1750 South 14th Street 
Fernandina Beach, Florida 32034 

e) Florida Public Utilities Company- Fort Meade Division 
1750 South 14th Street 
Fernandina Beach, Florida 32034 

2. Incorporated: 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation- Incorporated under the laws of the state of 

Delaware in 1947 and qualified to do business in Florida, Maryland, and 

Pennsylvania 

Florida Public Utilities Company- Incorporated under the laws of the state of 

Florida in 1924 and qualified to do business in Florida 

3. Person authorized to receive notices and communications in this respect: 

Beth Keating, Esquire 
Gunster, Yeakley & Stewart, P.A. 
Suite 601 
215 South Monroe Street 
Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
(850) 521-1706 

Attorneys for Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 

4. Capital Stock and Funded Debt 

Chesapeake has authority by provisions contained in the Certificate of 

Incorporation, as amended, to issue common stock as follows: 

a) Common stock having a par value of $0.4867 per share. 

b) Amount authorized: 50,000,000 shares. 

c) Amount outstanding as of June 30, 2018: 16,378,545 

d) Amount held in Treasury: 0 shares. 
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e) Amount pledged by Applicant: None. 

f) Amount owned by affiliated corporations: None. 

g) Amount held in any fund: None. 

Chesapeake has authority by provisions contained in its Certificate of 

Incorporation, as amended, to issue preferred stock as follows: 

a) Preferred stock having a par value of $0.01 per share. 

b) Amount authorized: 2,000,000 shares. 

c) Amount outstanding as of June 30, 2018: 0 shares. 

d) Amount held in Treasury: None. 

e) Amount pledged by Applicant: None. 

f) Amount owned by affiliated corporations: None. 

g) Amount held in any fund: None. 

The funded indebtedness by class and series are as follows: 

(a) 1 Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 5.50% Unsecured Senior Notes due 

October 12,
1
2020 and issued on October 12, 2006 in the principal 

amount of $20,000,000 bearing interest payable quarterly with 

provisions for payment of interest only prior to October 12, 2011; 

thereafter, principal shall be payable, in addition to interest on the 

unpaid balance, for ten (1 0) years at the rate of $2,000,000 per annum. 

As of June 30, 2018, there is a remaining balance of $6,000,000 for this 

issue. 

(a) 2 Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 5.93% Unsecured Senior Notes due 

October 31, 2023 and issued on October 31, 2008 in the principal 

amount of $30,000,000 bearing interest payable semi-annually with 

provisions for payment of interest only prior to April30, 2014; thereafter, 

principal shall be payable, in addition to interest on the unpaid balance 
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for ten (1 0) years at the rate of $1,500,000 per semi-annum. 

Accordingly, as of June 30, 2018, there is a balance of $16,500,000 for 

this issue. 

(a) 3 Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 5.68% Unsecured Senior Notes due 

June 30, 2026 and issued on June 23, 2011 in the principal amount of 

$29,000,000 bearing interest payable semi-annually with provisions for 

payment of interest only prior to June 30, 2017; thereafter, principal 

shall be payable, in addition to interest on the unpaid balance for ten 

(1 0) years at the rate of $2,900,000 per annum. As of June 30, 2018, 

there is a balance of $23,200,000 on this issue. 

(a) 4 Florida Public Utilities Company 9.08% Secured First Mortgage Bonds 

due June 1, 2022 and issued on June 1, 1992 in the principal amount 

of $8,000,000 bearing interest payable semi-annually with provisions 

for payment of interest only prior to June 1, 2022; thereafter, principal 

shall be payable in full. Accordingly, as of June 30, 2018, there is a 

balance of $8,000,000 for this issue. 

(a) 5 Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 6.43% Unsecured Senior Notes due 

May 2, 2028 and issued on May 2, 2013 in the principal amount of 

$7,000,000 bearing interest payable semi-annually with provisions for 

payment of interest only prior to May 2, 2019; thereafter, principal shall 

be payable, in addition to interest on the unpaid balance for ten (1 0) 

years at the rate of $700,000 per annum. As of June 30, 2018, there is 

a balance of $7,000,000 on this issue. 

(a) 6 Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 3. 73% Unsecured Senior Notes due 

December 16, 2028 and issued on December 16, 2013 pursuant to a 

Note Purchase Agreement dated September 5, 2013 in the principal 
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amount of $20,000,000 bearing interest payable semi-annually with 

provisions for payment of interest only prior to December 16, 2019; 

thereafter, principal shall be payable, in addition to interest on the 

unpaid balance for ten (10) years at the rate of $2,000,000 per annum. 

As of June 30, 2018, there Is a balance of $20,000,000 on this issue. 

(a) 7 Chesapeake Utilities Corporation capital lease agreement entered into 

on June 1, 2013 in an original present value amount of $7,125,901 in 

connection with the acquisition and lease of certain assets of Eastern 

Shore Gas Company located in Worcester County, Maryland. The 

capital lease has monthly payments of $125,000 from June 2014 

through May 2019. As of June 30, 2018, there is a present value 

balance outstanding of $1,351,239 on this capital lease. 

(a) 8 Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 3.88% Unsecured Senior Notes due 

May 15, 2029 and issued on May 15, 2014 pursuant to a Note Purchase 

Agreement dated September 5, 2013 in the principal amount of 

$50,000,000 bearing interest payable semi-annually with provisions for 

payment of interest only prior to May 15, 2020; thereafter, principal shall 

be payable, in addition to interest on the unpaid balance for ten (1 0) 

years at the rate of $5,000,000 per annum. As of June 30, 2018, there 

is a balance of $50,000,000 on this issue. 

(a) 9 Flo-Gas Corporation non-interest bearing Unsecured Senior Notes due 

February 5, 2019 issued on February 5, 2013 in the principal amount 

of $425,000. Annual principal payments are $70,833 until maturity. As 

of June 30, 2018, there is a balance of $25,833 on this issue. 

(a) 10 Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 3.25% Unsecured Senior Notes due 

April 30, 2032, and issued on April 21, 2017 pursuant to a Private Shelf 
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Facility dated October 8, 2015, in the principal amount of $70,000,000 

bearing interest payable quarterly with provisions for payment of 

interest only prior to July 31, 2022; Thereafter, principal shall be 

payable, in addition to interest on the unpaid balance for forty (40) 

quarters at the rate of $1,750,000 per quarter. As of June 30, 2018, 

there is a $70,000,000 balance on this issue. 

(a) 11 Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 3.48% Series A Unsecured Senior 

Notes due May 31, 2038, and issued on May 21, 2018 pursuant to a 

Master Note Agreement dated March 2, 2017, in the principal amount 

of $50,000,000 bearing interest payable semi-annually with provisions 

for payment of interest only prior to May 31, 2029; Thereafter, principal 

shall be payable, in addition to interest on the unpaid balance at the 

rate of $5,000,000 per annum. As of June 30, 2018, there is a 

$50,000,000 balance on this issue. 

(a) 12 Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 3.58% Series 8 Unsecured Senior 

Notes due November 30, 2038, to be issued on or before November 

20, 2018 pursuant to a Master Note Agreement dated March 2, 2017, 

in the principal amount of $50,000,000 bearing interest payable semi­

annually with provisions for payment of interest only prior to November 

30, 2029; Thereafter, principal shall be payable, in addition to interest 

on the unpaid balance at the rate of $5,000,000 per annum. As of June 

30, 2018, there is a $0 balance on this issue. 

(a) 13 Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 3.98% Unsecured Senior Notes due 

August 20, 2039, to be issued on or before August 20, 2019 pursuant 

to a Private Shelf Facility dated October 8, 2015, as amended 
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September 14, 2018, in the principal amount of $100,000,000 bearing 

interest payable quarterly with provisions for payment of interest only 

prior to August 30, 2030; Thereafter, principal shall be payable, in 

addition to interest on the unpaid balance at the rate of $10,000,000 

per annum. As of June 30, 2018, there is a $0 balance on this issue. 

As of the filing date, Chesapeake has unsecured committed short-term bank 

lines of credit with four commercial lenders. Chesapeake may from time to 

time increase the capacity of these lines of credit and/or add additional lines of 

credit to meet short-term financing needs. Chesapeake currently maintains a 

total short-term borrowing line capacity of $220,000,000. As of June 30, 2018, 

the total short-term borrowing outstanding under the bank lines of credit was 

$175,288,181. 

As of October 8, 2015, Chesapeake entered into a committed revolving line of 

credit with five commercial lenders, available through October 8, 2020 for a 

total intermediate borrowing capacity of $150,000,000. As of June 30, 2018, 

the total short-term borrowing outstanding under this committed revolving line 

of credit was $60,000,000. 

5. Authorizations Requested 

Chesapeake requests authorization from the FPSC to issue up to 600,000 new 

shares of its common stock during 2019 for the purpose of administering 

Chesapeake's Retirement Savings Plan, Stock and Incentive Compensation 
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Plan, and Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan. The share 

breakdown for each specific purpose is as follows: 

Number 
of Shares 
200,000 

200,000 

200,000 

Purpose 
Issuance pursuant to the Company's 
Retirement Savings Plan. 

Issuance under the terms of the Company's Stock 
and Incentive Compensation Plan. 

Issuance pursuant to the Company's 
Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase 
Plan. 

In addition, Chesapeake is requesting FPSC authorization to issue up to 

3,000,000 shares of Chesapeake stock or an equity-linked instrument 

equivalent in value in 2019 to permanently finance Chesapeake's ongoing 

capital expenditure program. Chesapeake seeks further FPSC authorization 

to issue during 2019 up to an additional 5,000,000 shares of common stock. 

This additional stock would be used to finance Chesapeake's ongoing 

acquisition program. The capital expenditure program is subject to continuous 

review and modification and is funded from short-term borrowings and cash 

provided by operating activities. The Company may from time to time, 

permanently finance its short-term borrowings through the issuance of 

common stock or an equity-linked instrument, as opposed to long-term debt. 
I 

Chesapeake requests FPSC authorization to issue up to $650,000,000 in new 

secured and/or unsecured debt during 2019 for general corporate purposes 

including, but not limited to, working capital, retirement of short-term debt, 

retirement of long-term debt, capital improvements and acquisitions. 

Chesapeake seeks FPSC authorization to exceed the limitation placed on 
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short-term borrowings by Section 366.04, Florida Statutes, so as to issue short­

term obligations up to $350,000,000 during 2019. 

Chesapeake is also requesting authority to issue up to 2,000,000 shares 

of Chesapeake preferred stock in 2019, for possible acquisitions, financing 

transactions, and other general corporate purposes. 

Chesapeake further seeks FPSC approval to enter into financial 

agreements with institutions in 2019 to negotiate and execute financial 

derivatives enabling the Company to lock in its future financing costs and 

minimize its risk. A financial derivative is a risk-shifting agreement, the value 

of which is derived from the value of an underlying asset. The underlying asset 

could be a physical commodity, an interest rate, a company's stock, a stock 

index, a currency, or virtually any other tradable instrument upon which two 

parties can agree. A financial derivative can be used for hedging, protecting 

against financial risk, or can be used to speculate on the movement of 

commodity or security prices, interest rates or the levels of financial indices. 

Financial derivatives fall into two categories. One consists of customized, 

privately negotiated derivatives, referred to as over-the-counter (OTC) 

derivatives or swaps. The other category consists of standardized, 

exchangeable derivatives, known generically as futures. In addition, there are 

various types of products within each of the two categories. The Company has 

attempted to identify below some of the financial derivatives that the Company 

may evaluate in 2019, although the listing is not intended to be all-inclusive. 

Rather, the Company seeks approval to evaluate and employ those financial 

derivatives that would mitigate its financial risk associated with a particular 

financing transaction(s). 

9 



Chesapeake is proposing to have the flexibility and authority to enter into 

the following (a) Treasury rate locks, credit spread locks, interest rate swaps, 

collars, caps and/or floors (the "Interest Rate Swap Products"); (b) equity 

collars, floors, prepaid forward contracts, covered calls, forward sales and 

purchases and/or equity-linked instruments (the "Equity Products"); or (c) any 

other Financial Derivatives that meet the objectives described above on such 

terms as Chesapeake considers to be appropriate, provided that the notional 

amount(s) for said Interest Rate Swap Products, Equity Products, and/or other 

Financial Derivatives do not, in the aggregate, exceed the sum of 

$200,000,000. 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation allocates funds to the Florida Division, 

Florida Public Utilities and the Indiantown and Fort Meade divisions on an as­

needed basis. 

6. Purposes for which Securities are to be issued: 

(a) Chesapeake's Retirement Savings Plan ("RSP") was implemented on 

February 1, 1977. As of June 30, 2018, the RSP had 894 active participants; 

a total market valuation of approximately $146,968,229 (including 522,904 

shares of the Company's common stock with a value of $41,806,168). 

Chesapeake's 401 k Plan was amended to be a "safe harbor" plan. Effective 

January 1, 2011 the Company matches 100% of the participants' contributions 

up to six percent of the eligible compensation in cash and any supplemental 

contributions will generally be made in Chesapeake stock. 

To continue to balance the composition of debt and equity, Chesapeake 

wants to maintain flexibility in how the supplemental RSP contributions are 
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funded, i.e., with new shares of its stock, buying shares on the open market, 

and/or a combination of both funding methods. 

On June 23, 1992, the Delaware Public Service Commission issued Order 

No. 3425 approving the issuance of up to 150,000 new shares of Chesapeake 

common stock for the purpose of administering Chesapeake's RSP. Please 

note that this Order by the Delaware Public Service Commission is "open 

ended" in the sense that there is no time limit by which the approved securities 

need to be issued. A copy of the Order has been previously filed with the FPSC 

within Exhibit J of the Application for Approval of Issuance and Sale of 

Securities by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, Docket No. 931112-GU, dated 

November 17, 1993, and is hereby incorporated by reference. On July 13, 

1999, the Delaware Public Service Commission issued Order No. 5165 

approving the issuance of an additional 150,000 new shares of Chesapeake 

common stock for the purpose of administering the RSP. Please note that this 

Order by the Delaware Public Service Commission is also "open ended" in the 

sense that there is no time limit by which approved securities need to be 

issued. A copy of this Order has been previously filed with the FPSC within 

Exhibit C of the Application by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation for 

Authorization to issue Common Stock, Preferred Stock and Secured and/or 

Unsecured Debt and to Exceed Limitation Placed on Short-Term Borrowings 

in 2000, Docket No. 991631-GU, dated October 20, 1999, and is hereby 

incorporated by reference. On December 19, 2000, the Delaware Public 

Service Commission issued Order No. 5609 approving the issuance of an 

additional 450,000 new shares of Chesapeake common stock for the purpose 

of administering the RSP. Please note that this Order by the Delaware Public 

Service Commission is also "open ended" in the sense that there is no time 
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limit by which approved securities need to be issued. A copy of this Order has 

been previously filed with the FPSC as Exhibit E of the Consummation Report 

of Securities Issued by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, Docket No. 991631-

GU, dated March 29, 2001, and is hereby incorporated by reference. On May 

4, 2010, the Delaware Public Service Commission issued Order No. 7769 

approving the issuance of an additional 900,000 new shares of Chesapeake 

common stock for the purpose of administering the RSP. Please note that this 

Order by the Delaware Public Service Commission is also "open ended" in the 

sense that there is no time limit by which approved securities need to be 

issued. A copy of the order was previously filed with the FPSC as Exhibit C of 

Docket No. 100444-GU dated November 16, 2010. Pursuant to these Orders, 

Chesapeake has issued 818,817 ne~ shares of common stock for the RSP as 

of June 30, 2018. Thus, there remains to be issued 831,183 shares as 

authorized by the Delaware Public Service Commission. The FPSC approved 

the issuance and sale of up to 105,000 shares of common stock for the Plan 

during 2018 by Order No. PSC-2018-0046-FOF-GU issued on January 18, 

2018. Chesapeake now seeks FPSC authorization to issue up to 200,000 new 

shares of Chesapeake common stock for the purpose of administering 

Chesapeake's Plan during 2019. 

(b) On May 2, 2013, after receiving shareholder approval, the Board adopted 

the 2013 Stock and Incentive Compensation Plan ("SICP") for issuing equity 

compensation to its directors, to its officers and other key employees, and to 

its employees. The FPSC approved the issuance of up to 180,000 shares of 

common stock for the SICP during 2018 by Order No. PSC-2018-0046-FOF­

GU issued on January 18, 2018. Chesapeake is requesting FPSC 

authorization to issue up to 200,000 new shares of Chesapeake common stock 
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for purposes of administering the SICP during 2019. The SICP will allow the 

Company to continue to provide a competitive compensation program that 

seeks to attract and retain exceptional executive officers, directors and 

employees of the Company and motivate those individuals responsible for the 

growth and success of the Company. The SICP also enhances stockholder 

value by linking a portion of compensation of executive officers, directors and 

employees of the Company to the increase in the price per share of its common 

stock and the achievement of other performance objectives and encourage 

ownership in the Company by key personnel whose long-term employment is 

considered essential to the Company's continued success and progress. On 

October 22, 2013, the Delaware Public Service Commission issued Order No. 

8470 authorizing Chesapeake to issue up to 661,862 shares of common stock 

to administer the Company's SICP. Chesapeake has issued 186,763 new 

shares of common stock for the SICP as of June 30, 2018. Thus, there remains 

to be issued 475,099 shares as authorized by the Delaware Public Service 

Commission. Chesapeake now seeks FPSC authorization to issue up to 

200,000 new shares of Chesapeake common stock for the purpose of 

administering Chesapeake's Plan during 2019. 

(c) Chesapeake's Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan ("DRP") 

was implemented on April27, 1989. The DRP Administrator currently has the 

flexibility of purchasing shares of Chesapeake common stock on the open 

market, using Treasury stock or issuing new common stock. The gradual 

issuance of new common stock enables Chesapeake to balance the 

composition of its capital between common stock and long-term debt. As of 

June 30, 2018, the DRP had 1,665 stockholder participants. 
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A copy of the DRP as filed on Registration Statement Form S-3 with the 

Securitie~ and Exchange Commission has been previously filed with the FPSC 

as Exhibit D of the Application for Approval of Issuance and Sale of Securities 

by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, Docket No. 961194-GU, dated October 

1, 1996, and is hereby incorporated by reference. On May 23, 1989, the 

Delaware Public Service Commission issued Order No. 3071 approving the 

issuance of up to 300,000 new shares of Chesapeake common stock for the 

purpose of administering Chesapeake's DRP. Please note that this Order by 

the Delaware Public Service Commission is "open ended" in the sense that 

there is no time limit by which the approved securities need to be issued. A 

copy of this Order has been previously filed with the FPSC within Exhibit J of 

the Application for Approval of Issuance and Sale of Securities by Chesapeake 

Utilities Corporation, Docket No. 931112-GU, dated November 17, 1993, and 

is hereby incorporated by reference. On December 20, 1995, the Delaware 

Public Service Commission issued Order No. 4097 approving the issuance of 

an additional 450,000 new shares of Chesapeake common stock for the 

purpose of administering Chesapeake's DRP. Please note that this Order by 

the Delaware Public Service Commission is also "open ended" in the sense 

that there is no time limit by which the approved securities need to be issued. 

A copy of this Order has been previously filed with the FPSC within Exhibit E 

of the Application for Approval of Issuance and Sale of Securities by 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, Docket No. 961194-GU, dated October 1, 

1996, and is hereby incorporated by reference. On August 5, 2004, 

Chesapeake's Board of Directors approved 1,125,000 additional shares of 

common stock to be authorized and reserved for issuance under the Dividend 

Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan, as well as several amendments to the 
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terms of the Plan. The amended plan (a) allows for direct stock purchases by 

persons who at the times of purchase are not shareholders of the Company; 

(b) establishes the minimum investment amount for direct stock purchases by 

persons who are not shareholders of the Company; (c) fixes the minimum 

monthly and maximum annual optional cash investment limits for participating 

shareholders; (d) allows for direct debiting of shareholder-designated bank 

accounts for purchases; and (e) adds a provision to the Plan, whereby the 

Company, with the prior approval of the Board of Directors or under guidelines 

adopted by the Board of Directors, could on a case-by-case basis waive the 

maximum annual optional cash investment limit and accept investments in 

excess of that amount. On December 21, 2004 the Delaware Public Service 

Commission issued Order No. 6543, approving the issuance of an additional 

1,125,000 shares of Chesapeake common stock for the purpose of 

administering Chesapeake's amended Dividend Reinvestment and Stock 

Purchase Plan. Please note that this Order by the Delaware Public Service 

Commission is "open ended" in the sense that there is no time limit by which 

the approved securities need to be issued. A copy of this Order has been 

previously filed with the FPSC within Exhibit C of the Consummation Report of 

Securities Issued by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, Docket No. 030942-

GU, dated March 22, 2005, and is hereby incorporated by reference. In 

addition, on December 16, 2008, Chesapeake filed a Registration Statement 

on Form S-3 with the Securities and Exchange Commission relating to the 

registration of 631,756 shares of the Company's common stock under the 

Dividend Reinvestment and Direct Stock Purchase Plan. The Registration 

Statement was declared effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission 

on January 5, 2009 and replaces the prior Registration Statement in place for 
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the Plan that had previously expired. A copy of the Chesapeake Utilities 

Corporation Dividend Reinvestment and Direct Stock Purchase Plan as filed 

with the Securities and Exchange Commission on Registration Statement 

Form S-3 dated December 16, 2008 has previously been filed with the FPSC 

as Exhibit D of the Consummation Report of Securities Issued by Chesapeake 

Utilities Corporation, Docket No. 070640-GU, dated March 27, 2009, and is 

hereby incorporated by reference. 

Pursuant to the Orders above, Chesapeake has issued 1,149,738 new 

shares of common stock as of June 30, 2018. Thus, there remains to be issued 

725,262 shares as authorized by the Delaware Public Service Commission. 

The FPSC approved the issuance and sale of up to 180,000 shares for the 

DRP during 2018 by Order No. PSC-2018-0046-FOF-GU issued on January 

18, 2018. Our current Registration Statement was filed November 30, 2017, 

for 725,262 shares, with the Securities and Exchange Commission. We expect 

to file a new registration statement before the current registration statement 

expires on November 29, 2020. 

Chesapeake now seeks FPSC approval to issue up to 200,000 new shares 

of Chesapeake common stock for the purpose of administering Chesapeake's 

amended Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan during 2019. 

(d) Chesapeake now seeks FPSC approval to issue up to 3,000,000 shares of 

Chesapeake stock or an equity-linked instrument equivalent in value in 2019 

to permanently finance Chesapeake's ongoing capital expenditure program. 

Financing for the Company's capital expenditure program is subject to 

continuous review and modification and is funded from short-term borrowings 

and cash provided by operating activities. The Company, in an effort to 

manage its capital structure, may, from time to time permanently finance 
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through the issuance of common stock or an equity-linked instrument, as 

opposed to long-term debt. The FPSC approved the issuance of 2,750,000 

shares of common stock for Chesapeake during 2018 by Order No. PSC-2018-

0046-FOF-GU issued on January 18, 2018. 

(e) Chesapeake seeks FPSC authorization to issue during 2019 up to 

$350,000,000 in secured and/or unsecured long-term debt with an estimated 

rate of interest of up to 300 basis points above U.S. Treasury rates (or 

extrapolated U.S. Treasury rates) with equivalent average life. The FPSC 

approved the issuance and sale of $300,000,000 in secured and/or unsecured 

long-term debt during 2018 by Order No. PSC-2018-0046-FOF-GU issued on 

January 18, 2018. The remaining proceeds from this debt issuance would be 

used for general corporate purposes including, but not limited to, working 

capital, retirement of short-term debt, retirement of long-term debt and capital 

improvements. Each issue will be for some lawful object within the corporate 

purposes of the applicant and compatible with the public interest and is 

reasonably necessary or appropriate for such purpose. 

(f) Chesapeake seeks further FPSC authorization to issue during 2019 up to 

an additional 5,000,000 shares of common stock and an additional 

$300,000,000 in secured and/or unsecured long-term debt with an estimated 

rate of interest of up to 300 basis points above U.S. Treasury rates (or 

extrapolated U.S. Treasury rates) with equivalent average life. This additional 

stock and debt would be used to finance Chesapeake's ongoing acquisition 

program. Chesapeake expects to continue to search for growth opportunities 

through acquisitions, which fit its long-range plan to achieve the proper mix of 

business activities. Financing of acquisitions will depend upon the nature and 
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extent of potential acquisitions as well as current market and economic 

conditions. 

The FPSC approved the issuance and sale of 5,000,000 shares of common 

stock and $250,000,000 in secured and/or unsecured long-term debt for this 

purpose during 2018 by Order No. PSC-2018-0046-FOF-GU issued on 

January 18, 2018. 

(g) Chesapeake seeks FPSC authorization to issue up to 2,000,000 shares of 

Chesapeake preferred stock during 2019 for possible acquisitions, financing 

transactions, and other general corporate purposes. As of June 30, 2018, zero 

(0) shares of Chesapeake preferred stock have been issued. The FPSC 

approved the issuance and sale of up to 2,000,000 shares of Chesapeake 

preferred stock for possible acquisitions, financing transactions, and other 

general corporate purposes, during 2018 Order No. PSC-2018-0046-FOF-GU 

issued January 18, 2018. 

(h) Chesapeake is requesting authority during 2019 to enter into an agreement 

for financial derivatives including, but not limited to Interest Rate Swap 

Products, Equity Products, and/or other Financial Derivatives on such terms 

as Chesapeake considers appropriate provided that the notional amount(s) for 

said Interest Rate Swap Products, Equity Products, and/or other Financial 

Derivatives do not, in the aggregate, exceed the sum of $200,000,000. On July 

9, 2002, the Delaware Public Service Commission issued Order No. 5989 

approving the Company's application for approval of the issuance of certain 

long-term debt, and acknowledging that the Company was considering 

entering into, or utilizing Interest Rate Swap Products. While the Company 

does not consider such Interest Rate Swap Products, Equity Products, and/or 

other Financial Derivatives to involve the actual issuance of securities within 
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the ambit of Section 366.04 (1 ), Florida Statutes, in an abundance of caution, 

Chesapeake requests such authority to the extent the FPSC considers Interest 

Rate Swap Products, Equity Products, and/or other Financial Derivatives 

subject to its jurisdiction. In the event that the FPSC does not consider Interest 

Rate Swap Products, Equity Products, and/or other Financial Derivatives to be 

jurisdictional, Chesapeake requests that that FPSC issue an Order 

acknowledging the Company's request and confirming the FPSC's absence of 

jurisdiction regarding these instruments. 

A copy of this Order was filed as Exhibit C of the Application by Chesapeake 

Utilities Corporation for Authorization to Issue Common Stock, Preferred Stock 

and Secured and/or Unsecured Debt, and to Enter into Agreements for Interest 

Rate Swap Products, and to Exceed Limitation Placed on Short-Term 

Borrowings in 2004, Docket No. 030942-GU, and is hereby incorporated by 

reference. 

7. Purposes for which Securities are to be issued: 

The common stock, preferred stock and long-term debt authorized for 

issuance will be used for the purpose of administering Chesapeake's 

Retirement Savings Plan, Stock and Incentive Compensation Plan, Dividend 

Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan, financing of the Company's 

acquisition program and for other corporate purposes including, but not limited 

to the following: working capital; retirement of short-term debt; retirement of 

long-term debt; and capital improvements. Chesapeake believes that Interest 

Rate Swap Products, Equity Products and other Financial Derivatives would 

provide Chesapeake with an additional opportunity to achieve lower cost 

funding of existing and prospective debt and equity placements, as well as 

enhanced flexibility to manage the Company's exposure to risk as market 

19 



conditions permit. These are all for lawful objects within the corporate 

purposes of Chesapeake and compatible with the public interest and are 

reasonably necessary or appropriate for such purposes. 

8. Counsel: 

The legality of the common stock, preferred stock and debt issuances will be 

passed upon by William A. Denman, Esquire, Parkowski, Guerke and Swayze, 

P .A., 116 West Water Street, Dover, Delaware 19904, who will rely on Beth 

Keating, Esquire, Gunster, Yeakley & Stewart, Suite 601, 215 South Monroe 

Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32301, as to matters of Florida law. 

9. Other Regulatory Agencies: 

Under 26 Del. C Section 215 of the Delaware statutes, Chesapeake is 

regulated by the Delaware Public Service Commission and, therefore, must file 

a Prefiling Notice, a Notice, and an Application to obtain approval of the 

Delaware Commission before issuing new securities which mature more than 

one (1) year from the date of issuance. In addition, a Notice must be filed if 

Chesapeake expects to incur short-term indebtedness, which exceeds ten 

percent of the Company's total capitalization. All necessary applications or 

registration statements have been or will be made as required and will be made 

a part of the final consummation report to the FPSC as required by Rule 25-

8.009, Florida Administrative Code. 

The address of the Delaware Commission is as follows: 

Delaware Public Service Commission 
861 Silver Lake Boulevard 
Cannon Building 
Dover, Delaware 19904 
Attention: Robert Howatt 
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10. Control or ownership: 

Applicant is not owned by any other company nor is Applicant a member of any 

holding company system. 

11. Exhibits: 

Filed herewith: 

Exhibit A: 

A (1) 

A (2) 

Exhibit A consists of the following attachments: 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Annual Report on Form 
10-K (A) for the year ended December 31,2017. 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Quarterly Report on Form 
1 0-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2018. 

12. Constitutionality of Statute: 

Chesapeake has taken the position that the statutory requirement of FPSC 

approval of the issuance and sale of securities by a public utility, under Section 

366.04 (1 ), Florida Statutes, as applied to Chesapeake, a Delaware 

corporation engaged in interstate commerce, is unconstitutional, in that it 

creates an unreasonable burden on interstate commerce. Support for this 

position is set out in Chesapeake's Petition for declaratory statement 

disclaiming jurisdiction, as filed in FPSC Docket No. 930705-GU. By FPSC 

Order No. PSC-93-1548-FOF-GU, issued on October 21, 1993, the FPSC 

denied the Petition for declaratory statement, while approving the alternative 

Application for approval of the issuance of up to 100,000 new shares of 

common stock for the purpose of administering a Retirement Savings Plan. 

The FPSC found that "the facial constitutionality of a statute cannot be decided 

in an administrative proceeding," and that since the stock issuance was 
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approved, "the question of constitutionality appears to be academic at this 

time." 

Chesapeake continues to maintain that the assertion of jurisdiction by the 

FPSC over its securities unconstitutionally burdens interstate commerce, 

particularly where the Public Service Commission of the State of Delaware has 

approved their issuance and sale, and/or where the securities do not create a 

lien or encumbrance on assets of Chesapeake's public utility operations in the 

State of Florida. 

Florida law provides for severe penalties for any willful violation of a statute 

administered by the FPSC or any of its rules or orders, Sees. 350.127 (1) and 

366.095, Florida Statutes. Accordingly, Chesapeake believes it must submit 

to FPSC jurisdiction over its securities if it is to avoid assessment of such 

penalties and to otherwise remain in good standing before the FPSC. It 

therefore files the instant Application, under protest, and without waiver of its 

position regarding the unconstitutionality of the statute. 
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

Based on the foregoing, Chesapeake Utilities Corporation requests that the FPSC issue an 

Order authorizing it in 2019 to issue up to 8,600,000 shares of common stock, up to 

2,000,000 shares of preferred stock, and up to $650,000,000 of secured and/or unsecured 

debt, and authorizing it to enter into agreements up to $200,000,000 in Interest Rate Swap 

Products, Equity Products and other Financial Derivatives. 

Date: October 19, 2018 

Respectfully submitted, 

Beth Keating, Es · 
Gunster, Yoakle Stewart, P.A. 
Suite 601 
215 South Monroe Street 
Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
(850) 521-1706 

Attorneys for 
Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 
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* 
COUNTY OF KENT * ss 

BE IT REMEMBERED that on this the day of , personally appeared before 

me, a Notary Public for the State of Delaware, Beth W. Cooper, who being by me duly sworn, did 

depose and say that she is Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Chesapeake Utilities 

Corporation, a Delaware corporation, and that insofar as the Application of Chesapeake Utilities 

Corporation states facts, and insofar as those facts are within her personal knowledge, they are true; 

and insofar as those facts that are not within her personal knowledge, she believes them to be true, 

that the exhibits accompanying this Application and attached hereto are true and correct copies of the 

originals of the aforesaid exhibits, and that she has executed this Application on behalf of the Company 

and pursuant to the authorization of its Board of Directors. 

Beth W. Cooper 
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED before me the day and year first above written. 

Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: ? j,) /1 '1 

LYNN H. LLOYD 
NOTARY PUBLIC 

STATE OF DELAWARE 
My Commission Expires Augusl15, 2019 
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EXHIBITS 

A (1) Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Annual Report on Form 10-K 
for the year ended December 31, 2017. 

A (2) Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Quarterly Report on Form 10-
Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2018. 
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GLOSSARY OF DEFINITIONS 

A FUDC: Allowance for funds used during construction 

Ame11dment: The Second Amendment to the Rights Agreement, which was executed on Febnmry 27, 2018, and which has the effect of terminating the Rights Agreement at 5:00P.M., New York City time 
on that date. 

ARM: ARM Energy Management, LLC, a natural gas supply and supply management company servicing commercial and industrial customers in Western Pennsylvania, which sold certain assets to PESCO 
in August 20 17 

ASC: Accounting Standards Codification 

· ASU: Accounting Standards Update 

Aspire Energy: Aspire Energy of Ohio, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Chesapeake Utilities, into which Gatherco merged on April I, 2015 

AutoGns: Alliance AutoGas, a national consortium of companies providing an industry-leading complete program for fleets interested in shifting from gasoline to clean-burning propane, of which Sharp is a 
member 

CDD: Cooling degree-day, which is the measure of the variation in weather based on the extent to which the daily average temperature (from 10:00 am to 10:00 am) is above 65 degrees Fahrenheit 

Cenlrnl Gas: Central Gas Company of Okeechobee, Incorporated, a propane distribution provider in Southeast Florida, which sold certain assets to Flo-gas in December 2017 

CGC: Consumer Gas Cooperative, an Ohio natural gas cooperative 

Chesnpenke or Chesnpenke Utilities: Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, its divisions and subsidiaries, as appropriate in the context of the disclosure 

Che.snpenke Pension Plnn: A defined benefit pension plan sponsored by ChesApeake Utilities 

Chesnpeake Postretirement Plnn: An unfunded postretirement health care and life insur11.nce plan sponsored by Chesapeake Utilities 

Chesnpenke SERP: An unfunded supplemental executive retirement pension plan sponsored by Chesapeake Utilities 

Chesnpeake SerYice Compnny: Chesapeake Service Company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Chesapeake Utilities and the parent company of Skipjack, CIC and ESRE 

Chipoln: Chi pol a Propane Gas Company, Inc, a propane distribution service provider in Northwest Florida, which sold certain assets to Flo-gas in August 2017 

CHP: Combined heat and power plant 

CIAC: Contributions from customers that are used to construct facilities 

CIC: Chesapeake Investment Company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Chesapeake Service Company, which is an investment company incorporated in DelawRre 

Columbin Gns: Columbia Gas Transmission, LLC, an unaffiliated interstate pipeline interconnected with Eastern Shore's pipeline 

Columbia Gns of Ohio: An unaffiliated local distribution company based in Ohio 

Compnny: Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, its divisions and subsidiaries, as appropriate in the context of the disclosure 

CP: Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity 

Credit Agreement: The Credit Agreement dated October 8, 2015, among Chesapeake Utilities and the Lenders related to the Revolver 

Degree-dny: A degree-day is the measure of the variation in the weather based on the extent to which the average daily temperature (from 10:00 am to 10:00 am) falls above or below 65 degrees Fahrenheit 
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Delnware Division: Chesapeake Utilities' natural gas distribUiion operation serving customers in Delaware 

Dclmnrvn Peninsula: A peninsula on the east coast of the United States of America occupied by Delaware and portions of Maryland and Virginia 

Delmnrva Peninsula naturnl gns distribution: Chesapeake Utilities' natural gas distribution opemtions, which includes the Delaware Division, Chesapeake Utilities' Maryland division, and Sandpiper 

Dodd-Frnnk Act: The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act 

DNREC~ Delaware Department of Natural Resources and Environmental Control 

Dt(s): Dekatherm(s), which is a natural gas unit of measurement that includes a standard measure for heating value 

DIS/d: Dekatherms per day 

Eastern Shore: Eastern Shore Natural Gas Company, a wholly-owned interstate natural gas transmission subsidiary of Chesapeake Utilities 

EGWIC: Eastern Gas & Water Investment Company, LLC, an affiliate of Eastern Shore Gas Company 

Eight Flngs: Eight Flags Energy, LLC, a subsidiary of Chesapeake OnSight Services, LLC, which owns and operates a CHP plant on Amelia Island, Florida, that supplies electricity to FPU and industrial 
steam to Rayonier 

EPA: United States Environmental Protection Agency 

ESG: Eastern Shore Gas Company and its affiliates 

ESRE: Eastern Shore Real Estate, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Chesapeake Utilities that owns and leases office buildings in Delaware and Maryland to divisions and subsidiaries of Chesapeake 
Utilities 

FASB: Financial Accounting Standards Board 

FERC: Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, an independent agency of the United States government that regulates the interstate transmission of electricity, natural gas, and oil 

FDEP: Florida Department of Environmental Protection 

FDOT: Florida Department of Transportation 

FGT: Florida Gas Transmission Company 

Flo-gns: Flo-gas Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of FPU 

Floridn Division: Chesapeake Utilities' natural gas distribution operation serving customers in Florida 

Fort Mende: Fort Meade natural gas division of FPU 

FPL: Florida Power & Light Company, an unaffiliated electric company that supplies electricity to fPU 

FPU: Florida Public Utilities Company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Chesapeake Utilities 

FPU J\·Jedicnl Phm: A separate unfunded postretirement medical plan for FPU sponsored by Chesapeake Utilities 

FPU Pen5ion Plan: A separate defined benefit pension plan for FPU sponsored by Chesapeake Utilities 

GAAP: Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 

Gntherco: Gatherco, Inc., a corporation that merged with and into Aspire Energy on April I, 201 S 

GRIP~ The Gas Reliability Jnfrastructure Program, a natural gas pipeline replacement program in Florida, pursuant to which we collect a surcharge from certain of our customers to recover capital and other 
program-related costs associated with the replacement of qualifying distribuLion mains and services 

GSR: Gas Service Rates 
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Gulf Power: Gulf Power Company, an unaffiliated electric company which supplies electricity to FPU 

Gutrstrenm: Gulfstream Natural Gas System, LLC, an unaffiliated pipeline network that supplies natural gas to FPU 

HDD: Heating degree-day, which is a measure of the variation in weather 
1
based on the extent to which the daily average temperature (from 10:00 am to 10:00 am) is below 65 degrees Fahrenheit 

ICE: Intercontinental Exchange is an electronic trading platform 

fGC: Indiantown Gas Company, a division ofFPU 

JRS: Internal Revenue Service 

JEA: The unaffiliated community-owned utility located in Jacksonville, Florida, formerly known as Jacksonville Electric Authority 

Lenders; PNC, Bank of America, N.A., Citizens Bank N.A., Royal Bank of Canada, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, which are collectively the lenders that entered into the Credit Agreement 
with Chesapeake Utilities 

MDE: Maryland Department of Environment 

l\'letLife: MetLife Investment Advisors, an institutional debt investment management firm, with which we entered into the MetLife Shelf Agreement 

Met Life Shelf Agreement: An agreement entered into by Chesapeake Utilities and MetLife pursuant to which Chesapeake Utilities may request that MetLife purchase, through March 2, 2020, up to $150.0 
million of unsecured senior debt at a. fixed interest rate and with a maturity date not to exceed 20 years from the date of issuance 

Met Life Shelf Notes: Unsecured senior promissory notes issuable under the MetLife Shelf Agreement 

MGP: Manufactured gas plant, which is a sile where coal was previously used to manufacture gaseous fuel for industrial, commercial and residential use 

MTM: Fair value (mark-to-market) accounting required for derivatives in accordance with ASC 8 I 5 

MW: Megawatts, which is a unit of measurement for electric base load power or capAcity 

Non-Qualified Deferred Compensntion Plnn: A non-qualified, deferred compensation plan ~nder which cenain of our executives and members of the Board of Directors are able to defer payment of all or 
a part of certain specified types of compensation, including executive salaries, cash bonuses, executive performance shares and directors' retainers 

NYL: New York Life Investors LLC, an institutional debt investment mcmagement firm, with which we entered into the NYL Shelf Agreement 

NYL Shelf Agreement: An agreement entered into by Chesapeake Utilities and NYL pursuant to which Chesapeake Utilities may request that NYL purchase, through March 2, 2020, up to $100.0 million 
of unsecured senior debt at a fixed interest rate and with a maturity date not to exceed 20 years from the date of issuance 

NYL Shelf Notes: Unsecured senior promissory notes issuable under the NYL Shelf Agreement 

NYSE: New York Stock Exchange 

OPT Service: Off Peak::: 30 or::: 90 Firm Transportation Service, a tariff associated with Eastern Shore's firm transportation service that allows Eastern Shore to not schedule service for up to 30 or 90 days 
during the peak months of November through April each year 

OTC: Over-the-counter 

Peninsuht Pipeline: Peninsula Pipeline Company, Inc., Chesapeake Utilities' whoJiy.owned Florida intrastate pipeline subsidiary 

Peoples Gns: The Peoples Gas System division of Tampa Electric Company, an unaffiliated utility in Florida that has a joint pipeline with Peninsula Pipeline 

PESCO: Peninsula Energy Services Company, Inc., Chesapeake Utilities' wholly-owned natural gas marketing subsidiary 

PNC: PNC Bank, National Association, the administrative agent and primary lender for our Revolver 
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Proxy Slntement: Chesapeake Utilities' defmitive Proxy Statement to be ftled no later than March 31, 2018, in connection with our Annual Meeting to be held on or about May 9, 2018 

Pruden tin!: Prudential Investment Management Inc., an institutional investment management n:m, with which we have entered into the Prudential Shelf Agreement 

Prudential Shelf Agreemenl: An agreement entered into by Chesapeake Utilities and Prudential pursuant to which Chesapeake Utilities may request that Prudential purchase, through October 7, 2018, up to 
$150.0 million of Prudential ShelfNotes at a fixed interest rate and with a maturity date not to exceed 20 years from the date of issuance 

Pruden tin I Shelf Notes: Unsecured senior promissory notes issuable under the Prudential Shelf Agreement 

PSC: Public Service Commission, which is the state agency that regulates the rates and/or services provided by Chesapeake Utilities' natural gas and electric distribution operations in Delaware, Maryland 
and Florida and Peninsula Pipeline in Florida 

RAP: Remedial Action Plan, which is a plan that outlines the procedures taken or being considered in removing contaminants from a MGP formerly owned by Chesapeake Utilities or FPU 

Rnyonier: Rayonier Performance Fibers, LLC, the company that owns the property on which Eight Flags' CHP plant is located, and a customer oft he steam generated by the CHP plant 

Retirement Savings Plnn: Chesapeake Utilities' qualified 401(k) retirement savings plan 

Revolver: Our unsecured revolving credit facility with the Lenders 

Rights Agreement· The Rights Agreement by and between the Company and BankBoston, N.A., dated August 20, 1999, as amended by that certain First Amendment to Rights Agreement by and between 
the Company and Computershare Trust Company N.A, as successor rights agent, dated September 12, 2008 

Sandpiper: Sandpiper Energy, Inc., Chesapeake Utilities' wholly-owned subsidiary, which provides a tariff-based distribution service to customers in Worcester County, Maryland 

Sanford Group: FPU and other responsible parties involved with the Sanford MGP site 

SCO Standard Choice Offer, a program offered by Columbia Gas of Ohio in which PESCO was selected as a natural gas supplier pursuant to a competitive auction to serve a pool of customers within 
Columbia Gas of Ohio's service territory from April 2016 through March 2017 

SEC: Securities and Exchange Commission 

Senior Notes Our unsecured long-tenn debt issued primarily to insurance companies on various dates 

Shnrp: Sharp Energy, Inc., Chesapeake Utilities' wholly-owned propane distribution subsidiary 

Shnrpg;u: Sharpgas, Inc., a subsidiary of Sharp 

SICP: 2013 Stock and Incentive Compensation Plan 

SIR: A system improvement rate adder designed to fund system expansion costs within the city limits of Ocean City, Maryland 

Skipjack: Skipjack, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Chesapeake Service Company that owns and leases office buildings in Delaware and Maryland to affiliates of Chesapeake Utilities 

S&P 500 Index: Standard & Poor's 500 Index, a stock market index based on the market capitalization of 500 leading companies, which is intended to represent the overall composition of the economy 

TCJA: Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of20 17, legislation passed by Congress and signed into law by the President on December 22, 2017, which among other things reduced the corporate income tax rate from 35 
percent to 21 percent, effective January I, 2018 

TETLP: Texas Eastern Transmission, LP, an interstate pipeline interconnected with Eastern Shore's pipeline 

Third Pnrlici11ntion Agreement: An agreement signed by FPU and the Sanford Group, which provides for the funding of the final remedy approved by the EPA for the property owned by FPU in Sanford, 
Florida 
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Transco: Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line Company, LLC, an interstate pipeline interconnected with Eastern Shore's pipeline 

Xeron: Xeron, Inc., an inactive subsidiary of Chesapeake Utilities, which previously engaged in propane and crude oil trading 
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PART I 

References in this document to "Chesapeake," "Chesapeake Utilities," the "Company," "we," "us" and "our" mean Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, its divisions and/or its wholly-owned subsidiaries, as 
appropriate in the context of the disclosure 

Snfe Hnrbor for Forwnrd-Looking Stntements 
We make statements in this Annual Report on Fonn 10-K that do not directly or e:'\clusively relate to historical facts. Such statements are "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of the Private 
Securities Litigation Refonn Act of 1995. One can typically identify forward-looking statements by the use of forward-looking words, such as "project," "believe," "expect," "anticipate," "intend," "plan," 
"estimate," "continue," "potential," "forecast" or other similar words, or future or conditional verbs such as "may," "will," "should," "would" or "could." These statements represent our intentions, plans, 
expectations, assumptions and beliefs about future financial performance, business strategy, projected plans and objectives of the Company. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they are 
made or as of the date indicated and we do not undertake any obligation to update forward-looking statements as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. These statements are subject to many 
risks and uncertainties. In addition to the risk factors described under flem fA, Risk FacJors, the following important factors, among others, could cause actual future results to differ materially from those 
expressed in the forward-looking statements: 

state and federal legislative and regulatory initiatives (including deregulation) that affect cost and investment recovery, have an impact on rate stmctures, and affect the speed and the degree to which 
competition enters the electric and natural gas industries; 
the outcomes of regulatory, tax, environmental and legal matters, including whether pending matters are resolved within current estimates and whether the costs associated with such matters are 
adequately covered by insurance or recoverable in rates; 
the impact of significant changes to current tax regulations and rates; 
the timing of certification authorizations associated with new capital projects; 
the ability to construct facilities at or below estimated costs; 
changes in environmental and other laws and regulations to which we are subject and environmental conditions of properly that we now, or may in the future, own or operate; 
possible increased federal, state and local regulation of the safety of our operations; 
general economic conditions, including any potential effects arising from terrorist attacks and any hostilities or other external factors over which we have no control; 
long-term global climate change, which could adversely affect customer demand or cause extreme weather conditions that disrupt the Company's operations; 
the weather and other natural phenomena, including the economic, operational and other effects of hurricanes, ice stonns and other damaging weather events; 
customers' preferred energy sources; 
industrial, commercial and residential growth or contraction in our markets or service territories; 
the effect of competition on our businesses; 
the timing and extent of changes in commodity prices and interest rates; 
the ability to establish new, and maintain key, supply sources; 
the effect of spot, forward and future market prices on our various energy businesses, 
the extent of our success in connecting natural gas and electric supplies to transmission systems and in expanding natural gas and electric markets; 
the creditworthiness ofcounterparties with which we are engaged in transactions; 
the capital-intensive nature of our regulated energy businesses; 
the results of financing effons, including our ability to obtain financing on favorable terms, which can be affected by various factors, including credit ratings and general economic conditions; 
the ability to successfully execute, manage and integrate merger, acquisition or divestiture plans; regulatory or other limitations imposed as a result of a merger, acquisition or divestiture, and the 
success of the business following a merger, acquisition or divestiture; 
the impact on our costs and funding obligations, under our pension and other post-retirement benefit plans, of potential downturns in the financial markets, lower discount rates, and costs associated 
with the Patient Protection And Affordable Care Act; 
the ability to continue to hire, train and retain appropriately qualified personnel; 
the effect of accounting pronouncements issued periodically by accounting standard-setting bodies; 
the timing and success of technological improvements; and 
risks related to cyber-anacks or cyber-terrorism that could disrupt our business operations or result in failure of information technology systems. 
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ITEM I. BUSINESS. 

CORPORATE OVERVIEW 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation is a Delaware corporation formed in 1947. We are a diversified energy company engaged, through our operating divisions and subsidiaries, in various energy and other 
businesses. We operate primarily on the Delmarva Peninsula and in Florida, Pennsylvania and Ohio and provide natural gas distribution, transmission, supply, gathering, processing and marketing, elecuic 
distribution and generation; propane distribution; steam generation; and other energy-related services. 

OPERATING SEGMENTS 

We operate within two reportable segments: Regulated Energy and Unregulated Energy. The remainder of our operations is presented as "Other businesses and eliminations.'' 

The following chart shows our principal business stmcture by segment and other businesses: 

Regulated Energy 

/ """"""Doulbu<loo J !lliwlll 
OJe~apeeike Oe~eO~on 

M!!r@nd 
Chesa~e-MarylaOO DMslon 

Sandp!pe-

Ilo!M! 
Chesapeake-Fiorl:laDrviSlcrl 

fPU 
fPU-Indl.:n.ownOWiol 

\....._ FPU·fcrtMUdeE»JJ!;Icn 

NaNtiiiG.asTre•umll:doft 
EasttmSt.>re·lrJ.erSI:atePiperne 

P,entr'!SUiaPJpel\"le-fbr~lntiaStMI! 
Pipe I~ 

El«tt''c DhlribWon 
fPU 

Unregulated Energy 

Pro,Pilne Dhlllbutloo 
Qp.im!!MPfOIMU!a M!!ryi!!IKiind 

Perunytv•nhl 
Sharp/SharJ:~as 

tlorldA 
FPU/Fio--ps 

NenuatGuGath!flnr,. PrCKus/111-
M.vtr:tlre, and Supplr 
AsplreEnerayo.fOhlo 

ttaNraiOISMllketlnc 
PES.CO 

Combine-d Heat And PIM'er Plant!CHP) 
El~htfiiiiS 

Other Businesse• 

lnlCICOinpell'f llee1Eit1111! And Othfl 
5kipjac:ll; 

"" coc 

The following table shows operating income for the year ended December 31, 2017, and total assets as of December J I, 2017, for our operating segments and other businesses and eliminations: 

rdollars inlhollmndsl Opemtlng Income TolaiAuel~ 

Regulated Energy 73,160 I, 121,673 
Unregulated Energy 12,477 261,541 
Other businesses and eliminations 206 34,220 
Total 85,843 1,4 I 7,434 

Additional fmancial information by business segment is set forth in Item 7, Mauagemelll's Di.\'Ctlssion aud Analysis of Financial Condtlion and Re~·ults of Operation, and item 8, Financial Statement~· am/ 
Supplementary Data (see Note 5, Segmemlnformatiun, in the consolidated ftmmciAI stalements). 

The following charts present operating income by type of energy delivered and areas served for the year ended December 31, 2017 and average investment by type of energy delivered and areas served as of 
DecemberJI, 2017. 
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Operating Income br Lnerro· Delinred au.d Area Served 

By Area Sun:d 

Annu lnn.s:fment b,· I.a11!mDelinril!d and :\.rea Se.rred IU 

.... 
{I) Averl!e ln\'es:lment is b-ased on investments for the 13-month period ended.Dec.."1Jlber 31,2017. 

REGULATED ENERGY 

Peninsula 

"" 
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Regulated Energy is our largest segment and consists of: (i) our natural gas distribution operations in Delaware, Maryland and Florida; (ii) our electric distribution operations in Florida; and (iii) our natural 
gas transmission operations on the Delmarva Peninsula and in Florida. All operations in this segment are regulated, as to their rates and service, by the PSC having jurisdiction in each state in which we 
operate or by the FERC in the case of Eastern Shore. Our natural gas and electric distribution operations are local distribution utilities and generate revenues based on tariff rates approved by the PSC of each 
state in which we operate. The PSCs have also authorized out utilities to negotiate rates, based on approved methodologies, with customers that have competitive alternatives. Some of our customers in 
Maryland are, and will continue to be, served with propane through our underground propane distribution system under PSC·approved tariff rates until we complete the conversion of the system and these 
customers to natural gas. These customers are included in the Delmarva Peninsula natural gas distribution operation's results and customer statistics. 

Eastern Shore generat~s revenues based upon the FERC·approved tariff rates Eastern Shore is also authorized by the FERC to negotiate rates with its customers above or below the FERC-approved tariff 
rates. Peninsula Pipeline, our Florida intrastate pipeline subsidiary, is subject to regulation by the Florida PSC and has negotiAted contracts with customers, including certain affiliates. Our rates are designed 
to provide the opportunity to generate revenues to recover all prudently incurred costs and provide a return on our rate base that is sufficient to pay interest on debt and a reasonable return for our 
stockholders. Each of our utilities has a rate base, which generally consists of the original cost of the utility's plant less related accumulated depreciation, working capital and certain other assets. In certain 
jurisdictions, the rate base may also include deferred income tax liabilities and other additions or deductions. 

The natural gas commodity market for Chesapeake Utilities' Florida Division and FPU's Indiantown division is deregulated. Accordingly, marketers, rather than a traditional utility, sell natural gas to end­
use customers in those jurisdictions. For all of our other local distribution utilities, we have fuel cost recovery mechanisms authorized by the PSCs that allow us to periodically adjust fuel rates to reflect 
changes in the wholesale cost of natural gas and electricity and to ensure we recover all of the costs prudently incurred in purchasing natural gas and electricity for our customers. 
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Overalional Highlights 

The following table presents operating revenues, volumes and the average number of customers by customer class for our natural gas and electric distribution operations for the year ended December 31, 
2017: 

Dclmnn·a Floritln 
Nalurnl Gns Dhlrlbullon Nntunrl Gns Dlslrlbullun Ill 

O(Jtl'llllng Ren"'1ues (intlrormmti.J) 

Residcntud 57,365 57% 38,703 38% 
Commcn:ial 31,585 32% 36,039 36% 
lnduslriol 7,619 8% 2!1,182 28% 
Othcr' 11 

3,504 3% (1,495) (Z)% 

Totnl O(ICF'IIIing rc,·cnucs 100,073 ]00% 101,429 100% 

Volunu:s (in Dis for llllllfml gru/MIVHsfor eledric) 

Residcntilll 3,368,603 28% 1,690,983 6% 
Commcn:inl 3,27-1,975 28% 7,019,970 26% 

lndustrinl 5,125,633 43% 16,105,084 60% 

Other 95,415 1% 1,875,761 8% 

TotKIVolurnes 11,864,626 100% 16,691,798 100% 

A' erage Number or Customers 111 

Residcnti11l 68,699 91% 70,206 90% 

Commercial 6,845 9% 5,475 7% 

lndustriul 147 -% 2,151 J% 

Other -% -% 

Tutnl Anrage Cus1un1en 75,696 100"/u 77,841 \00% 

'" Opc:mlin! Revenun from "Other" wurccs indude unbilled ~\'cnue, undcr{ol'er) riXOI'cnes of fuel co5t, consc!"'Diion ~l'cnue, other miscellana:11n cllarge!l, r~s for bilhng :<el"'icesprnl'ided to lh•rd rarll~s,.uud udju:.tmenl'l forpass-thruugh ta.ws. 
'" Flondanulurul gudistnbulion tntludes Chesapea!.c UtLiiliei' Florid~ Dil'ision, I'PU and FPU's Indiantown and Fort Meade di1isioll.'i. 
'"twerage number of customers i~ based ont>A'dl·e-month Pierage forlhe yeuended December 31, 2017. 

FPU 
Elcdrlc 

Dblrihullun 

44,082 53% 

41,141 50% 

3,561 4% 

(5,918) (7)% 

82,866 100% 

291,510 46% 

304,235 -18% 

27,380 4% 

7,511 2% 

630,636 100% 

24,574 77% 

7,450 23% 

-% 

-% 

32,026 100% 

The following table presents operating revenues and design day capacity for Eastern Shore for the year ended December 31, 2017 and contracted firm transportation capacity at December 31, 2017 

Oremllng Ren:nues (iullwll:stmtl:r) 

Loco] distribution compamcs -afliliatcd 111 

Loco\ d1stnbution companies- non-amliated 

Commercial and industrial 

Otherm 

Tc1lnl OjJeraling Rennut"s 

ConlrMeletl firm lntnsporiAIIon earndty (ill DI.IItQ 

l.ocnl distnbution wmpanics - nfl"iliPted 

Local distribution companies -non-nffilinted 

Conuncrcml11nd industri11l 

Total 

Design tlay cnp11clly (i11 D1Vtl) 

Enstern Shore 

18,350 32% 

22,782 39% 

20,485 3.5% 

(3,847) (6)% 

57,710 100% 

100,652 43% 

66,182 211% 

67,923 29% 

234,757 100% 

234,757 100% 

"'F..asl~m Shore's sen·ice to our local di51nbu1Lonllffiha1es is based on l'ERC·appru~ed nl~s nnd 1~ an in1cgrel component of the costa~ociated \\ith pro\iding nature.! giL'! supplies for !hose affiltales. We ehminale operating rennucs ofEMtem Shore agailllll the cost of5lllcs of those uffiliatcs in 
our consoltdatcd financial informahon; howC\"Cr, our local dtstlibutionuffilialcs il)l:]talc 11l1s QfllOUnl in their purchased fuel cos11111d ruoHritlhrough fuel cos1 reconry mcchllnisn1s.. 

11 ' Opemting fl:\"Cnucs frum •Other" sources on: frum lhe rental of ga.s properties und n:sen e for rate Cll'iC refund. 

Peninsula Pipeline contracts with both affiliated and non·affiliated customers to provide firm transportation service. For the year ended December 31, 2017, operating revenues of Peninsula Pipeline were 
$7 2 million, of which $4.5 million was related to service to our affiliates, FPU and Eight Flags, under contracts which were previously approved by the Florida PSC Peninsula Pipeline's operating revenues 
from FPU and Eight Flags are eliminated against the cost of sales in our consolidated financial infonnation; FPU, however, includes this amount in its purchased fuel cost and recovers it through the fuel cost 
recovery mechanism 
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As of December 31, 2017, our investments in our regulated operations were as follows· $136.5 million for Delmarva Peninsula natural gas distribution; $316.0 million for Florida natural gas and electric 
distribution; and $250.1 million for natural gas transmission. 

Weather 

Revenues from our residential and commercial S!lles are affected by seasonal variations in weather conditions, which directly influence the volume of natural gas and electricity sold and delivered. 
Specifically, customer demand substantially increases during the winter months, when natural gas and electricity are used for heating. For electricity, customer demand also increases during the summer 
months, when electricity is used for cooling. \Ve measure the relative impact of weather by using a degree-day methodology accepted by the utility industry. Degree-day data is used to estimate amounts of 
energy required to maintain comfonable indoor temperature levels based on each day's average temperature. Normal heating and cooling degree-days are based on the most recent 10-year average. 

Our Maryland division and Sandpiper's rates include a weather normalization adjustment for residential heating and smaller commercial heating customers. A weather normalization adjustment is a billing 
adjustment mechanism (or 11 decoupled" rate mechanism) that is designed to eliminate the effect of deviations from average seasonal temperatures on utility net revenues. Sandpiper received approval rrom 
the Maryland PSC to include in its rates a revenue normalization mechanism for residential heating and smaller commercial heating customers in 2016. 

We do not currently have any weather or revenue nonnalization or "decoupled'' rate mechanisms for our other local distribution utilities. 

Regu/aton Mailers 

The following table identifies the key regulatory agencies and highlights the most recent base rate proceeding information for each of our major utilities: 

OteJKjJcnkcUtllllles- ChesKjJcAke Utllltiu • ChcntpcAI(eUIIIIIies-
DehtWMn: Dh·hion Florltln Dh'l.don FPU N~~otural Gns FPU Electric Mnrylnml Dh"lslon Enslcrn Shon: SKntiplpcr 

Regulatory Agency: Dehmarc PSC Florida PSC FJorid11 PSC Florltln PSC MMIJ"Iand PSC FERC Mat:~'land PSC 
Commluion Struclu~: 5 conumssioncrs 5comrmssioners 5 commissioner.~ 5COntmiSSIOnCr.l 5 COffiffiiSS!Oncrs 5commiS.Sioncr.~ 5commissioncrs 

Pun-Time Full-Time Fuii-T1me Fuii-Tmtc Fuii-T1mc Fuii·Tmtc Full-Time 
GubcrnD.tonol Gubcmotoriul Gubemstoriul Gulx:matoriot Gubemntoriol Oubcmutonal 
Appoinlment Appomtment Appointment Appointment Appointment President !ill Appointment Appomtmcnt 

Oau: Rat~: Pruccctllng: 

Dcla}' in collection ofrntes subsequent to filing 
application GO days 90days 90dnys 90days 180dnys Up to IBOdnys 180dnys 
Application dote associuted with the most rcccnl 
pcrmancntmtes 12121/2015 0711~12009 12/1712008 07/0312017 05/0112006 1/27/2017 12/02/2015 

Effecti,·e dote ofpcrmtment rates OJ/O!f2017 Ot/1~/2010 OIIW2010' 11 
01103/2018 1210112007 08/0112017<11 1210112017 

Aruma] rate increase oppro\'cd'" $2,250,000 $2,536,300 $7,%9,000 $1,558,050 $648,000 l9,800,00<P' NIAITI 

Rate of return oppro\·cd'"' 9 75% u1 10.80%"1 10.85%"' 10 25%u"' 1 10.75%u' Not Statcd'11 Not Stated'" 
'''The ~::lfccti\'C date of !he order oppro\•ing the settlement agreement, which adjusted the rates originut1y appro\·ed on June 4, 2009. 
mEustcm Shore filed an uncontested settlemenlngreemcnt wi!h the FERC in December 20)7. FERC appro,•ed the settlement ugrecment b)' letter order on Febnmry 28,2018 The order \\ill be deemed final upon the expinH10n of the right to rehearing on 

March 30,2018 
"'Allowed after-tax return on equuy. 
'''The tenns of the sclllcmcnt agreement for the FPU electric division hmitcd proceeding with !he Florida PSC prescribed on authorized return on equil}' 111ngc of 9.25 to t 1.25 perccm, with a mid-pomt of 10.25 pcn:ent. The FI'U electric division cannot file 
for a bose rote increase prior to December 2019, unless its allo\\Cd return on equity is below the authorized range and 11 c:<pcrienccs on unonticip~~tcd and unforeseen event that imp;~cts the annual n.wcnuc requirement in e.~cess of $800,000 Within any 
contiguous four-month pcnod 
'
1'The terms of the ugrccmcnt include rewnue ncutml mtcs for the first }'ear, followed by 11 schedule of rote reductions in subsequent ycurs based upon the projected rotc of propane to no tum I gus con\·ersions. 
"'The table n:Occ\s mtc increases and ra1es of return uppro\·cd prior to the enactment of the TCJA on December 22, 2017. Sec Item 8, Piuu,cial Stalelllelll:r a11d Supplemenlaty IJala (Note 18, Rule:r a11d Other Regulatory Acli1•ilie:r nnd Note I 1,/ncome Taxe:r 
in the consolidated financial slotcmen!s) for further discussion on the impact of this legislation on ourrcgulutcd businesses 
'"The Maryland PSC oppro,·.:d o declining return on equity that wilt result inn decline in our mtcs 

In addition to the base rates approved by the PSCs, certain of our local distribUiion utilities have additional surcharge mechanisms that were separately approved by their respective PSC. The most notable 
surcharge mechanisms include Delaware's surcharge to increase the 
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availability of natural gas in portions of eastern Sussex County, Delaware; Maryland's surcharge designed to recover the costs associated with conversions to natural gas and to improve infrastructure in 
Worcester County, Maryland; and Florida's GRIP surcharge designed to recover capital and other costs, inclusive of an appropriate return on investment, associated with accelerating the replacement of 
qualifying distribution mains. 

At the end of December 2017, the United States Congress passed and the President signed into law, the TCJA, which is effective beginning with the 2018 tax yeu. Among other Lhings, the TCJA 
substantially reduces the corporate income tax rate to 21 percent, effective January I, 2018. Each state PSC, with jurisdiction over the areas that we serve, has issued, or is in the process of issuing, requests 
for information or orders directing utilities to make filings estimating the impacts of the TCJA on their respective costs to serve and to propose how the tax law changes are to be reflected in rates. We will 
comply with these orders and will make any necessary changes, as directed by the applicable PSC. The FERC has not yet issued any procedural orders on this matter; however, the settlement agreement that 
we fT\ed with the FERC in December 2017 outlined the procedures and proposed customer rates in the event of tax reform. We believe that the ullimate resolution of these matters will not have a material 
impact on our financial position, operating results or cash flows. 

See /lem 8, Financial Stalemenl.l' and Supplemenlary Data (Note 11, Income Taxes, and Note 18, Rates and Olher Uegu/atory Actil•ities, in the consolidated financial statements), for more information. 

Our natural gas and electric distribution operations and our natural gas transmission operations compete with other forms of energy, including oil, propane and renewables. The principal competitive factors 
are price and, to a lesser extent, accessibility. Our natural gas distribution operations have several large industrial customers that are able to use fuel oil or propane as an alternative to natural gas. When oil or 
propane prices decline, these interruptible customers may convert to an alternative fuel source to satisfy their fuel requirements, and our sales volumes may decline. To address the uncertainty of alternative 
fuel prices, we use nexible pricing arrangements on both the supply and sales sides of our business to compete with alternative fuel price nuctuations. 

Large industrial natural gas customers may be able to bypass our distribution and transmission systems and make direct connections with "upstream" interstate transmission pipelines when such connections 
are economically feasible. Certain large industrial electric customers may be capable of generating electricity for their own consumption. Although the risk of bypassing our systems is not considered 
significant, we may adjust services and rates for these customers to retain their business in certain situations. 

Supplie.l· Transmission aud Slorage 

We believe that the availability of supply and transmission of natural gas is adequate under existing arrangements to meet the needs of our customers. 
Our Delaware, Maryland and S!\Rdpiper divisions use their firm transportation resources to meet a significant percentage of their projected demand requirements. They purchase firm natural gas supplies to 
meet those projected requirements with purchases of base load, daily spot supplies and storage service. They have both firm and interruptible transportation service contracts with four interstate "open 
access" pipeline companies (Eastern Shore, Transco, Columbia Gas and TETLP) in order to meet customer demand. Their distribution system is directly interconnected with Eastern Shore's pipeline, which 
is directly interconnected with the upstream pipelines of Transco, Columbia Gas and TETLP. The following table summarizes the firm transportation agreements for Delaware and Maryland divisions: 

Di\•ision 

Delaware 

Maryland 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 2017 Form JQ.K Page 6 

CountergRrt~ 

Eastern Shore 

Columbia Gas 

Transco 

TETLP 

Eastern Shore 

Columbia Gos 

Tmnsco 

TETLP 

Mnximum Dnil;r Firm Trnns(!ortntion Cnnncity 
L!llil Contrnct Exuirntion Dnte 

72,029 2018.2028 

10,9GO 2019-2020 

21,423 2018-2028 

34,100 2027 

2G,G73 2018. 2027 

4,200 2018. 2019 

G,l28 2018 

15,900 2027 
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The Delaware and Maryland divisions als9 have the capability to use propane-air and liquefied natural gas peak-shaving equipment to supplement or displace natural gas purchases. 

Our Delaware and Maryland divisions contract with our natural gas marketing subsidiary, PESCO, through an asset management agreement, to optimize their transportation and storage capacity and secure 
an adequate supply of natural gas. Pursuant to the three-year asset management agreement, the asset mAnager pays our divisions a fee, which our divisions share with their customers 

Sandpiper is 1\ party to a capacity, supply and operating agreement with EGWJC to purchase propane, with a contract ending in May 2019. Sandpiper's current annual commitment is estimated at 
approximately 2.7 million gallons. Sandpiper has the option to enter into either a fixed per-gallon price for some or all of the propane purchases or a market-based price utilizing one of two local propane 
pricing indices. Sandpiper also has 1,950 Dts of maximum daily firm transportation capacity available from Eastern Shore through contracts expiring on various dates between 2018 and 2027. 

The following table summarizes the firm transportation agreements for our Florida Division and FPU: 

Division 

Florida Division 

FPU 

Countemnrty 

Gulfstrcmn 111 

FGT 
Pcnmsulil Pipeline 

Peoples Gns System 

Florida City Gns 

J\Iaximum Daily Firm Trnnmortntion Caoncily 
ill!!) 

10,000 

41,909-73,317 

25,000- 32,000 

2,660 

300 

Contract Expirntion Dnte 

2022 

2020-2041 

20JJ- 20JH 

2024- 2035 

2032 

"
1 Pursuant too copacily relca~ progrom approved by lh~! Florida PSC, all of the copneity under this agreement has been released to \'nrious third parties, including PESCO, Under the terms of these capacity release ogreemcnts, Chesnpcnke Utilities ts 

t:ontingl!ntly liable to Gulfstrcom should any party, thatac'luired the capacity through release, fail to pn)' the capacity charge. 

FPU uses gas marketers and producers to procure all of its gas supplies to meet projected requirements FPU also uses Peoples Gas to provide wholesale gas sales service in areas far from FPU's 
interconnections with FGT. 

Eastern Shore has three agreements with Transco for a total of 7,292 Dts/d offtrm daily storage injection and withdrawal entitlements and total storage capacity of 288,003 Dts. These agreements expire on 
various dates between 2018 and 2023. Eastern Shore retains these firm storage services in order to provide swing transportation service and ftrrn storage service to customers requesting such services. 

During 2017, FPU purchased wholesale electricity primarily from three main suppliers: lEA, Gulf Power rmd Eight Flags As of January 2018, FPU purchases its wholesale electricity primarily froffi Gulf 
Power, FPL and Eight Flags. The following table summarizes the supply contracts for FPU: 

Counternarh 

GttlfPower 

FPL 
Eight FIHgs 

Rayonier 

WestRock Company 

Contracted Amount (J\IWl 

Full Requirement 

Full Requirement 

21 

1.7 to 3 0 

As-a"nilnble 

Conlracr Eipirntion Onte 

2019 

2024 

2036 

2036 

N/A 

The Gulf Power contract provides generation and transmission service to the Northwest Florida service territory. The FPL contract provides generation and transmission service to the Northeast Florida 
service territory. The electricity purchased from Eight Flags, Rayonier and WestRock Company serves a ponion ofFPU's electric distribution customers' base load in Northeast Florida. 

UNREGULATED ENERGY 

Our Unregulated Energy segment provides: (i) propane distribution; (ii) natural gas marketing, (iii) unregulated natural gas supply, gathering and processing; (iv) electricity and steam generation, and (v) 
other unregulated energy-related services to customers. Revenues generated from this segment are not subject to any federal, state or local pricing regulations. Our businesses in this segment typically 
complement our regulated energy businesses based on the products and services they sell. 
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Propane Distribulion 

Our propane distribution operations sell propane to residential, commercial/industrial, and wholesale customers, including AutoGas customers, in Delmarva and southeastern Pennsylvania, through Sharp 
and Sharpgas, and in Florida through FPU and Flo~gas. Many of our propane distribution customers are "bulk delivery" customers. We make deliveries of propane to the bulk delivery customers R.s needed, 
based on the level of propane remaining in the tank located at the customer's premises. We invoice and record revenues for our bulk delivery service customers at the time of delivery, rather than upon 
customers' actual usage, since the customers typically own the propane gas in the tanks on their premises. We also have underground propane distribution systems serving various neighborhoods and 
communities. Such customers are billed monthly based on actual consumption, which is measured by meters installed on their premises. In Florida, we also offer metered propane distribution service to 
residential and commercial customers. We read the meters on such customers' tanks and bill customers monthly. As a member of AutoGas, Sharp and AutoGas install and support propane vehicle conversion 
systems for vehicle fleets Sharp continues to convert fleets to bi-fuel propane-powered engines and provides onsite fueling infrastructure. 
Pronaue Di:-;tribution -Operational Highlights 

For the year ended December 31, 2017, operating revenues, volumes sold and average number of customers by customer class for our Delmarva Peninsula and Pennsylvania and Florida propane distribution 
operations were as follows· 

Delman·R Peninsuln Rnt.l Penns,·h·nnlR 

Opera ling Rcnnues (ill tlloluamlJ) 

Residenli11l bulk 21,051 

l~csidenlilli metered 7,904 

Commercilllbulk 13,655 

Commcrcilll metered 

Wholesale 24,667 

AutoGns 2,3!8 

01her"' 5,033 

T~1111l Of!Craling Rennues 74,628 

Volumes (intlwll$1/llriJ ujgflllom) 

Rcsidcnti111 bulk 8,718 

Residential metered 3,352 

Conm1ercial bulk 9,032 

Commercial metered 

Who\es11]e 24,ol63 

AuloGas 2,159 

Other 3,500 

ToiR! Volume~ 5t,224 

A\Cnge Numb ... r urCushnners P> 

Residenti11l bulk 25,452 

Residential metered 8,669 

Commercial bulk 4,166 

Commerciu1 mclercd 

Wholes11le 35 

AutuGu 74 

ToiRt A\'en&gc Cuslumcn 38,]96 

"'Operating revenues from "Other" soun:.cs mdude revenues from energy-related merchandise, cuslomer loylllty progrnms: dcli\'ery, scn·iee and appl11mce fees; nnd unbillcd re\·cnues. 
<~>Avemge number of cus1omcr is based on twcl\·c-n10nth B\'eruse fur the }'Car ended 0...--cemher 31, 2017. 

Propane Distributwu- Competition 

28% 

II% 

18% 

-% 

33% 

3% 

7% 

100% 

17% 

6% 

18% 

-% 

48% 

4% 

7% 

100% 

66% 

23% 

II% 

-% 

-% 

-% 

100% 

florida 

6,123 28% 

4,735 22% 

5,104 23% 

2,119 10% 

920 4% 

-% 

2,946 !3% 

21,947 100% 

1,43J 23% 

893 lol% 

2,371 J7% 

827 13% 

8\2 13% 

-% 

-% 

6,336 100% 

9,059 55% 

6,08') 37% 

930 6% 

278 2% 

-% 

-% 

16,364 100% 

We compete with several other propane distributors in our geographic markers, primarily on the basis of price and service. Our competitors generally include local outlets of national distributors and local 
independent distributors, whose proximity to customers entails lower costs to provide service. As an energy source, propane competes with horne heating oil and electricity, which are typically more 
expensive (based on equivalent unit of heat value). Since natural gas has historically been less expensive than propane, propane is generally not utilized for horne heating in geographic areas served by 
natural gas pipelines or distribution systems. 
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Provane Distribtllwn -SuPPlies Transportalion and Storage 

We purchase propane for our propane distribution operations primarily from suppliers, including major oil companies, and independent producers of natural gas liquids. Although supplies of proprme from 
these and other sources are generally readily available for purchase, extreme market conditions, such as significant nuctuations in weather, closing of refineries and disruption in supply chains, could result in 
a reduction in available supplies. 

Propane is transported by trucks and railroad cars from refineries, natural gas processing plants or pipeline terminals to bulk propane storage facilities that we own in Delaware, Maryland, Pennsylvania, 
Virginia and Florida. These bulk storage facilities have an aggregate capacity of approximately 6.8 million gallons. We then deliver propane from these storage facilities by truck to tanks located on our 
customers' premises. 

Prooane Distribution Weather 

Revenues from our propane distribution sales activities are affected by seasonal variations in temperature and weather conditions. Weather conditions and their severity directly innuence the volume of 
propane used by our metered customers or sold and delivered to our bulk customers, with demand increasing substantially during the winter months when propane is used for heating. Sustained warmer-than­
normaltemperatures will tend to reduce propane use, while sustained colder-than-normaltemperatures will tend to increase consumption. 

Propane and Crude Oil WJwlc:sale !t.1arketing 

Prior to its wind down in the second quarter of 2017, Xeron traded in short-term natural gas liquids and crude oil fonvard and futures contracts on the InterContinental Exchange, Inc. Xeron settled its 
purchases and sales financially, without taking physical delivery of the propane or crude oil. 

Natural Gas Marketing 

We provide natural gas supply and supply management services through PESCO to residential, commercial, industrial and wholesale customers. PESCO operates primarily in the Southeast, Mid-Atlantic and 
Appalachian Basin regions. The following table summarizes PESCO's operating revenues by region in 2017: 

Opernling Revenues (iut/wtlstmtf.,.) % ofTotnl 

Southeast 
59,269 32% 

Mid-Atlantic 
87,241 47% 

Appalachian Basin 
38,009 21% 

184,519 100% 

PESCO competes with regulated utilities and other unregulated third-party marketers to sell natural gas supplies directly to commercial and industrial customers through competitively-priced contracts. 
PESCO does not currently own or operate any natural gas transmission or distribution assets. The gas that PESCO sells is delivered to retail or wholesale customers through affiliated and non-affiliated local 
distribution company systems and transmission pipelines. PESCO bills its customers directly or through the billing services of the regulated utilities that deliver the gas. In August 2017, PESCO acquired 
certain natural gas marketing assets of ARM. The acquired assets complement PESCO's current asset portfolio and expand our regional footprint and retail demand in a market where we have existing 
pipeline capacity and wholesale liquidity. 

In 2017, PESCO entered into asset management agreements with our Delmarva Peninsula n!\lural gas distribution operations to manage a portion of their natural gas transportation and storage capacity, 
which agreements were approved by the Delaware PSC with respect to our Delaware Division. The agreements were effective as of April I, 2017, and each has a three-year term, expiring on March J I, 
2020. 

Unregulated Natural Gas lufraslntclllre ServiceJ.· 

Aspire Energy is an unregulated natural gas infrastructure company that owns approximately 2,600 miles of pipeline systems in 40 counties throughout Ohio. The majority of Aspire Energy's margin is 
derived from long-term supply agreements with Columbia Gas of Ohio and CGC, which together serve more than 20,000 end-use customers. Aspire Energy primarily sources gas from JOO conventional 
producers and also provides gathering and processing services so thi\t it can maintain quality and reliability for ils wholesale markets. 
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For the twelve-month period ended December 31, 2017, Aspire Energy's operating revenues and deliveries by customer type were as follows: 

Supply to Columbia Gas of Ohio 

Supply to CGC 

Supply to Marketers- affiliated 

Supply to Marketers- unaffiliRted 

Other (including natural gas gathering and processing) 

Total 

Operating revenues 

(inlhou.mnds) 

11,827 

10,507 

4,027 

4,633 

2,330 

33,324 
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Deliveries 

(iu Dis) 

2,264 

1,345 

1,425 

1,725 

1,548 

8,307 

Eight Flags provides electricity and steam generation services through its CHP plant located on Amelia Island, Florida. The construction of the CHP plant was completed in June 2016. The CHP plant, which 
consists of a natural-gas-fired turbine and associated electric generator, produces approximately 21 MW of base load power and includes a heat recovery steam generator capable of providing approximately 
75,000 pounds per hour of residual steam. Eight Flags sells power generated from the CHP plant to FPU, pursuant t"o a 20-year power purchase agreement for distribution to its retail electric customers. Eight 
Flags also sells steam, pursuant to a separate 20-year contract, to the industrial customer that owns the propeny on which Eight Flags' CHP plant is located. During 2017, Eight Flags generated $15.0 million 
in operating revenues from the sale of electricity to FPU and $2.1 million from the sale of steam. 

The CHP plant is powered by natural gas transponed by FPU through its distribution system and by Peninsula Pipeline. For the year ended December 31, 2017, Eight Flags and other affiliates of Chesapeake 
Utilities generated $4.9 million in additional gross margin. This amount includes gross margin of $537,000 attributable to natural gas distribution and transponation services provided to the CHP plant by 
Chesapeake Utilities' regulated affiliates. 

OTHER BUSINESSES AND ELII\IINATIONS 

01•erl'iew 

Other businesses and eliminations consists primarily of other unregulated subsidiaries, including Skipjack and ESRE, that own real estate leased to affiliates, eliminations of inter-segment revenue and 
certain unallocated corporate costs which are not directly attributable to a specific business unit. Skipjack and ESRE own and lease office buildings in Delaware and Maryland to divisions and other 
subsidiaries of Chesapeake Utilities. See Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data (Note 5, Segment Information, in the consolidated financial statements) for more information. 

ENVIRONMENTA.L COMPLIANCE 

We are subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations governing environmental quality and pollution control. These laws and regulations require us to remove or remediate the effect on the 
environment of the disposal or release of specified substances at current and former operating sites. We have participated in the investigation, assessment or remediation, and have exposures at seven former 
MGPsites 

For additional information on each site, refer to Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data (see Note 19, .£Jn1ironmeutal Commitment~· and Contingencies, in the consolidated financial 
statements). 

EMPLOYEES 

As of December 31, 2017, we had a total of 945 employees, 118 of whom are union employees represented by two labor unions: the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers and Commercial 
Workers Union. The collective bargaining agreements with these labor unions expire in 2019. 

EXEClJflVE OFFICERS 

Set fonh below are the names, ages, and positions of our executive officers with their recent business experience. The age of each officer is as of the filing date of this report. 
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NRme A~ ~P~"'~!It~""~--------------~-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Michael P. 59 President (March 2010- present) 
McMasters Chief Executive Officer (January 20 II - present) 

Director (March 20 I 0 - present) 

Beth W. 
Cooper 

Elaine B. 
Bittner 

Stephen C. 
Thompson 

Jeffry M. 
Householder 

James F. 
Moriarty 

Executive Vice President (September 2008 - February 20 I 0) 
Chief Operating Officer (September 2008- December 2010) 
Chief Financial Officer (January 1997- September 2008) 

Nfr. JvlcMasters also previously served as Senior Vic:e Presidelll, Vice President, Jfea:mrer, Direclor of Ac:coullling am/ Rates and Coli/roller. 

51 Senior Vice President (September 2008- present) 
Chief Financial Officer (September 2008- present) 
Assistant Secretary (March 20 15-present) Corporate Secretary (June 2005 - March 20 15) 
Vice President (June 2005 - September 2008) 
Treasurer(March 2003- May 2012) 

Jv/s. Cooper also previa11sly serl'ed as A.'tsi.rtam Vice Presidelll, Assislant 1i·easurer, Direc.:tor of Imemal Audit and Director of Stra1eg1c !'Imming. 
48 Senior Vice President of Strategic Development (May 2013 -present) 

57 

60 

60 

Chief Operating Officer- Sharp, Aspire Energy and PESCO (May 2014- Present) 
Vice President of Strategic Development (June 2010- May 2013) 
Vice President, Eastern Shore (May 2005- June 2010) 
Ads. Billner also previously serwd as Direc.:lur of Eastern Shore, Director of Customer Services and Regula/my Affairs for Eastern Shore and Director of Em•ironmental Affairs and 
Environmelllal Al1gineer. 

Senior Vice President (September 2004- present) 
President, Eastern Shore (January 1997 - present) President and Chief Operating Officer, Sandpiper (May 2014 - present) 
Vice President (May 1997- September 2004) 

Alr. 1hompson also pre,•iously served as Director ofGm Supply and /l.tfarkeling for Eastern Shore, Superimendenf of Eastern Shore and Regionallvlanager for Florida drslnhution operati 
President of Florida Public Utilities Company (June 2010- present) 

Prior to joming Chesapeake Utilities, /l.k. Hou.\·eholder opaaled a con.wlting prac:lice that pmvide.d hu.\·iness del't!/opment and regula/my services to utilities, propane retailer.\· and iudu.It 
diems. 

Senior Vice President (February 2017- present) General Counsel & Corporate Secretary (March 2015 -present) Vice President (March 2015- February 2017) 

)mi•or.ski, LLP, both internalionalfml' firms wilh offices in Wmh;uglon, 
D.C. 

Prior to joining Che.mpeake Utilities, Jvfr. A~fonarly was a Partner at Locke l.ord LI.P and Fufbright & 

AVAILABLE lNFORMATlON AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DOCUMENTS 

Our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and other reports and amendments to these reports that we file with or furnish to the SEC are available 
free of charge at the SEC website hllp:llwww.sec.:.gm• and at our website, www.chpk.com, as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file these reports with, or furnish these reports to the SEC. 
The content of this website is not part of this report. 

In addition, the following documents are available free of charge on our website, www.chpk.c:om: 

Business Code of Ethics and Conduct applicable to all employees, officers and directors; 
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Code of Ethics for Financial Officers; 
Corporate Governance Guidelines, 

Charters for the Audit Committee, Compensation Committee, Investment Committee, and Corporate Governance Committee of the Board of Directors; and 
Corporate Governance Guidelines on Director Independence 

Any of these reports or documents may also be obtained by writing to: Corporate Secretary; c/o Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, 909 Silver Lake Boulevard, Dover, DE 19904. 

CERTIFICATION TO THE NYSE 

Page 20 of 120 

Our Chief Executive Officer certified to the NYSE on June I, 2017 that, as of that date, he was unaware of any violation by Chesapeake Utilities of the NYSE's corporate governance listing standards. 

ITEM lA. RISK FACTORS. 

The following is a discussion of the primary factors that mRy affect the operations and/or financial performance of our regulated and unregulated energy businesses. Refer to the section entitled Item 7, 
Nlanagemenl 's Dis,:ussiou and Analysis of Financial Coudilion and Re.\·ults of Operations of this report for an additional discussion of these and other related factors thitt affect our operations and/or 
financial performance. 

FINANCIAL RISKS 

!Jutcrhility amll•olatility in tire jimmcitll nwrllels couh/negutil•ely impact our uhi!ity to access cupitultrt competitil•e r11tes, whiclr co11ltl affect our uhility to implemeut our :llmtegic plan, wulerurke 
imprm•emeJII.I mul make other iiH•estmeuts required for our future growth. 

Our business strategy includes the continued pursuit of groW1h, both organically and through acquisitions. To the extent that we do not generate sufficient cash flow from operations, we may incur additional 
indebtedness to finance our groW1h. We rely on access to both short-term and long-term capital markets as a significant source of liquidity for capital requirements beyond the cash flows generated from our 
operations. 

In addition, our ability to obtain adequate and cost-effective capital depends on our credit ratings, which Rre greatly affected by our financial performance and the liquidity of financial markets. A downgrade 
in our current credit ratings could adversely affect our access to capital markets, as well as our cost of capital. If we are not able to access capital at competitive rates, our ability to implement our strategic 
plan, undertake improvements and make other investments required for our future growth may be limited. 

Our mrtuml gas marketing suhsitliury is exposed to market risks beyond our colllrol, which couh/utlt•er.l·e/y ttflect our jimmcitrl re.mlts mul c11pital retJilirements. 

Our natural gas marketing subsidiary is subject to market risks beyond our control, including market liquidity and commodity price volatility. Although we maintain a risk management policy, we may not be 
able to offset completely the price risk associated with volatile commodity prices, which could lead lo volatility in earnings. Physical trading also has price risk on any net open positions at the end of each 
trading day, as well as volatility resulting from (i) intra-day fluctuations of natural gas prices, and (ii) daily price movements between the time natural gas is purchased or sold for future delivery and the time 
the related purchase or sale is economically hedged. The determination of our net open position at the end of any trading day requires us to make assumptions as to future circumstances, including the use of 
natural gas by our customers in relation to anticipated market positions. Because the price risk associated with any net open position at the end of such day may increase if the assumptions are not realized, 
we review these assumptions daily. Net open positions may increase volatility in our financial condition or results of operations if market prices move in a significantly favorable or unfavorable manner, 
because the changes in fair value of trading contracts are immediately recognized as profits or losses for fimmcial accounting purposes. This volatility may occur, with a resulting increase or decrease in 
earnings or losses, even though the expected profit margin is essentially unchanged from the date the trAnsactions were consummated. 
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Our mlluml gas marketing subshliary is e.tpol·ed to the cretlit risk ofit.'i cmmterparties. 

Our natural gas marketing subsidiary extends credit to counterparties and continually monitors and manages collections aggressively. There is risk that our subsidiary may not be able to collect amounts 
owed to it. If the counter-party to such a transaction fails to perform, and any underlying collateral is inadequate, we could experience financial losses, which would negatively impact our results of 
operations. 

011r mrt11ml gus mar/reting subsidiary is dependent upon tile m'fliluhility of credit to successfully opemte its business. 

Our natural gas marketing subsidiary is dependent upon the availability of credit to buy natural gas for resale or to trade. If financial market conditions decline generally, or the financial condition of this 
subsidiary or of our Company declines, then the cost of credit could increase. If credit is not available, or if credit is more costly, our results of operations, cash f1ows and fmancial condition may be 
adversely affected. 

Fluc:ttwtiom; in proptme gas prices could 11eguti1•ely affect result.'i or opemtions. 

To compensate for fluctuations in propane gas prices, we adjust our propane selling prices to the extent allowed by the market. There can be no assurance, however, that we will be able to increase propane 
sales prices sufficiently to compensate fully for such fluctuations in the cost of propane gas to us If we are unable to increase propane sales prices sufficiently to compensate fully for such fluctuations, our 
earnings could be negatively affected, which would adversely impact our results of operations. 

lfwefuilto comply wit It our debt cm•entml obligfllions, we conltl t!..lperiellce m!J•er.l·e fimmcial cmuefJUences thrtl coultluffect our liquitlity amluhility w borrow fimd.\·, 
Our long-term debt obligations, the Revolver and our com mined short-term lines of credit contain financial covemmts related to debt-to-capital ratios and interest-coverage ratios. Failure to comply with any 
of these covenants could result in an event of default which, if not cured or waived, could result in the acceleration of outstanding debt obligations, a downgrade in our credit rating or the inability to borrow 
under certain credit agreements. Any such acceleration could cause a material adverse change in our financial condition. 

All iuc:reuse ;, i11terest rules muy ml1•ersely affect our resnlts of oper11tions flml cuslrjhm•s. 

An increase in interest rates, without the recovery of the higher cost of debt in the sales and/or transportation rates we charge our utility customers, could adversely affect future earnings. An increase in 
short-term interest rates could negatively affect our results of operations, which depend on short-tenn lines of credit to fmance accounts receivable and storage gas inventories and to temporarily fmance 
capital expenditures. Reference should be made to Item 7A, Quautitative and QualiJaJh•e Disc/o:ntres About klarket Risk for additional infonnation. 

Currenlmtirket conditions could mll•ersely imp11cll/te return 011 phm r1uets for our pension pltms, wlliclr 11my require slgnificttut mltlitiomtlfmuling. 
Our pension plans are closed to new employees, and the future benefits are frozen. The costs of providing benefits and related funding requirements of these plans are subject to changes in the market value 
of the assets that fund the plans and the discount rates used to estimate the pension beneftt obligcHions. The funded status of the plans and the related costs reflected in our financial statements are affected by 
various factors that are subject to an inherent degree of uncertainty, particularly in the current economic environment. Future losses of asset values and further declines in discount rates may necessitate 
accelerated funding of the plan~ in the future to meet minimum federal government requirements as well as higher pension expense to be recorded in future years. Adverse changes in the asset values and 
benefit obligations of our pension plans may require us to record higher pension expense and fund obligations earlier than originally planned, which would have an adverse impact on our cash flows from 
oPerations, decrease borrowing capacity and increase interest expense 

Clumges in lfL'( law:; or reguhllious, illcllllliug tire recently fldopted TCJA, "Ill)' ueg111h•ely affect our results of opemtions, 11et iucome,fitumcilll condition ami cash jloll's. 

We are subject to taxation by various taxing authorities at the federal, state and local levels. On December 22,2017, President Trump signed into law the TCJA, which significantly changes how the U.S. 
taxes corporations. The TCJA requires complex computations to be performed that were not previously required in U.S. tax law, significant judgments to be made in interpretation of the provisions of the 
TCJA, significant estimates in calculations, and the preparation and analysis ofinfonnation not previously relevant or regularly produced. The U.S. Treasury Department, the IRS, and other standard-setting 
bodies could issue guidance on how provisions of the TCJA will be applied or otherwise administered that may differ from our interpretations. As we complete our analysis of the TCJA, collect and prepare 
necessary data, and interpret any additional guidance, we may make adjustments to 
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provisional amounts that we have recorded that may materially impact our provision for income taxes in the period in which adjustments are made 

In addition, beginning in 2018, we expect to incur lower income tax expense, which will generally decrease our regulated energy businesses' projected effective income tax rates. Over time, the TCJA will 
likely result in lower regulated rates due to lower income tax expense recoveries and the potential refund of deferred income tax regulatory liabilities. We have used our best judgment in attempting to 
quantify and reserve for these estimated obligations generated by the TCJA. However, a challenge by a taxing authority, our ability to utilize these tax benefits in a different fashion, or a deviation from other 
tax-related assumptions may cause actual financial results to deviate from previous estimates (see Note II, Income Taxes, in the consolidated fmancia\ statements). 

The TCJA is generally expected to result in lower operating cash flows from our regulated energy businesses as a result of the elimination of bonus depreciation and lower customer rates. As a result, we 
may need to access additional debt and equity capital to meet our financing needs, which we assume will be available. 

Our stock price i1· subject to ~·olutility. 

The utility industry and the stock market as a whole have experienced more significant stock price and volume fluctuations that have affected stock prices in ways that may have been unrelated to operating 
performance. Our stock has experienced increased price and volume volatility as well. However, despite this increased volatility, we believe that our stock price should reflect expectations of future growth 
and profitability. We also believe our stock price should renect expectations that our cash dividend will continue at current levels or grow, although future dividends are subject to declaration by our Board 
of Directors. We cannot predict the level of volatility in our stock price or volumes traded, which may fluctuate based upon our actual performance, including growth, profitability, and dividends paid, as 
well as for reasons unrelated to our operating performance or not under our control. 

OPERATIONAL RISKS 

We 11re tlepemleut upon cmutructiou ofnewfucilitie.'i to supportflllure growth in etlfllings in our mtturul gus rtflll electric distribution 11m/ Jutlllml gll.f trtmsmission operatioJIJ, 

Construction of new facilities required to support future growth is subject to various regulatory and developmental risks, including but not limited to: (i) our ability to obtain timely certificate authorizations, 
necessary approvals and pennits from regulatory agencies and on tenns that are acceptable to us; (ii) potential changes in federal, state and local statutes and regulations, including environmental 
requirements, that prevent a project from proceeding or increase the anticipated cost of the project; (iii) inability to acquire rights-of-way or land rights on a timely basis on tenns that are acceptable to us, 
(iv) lack of anticipated future growth in avail<lble natural gas and electricity supply, (v) insufficient customer throughput commitments; and (vi) lack of available and qualified third party contractors could 
impact timely construction of new facilities. 

We operflle in tl competiti~·e etll'ironment, mu/we muy lo.fe crutomen; to competitor,f. 

Natural Gas. Our natural gas transmission and distribution operations compete with interstate pipelines when our transmission and/or distribution customers are located close enough to a competing pipeline 
to make direct connections economically feasible. Our natural gas marketing operations compete with third-party suppliers to sell natural gas to commercial and industrial customers. Failure to retain and 
grow our natural gas customer base would have an adverse effect on our fmancial condition, cash flows and results of operations. 

Electric. While there is active wholesale power sales competition in Florida, our retail electric business through FPU has remained substantially free from direct competition from other electric service 
providers. Generally, however, our retail electric business through FPU remains subject to competition from other energy sources. Changes in the competitive environment caused by legislation, regulation, 
market conditions, or initiatives of other electric power providers, particularly with respect to retail competition, could adversely affect our results of operations, cash flows and financial condition. 

Propane. Our propane distribution operations compete with other propane distributors, primarily on the basis of service and price. Some of our competitors have significantly greater resources. Our ability to 
grow the propane distribution business is contingent upon capturing additional market share, expanding into new markets, and successfully utilizing pricing programs that retain and grow our customer base. 
Failure to retain and grow our customer base in our propane distribution operations would have an adverse effect on our results of operations, cash flows and financial condition. 
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Fluctmltimu in weuther muy cmue 11 significunt mriunce in our ettruing.~. 

Our natural gas distribution, propane distribution and natural gas supply, gathering and processing operations, are sensitive to fluctuations in weather conditions, which directly influence the volume of 
natural gas and propane we sell and deliver to our customers. A significant portion of our natural gas and propane distribution revenue is derived from the sales and deliveries 10 residential and commercial 
heating customers during the five-month peak heating season (November through March) If the weather is warmer than normal, we sell and deliver less natural gas and propane to customers, and earn less 
revenue, which could adversely affect our results of operations, cash nows and financial condition. A significant portion of our Ohio natural gas supply, gathering and processing services revenue is also 
generated during the five-month peak heating season (November through March) as a result of the natural gas requirements of its key customers, including Columbia Gas of Ohio, vt~orious regional marketers, 
and the CGC. 

Our electric distribution operation is also affected by variations in weather conditions generally and unusually severe weather conditions. However, electricity consumption is generally less seasonal than 
natural gas nnd propane because it is used for both heating and cooling in our service areas. 

Accideuts, n11111ml disriSiers, seJ•ere weuther (s11ch as u major lmrricane) rtmltlc/s of terrorism coultltuil•ersely imp11ct eamings. 

Inherent in energy transmission and distribution activities are a variety of hazards and operational risks, such as leaks, ruptures, fires, explosions, sabotage and mechanical problems. Natural disasters and 
severe weather may damage our assets, cause operational interruptions and result in the loss of human life, all of which could negatively affect our earnings, financial condition and results of operations. Acts 
of terrorism and the impact of retaliatoty military and other action by the United States and its allies may lead to increased political, economic and financial market instability and volt~otility in the price of 
natural gas, electricity and propane that could negatively affect our operations. Companies in the energy industry may face a heightened risk of exposure to acts of terrorism, which could Affect our earnings, 
financial condition and results of operations The insurance industry may also be affected by natural disasters, severe weather and acts of terrorism; as a result, the availability of insurance covering risks 
against which we and our competitors typicnlly insure may be limited. In addition, the insurance we are able to obtain may hnve higher deductibles, higher premiums and more restrictive policy tenns, which 
could adversely affect our resulls of operations, financial condition and cash nows. 

Operuting e1•ents lllfectiug public safety nmltlle reliability of our 1111t11rlll gas uml electric tli.vtributitm tlmltrtlnsmis.vion systems could rub•er.sely lljfect our operllliom.- mul increase our co.vt.v. 
Our natural gas and electric operations are exposed to operational events and risks, such as major leaks, outages, mechanical failures and breakdown, operations below the expected level of performance or 
efficiency, and accidents that could affect public sAfety and the reliability of our distribution and transmission systems, significantly increase costs and cause loss of customer confidence. If we are unable to 
recover all or some of these costs from customers through the regulatory process, our authorized rate of return, our results of operations, fmancial condition and cash nows could be adversely affected. 

A security breach tlisruptiug our opemting systems mulfircilities or exposing colifulentilll ilifomllllion umy mb•ersely affect our reputtftion, disrupt our operrllions mul increm:e our costs. 
Security breaches of our information technology infrastructure, including cyber-attacks and cyber-terrorism, could lead to system disruptions or cause facility shutdowns. If such an attack or security breach 
were to occur, our business, results of operations and fmancial condition could be adversely affected. In Rddition, the protection of customer, employee and Company data is crucial to our operational 
security. A breach or breakdown of our systems that results in the unauthorized release of individually identif1able customer or other sensitive data could have an adverse effect on our reputt~otion, resul!s of 
operations and financial condition and could also materially increase our costs of maintaining our system and protecting it against future breakdowns or breaches We take reasonable precautions to 
safeguard our information systems from cyber-attncks nnd security breaches, however, there is no guarantee that the procedures implemented to protect against unauthorized access to our infonnation 
systems are adequate to safeguard against all attacks and breaches. 

Failure to 11/truct mul ret11i11 tm fi)Jproprit~tely tjtltllifietl employee workforce coulclm/J•er.'iely trjfect opemtitms. 

Our ability to implement our business strategy and serve our customers is dependent upon our continuing ability to attract, develop and retain talented professionals and a technically skilled workforce, and 
being able to transfer the knowledge and expertise of our workforce to new employees as our aging employees retire. Failure to hire and adequately train replacement employees, including the trt~onsfer of 
significant internal historical knowledge and expertise to new employees, or the future availability and cost of contract labor could adversely affect our ability to manage and operate our business. If we were 
unable to hire, train and retain appropriately qualified personnel, our results of operations could be adversely affected. 
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A Mrike, work .floppage or 11 lttbor dispute coultlm!l•ersely uffecl our opemfious. 

We are party to collective bargaining agreements with labor unions at some of our Florida operations. A strike, work stoppage or a labor dispute with a union or employees represented by a union could 
cause interruption to our operations. If a strike, work stoppage or other labor dispute were to occur, our results could be adversely affected. 

Our hru;iuesses ure cupital iutensi,•e, tmd tile i11cret1Setl costs mullor deluy.'l of cupitul projects may mb•erM!Iy affect our future eflrniugs. 

Our businesses are capital intensive and require significant investments in ongoing infrastructure projects. Our ability to complete our infrastructure projects on a timely basis and manage the overall cost of 
those projects may be affected by the limited availability of the necessary materials and qualified vendors. Our future earnings could be adversely affected if we are unable to manr~ge such capital projects 
effectively, or if full recovery of such capital costs is not permitted in future regulatory proceedings. 

Our regulllted energy business may be til risk i/ fnmchise trgreementl.· flre IWI renewed, or new frttnclrise 11greements fire 1101 obtllitretl, which could mb•erl.·ely t~ffect our fulllre results or opemtiug ct1s/I 
jloll's mulfimmciul contlitio11. 

Our regulated natural gas and electric distribution operations hold franchises in each of the incorporated municipalities that require franchise agreements in order to provide natural gas and electricity. Our 
natural gas and electric distribution operations are currently in negotiations for franchises with certain municipalities for new service areRs and renewal of some existing franchises. Ongoing financial results 
would be adversely impacted from the Joss of service to certain operating areas within our electric or natural gas territories in the event that franchise agreements were not renewed. If we are unable to obtain 
franchise agreements for new service areas, growth in our future earnings could be negatively impacted. 

Slowdowns in customer groll'th may mh•ersely tif/ect eflrningl· tiJUI ct1sh flows. 

Our ability to increase gross margins in our businesses is dependent upon growth in the residential construction market, adding new commercial and industrial customers and conversion of customers to 
natural gas, electricity or propane from other energy sources. Slowdowns in growth may adversely affect our gross margin, earnings and cash flows. 

Energy consen'lltion coultllower energy coltwtmptiou, wlliclr woultl tlll!•er.fely affect our eurniugs. 

We have seen various legislative and regulatory initiatives to promote energy efficiency and conservation at both the federal and state levels. In response to the initiatives in the states in which we operate, 
we have implemented programs to promote energy efficiency by our current and potential customers. To the extent a PSC allows us to recover the cost of such energy efficiency programs, funding for such 
programs is recovered through the rates we charge to our regulated customers. However, lower energy consumption as a result of energy efficiency and conservation by current and potential customers may 
adversely affect our results of operations, cash flows and financial condition. 

Commodity price incretlses muy mll•ersely tif/ecl the operating costs wul compelili1•e posilim1s of our llfl/llrtil g11s, e/eclric lfllfl propane di.flrihution operlltions, which IIIli)' (1(/J•erse/y flffect our rel.'lllll' of 
opemtimu, ct1shjlows mulfimmcial comlitio11. 

Natural Gas/Electricity. Higher nAtural gas prices can significantly increase the cost of gas billed to our natural gas customers. Increases in the cost of coal, natural gas and other fuels used to generate 
electricity can significantly increase the cost of electricity billed to our electric customers. Damage to the production or transportation facilities of our suppliers, which decreases their supply of natural gas 
and electricity, could result in increased supply costs and higher prices for our customers. Such cost increases generally have no immediate effect on our revenues and net income because of our regulated 
fuel cost recovery mechanisms. However, our net income may be reduced by higher expenses that we may incur for uncollectible customer accounts and by lower volumes of natural gas and electricity 
deliveries when customers reduce their consumption. Therefore, increases in the price of natural gas, coal and other fuels can adversely affect our operating cash flows, results of operations and financial 
condition, as well as the competitiveness of natural gas and electricity as energy sources. 

Propane. Propane costs are subject to volatile changes as a result of product supply or other mArket conditions, including weather, economic and political factors affecting crude oil and natural gas supply or 
pricing. For example, weather conditions could damage production or transportation facilities, which could result in decreased supplies of propane, increased supply costs and higher prices for customers. 
Such increases in costs can occur rapidly and can negatively affect profitability. There is no assurance that we will be able to pass on propane cost increases fully or immediately, particularly when propane 
costs increase rapidly. Therefore, average retail sales prices can vary significantly from year-to-year as product costs fluctuate in response to propane, fuel oil, crude oil and natural gas commodity market 
conditions. In addition, in periods of sustained higher commodity prices, declines in retail sales volumes due to reduced consumption and increased amounts of uncollectible accounts may Adversely affect 
net income. 

Refer to llem lA, Quantitali!1e aud Qualitatll•e Disclosures About A1arkel Risk for additional information. 
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A substfllllial tlbmtption or luck of growth in interslttle natuml gas pipeline trumuuh;siou mul.'ittJrflge mpacity ur electric lrtm.\·mhsiOJJ capllcify may impair our 11bility to meet cmdmuers' existing ttml 
future requireme111s. 

In order to meet existing and future customer demands for natural gas and electricity, we must acquire sufficient supplies of natural gas and electricity, interstate pipeline transmission and storage capacity, 
and electric transmission capacity to serve such requirements. We must contract for reliable and adequate upstream transmission capacity for our distribution systems while considering the dynamics of the 
interstate pipeline and storage and electric transmission markets, our own on-system resources, as well as the characteristics of our markets. Our financial condition And results of operations would be 
materially and adversely affected if the future availability of these capacities were insufficient to meet future customer demands for natural gas and electricity. Currently, our Florida natural gas operation 
relies primarily on one pipeline system, FGT, for most of its natural gas supply and transmission. Our Florida electric operation secures electricity from two external suppliers. Any continued interruption of 
service from these suppliers could adversely affect our ability to meet the demands ofFPU's customers, which could negatively impact our earnings, financial condition and results of operations. 

The amomll ami rn'flifttbility of llltlttral gas, propane tmtf electricity supplies 11re difficult to predict; tt subsltmlia/ retluctinu in m•ttiftthle supplies could reduce our ettmiug.~ ;, tllose segmentl·. 

Natural gas, propane and electricity production can be affected by factors beyond our control, which may affect our ability to obtain sufficient supplies to meet demand and may adversely impact the 
financial results in those businesses. Any disruption in the availability of supplies of natural gas, propane and electricity could result in increased supply costs and higher prices for customers, which could 
also adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations. 

We rely 011 t1 limitetl 1111111her of naturu( gas, prop1111e and electricity suppliers mul producers, tile /on of which ctmltllull'e tl nurteriul mh•erse effect on our jimmciul cmulitio11 mul remit.\· of opertllious. 
We have entered into various agreements with suppliers and producers to purchase natural gas, propane and electricity to serve our customers. The loss of any significant suppliers and/or producers or our 
inability to renew these contracts at favorable terms upon their expiration could significantly affect our ability to serve our customers and have a material adverse impact on our financial condition and results 
of operations. 

Our use of deril•tllil•e instrume111s IIUI)' mb•ersely tif[ect our results of opel'lltions. 

Fluctuating commodity prices may affect our earnings and financing costs because our propane distribution and natural gas marketing operations use derivative instruments, including forwards, futures, 
swaps, puts, and calls, to hedge price risk. While we have risk management policies and operating procedures in place to control our exposure to risk, if we purchase derivative instruments that are not 
properly matched to our exposure, our results of operations, cash flows, and financial condition may be adversely affected. 

Our mllurul gas murketiug s11bsitliary's earnings tmd operatiug cttsllflowl· tire depentlent11pon optimiztrtioll ofplry!iicul 11ssets. 

Our natural gas marketing subsidiary's earnings and cash flows are based, in part, on its ability to optimize its portfolio of contractual rights to utilize natural gas storage and pipeline assets. The optimization 
strategy involves utilizing its physical assets to take advantage of differences in natural gas prices between geographic locations and/or time periods. Any change among various pricing points could affect 
those differentials. In addition, significant increases in the supply of natural gas for this subsidiary's market areas, including as a result of increased production along the Marcellus Shale, can reduce the 
subsidiary's ability to take advantage of pricing fluctuations in the future. Changes in pricing dynamics and supply could have an adverse impact on its optimization activities, earnings and cash flows. Our 
subsidiary incurs fixed demand fees to acquire its contractual rights to storage and transportation assets. Should commodity prices at various locations or time periods change in such a way that our 
subsidiary is not able to recoup these costs from customers, the cash flows and earnings of our subsidiary, and ultimately, the Company, could be adversely impacted. 

Our propt111e im•elllmy is .wtbjec/ to im•ell/ory l'tlirlfltion risk, whiclr IIIII)' re.'mlt iu 11 write-down ofiuvenltJry. 

Our propane distribution operations own or lease bulk propane storage facilities, with an aggregate cApacity of approximately 6.8 million gallons. We purchase and store propane based on several factors, 
including inventory levels and the price outlook. We may purchase large volumes of propane at current market prices during periods of low demand and low prices, which generally occur during the summer 
months. Propane is a commodity, and as such, its price is subject to volatile fluctuations in response to changes in supply or other market conditions. We have no control over these market conditions. 
Consequently, the wholesale purchase price can change rapidly over a short period of time. The retail market price for propane could fAll below the price at which we made the purchases, which would 
adversely affect our profits or cause sales from that inventory to be unprofitable. In 
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addition, falling propane prices may result in inventory write-downs, as required by GAAP, if the market price of propane fAlls below our weighted average cost of inventory, which could adversely affect 
net income. 

REGULATORY, LEGAL AND ENVIRONI\IENfAL RISKS 

Regulution of our businesses, inclruliJJg clumges ;, tire regulatory en,•ironmem, muy m/,•en;;e/y uf!ect our re.mlts of opertllirms, cm;/rjloll's umlfimmciul comlitiou. 

The Delaware, Maryland and Florida PSCs regulate our utility operations in those states. Eastern Shore is regulated by the FERC. The PSCs and the FERC set the rates that we can charge customers for 
services subject to their regulatory jurisdiction. Our ability to obtain timely future rate increases and rate supplements to maintain current rates of return depends on regulatory approvals, and there can be no 
assurance that our regulated operations will be able to obtain such approvals or maintain currently authorized rates of return. When earnings from our regulated utilities exceed the authorized rate of return, 
the respective PSC, or the FERC in the case of Eastern Shore, may require us to reduce our rates charged to customers in the future. 

We muy J11ce certain regnl111ory tmdjimmcia/ risks telatetlto pipeline safety legij·/utimt. 

We are subject to a number of legislative proposals at the federal and state level to implement increased oversight over natural gas pipeline operations and facilities to inspect pipeline facilities, upgrade 
pipeline facilities, or control the impact of a breach of such facilities. Additional operating expenses and capital expenditures may be necessary to remain in compliance. If new legislation is adopted and we 
incur additional expenses and expenditures, our financial condi'tion, results of operations nnd cash flows could be adversely affected, particularly if we are not authorized through the regulatory process to 
recover from customers some or all of these costs and our authorized rate of return. 

We 11re subject to operating mullitig11fion risks tlmt may Jwt he fully co1•ered by in:mrtmce. 

Our operations are subject to the operating hazards and risks normally incidental to handling, storing, transporting, transmitting and delivering natural gas, electricity and propAne to end users. From time to 
time, we are a defendant in legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. We maintain insurance coverage for our general liabilities in the amount of $51 million, which we believe is 
reasonable and prudent. However, there can be no assurance that such insurance will be adequate to protect us from all material expenses related to potential future claims for personal injury and property 
damage or that such levels of insurance will be available in the future at economical prices. 

Co.,·ts of complirmce with em•ironmemttffml•s may be siguific(lnt. 

We are subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations governing environmental quality and pollution control. These evolving laws and regulations may require expenditures over a long period of 
time to control environmental effects at our current and fanner operating sites, especially former MGP sites. To date, we have been able to recover, through regulatory rate mechanisms, the costs associated 
with the remediation offm'mer MGP sites. However, there is no guarantee that we will be able to recover future remediation costs in the same manner or at all. A change in our approved rate mechanisms for 
recovery of environmental remediation costs at former MGP sites could adversely affect our results of operations, crtsh nows and financial condition 

Further, existing environmental laws and regulations may be revised, or new laws and regulations seeking to protect the environment may be adopted and be Rpplicable to us. Revised or additional laws and 
regulations could result in additional operating restrictions on our facilities or increased compliance costs, which may not be fully recoverable. Any such increase in compliance costs could adversely Affect 
our financial condition and resulls of operations. Compliance with these legal obligations requires us to commit capital. If we fail to comply with environmental laws and regulations, even if such failure is 
caused by factors beyond our control, we may be assessed civil or criminal penalties and fines, which could impact our fmancial condition and results of operations. 
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/Jerimtil't!S legislt1tion wul the implementation ofrelllletl rule.~ couftllull'f! tm ml1•er.H! impact m1 our uhUity to /ref/ge ri.t;ks associflletlwitll our bm-ines.~. 

The Dodd-Frank Act regulates derivative transactions, which include certain instruments used in our risk management activities. The Dodd-Frank Act contemplates that most swaps will be required to be 
cleared through a registered clearing facility and traded on a designated exchange or swap execution facility, subject to cer1ain exceptions for entities that use swaps to hedge or mitigate commercial risk 
Although the Dodd-Frank Act includes significant new provisions regarding the regulation of derivatives, the impact of those requirements will not be known definitively until regulations have been adopted 
and fully implemented by both the SEC and the Commodities Futures Trading Commission, and market participants establish registered clearing facilities under those regulations Although we may qualify 
for exceptions, our derivatives counterparties may be subject to new capital, margin and business conduct requirements imposed as a result of the Dodd-Frank Act, which may increase our transaction costs, 
make it more difficult for us to enter into hedging transactions on favorable terms or affect the number and/or creditworthiness of available counterparties. Our inability to enter into hedging transactions on 
favorable terms, or at all, could increase operating expenses and increase exposure to risks of adverse changes in commodity prices, which could adversely affect the predictability of cash flows. 

Ummticiptlletl c/umges iu our ttu: prm•isions or e:..:posure to mltlitimmlttL't.: liabilities coultltifJect our profitability wul cuslljlow. 
We are subject to income and other taxes in the U.S. Changes in applicable U.S. tax laws and regulations, or their interpretation and application, including the possibility of retroactive effect, could affect our 
tax expense and profitability. In addition, the final determination of any tax audits or related litigation could be materially different from our historical income tax provisions and accruals. Changes in our tax 
provision or an increase in our tax liabilities, due to changes in applicable law and regulations, the interpretation or application thereof, future changes in the tax rate or a final determination of lax audits or 
litigation, could have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows. 

Our husiuess may he .mbject iu tile jillure to mltlilimwl regul11tory mulfimmcial rids rl.fsociated with gloh11luwrmiug ami climate clrmrge. 

There have been a number of federal and state legislative and regulatory initiatives proposed in recent years in an attempt to control or limit the effects of global warming and overall climate change, 
including greenhouse gas emissions, such as carbon dioxide. The adoption of this type of legislation by Congress, or similar legisliuion by states, or the adoption of related regulations by federal or state 
governments mandating a substantial reduction in greenhouse gas emissions in the future could have far-reaching and significant impacts on the energy industl)'. Such new legislation or regulations could 
resull in increased compliance costs for us or additional operating restrictions on our business, affect the demand for natural gas and propane or impact the prices we charge to our customers. The direction of 
future U.S. climate change regulation is difficult to predict given the current uncertainties surrounding the policies of the Trump Administration. The EPA may or may not continue developing regulations to 
reduce greenhouse gas emissions. Even if federal efforts in this area slow, states may continue pursuing climate regulations. Any laws or regulations that may be adopted to restrict or reduce emissions of 
greenhouse gases could require us to incur additional operating costs, such as costs to purchase and operate emissions controls, to obtain emission allowances or to pay emission taxes, and reduce demand for 
our products. At this time, we cannot predict the potential impact of such laws or regulations that ~ay be adopted on our future business, financial condition or financial results. 

Clim111e c/umges mtly imp11ct the tlemmul for ollr sen•ices iu I he [lllure ami could result in more frequent mul more se1•ere wetrtlrer e1•ems, which ultimlltely coultl ml1•ersely uffec/tmr fimmcilll results. 

There is a growing belief that emissions of greenhouse gases may be linked to global climate change. Climate change creates physical and financial risks for us. Our customers' energy needs vary with 
weather conditions, primarily temperature and humidity. For residential customers, heating and cooling represent their largest energy use. To the extent weather conditions may be affected by climate 
change, customers' energy use could increase or decrease depending on the duration and magnitude of any changes. A decrease in energy use due to weather changes may affect our financit~l condition 
through decreased revenues and cash flows Extreme weather conditions in general require more system backups, adding to costs, and can contribute to increased system stresses, including service 
interruptions. Weather conditions outside of our operating territories could also have an impact on our revenues and cash nows by affecting naJural gas prices. Severe weather impacts our operating 
territories primarily through thunderstorms, tornadoes, hurricanes, and snow or ice storms. To the extent the frequency of extreme weather events increases, this could increase our costs of providing 
services. We may not be c:tble to pass on the higher costs to our customers or recover all the costs related to mitigating these physical risks To the extent financial markets view climate change and emissions 
of greenhou~e gases as a financial risk, this could adversely affect our ability to access capital markets or cause us to receive less favorable terms and conditions in future tinancings. Our business could be 
affected by the potential for lawsuits related to or against greenhouse gas emitters based on the claimed connection between greenhouse gt~s emissions and climate cht~nge, which could impact adversely our 
business, results of operations and cash flows. 
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Our certificate ofiJJcorpomthm mul bylaws IIIli)' delay or pre1•e11t tl trmtsuction t!Jtll stoc/clwlders woultl1•iew U.'f fin•urcthle. 

Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws, as well as Delaware law, contain provisions that could delay, defer or prevent an unsolicited change in control of Chesapeake Utilities, which may negatively 
affect the market price of our common stock or the ability of stockholders to participate in a transaction in which they might otherwise receive a premium for their shares over the then current market price. 
These provisions may also prevent changes in management. In addition, our Board of Directors is authorized to issue preferred stock without stockholder approval on such terms as our Board of Directors 
may determine. Our common stockholders will be subject to, and may be negatively affected by, the rights of any preferred stock that may be issued in the future. 

ITEM lB. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS. 

None 

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES. 

Ke)• Properties 

We own approximately 1,517 miles of natural gas distribution mains (together with related service lines, meters and regulators) located in Kent, New Castle and Sussex Counties, Delaware; and Caroline, 
Cecil, Dorchester, Wicomico and Worcester Counties, Maryland. We own approximately 2,906 miles of natural gas distribution mains (and related equipment) in Broward, Citrus, DeSoto, Gadsden, 
Gilchrist, Hillsborough, Holmes, Jackson, Liberty, Marion, Martin, Nassau, Osceola, Palm Beach, Pasco, Polk, Seminole, Suwannee, Union, Vo\usia and Washington Counties, Florida. In addition, we have 
adequate gate stations to handle receipt of the gas into each of the distribution systems. We also own facilities in Delaware and Maryland, which we use for propane-air injection during periods of peak 
demand. 

Through Eastern Shore, we own and operate approximately 457 miles of natural gas transmission pipeline, extending from supply interconnects at Daleville, Honey Brook and Parkesburg, Pennsylvania; and 
Hockessin, Delaware, to 96 delivery points in southeastern Pennsylvania, Delaware and the eastern shore of Maryland. Through Peninsula Pipeline, we own and operate approximately 44 miles of natural 
gas transmission pipeline in Indian River, Palm Beach, Polk and Suwannee Counties, Florida. We also own approximately 45 percent of the 16-mile natural gas pipeline extending from the Duvai/Nassau 
County line to Amelia Island in Nassau County, Florida. The remaining 55 percent of the natural gas pipeline is owned by Peoples Gas. 

Through FPU, we own and operate approximately 20 miles of electric transmission line located in Nassau County, Florida and approximately 896 miles of electric distribution line in Calhoun, Jackson, 
Liberty and Nassau Counties, Florida 

We own approximately 338 miles of underground propane distribution mains in Delaware, Dorchester, Princess Anne, Queen Anne's, Somerset, Talbot, Wicomico and Worcester Counties, Maryland; 
Chester and Delaware Counties, Pennsylvania; and Alachua, Brevard, Broward, Citrus, Duval, Hillsborough, Marion, Nassau, Orange, Palm Beach, Polk, Seminole, St Johns and Vol usia Counties, Florida 
We own bulk propane storage facilities, with an aggregate capacity of approximately 5.6 million gallons, in Delaware, Maryland, Pennsylvania and Virginia. In Florida, we own bulk propane storage 
facilities with an aggregate capacity of approximately 1.2 million gallons. These facilities are located on real estate that is either owned or leased by us. 

Through Aspire Energy, we own 16 natural gas gathering systems and approximately 2,600 miles of pipeline in Central and Eastern Ohio. 
We own or lease offices and other operational facilities in the following locations: Anne Arundel, Cecil, Dorchester, Somerset, Talbot, and Wicomico and Worcester Counties, Maryland; Kent, New Castle 
and Sussex Counties, Delaware; Accomack County, Virginia; Alachua, Brevard, Broward, Hendry, Jackson, Levy, Martin, Nassau, Okeechobee, Palm Beach, Polk and Vo\usia Counties, Florida; Onville, 
Ohio; and Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania. 

All of the assets owned by FPU are subject to a lien in favor of the holders of its first mortgage bond securing its indebtedness under its Mortgage Indenture and Deed of Trust. These assets are not subject to 
any other lien as all other debt is unsecured. FPU owns offices and facilities in the following locations: Alachua, Brevard, Broward, Hendry, Jackson, Levy, Martin, Nassau, Okeechobee, Palm Beach and 
Volusia Counties, Florida. The FPU assets subject to the lien also include: 1,970 miles of natural gas distribution mains (and related equipment) in its service areas; 20 miles of electric transmission line 
located in Nassau County, Florida; 896 miles of electric distribution line located in Calhoun, Jackson, Liberty and Nassau Counties in Florida~ propane storage facilities with a total capacity of 1.2 million 
gallons, located in south and central Florida, and 83 miles of underground propane distribution mains in Alachua, Brevard, Broward, Citrus, Duval, Hillsborough, Marion, Nassau, Orange, Palm Beach, Polk, 
Seminole, St. Johns and Volusia Counties, Florida. 
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ITEM 3, LEGAL PROCEEDINGS. 

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

As disclosed in Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data (see Note 20, Other CommNmeuls and Contingencies, in the consolidated fin;mcial statements), we are involved in various legal actions 
and claims arising in the normal course of business. We are also involved in certain administrative proceedings before various governmental or regulatory agencies concerning rates. fn the opinion of 
management, the ultimate disposition of these current proceedings will not have a material effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows. 

ITEM ... MlNE SAFETY DISCLOSURES. 

Not applicable. 
PART II 

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATIERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES. 

COMMON STOCK PRICE RANGES, COMMON STOCK DIVIDENDS AND STOCKHOLDER INFORI't-IATION: 

At February 20, 2018, there were 2,321 holders of record of our common stock. The high, low and closing prices of our common stock and dividends declared per share for each calendar quarter during 2017 
and 2016 are included in the below table. 

Dividends 
Declared 

Quarter Ended High Low Close Per Shore 

2017 

Mnrch31 70.70 63.00 69.20 0.3050 

June 30 77.75 68.65 14.95 0.3250 

September JO 81.95 74.80 78.25 0.3250 

DecemberJl 86.35 75.00 78.55 0.3250 

2016 

Mareh31 67.36 52 25 62 97 0.2875 

June 30 66 19 56.56 66 18 0.3050 

September 30 67.88 59.12 61.06 0.3050 

December 31 70.00 57.63 66.95 0.3050 

We have paid a cash dividend to our common stock stockholders for 57 consecutive years. Dividends are payable at the discretion of our Board of Directors. Future payment of dividends, and the amount of 
these dividends, will depend on our financial condition, results of operations, capital requirements, and other factors. We declared quarterly cash dividends on our common stock in 2017 and 2016, totaling 
S\.2800 per share and $1 2025 per share, respectively. 

Indentures to our long-term debt contain various restrictions which limit our ability to pay dividends. Refer to Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data (see Note 12, l.ong-Term Debt, in the 
consolidated financial statements) for additional information. 

FPU's first mortgage bonds, which are due in 2022, contain a similar resuiclion that limits the payment of dividends by FPU. Refer to Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplemellfary Data (see Note 12, 
Long-Term Deb/, in the consolidated financial statements) for additional information. 
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PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES BY THE ISSUER 

The following table sets forth information on purchases by us or on our behalf of shares of our common stock during the quarter ended December 31, 2017. 

~ 
October I, 2017\hrou!!h October 31, 2017 11

' 

No\'cmbcr I, 2017 tluuugh No\·embcr 30, 2017 

IXccmbcr I, 2017 through J)eccmber 31, 2017 

Toto.! 

TniRI 
Nurnber 
of ShAm 
Pun:luued 

373 

373 

A\'cflilge 
PrlccPaitl 
perShRrc 

7890 

78.')() 

Tolnl NumherofShores 
Pun·hued ns P11rl11f 

Puhllcly Annuunce•l Plnns 
urPrognlmJ 111 
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MR'I:imum Number uf 
Shnrcs ThKI Mny Yet Be 

Pun:hnsed Under the Pl11.ns 
or Prugnmu !JI 

In October 2017, we purchnsed shares of common stock on Lhc open market for the purpose of reinvesting. the dividend on shnres held in the Habbi Trust accounts for certain Dire~:tors and Senior Exccutn•cs under the Non-Qualified Deferred 
Compensation Plan. The Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Plan is discussed in dcl!lil in /lei// 8, FmaJiciuf Slaremenls m•d S11ppft!melllary• Data (sec Note 16, Employee Bellefil Plam, in the consolidRtcd linan.;illi statements) During the 
qunrtcr, 373 shares were purchased through the rcm\'estmenl of diVIdends 
Except for the purpose dcscnbcd in footnote u'. we hn\'c no publicly announced pl11m or progrums to repurehasc our shares 

Discussion of our compensation plans, for which shares of our common stock are authorized for issuance, is included in the section of our Proxy Statement captioned "Equity Compensation Plan 
lnfonnation" and is incorporated herein by reference. 
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COMMON STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH 

The stock perfonnance graph and table below compares cumulative total stockholder return on our common stock during the five fiscal years ended December 3 I, 2017, with the cumulative total stockholder 
return of the S&P 500 Index and the cumulative total stockholder return of select peers, which include the following companies: Atmos Energy Corporation; Chesapeake Utilities Corporation; Black Hills 1 

Corporation; New Jersey Resources Corporation; NiSource, Inc., Northwest Natural Gas Company; Northwestern Corporation; RGC Resources, Inc., South Jersey Industries, Inc; Spire, Inc; Unitil 
Corporation; Vectren Corporation; and WGL Holdings, Inc. 

The comparison assumes $100 was invested on December 31, 2012 in our common stock and in each of the foregoing indices and assumes reinvested dividends. The comparisons in the graph below are 
based on historical data and are not intended to forecast the possible future performance of our common stock. 

Chesapenke Utilities 

Industry Index 

S&P 500 Index 

$300 

S250 

S200 

S!SO 

SIOO 

so 

2012 

Stock Performance 

:o12 2013 201·1 2015 

--+- ChcsnJ>(akc Utilities ..........,_ lm..luslry lmlcx 

100 

100 

100 

2013 

136 

liS 

132 

2UU 

172 

153 

ISO 

201(> 

----- S& P 500 Index 

201.5 

200 

172 

152 

2017 

2016 

241 

202 

170 

2017 

287 

242 

206 
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JTEI\t 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 

OperRting 

(in thousands) 

Revenues 

Regulated Energy 

Unregulated Energy 

Other businesses and eliminations 

Total revenues 

Operating income 

Regulated Energy 

Unregulated Energy 

Other businesses and eliminations 

Total operating income 

Net income from continuing operations 

Assets 

(inlhousands) 

Gross property, plant and equipment 

Net property, plant and equipment 
Total assets 

Capital expenditures 
Capitnlizntion 

(m thousands) 

Stockholders' equity 

Long-term debt, net of current maturities 

Total capitalization 

Current portion of long-term debt 

Short-tenn debt 

Total capitalization and short-tenn financing 

$ 

$ 

Page 32 of 120 

For the Yenr Ended December 31, 

2017 2016 2015 

326,310 305,689 301,902 
324,595 203,778 162,108 
(33,322) (10,607) (4,766) 

617,583 498,860 459,244 

73,160 69,851 60,985 
12,477 13,844 16,355 

206 401 418 

85,843 84,096 77,758 

58,124 44,675 41,140 

1,312,117 1,175,595 1,007,489 

1,126,027 986,664 854,950 

1,417,434 1,229,219 1.067,421 

191,103 169,376 195,261 

486,294 446,086 358,138 

197,395 1J6,954 149,006 

683,689 583,040 507,144 

9,421 12,099 9,151 

250,969 209,871 173,397 

944,079 805,010 689,692 

These amounts include the fimmcial position and results of operation of FPU for the period from the merger closing (October 28, 2009) to December 31, 2009. ·1 hcse omnunts also indude the c!Tects of ncquisitton uccountip.a nnd issuance of our 
common shares as 11 result of the merger. 
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For the Year Ended December 31, 

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009(l) 2008 

300,442 264,637 246,208 256,226 269,438 138,671 116,123 
184,961 166,723 133,049 149,586 146,793 119,973 161,290 

13,431 12,946 13,245 12,215 11,315 10,141 14,030 
498,834 444,306 392,502 418,027 427,546 268,785 291,443 

50,451 50,084 46,999 43,911 43,267 26,668 23,833 
11,723 12,353 8,355 9,619 8,150 8,390 3,600 

105 297 1,281 175 513 (1,322) 1,046 
62,279 62,734 56,635 53,705 51,930 33,736 $ 28,479 
36,092 32,787 28,863 27,622 26,056 15,897 $ 13,607 

870,125 805,394 697,159 625,488 584,385 543,905 381,689 
689,762 631,246 541,781 487,704 462,757 436,587 280,671 
904,469 837,522 733,746 709,066 670,993 615,811 385,795 

98,057 108,039 78,210 44,431 46,955 26,294 30,844 

300,322 278,773 256,598 240,780 226,239 209,781 123,073 
158,486 117,592 101,907 110,285 89,642 98,814 86,422 
458,808 396,365 358,505 351,065 315,881 308,595 209,495 

9,109 11,353 8,196 8,196 9,216 35,299 6,656 
88,231 105,666 61,199 34,707 63,958 30,023 33,000 

556,148 513,384 427,900 393,968 389,055 373,917 249, lSI 
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For the Yenr Ended December 31, 

Common Slock Dntn nnd Rntios 

Basic earnings per share from continuing operations 

Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations 
Diluted earnings per share growth- I year 

Diluted earnings per share growth - 5 year 

Diluted earnings per share growth- 10 year 

Return on average equity rrom continuing operations 
Common equity I total capitalization 
Common equity I total capitalization and short-term financing 
Capital expenditures I average total capitalization 
Book value per share (2) 

Market price: 

High 

Low 

Close 

Weighted average number or shares outstanding <2> 
Shares outstanding at year·end <1> 

Registered common shareholders 
Cash dividends declared per share <2> 
Dividend yield (annualized) <JJ 

Book yield 

Payout ratio from continuing operations<-"> 
AdditionAl Datn 

Customers 

Natural gas distribution 

Electric distribution 

Propane distribution 

Total employees 

$ 

$ 

s 

2017 

3.56 

3.55 

24.1% 

12.3% 

10.7% 

12.6% 

71.1% 

51.5% 

30.2% 

29.75 

86.35 

63.00 

78.55 

16,336,789 

16,344,442 

2,334 

1.2,8 

1.7% 

4.5% 

36.0% 

153,537 

32,026 

54,760 

945 

These amounts indude the financial position and resuhs of operntion of FPU for the period from the merger closing (October 28, 2009) to Dccemb;:r 31, 2009 

2016 

2.87 

2.86 

5.1% 

8.4% 

9.3% 

11.3% 

76.5% 

55.4% 

31.1% 

27 36 

70.00 

52.25 

66 95 

15,570,539 

16,303,499 

2,373 

1.20 

1.8% 

4.7% 

41.8% 

149,179 

31,695 

54,947 

903 

Shores and per share amounts for nil periods prc~entcd rcllect the three-for-two stock spill dcclnrcd on July 2, 2014, elfectcd in the fonn of n stock d1vidend, and dislributcd on September 8, 2014. 
Oi\•Jdcnd yield (annualized) is calculated by mulllpl_ymg the fourth quar1er di,•idend by four (4), then dividing thnt amount by the closing common stock price at Decembt:r 31. 
The pnyoul mlio frnm continumg operolions is calculated by div1ding cRsh di\'idcnds declared per share (for the )"Cllf) by bnsie earnings per share from continuin[l operations 
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2015 

2.73 

2.72 

10.1% 

8.4% 

8.4% 

12.1% 

70.6% 

51.9% 

29.5% 

23.45 

61.13 

44 37 

56.75 

15,094,423 

15,270,659 

2,396 

113 

20% 

5.1% 

41.5% 

144,872 

31,430 

53,682 

832 
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For the Year Ended December 31, 

2014"' 2013"' 2012"' 2011"' 2010"' 2009(!)(1) 2008(!) 

2.48 2.27 2.01 I 93 1.83 1.45 1.33 
2.47 2.26 1.99 I 91 1.82 1.43 1.32 

9_3% 13.6% 4.2% 4.9% 27.3% 8.3% 2.3% 
116% 11.4% 9.1% 10.3% 8.5% 5.6% 24% 
8.5% 6.8% 8.1% 7.8% 6.7% 3.0% 6.7% 

122% 12.2% 11.6% 11.6% 11.6% 11.2% 11.2% 
65.5% 70.3% 71.6% 68.6% 71.6% 68.0% 58.7% 
54.0% 54.3% 60.0% 61.1% 58 2% 56.1% 49.4% 
22.9% 28.6% 22.0% 13.3% 15.0% 10.2% 15.7% 

20.59 19.28 17.82 16.78 15.84 14.89 12.02 

52.660 40.780 32.613 29 687 28.133 23.333 23.227 
37.493 30.560 26.593 24.000 18.673 14.680 14.620 
49.660 40.013 30.267 28.900 27.680 2LJ67 20.987 

14,551,308 14,430,962 14,379,216 14,333,699 14,211,83 I 10,969,980 10,217,772 
14,588,711 14,457,345 14,396,248 14,350,959 14,286,293 14,091,471 10,240,682 

2,329 2,345 2,396 2,481 2,482 2,670 I ,914 
1.07 I 01 0.96 0.91 0.87 0.83 0.81 
2.2% 2.6% 3.2% 3.2% 32% 3.9% 3.9% 
5.4% 5.4% 5.5% 5.6% 5.7% 6.2% 6.8% 

43.0% 44.6% 47.8% 47.4% 47.6% 57.6% 60.5% 

141,227 138,210 124,015 121,934 120,230 117,887 65,201 
31,272 31,15 I 31,066 30,986 30,966 31,030 
53,272 51,988 49,312 48,824 48,100 48,680 34,981 

753 842 738 711 734 757 448 
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

This section provides management's discussion of Chesapeake Utilities and its consolidated subsidiaries, with specific infonnation on results of operations, liquidity and capital resources, as well as 
discussion of how certain accounting principles affect our financial statements. It includes management's inlerpretation of our financial results and our operating segments, the factors affecting these results, 
the major factors expected to affect future operating results as well as investment and financing plans This discussion should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and notes 
thereto in Item 8, Financial Statemellls and Supplemelllary Data. 

Several factors exist that could influence our future financial performance, some of which are described in Item lA, Risk /actors. They should be considered in connection with fonvard-looking statements 
contained in this report, or otherwise made by or on behalf of us, since these factors could cause actual results and conditions to differ materially from those set out in such forward-looking statements. 

7he following discussions and those later in the document on operating income and segmem results include the use of the term "gros.'i margin," which is determined by deducting the cost of sales from 
operating revenue. Cost of .\·ales includes the purchased co_,., of natural gas, elec:tridly and propane and the cost of labor spent on direct revenue-producing activities, and excludes depredation, 
amortization and accretion Gross margin ,\·hotrld nul be considered an altemath•e to operating income or net income, which are determined in accordance wilh GAAP. We believe !lmt gro.u margin, 
although a nun-GAAP measure, is useful and meamngfulto im>estors a.'i a basis fiJr making m1•estme111 decisions. II provides im•estor.l· wilb information that demonstrates the profitability achieved by liS 
under our allowed rates for regulated energy operations and under our cumpetifh•e pricing struc/ures for unregulated energy operations. Our management uses gro.\'S margin in mea:•;uriug our business 
units' performance and has hisfOrically analyzed and reported gross margin informarwn publicly. Other companies may calculate gross margin in a different manner. 

Unles.\· otherwise 1101ed, earnings per share information is pre.'iellled on a diluted basis. 

INTRODUCflON 

We are a diversified energy company engaged, directly or through our various operating divisions and subsidiaries, in regulated and unregulated energy businesses. 

Our strategy is focused on growing earnings from a stable utility foundation and investing in related businesses and services that provide opportunities for returns greater than traditional utility returns. We 
are focused on identifying and developing opportunities across the energy value chain, with emphasis on midstream and downstream investments that are accretive to earnings per share and consistent with 
our long.ferm growth strategy. 

The key elements of this strategy include: 
executing a capital investment program in pursuit of growth opportunities that generate returns equal to or greater than our cost of capital; 
expanding our energy distribution and transmission businesses organically as well as into new geographic areRs; 
providing new services in our current service areas; 
expanding our footprint in potential growth markets through strategic acquisitions; 
entering new unregulated energy markets and business lines that will complement our existing operating units and growth strategy while capitalizing on opportunities across the energy value chain; 
and 
differentiating the Company as a full-service energy supplier/partner/provider through a customer-centric model. 

Given our strong utility foundation and the growth that Eastern Shore and Peninsula Pipeline have cultivated for the Company, we will con~inue to seek out opportunities like Aspire Energy, building on our 
existing midstream capabilities and pursuing additional midstream assets. In this regard, we will seek to leverage our pipeline capabilities, skill sets and assets and be a preferred owner and operator of 
pipeline systems to serve high growth markets within and beyond our existi!lg footprint. 
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OVERVIEW AND HIGHLIGHTS 

(m llrousm~tls exceeJl!!J.r share dalo/ Incrense Increase 
For the Yenr Ended December 31 1 2017 2016 (decrense) 2016 2015 (decrease) 
OpenHing Income: 

Regulated Energy $ 73,160 69,851 3,309 69,851 60,985 8,866 
Unregul~ted Energy 12,477 13,844 (1,367) 13,844 16,355 (2,511) 
Other businesses and eliminations 206 401 (195) 401 418 (17) 

Totnl Opernling Income 85,843 84,096 1,747 84,096 77,758 6,338 
Other income (expense) (765) (441) (324) (441) 293 (734) 
Interest charges 12,645 10,639 2,006 10,639 10,006 633 
Income Before Income Tnxes 72,433 73,016 (583) 73,016 68,045 4,971 
Income I axes 14,309 28,341 (14,032) 28,341 26,905 1,436 
Net Income 58,124 44,675 13,449 44,675 41,140 3,535 
Enrnings Per Shnre of Common Slock: 

Basic $ 3.56 2.87 0.69 2.87 2.73 0.14 
Diluted 3.55 2.86 0.69 2.86 2.72 0.14 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 2017 Forrn 10-K Page 29 

https://www.sec.gov/ Archives/edgar/data/19745/0001628280 18002594/cpk123120 171 0- ... 10/18/2018 



Document 

1 Table of Contents 

2017 compuretltu 20/6 
Our net income increased by approximately $13.4 million or $0.69 per share (diluted) in 2017, compared to 2016. Key variances included: 

(in thoum11ds, e.'Ccept per share duta) 

Year ended December J I, 2016 Reported Results 

Adjusting for unusual items: 

Federal tax reform impact 

PESCO ·unrealized MTM loss 

Impact of winding down ofXeron operations and absence of 2016 loss 

Weather impact 

Increased (Decreased) Gross Margins: 

Eight Flags' CHP plant 

Implementation of new base rates for Eastern Shore* 
PESCO- margin from operations 

Natural gas growth (excluding service expansions) 

Service expansions* 

GRIP' 

Aspire Energy rates and management fees 

Custo'!ler consumption (non-weather) 

Implementation of Delaware Division settled rates 

Wholesale propane sales and margins 

Retail propane margins 

Sandpiper SIR 

(Increased) Decreased Other Operating Expenses. 

Higher payroll expense 

Higher depreciation, asset removal and property tax costs due to new capital investments 
Eight Flags' operating expenses 

Higher benefit and other employee-related expenses 

Higher regulatory expenses associated with rate f1lings 

Higher taxes other than property and income 

Lower credit, collections & customer service expenses 

Lower outside services and facilities maintenance costs 

Higher vehicle expenses 

Higher sales and advertising expenses 

Increase in outstanding shares from the September 2016 public offering 

Interest charges 

Change in other expense 

Change in effective tax rate prior to tax reform 

Net other changes 

Year ended December 31, 2017 Reported Resulls 

., See the l'\'IAjor Projects nnd Initiatives lnble. 
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Pre-tnx 
Income 

73,016 

(S,783) 

74S 

S78 

(4,460) 

4,901 

3,693 

3,36S 

2,818 

2,062 

1,902 

1,12S 

721 

831 

678 

64S 

291 

23,032 

(6,487) 

(S,I20) 

(2,920) 

(1,48S) 

(l,OOS) 

(739) 

SIS 

417 

(372) 

(2S9) 

(l7,4SS) 

(2,006) 

(191) 

497 

72,433 
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Net Enrnings 
Income Per Shnre 

44,67S 2.86 

14,299 0 87 

(3,499) (0 21) 

4S1 O.DJ 

350 0,02 

11,601 0.71 

2,96S 0.19 

2,234 0.14 

2,036 0.13 

1,70S O.ll 

1,248 0 08 

I,ISI 0 07 

680 0.04 

436 O.DJ 

SOJ 0.03 

410 0.03 

390 0.02 

176 0.01 

13,934 0.88 

(3,92S) (0.2S) 

(3,098) (0.20) 

(1,767) (0 ll) 

(899) (0 06) 

(608) (0.04) 

(447) (0.03) 

311 0.02 

2S2 0.02 

(22S) (0.01) 

(IS7) (0 01) 

(IO,S63) (0.67) 

(0.16) 

(1,214) (0.08) 

(liS) (0.01) 

(SOO) (0.03) 

306 O.OS 

58,124 3.55 
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2016 compared to 2015 

Our net income increased by approximately $3 5 million or $0.14 per share (diluted) in 2016, compared to 2015. 

(iu1lwusa11d.r, except per .rhafl' dulu) 

Year ended December 31, 2015 Reported Results 

Adjusting for unusual items: 

Weather impact, primarily in the first quarter 
Net gain from settlement agreement associated with customer billing system 

Increased (Decreased) Gross Margins: 

Service expansions• 

Eight Flags' CHP' 
GRIP' 

Natural gas growth (excluding service expansions) 

Lower retail propane margins 

Higher customer consumption- other 

Implementation of Delaware Division new rates* 
PES CO 

Xeron trading losses 

Sandpiper margins associated with conversions 

Sharp energy·related services 

Increased Other Operating Expenses: 
Higher staffing and associated costs 

Higher depreciation, asset removal and property tax costs due to new capital investments 
Higher Eight Flags' operating expenses 

Higher outside service and facility maintenance costs 

Net contribution from Aspire Energy 

Increase in outstanding. sh~tres from September 2016 public offering 
Interest charges 

Change in other income (expense) 

Chrmge in effective tax rate 

Net other changes 

Year ended December 31, 2016 Reponed Results 

*See the 1\'lnjor Projects nnd Initiatives tnble. 

Key variances included: 
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Pre-hn Net Enrnings 
Jncome Income Per Shnre 

68,045 41,140 2.72 

(3,595) (2,200) (0.15) 
(1,370) (838) (0.06) 

(4,965) (3,038) (0.21) 

7,192 4,400 0 30 
4,998 3,058 0.21 
4,044 2,474 0.17 
2,734 1,673 0.11 

(2,770) (1,695) (0.11) 
1,899 1,162 0.08 

1,487 910 0.06 
1,043 638 0.04 

(847) (518) (0.04) 
736 450 0.03 

(512) (3 13) (0 02) 

20,004 12,239 0.83 

(4,443) (2,718) (0.18) 
(2,952) (1,806) (0.12) 
(2,432) (1,488) (0.10) 

(974) (596) (0.04) 

(10,801) (6,608) (0.44) 

3,130 1,915 0.09 

(0.05) 

(633) (387) (0.03) 

(734) (449) (0.03) 

530 0.04 

(1,030) (667) (0 06) 

73,016 44,675 2.86 
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SUI\IJ\IARY OF KEY FACTORS 

1\lujur Projects umllnitiarives 

The following table summarizes gross margin for our major projects and initiatives recently completed and initiatives currently underway, but which will be completed in the future. Gross margin reflects 
operating revenue less cost of sales, excluding depreciation, amortization and accretion (dollars in thousands): 

Gnm M11rgin fur lhe Period 

\'ear Ended Yeur Entlt!.l 

DecemllcrJI, Dcc~mhcrJI, E!Unmh: for 

2017 2016 VAtiltnce 2016 2015 Vw.riKnc~ 2018 2019 
Exbling M11jnr Projects Knd Inltlnlfns 

Capital hwcslmcnt Projects 38,251 29,8\9 8,·132 29,819 14,304 15,515 34,04] 34,137 
Eastcm Shore Rate Cltse 01

' 3,693 3,693 9,800 9,800 
Scuh:d Delawnrc Division Rate Coso: 2,318 1,487 831 1,487 1,487 2,250 2,250 
Elcctnc Limited Proceeding ·~ 94 1,558 1,558 

Total E:dsllnl', Major Prujccts 11nd lnllh&lh·cs 44,356 31,306 13,050 31,306 14,304 17,002 47,649 47,745 
Fulurt M11j11t ProJ~cls 11nd lnlllnlh·es 

CK(IIIRI lnnslnu:nl Projcc!J 

2017 Easlem Shore System E-xpansion ~J] 413 9,708 15,799 
Nonhwcst Florida Expansion 3,484 (,,032 

Olhcr Florida Pipeline Expansions 631 1,131 
Total Fulurc Major Projccls nnd lnitinli\'cs m 433 13,827 22,962 

Tohd -l.j,789 31,306 13,483 31,306 14,304 17,002 61,476 70,707 
111Ellstcm Shore fil.:d an uncontested selllemcntal!rccment \\llh the FERC m IA--ccmb.!r 2017. FERC approved the sclllcmcnt ngreem.:nl by u lcllcr order on February 28, 2018 I he order \\Ill be deemed finn] upon the e:-;plralwn of the nghtto rchcnnng on 
March30, 2018. 

Ailljor Projects mullnitiflth•es Recellt/y Completed 
The following table summruizes gross margin generated by our mr~jor projects and initiatives recently completed (dollars in thousands): 

Cnpltalln\·eslmcnl Prolccls: 

Scn·iceEl:JIRnslon!: 

Short-1cnn contracts (Delaware) 

Long-tcnn contracls (lJclawnre) 

Long-tcnn contracts (Florida) 

TuiKI Scn·lc~ EXJIRR!Illlll 

fl11ri!.la GRIP 

Eighl f]Mgs' CHP Plnnl 

Tolnl CnpfiRI Innslmcnl Projcch 
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2017 

6,522 

8,Ul 

lJS 

1-1,898 

IJ,.j5.j 

9,899 

38,251 

YcnrEnded 

DcccmhcrJI, 

2016 Vnrlnnce 

11,454 (4,932) 

1,815 6,326 

23l 

13,269 1,629 

11,552 1,902 

4,998 4,901 

29,819 8,432 

Gmu Morgin for lhe Period 

Year End~tl 

Dccemlu:rJI, 

2UI6 2UI5 

11,454 4,952 

1,815 1,844 

13,269 6,7% 

11,552 7,508 

4,998 

29,819 1-1.304 

https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/19745/000162828018002594/cpk123120 171 0- ... 

VnriKn~ 

6,502 

(29) 

6,473 

4,044 

4,998 
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Senice Expansions 

While Oak Mainline ExpmJS;ou Project 
In August 2014, Eastern Shore entered into a precedent agreement with an electric power generator in Kent County, Delaware, to provide a 20-year natural gas transmission for 45,000 Dts/d. In July 2016, 
the FERC authorized Eastern Shore to construct and operate the project, which consists of5.4 miles of 16-inch pipeline looping and new compression capability in Delaware. Eastern Shore provided interim 
services to this customer until construction was completed and long-term service commenced in March 2017. This service generated an additional gross margin of $85,000 during the year ended 
December 31, 2017 compared to 2016. Service provided under the 20-year agreement generated gross margin of $7.5 million during 2017 and is expected to generate between $5.8 million and $7.8 million 
annually through the remaining term of the agreement. 

'lErLI' upgrades 
In March 2016, Eastern Shore completed improvements at its TETLP interconnect facilities to increase natural gas receipts from TETLP by 53,000 Dts/d, for a total capacity of 160,000 Dts/d. This increased 
capacity generated additional gross margin of $1.2 million in 2017 compared to 2016. 

2016 Ea.wern Shore System Reliability Project 
In the second quarter of2017, Eastern Shore completed construction of approximately 10.1 miles of 16-inch pipeline looping and auxiliary facilities in New Castle and Kent Counties, Delaware, And a new 
compressor at its existing compressor station in Sussex County, Delaware to further enhance the reliability of its system. The 2016 System Reliability Project was included in Eastern Shore's January 2017 
base rate case filing, for which a settlement agreement was filed with the FERC in December 2017. A discussion of the settlement agreement can be found below under "Regulatory Proceedings." 

Neu• Smyrna Beach, Florida Project 
In the fourth quarter of2017, Peninsula Pipeline started construction of a 14-mile transmission pipeline in Volusia County, Florida, that interconnects with FGTs pipeline. Peninsula Pipeline entered into a 
20-year agreement with FPU, which will assist FPU in serving its current and planned customer growth. We recognized .$235,000 of margin from this expansion during the year ended December 31, 2017, 
And we expect to recognize gross margin of approximately $1.4 million annually thereafter. · 

GRIP 
GRIP is a natural gas pipe replacement program approved by the Florida PSC, designed to expedite the replacement of qualifying distribution mains and services (any material other than coated steel or 
plastic) to enhance the reliability and integrity of the Florida natural gas distribution systems This program allows recovery, through regulated rates, of capital and other program-related costs, inclusive of a 
return on investment, associated with the replacement of the mains and services. Since the program's inception in August 2012, we have invested $113.6 million to replace 247 miles of qualifying 
distribution mains, including $10.8 million and $26.0 million during 2017 and 2016, respectively. GRIP generated additional gross margin of $1.9 million in 2017 compared to 2016. 

Eight Flttgs' CHP Plant 
The Eight Flags CHP plant consists of a natural-gas-fired turbine and electric and steam generator in Amelia Island, FloridA, which produces approximately 21 MW of base load power and 75,000 pounds 
per hour of residual steam. In June 2016, Eight Flags began selling power generated from the plant to FPU under A 20-year power purchase agreement for distribution to its retail electric customers. In July 
2016, Eight Flags began selling steam, under a separate 20-year contract, to the industrial customer that owns the property on which the plant is located. 

The CHP plant is powered by natural gas transported by FPU, through its distribution system, and by Peninsula Pipeline. For the year ended December 31, 2017, Eight Flags and other affiliates of 
Chesapeake Utilities generated $4.9 million in additional gross margin as a result of these services. The increase for the year ended December 31,2017, includes $537,000 in gross margin from FPU and 
Peninsula Pipeline. 

Regulatory Proceedings 

Eastern Shore Rate Ca.fe 
In December 2017, Eastern Shore filed an uncontested settlement agreement for its January 2017 base rate case filing with the FERC. FERC approved the settlement agreement by s Jetter order on FebruAry 
28, 2018. The order will be deemed final upon the expiration of the right to rehearing on March 30, 2018. Under the terms of the settlement agreement, Eastern Shore would recover the costs of its 2016 
System Reliability Project, along with the cost of investments and expenses associated with various expansion, reliability and safety initiatives Pursuant to the settlement agreement, Eastern Shore would 
record and recognize an increase in annual base rates of approximately .$9.8 million, prior to any federal tax reform impact. However, the setllement agreement prescribes the methodology for adjusting these 
rates as a result of tax reform. For the twelve months ended December 3 I, 2017, Eastern Shore recognized incremental gross margin of approximately $3.7 million. 
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Delml'are Division Rate Cm;e 
In December 2016, the Delaware PSC approved a settlement agreement, which, among other things, provided for an increase in our Delaware Division revenue requirement of approximately $2.3 million 
and a rate of return on common equity of 9.75 percent. The new authorized rates went into effect on January I, 2017. For the year ended December J I, 2017, we recorded incremental gross margin of 
approximately S831,000 related to the rate case. 

Electric: Lim ;ted Proceeding 
In July 2017, FPU filed a petilion with the Florida PSC for the recovery of a limited number of investments and associated costs related to reliability, safety and modernization initiatives for its electric 
distribution systems, as well as the investment and costs associated with the previously filed FPL interconnect project. In December 2017, the Florida PSC approved FPU's electric limited proceeding filing 
via a settlement agreement, including a $1.6 million annualized rate increase effective for meter reads beginning in early January 2018. This increase will continue through at least the last billing cycle oF 
December 2019. For the year ended December 31, 2017, additional margin of $94,000 was generated. The settlement agreement prescribes the methodology For adjusting the new rates as a result oF the 
recent tax reform. 

Alujor Projects mullnitifltb•es Currently Umleni'UJ' 

2017 Rl:pfmsiou Project 
This project will expand Eastern Shore's firm service capacity by 26 percent, providing 61,162 Dts/d of additional Ftrm natural gas transportation service on Eastern Shore's pipeline system with an additional 
52,500 Dts/d of finn transportation service at certain Eastern Shore receipt facilities pursuant to precedent agreements entered into with existing customers. We expect to invest approximately $117.0 million 
in this expansion project, which will generate approximately $15.8 million of gross margin in the first full year afier the new transportation services go into effect. In October 2017, the FERC issued a CP 
authorizing Eastern Shore to construct and operate the proposed 2017 Expansion Project. In December 2017, the TETLP interconnect was placed into service. In conjunction with this interconnect going into 
service, Eastern Shore recognized incremental gross margin of $433,000, including interim services, for the year ended December 31, 2017. The remaining segments of the 2017 Expansion Project are 
expected to be placed into service in various phases over the second through fourth quarters of 20 I 8. 

Northwest Floridu E"Cpmuiolf Project 
Peninsula Pipeline and our Florida natural gas division are constructing a pipeline in Escambia County, Florida, that will interconnect with the FGT interstate pipeline. The project consists ofJJ miles of 12-
inch transmission line From the FGT interconnect along with 4.7 miles of 10-inch transmission line that will be operated by Peninsula Pipeline and 4.8 miles of 8-inch lateral distribution lines that will be 
operated by our Florida natural gas division We have signed agreements to serve two large customers and continue to market to other customers close to the facilities. The estimated annual gross margin 
from this project is $6.0 million, and the project is currently expected to be in service by the end of the second quarter of 2018. We are currently in negotiations with several customers to provide additional 
services that could, if finalized, necessitate a capacity increase in this expansion project and, therefore, generate additional gross margin. 

(Pt1lm /Jeach Cmmt)~ JJelw!dere, Flor;da Projecl 
Peninsula Pipeline is constructing a pipeline in Palm Beach County, Florida, that will interconnect with FGTs pipeline. The project consists oF approximately two miles oF transmission pipe that will bring 
gas directly to FPU's distribution system in West Palm Beach. Completion oF this project is expected by the end of the third quarter of 2018. Estimated annual gross margin associated with the project is 
approximately $600,000. 

Other Nmurul Gas Growth ~ Distribwion Opertlrions 
Customer growth for the Delmarva Peninsula natural gas distribution operations generated $1.6 million in additional gross margin for the year ended December 31, 2017, compared to the same period in 
2016. The average number of residential customers on the Delmarva Peninsula increased by 3.8 percent in 2017 compared to 2016. 

Our Florida natural gas distribution operations generated $1.2 million in additional gross margin for the year ended December 31, 2017, compared to 2016, with approximately two-thirds of the margin 
growth generated from commercial and industrial customers and one-third of the margin growth generated from new residential customers. 
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Weuther mul Consumption 
Allhough 2017 was warmer than the prior year, colder temperatures in the fourth quarter generated additional margin for the year of $578,000. Compared to normal, wanner-lhan-normal temperatures in 
2017 reduced gross margin by $2.0 million. The following table summarizes HDD and CDD variances from the 10-year average HDD/CDD ("Normal") for 2017, 2016 and 2015. 

HDD and CDD Informal ion 

For the Years Ended December 31, 

Dehnnr\'n 

Actual HDD 

10-Year Average HDD ("Nonnal") 

Variance from Normal 

Florida 

Actual HDD 

10-Year Average HDD ("Nonnal") 

Variance from Normal 

Ohio 

Actual HDD 

10-Year Average HDD ("Nonnal") 

Variance from Normal 

Floridn 

Actual CDD 

10-Year Average CDD ("Normal") 

Variance from Normal 

Proptme Resr~lts 

2017 

3,800 

4,374 

(574) 

533 

818 

(285) 

5,126 

5,914 

(788) 

3,013 

2,865 

148 

2016 

3,979 

4,453 

(474) 

672 

828 

(156) 

5,529 

5,918 

(389) 

3,152 

2,820 

332 

Variance 

(179) 

(79) 

(139) 

(10) 

(403) 

(4) 

(139) 

45 

2016 

3,979 

4,453 

(474) 

672 

828 

(156) 

5,529 

5,918 

(389) 

3,152 

2,820 

332 
!>J llDD for Ohio is presented frum Apnl I, 2015 through I:Xcemb.::r 3 I, 2015 since Aspire Energy comrneuccd operations on Apnl I, 20 15. 

2015 

4,363 

4,496 

(133) 

569 

859 

(290) 

2,404 

2,903 

(499) 

3,338 

2,760 

578 

Varin nee 

(384) 

(43) 

103 

(3 I) 

N/A{II 

N/A(I) 

(186) 

60 

Our Florida and Delmarva Peninsula propane distribution operations continue to pursue a multi-pronged growth strategy, which includes targeting retail and wholesale customer grmvth in existing markets, 
both organically as well as through acquisitions; incremental growth from recent and planned start-ups in new markets, targeting new community gas systems in high growth areas; further build-out of our 
propane vehicular platform through Au toGas fueling stations; and optimization of our supply portfolio to generate incremental margin opportunities. Over the years, we have focused on meeting customer 
energy demand, and we have created a portfolio of offerings regardless of whether the customer is served via a pipeline or through an individual tank. AutoGas is our most recent offering that meets 
customers' 'lcuying demands 

These operations generated $2.8 million in incremental margin for the year ended December 31, 2017, compared to 2016. In addition, successful marketing initiati11es led to increased volumes sold and 
revenues from service contracts. Supply management initiatives, including favorable hedging of propane purchases, have facilitated improvement in retail propane margins as well as opportunities to 
generate incremental margin from wholesale sales. 
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The following tables summarize gross margin for our propane distribution operations for the year ended December 31, 2017: 

For the Yenr Ended 

Growth in wholesale propane margins and sales 

Higher retail propane margins per gallon 

Increased customer consumption driven by growth and other factors 

Higher service contract revenue 

Additional growth in AutoGas 
Additional customer consumption - weather 

Other 

PESCO 

Page 44 of 120 

Gross 1\'lnrgin Incrense 

12/31/2017 

678 

645 

657 

248 

171 

122 

279 

2,800 

PESCO markets and sells natural gas to wholesale, industrial and commercial customers and manages natural gas s!Ontge and transpor1ation assets in several market areas. PESCO also provides management 
of storage and transportation assets for natural gRS producers and regulated utilities. These management transactions typically involve the release of storage and/or transportation capacity in combination with 
an obligation to purchase and/or deliver natural gas. In April 2017, PESCO entered into 3-year asset management agreements with our Delmarva Peninsula natural gas distribution operations whereby 
PES CO manages a portion of their natural gas transportation and storage capacity. 

In conjunction with the active management of these contracts, PESCO generates financial margin by identifying market opportunities and simultaneously entering into natural gas purchase/sate, storage or 
transportation contracts and/or financial derivatives contracts. The financial derivatives contracts consist primarily of exchange-traded futures that are used to manage volatility in natural gas market prices 
Volatility in PESCO's recorded gross margin and operating income can occur over periods of time due to changes in the value of financial derivatives contracts prior to the time of the senlement of the 
financial derivatives and the purchase or sale of the underlying physical commodity. Derivatives accounting has no impact on economic gains or losses of the purchase or sale contracts. PESCO's results 
may also fluctuate based on the actu.al demand of its customers relative to its initial estimates of their demand, and PES CO's ability to manage its supply portfolio, considering weather and other factors, 
including pipeline constraints. 

In the fourth quarter of2017, PESCO executed fmancial derivatives contracts to lock in margin associated with a specified quantity of natural gas to be delivered in the first quarter of 2018. As regional 
natural gas prices rose during the fourth quarter of2017, the financial derivatives contracts were valued based on MTM accounting, and an unrealized loss was recorded. Upon their settlement during the first 
quarter of2018, these derivati11es contracts will be matched against the physical contracts with the margin realized at that time. 

For the year ended December J I, 2017, PESCO's gross mnrgin decreased by $2.4 million, which represents the impact of the $5.8 million unrealized MTM loss related to financial derivatives contracts that 
were valued at the end of the year, offset by $3.4 million from: (a) additional gross margin generated primarily from natural gas sales to end users within one Columbia Gas of Ohio customer pool under a 
supplier agreement, which expired on March 31, 2017; and (b) increased margin from commercial and industrial customers served in Florida. 

PESCO utilizes hedge accounting to better match the hedged items and the related hedging instruments when appropriate and we utilize MTM accounting in those situations where hedge accounting is not 
appropriate. In 2018, we will be adopting ASU 2017-12, Targeted lmpr01•emeJII.\' fo Acc.:OEmting for Hedging Activities, the updated hedge accounting standard, which we expect will reduce the MTM 
volatility in PESCO's results due to better alignment of risk management activities and financial reporting, risk component hedging and certain other simplifications of hedge accounting guidance. PESCO's 
results for the year ended December 31, 2017, adjusted for the unrealized MTM loss, were as follows: 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 2017 Fonn 10-K Page 36 

https://www.sec.gov/ Archives/edgar/data/19745/0001628280 18002594/cpk123120171 0- ... 10/18/2018 



Document 

Table of Contents 

For the Yenr ended December 31,2017 

(in thousands) 

As Reported 

Unrealized MTM loss 
Adjusted totnls excluding unrealized MTI\'1 loss 

Xeron 

$ 

Gross Margin 

2,212 

5,783 

7:J95 

Page 45 of 120 

Opernting Income 

(3,147) 

5,783 

2,636 

As disclosed previously, Xeron's operations were wound down during the second quarter of2017. Operating income for the quarter and year ended December 31, 2017, improved by $854,000 and $880,000, 
respectively, due to the absence of the trading losses experienced in 2016. As part of the wind-down, we incurred non-recurring employee severance costs and other costs associated with the termination of 
leased office space in Houston, Texas during 2017. These expenses were recorded in other (expense) income, net. We do not cmticipate incurring any additional costs that will have a material impact 
associated with winding down Xeron's operations. 

Positioning the Comptmy for Future G'roll'tlr 

Resource A 1/ocatiou 
To support and continue our gr~wth, we have expanded, and will continue to expand, our resources and capabilities. Eastern Shore continues to significantly expand its transmission system, and has therefore 
increased its staffing. Growth in non-regulated energy busio~sses, including Aspire Energy, PESCO and Eight Flags, requires additional staff as well as corporate resources to support the increased level of 
business operations. Finally, to allow us to continue to identify and move growth initiatives forward and to manage their integration into Chesapeake Utilities' growing portfolio, resources have been added in 
our corporate shared services departments. In the twelve months ended December 31, 2017, our staffing and associated costs increased by SS.O million, or 10.4 percent, compared to the same period in 2016. 
We have requested recovery of most of Eastern Shore's increased staffing costs in its 2017 rate case filing, for which we have filed an uncontested settlement agreement with the FERC. We are prudently 
managing the pace and magnitude of the investments being made, while ensuring that we appropriately expand our human resources and systems capabilities to manage current growth and to identify and 
capitalize on future growth opportunities. In support of these goals, we continue to pursue investments that typically are earnings accretive within the first twelve months. 

Financing the Growth 
Our target ratio of equity to total capitalization, including short-term borrowings, is between 50 and 60 percent. This target capital structure ensures that we maintain a strong balance sheet to support 
continued growth. Over the last several years, we have deployed increased amounts of capital on new projects, many of which have longer construction periods. We seek to align the penn anent fimmcing of 
these capital projects with the in-service dates to the extent feasible. 

Accordingly, we have utilized increasing amounts of short-tenn debt to fund these projects. In September 2016, shortly after the completion of Eight Flags' CHP plant and several other key growth projects, 
we completed a $59.8 million public offering of our common stock, which increased our outstanding common stock by 960,488 shares. The higher number of shares outstanding reduced earnings per share 
by approximately $0.16 per share for the twelve months ended December 31, 2017 

As several large projects were completed in 2017, we refinanced $70.0 million of short-term debt as 3.25 percent senior notes. The refmancing resulted in increased interest expense of $1.6 million or S0.06 
per share; however, we locked in a very low interest rate for 15 years. We also recently executed the NYL Shelf Agreement, pursuant to which we will issue NYL Shelf Notes in two tranches in 2018 at an 
average interest rate of 3.53% for 20 years. We expect to take advantage of additional available permanent capital to optimize long-term interest costs, ensure adequate and competitive funding for new 
investments and maintain a solid balance sheet to support future capital deployment. 
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REGULATED ENERGY 

lncrense Incrense 
For the Year Ended December 31 1 2017 2016 (decrease) 2016 2015 (decreuse) 
(in thousands) 

Revenue 326,310 305,689 20,621 305,689 301,902 3,787 
Cost of sales 118,769 109,609 9,160 109,609 122,814 (13,205) 
Gross margin 207,541 196,080 11,461 196,080 179,088 16,992 
Operations & maintenance 92,355 88,098 4,257 88,098 83,616 4,482 
Gain from 11 settlement (130) (130) (130) (1,497) 1,367 
Depreciation & amortization 28,554 25,677 2,877 25,677 24,195 1,482 
Other taxes 13,602 12,584 1,018 12,584 11,789 795 
Operating expenses 134,381 126,229 8,152 126,229 I 18,103 8,126 
Operating Income $ 73,160 69,851 3,309 69,851 60,985 8,866 

2017 compared to 2016 

Operating income for the Regulated Energy segment for 2017 was $73.2 million, an increase of $3.3 million, or 4.7 percent, compared to 2016. The increased operating income was due to an increase in 
gross margin of$11.5 million, offset by higher operating expenses of $8.2 million 

Gross Nlargin 

Items contributing to the period-over-period gross margin increase are listed in the following table: 

(inthousauds) 

Gross margin for the twelve months ended December 31, 2016 

Factors contributing to the gross margin increase for the twelve months ended December 31, 20\7: 
Implementation of Eastern Shore rates 

Natural gas growth (excluding service expansions) 

Service expansions 

Additional margin from GRIP in Florida 

Implementation of Delaware Division rates 

Service to Eight Flags 

Other 

Gross margin for the twelve months ended December 31, 2017 

The following is a nt~rrative discussion of the significant items in the foregoing table, which we believe is necessary to understand the infonnation disclosed in the table. 

!mplememation of Eastern Shore Rales 

196,080 

3,693 

2,818 

2,062 

1,902 

83 I 

537 

(382) 

207,541 

Eastern Shore generated additional gross margin of $3.7 million from implementation of new base rates as a result of its rate case filing. See Nole 18, Rate.'i and 01her Regulatory Ac:tii•Nies, to the 
consolidated fmancial statements for additional details. 

Natural Gas Growth (Ercluding Sen• ice Expamious) 

Increased gross margin of $2.8 million from growth (excluding service expansions) WllS generated primarily from: 

$1 6 million from a 3 8 percent increase in the average number of residential customers served by the Delmarva Peninsula natural gas distribution operations, as well as growth in the number of 
commercial and industrial customers served; and 

$1.2 million from our Florida natural gas distribution operations' customer growth, with approximately two-thirds of the margin growth generated from commercial and industrial customers and 
one-third of the margin growth generated from new residential customers. 

Sen•ic:e Expansions 

We generated additional gross margin of $2.1 million from natural gas service expansions from the following· 
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$1.2 million from natural gas service expansions related to short-term firm service that commenced in March 2016, following certain measurement and related improvements to Eastern Shore's 
interconnect with TETLP, which increased Eastern Shore's natural gas receipt capacity from TETLP; 

$433,000 from Eastern Shore's new interim services provided to industrial customers in Delaware as a result of a portion of Eastern Shore's 2017 Expansion Project being placed in service in 
December 20 17; 

$298,000 from Eastern Shore's increase in rates for a long-term tirm service to an industrial customer in New Castle County, Delaware; and 

$235,000 generated by Peninsula Pipeline from the New Smyrna Beach Expansion Project. 

Addlfional Ue1•enuejrom GRIP in Florida 

Increased investment in GRIP generated additional gross margin of$1.9 million in 2017 compared to 2016 

Implemell/alion of Delaware Dil'i.siou Uale.r 

Our Delaware Division generated additional gross margin of $831,000 as a result of its rate case settlement. See Note /8, Rates and Other Regulatory Aclivities, to the consolidated financial statements for 
additional details. 

Senice 10 Eight Flags 

We generated additional gross margin of $537,000 in 2017, compared to 2016, from new natural gas transmission and distribution services provided by our affiliates to Eight Flags' CHP plant. 

Other Operating T..xpenses 

Other operating expenses increased by $8.2 million. The significant components of the increase in other operating expenses included: 
$4.1 million in higher depreciation, asset removal and propeny tax costs associated with recent capital investments; 
$3 6 million in higher payroll expenses for additional personnel to support growth; and 
$1.0 million in increased regulatory expenses, due primarily to costs associated with Eastern Shore's rate case filing in 2017; partially offset by 
$529,000 in lower credit, collection and customer services expenses. 

10/6 compared to 2015 

Operating income for the Regulated Energy segment for 2016 was $69.9 million, an increase of .$8.9 million, or 14.5 percent, compared to 2015. The increased operating income was due primarily to an 
increase in gross margin of$17.0 million panially offset by an $8.1 million increase in other operr~ting expenses to support growth. 

GrosJ.· A'largin 

Items contributing to the period·over-period gross margin increase are listed in the following table: 

(intl1011!ands) 

Gross margin for the year ended December 3 I, 2015 
Factors contributing to the gross margin increase for the year ended December 3 I, 2016: 

Service expansions 

Additional revenue from GRIP in Florida 

Natural gas growth (excluding service expansions) 

Implementation of Delaware Division rates 

Service to Eight Flags 

Sandpiper SIR 

Decreased customer consumption • weather 

Other 

Gross margin for the year ended December 31, 2016 

179,088 

7,192 

4,044 

2,734 

1,487 

1,369 

736 

(282) 

(288) 

196,080 
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The following is a narrative discussion of the significant items in the foregoing table, which we believe is necessary to understand the infonnation disclosed in the table. 

Senice Etpausions 

Increased gross margin from natural gas service expansions was generated primarily from the following: 

$54 million associated with service to an electric power generator in Kent County, Delaware, representing $6.8 million from the short-term OPT Service that commenced in December 2015, which 
was ofT set by a $1.4 million decrease in gross margin from the conclusion of the interruptible service Eastern Shore provided to this customer in 2015; 
$1.4 million from short-term firm service that commenced in March 2016, following certain measurement and related improvements to Eastern Shore•s interconnect with TETLP that increased 
Eastern Shore•s natural gas receipt capacity from TETLP by 53,000 Dts/d, for a total cap~tcity of 160,000 Dts/d; and 
$719,000 from natural gas transmission service, which was pan of the miljor expansion initiative in Polk County, Florida. 
The foregoing gross margin increases were offset by a gross margin decrease of $243,000 resulting from a reduction in Eastern Shore's rates for a long-term firm service to an industrial customer in 
New Castle County, Delaware. 

Additirmal Re1•emre from G/UP in Florida 

GRIP investments during 2016 and 2015 by our Florida natural gas distribution operations generated $4.0 million in additional gross margin. 

Natural Gas Growth (excluding .lW11ice expansiom) 

Increased gross margin from other growth in natural gas (excluding service expansions) was generated primarily from· 

$1.5 million from a 3.6 percent increase in the average number of residential customers served by the Delmarva Peninsula natural gas distribution operations, as well as growth in the number of 
commercial and industrial customers; and 

$1 2 million from Florida natural gas distribution operations' customer growth, due primarily to new services to commercial And industrial customers. 

lmplemenlalion of Delaware Dil'isiou Rates 

Our Delaware Division generated additional gross margin of $1.5 million from the implementation of rates as a result of its base rate filing, for the year ended December 31, 2016. See Note 18, Rate.l· aud 
Other Regulatory Ac:til'ilies, to the consolidated fmancial statements for addition<\! details. 

Sen•ice to Eiglu Flags 

We generated additional gross margin of$1.4 million from new natural gas transmission and distribution services provided to Eight Flags' CHP plant, commencing in June 2016. 

Sandpiper Sill 

Sandpiper generated additional gross margin of$736,000 from higher margins associated with the continued conversion of its distribution system from propane to natural gas. 

Operating Etpenses 

Operating expenses increased by $8 I million. The significant components of the increase in operating expenses included: 

$3.6 million in higher staffing and associated costs for additional personnel to support growth; 

$2.6 million in higher depreciation, asset removal and property tax costs associated with recent capital investments to support growth and system integrity; and 

$1.4 million due to the absence of a $1.5 million gain from" customer billing system senlement in 2015. 
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UNREGULATED ENERGY 

Jncrense Increase 
For the Yenr Ended December 311 2017 2016 (decrease) 2016 2015 (decrense) 
(llllhou:;;ands) 

Revenue $ 324,595 203,778 120,817 203,778 162,108 41,670 
Cost of sales 252,023 138,816 113,207 138,816 101,791 37,025 
Gross margin 72,572 64,962 7,610 64,962 60,317 4,645 
Operations & maintenance 48,730 42,659 6,071 42,659 36,536 6,123 
Depreciation & amortization 7,954 6,386 1,568 6,386 5,679 707 
Other taxes 3,411 2,073 1,338 2,073 1,747 326 
Operating expenses 60,095 51,118 8,977 51,118 43,962 7,156 
Operating Income 12,477 13,844 (1,367) 13,844 16,355 (2,511) 

2017 Comptlrefl to 2016 

Operating income for the Unregulated Energy segment for 2017 was $12.5 million, a decrease of $1.4 million compared to 2016. The decreased operating income was due to an increase in gross margin of 
$7.6 million, which was offset by an increase of $9.0 million in operating expenses. Gross margin and operating income, excluding the impact of the unrealized MTM loss on energywrelated derivatives, 
grew by $13.4 million, or 20.6 percent, and S4.4 million, or 31.9 percent, respectively, during2017 compared to 2016. 

Gross Nfargin 

lte1ns contributing to the periodwover-period increase in gross margin are listed in the following table: 

On thousand\) 

Gross margin for the year ended December 31, 2016 

Factors contributing to the gross margin increase for the year ended December 3 I, 2017· 
PESCO- unrealized MTM loss 

Eight Flags' CHP plant 

PESCO- margin from operations 

Customer consumption -weather and other 

Pricing amendments to Aspire Energy's long-term agreements 

Higher wholesale propane sales and margins 

Wind-down of Xeron operations 

Improved retail propane margins 

Other 

Gross margin for the year ended December 3 I, 2017 

The following is a narrative discussion of the significant items in the foregoing table, which we believe is necessary to understand the infonnation disclosed in the table. 

£igh!Fiags 

Eight Flags' CHP plant generated $4.4 million in additional gross margin in 2017 during its first full year of operations. 

Natural Gas A1arketing- PESCO 

PESCO's gross margin decreased by $2.4 million due primarily to: 
$5.8 million in the unrealized MTM loss related to PESCO's financial derivatives contracts that were valued at the end of the year; offset by 

64,962 

(5,783) 

4,365 

3,365 

2,144 

1,125 

678 

658 

645 

413 

72,572 

$3.4 million in additional gross margin generated primarily from: (a) providing natural gas to end users within one customer pool pursuant to a supplier agreement with Columbia Gas of Ohio, 
which expired on March 31, 2017, and (b) an increase in commercial and industrial customers served in Florida 
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Customer CoustlmplioJI- Weather and Other 

Gross margin increased by $2. I million due to higher sales of propane for our propane distributions operations, increased demand for propane in Florida due to weather conditions during the third quarter of 
2017 and increased deliveries by Aspire Energy. On the Delmarva Peninsula and in Ohio, significantly colder temperatures in the latter half of December drove increased customer demand. 

Pricing Amendmellls to Aspire Energy's Long- Term Agreements 

An increase in gross margin of$1.1 million due to favorable pricing amendments to several long-term sales agreements. 

Wholesale Propane Sales and A1argins 

Gross margin increased by $678,000, due primarily to increased volumes and favorable supply management c:tctivities for the Delmarva Peninsula propane distribution operations, as well as higher 
throughput margins in Florida. Growth of the wholesale business is a component of our propane growth strategy. 

W;ud-down uJXeron operations 
The absence of the prior year operating Joss from Xeron increased gross margin by $658,000. 

Retail Propane !vfargins 

Gross margin increased by $645,000, due primarily to favorable supply management activities and market conditions. 

Other Operating Etpenses 

Other operating expenses increased by $9.0 million. The significant components of the increase in other operating expenses included: 
$2.9 million in higher operating expenses by Eight Flags' CHP plant in support of the margin generated; 
$2.9 million in higher payroll costs for additional personnel to support growth; 
$1.0 million in higher depreciation expense, of which $476,000 relates to lower depreciation recorded in 2016 as a result of the fmal accounting for the acquisition of Aspire Energy; 
.$1.0 million in higher benefits and employee-related costs in 2017; and 
.$594,000 in higher taxes, other than property and income taxes. 

2016 Compared to 2015 

Operating income for the Unregulated Energy segment for 2016 was $13.8 million, a decrease of $2.5 million, compared to 2015. The decrease primarily reflected the impact of warmer weather, a return to 
more normal retail margins in the propane business and an operating loss generated by Xeron. Gross margin contributions in 2016 from Aspire Energy, Eight Flags and PESCO, offset most of the impact 
The overall increase in gross margin of$4.6 million, was more than offset by an increase in other operating expenses of $7.2 million. 

Gross Alargin 

Items contributing to the year-over-year gross margin increase were as follows: 

(inthoruwN:IJ) 

Gross margin for the year ended December 31, 2015 

Factors contributing to the gross margin increase for the year ended December 31, 2016: 

Aspire Energy 

Eight Flags' CHP plant 

Decreased retail propane margins 

Decreased customer consumption - weather and other 

Natural gas marketing- PESCO 

Lower margins for Xeron 

Decreased wholesale propane margins 

Other 

Gross margin for the year ended December 31, 2016 
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The following is a narrative discussion of the significant items in the foregoing table, which we believe is necessary to understand the information disclosed in the table. 
A.spire Energy 
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Aspire Energy generated $5.9 million in additional gross margin in 2016, of which $4.2 million was realized in the first quarter of 2016, due to the fact thRL 201 S included only nine months of results. Aspire 
Energy became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Chesapeake Utilities on April I, 2015. Pricing amendments to long-term gas sales agreements, additional management fees and higher volumes delivered to 
Columbia Gas of Ohio and CGC contributed $1.7 million of this increase. 

Eiglll Flags' CHP Plant 

Eight Flags' CHP plant, which commenced operations in June 2016, generated $3.6 million in gross margin from the sale of steam and electricity generated by the plant during 2016, compared to no margin 
in 2015. 

Decreased Uetail Propane Alargins 

Lower retail propane margins for our Delmarva Peninsula and Florida propane distribution operations decreased gross margin by $2.8 million in 2016, of which $2.4 million is associated with the larger 
Delmarva Peninsula propane distribution operation, as retail margins per gallon reiUrned to more normal levels. The decline in margin was driven principally by lower propane prices and local market 
conditions. The levels of retail margins per gallon generated during 2015 were not expected to be sustained over the long term. Accordingly, we continue to assume more normal levels of margins in our 
long-term financial plans and forecasts. 

Decreased Customer Consumption- Weather and Other 

Gross margin decreased by $1.4 million as a result of lower Silles due to warmer weather in 2016 compared to 2015. In addition, the lower sales were expected as more customers in Ocean City, Maryland, 
and surrounding areas were converted from propane to natural gas. 

Natural Gas Alarketing- PESCD 

Gross margin generated by PESCO was $4.6 million in 2016, compared to $3.6 million in 2015. Favorable results in 2016 from increased customer contracts in Florida and on the Delmarva Peninsula were 
offset by a $1.5 million loss associated with the SCO supplier agreement, where revenue from transported volumes was insufficient to cover PESCO's fixed storage and pipeline fees, giyen the seasonality of 
volumes as well as warmer temperatures. Under the contract, PES CO paid fixed storage and pipeline fees over the entire twelve-month period, although the volumes were highest in the fust quarter of 2017, 
followed by lhe fourth quarter of2016 (conlrocl period of April I, 2016- March J I, 2017). 

Lower J.,fargimfor Xeron 

Gross margin generated by Xeron was ($546,000) in 2016 compared to $301,000 in 2015. Gross margin was impacted by unfavorable crude oil and propane futures trading. 

Operating E'ceenses 

Operating expenses increased by $7.2 million. The significant components of the increase in operating expenses included: 

$2.8 million in operating expenses incurred by Aspire Energy, with $1.6 million representing expenses incurred in the first quaner of 2016, compared to zero in the first quaner of 2015, when 
Aspire Energy's operations had not yet commenced; 

$2.4 million incurred by Eight Flags' CHP plant, which commenced operations in June 2016; 

$817,000 in higher staffing and additional costs for additional personnel to support grmvth; and 

$683,000 in higher outside services costs associated primarily with growth and ongoing compliance activities. 
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OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE) 

Other income (expense) for 2017,2016, and 2015 was $(765,000), $(441,000) and $293,000, respectively, which includes costs incurred in winding down Xeron, non-operating investment income, interest 
income, late fees charged to customers and gains or losses from the sale of assets for our unregulated businesses. 

INTEREST EXPENSE 

21117 Comp11retl to 2016 
Interest charges for 2017 increased by approximately $2.0 million, or 18.9 percent, compared to 2016. The increase is auributable to an increase of $1.3 million in interest on higher short-term borrowings 
and Rn increase of $1.0 million in interest on long-term debt, largely as a result of the issuance of the Prudential Shelf Notes in April 2017. The remaining balance is interest expense related to customer 
deposits. 

2016 Compared to 2015 
Interest charges for 2016 increased by approximately $633,000, or 6.3 percent, compared to 2015. The increase is EHtributable to an increase of $1.3 million in interest expense from higher short-term 
borrowings, offset by a decrease of $469,000 in long-term interest charges due to principAl repayments of our long-tenn debt. The remaining balance is interest expense related to customer deposits. 

INCOME TAXES 

2017 Compuretl to 2016 
Income tax expense WAS $14.3 million for 2017, compared to $28.3 million in 2016. The decrease was due primarily to the revaluation of deferred tax assets and liabilities from our unregulated businesses as 
a result of the implementation of the TCJA, which decreased our deferred income tax expense by $14.3 million. Excluding the impact of the implementation of the TCJA, our effective tax rate was 39.5 
percent in 2017, compared to 38.8 percent in 2016. Our expected effective tax rate for 2018 is approximately 27.5 percent. 

2016 Compared to 201j 
Income tax expense was $28.3 million for 2016, compared to $26.9 million in 2015. The increase was due primarily to higher taxable income Our effective tax rate was 38.8 percent in 2016, compared to 
39.5 percent in 2015. 

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 

Our capital requirements reflect the capital-intensive and seasonal nature of our business and are principally attributable to investment in new plant and equipment, retirement of outstanding debt and 
seasonal variability in working capital We rely on cash generated from operations, short-term borrowings, and other sources to meet nom1al working capital requirements and to temporarily finance capital 
expenditures. We may also issue long-tenn debt and equity to fund capital expenditures and to more closely align our cApital structure to our target capital structure. 

Our energy businesses are weather-sensitive and seasonal. We normally generate a large portion of our annual net income and subsequent increases in our accounts receivable in the first and fourth quarters 
of each year due to significant volumes of natural gas, electricity, and propane delivered by our distribution operations and our natural gas gathering and processing operation to customers during the peak 
heating season. In addition, our natural gas and propane inventories, which usually peak in the fall months, are largely drawn down in the heating season and provide a source of cash as the inventory is used 
to satisfy winter sales demand. 

Capital expenditures for investments in new or acquired plant and equipment are our largest capital requirements. Our capital expenditures were $191.1 million (including the purchase of certain assets of 
ARM) in 2017,$169.4 million in 2016 and $195.2 million ($142.7 million, excluding $52.5 million, net of cash received, in connection with our acquisition ofGatherco) in 2015. The most significant 
capital expenditures in 2017 included investments in Eastern Shore's expansion projects, which include the 2016 System Reliability Project, the White Oak Mainline project, and the 2017 System Expansion 
Project, as well as the Northwest Florida Expansion Project and GRIP. 
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We have budgeted $181.6 million for capital expenditures in 2018. The following table shows the 2018 capital expenditure budget by segment and by business line: 

(dollars in thousands) 

Regulated Energy: 

Natural gas distribution 

Natural gas transmission 
Electric distribution 

Total Regulated Energy 

Unregulated Energy: 

Propane distribution 

Other unregulated energy 

Total Unregulated Energy 

Other 

Corporate and other businesses 

Total Other 

Total2018 Capital Expenditures 

53,899 

92,562 

7,972 

154,433 

11,235 

5,827 

17,062 

10,097 

10,097 

181,592 

The 2018 budget, excluding acquisitions, includes the remaining capital expenditures associated with Eastern Shore's 2017 System Expansion Project, Florida's Northwest Florida Expansion Project; 
additional expansions of our natural gas dis1ribution and transmission systems; continued natural gas infrastructure improvement activities, expenditures for continued replacement under the Florida GRIP; 
information technology systems; new buildings and facilities; and other strategic initiatives and investments. 

The capital expenditure projection is subject to continuous review and modification. Actual capital requirements may vary from the above estimates due to a number of factors, including changing economic 
conditions, customer growth in existing areas, regulation, new growth or acquisition opportunities and availability of capital. Historically, actual capital expenditures have typically lagged behind the 
budgeted amounts. On average, over the last five years, our actual capital expenditures have averaged 91 percent of the initial budgeted capital expenditures for those years. 

The timing of capital expenditures can vary based on delays in regulatory approvals, securing environmental approvals and other permits. The regulatory application and approval process has lengthened in 
the past few years, and we expect this trend to continue. 

Cupitfll Structure 

We are committed to maintaining a sound capital structure and strong credit ratings to provide the financial nexibility needed to access capital markets when required. This commitment, along with adequate 
and timely rate relief for our regulated energy operations, is intended to ensure our ability to attract capital from outside sources at a reasonable cost. We believe that the achievement of these objectives will 
provide benefits to our customers, creditors and investors. 

The following presents our capitalization, excluding and including short-term borrowings, as of December 31, 2017 and 2016: 

(in thousands) 

Long-term debt, net of current maturities 

Stockholders' equity 

Total capitalization, excluding short-tenn borrowings 

(illlhousands) 

Short-term debt 

Long-term debt, including current maturities 

Stockholders' equity 

Total capitalization, including short-term borrowings 

$ 

$ 

December 31,2017 

197,395 

486,294 

683,689 

December 31, 2017 

250,969 

206,816 

486,294 

944,079 

December 31, 2016 

29% 136,954 23% 

71% 446,086 77% 

100% 583,040 100% 

December 31,2016 

26% 209,871 26% 

22% 149,053 19% 

52% 446,086 55% 

100% 805,010 100% 

Included in the long-term debt balances at December 31, 2017, was a capital lease obligation associated with Sandpiper's capacity, supply and operating agreement ($620,000 excluding current maturities 
and $2.1 million including current maturities). At the 
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closing of the ESG acquisition in May 2013, Sandpiper entered into this agreement, which has a six-year tenn. The capacity portion of this agreement is accounted for as a capital lease. 

As of December 31, 2017, we did not have any restrictions on our cash balances. Chesapeake Utilities' Senior Notes and FPU's first mortgage bonds contain a restriction that limits the payment of dividends 
or other restricted payments in excess of cenain pre-determined thresholds. As of December J I, 2017, $209 7 million of Chesapeake Utilities' cumulative consolidated net income and $104.9 million of 
FPU's cumulative net income were free of such restrictions.· 

Our target ratio of equity to total capitalization, including short-term borrowings, is between 50 and 60 percent. We have maintained a ratio of equity to total capitalization, including short-tenn borrowings, 
between 50 percent and 56 percent during the past three years. In September 2016, we completed a public offering of960,488 shares of our common stock at a public offering price per share of $62.26. The 
net proceeds from the sale of common stock, after deducting underwriting commissions and expenses, were approximately $57.4 million, which were added to our general funds and used to repay a ponion 
of our short-tenn debt under unsecured lines of credit. Our equity to total capitalization ratio, including short-term borrowings, was 52 percent as of December 31, 2017. 

As described below under "Short-Term Borrowings," we entered into the Credit Agreement and the Revolver with the Lenders in October 2015, which increased our borrowing capacity by $150.0 million. 
To facilitate the refinancing of a portion of the short-term borrowings into long-term debt, as appropriate, we also entered into long-term shelf agreements for the potential private placement of unsecured 
senior debt as funher described below under the heading "Shelf Agreements." 

We will seek to align, as much as feasible, any long-term debt or equity issuance(s) with the commencement of service, and associated earnings, for larger revenue generating capital projects. In addition, the 
exact timing of any long-term debt or equity issuance(s) will be based on market conditions 

Slrelf Agreements 

In October 2015, we entered into the Prudential Shelf Agreement, under which we may request that Prudential purchase, through October 8, 2018, up to $150.0 million of Prudential Shelf Notes. The 
Prudential Shelf Notes hRve a fixed interest rate and a maturity date not to exceed 20 years from the date of issuance. Prudential is under no obligation to purchase any of the Prudential Shelf Notes. The 
interest rate and terms of payment of any series of the Prudential Shelf Notes will be determined at the time of purchase. 

In May 2016, Prudential approved the purchase of $70.0 million of 3.25 percent Prudential Shelf Notes, which were issued on April 21, 20 I 7. The proceeds received from this issuance were used to reduce 
short-term borrowings under the Revolver. The balance under the Revolver had accumulated over time as capital expenditures were temporarily financed. As of December 31, 2017, $80 million remains 
available for issuance under the Prudential Shelf Agreement. 

In March 2017, we entered into the MetLife Shelf Agreement and the NYL Shelf Agreement, under which we may request that MetLife and NYL, through Mar'ch ~. 2020, purchase up to $150.0 million and 
$100.0 million, respectively, of our unsecured senior debt. The unsecured senior debt would have a fixed interest rate and a maturity date not to exceed 20 years from the date of issuance. MetLife and NYL 
are under no obligation to purchase any un~ecured senior debt. The interest rRle and tenns of payment of any series of unsecured senior debt will be determined at the time of purchase. 

In November 2017, NYL agreed to purchase $50.0 million of3.48% ''Series A" notes and $50.0 million of3.58% ''Series 8" notes. The Series A notes and Series B notes will be issued on or before May 21, 
20 18 and November 20, 2018, respectively. The proceeds received from these issuances will be used to reduce shan-term borrowings under the Revolver, lines of credit and/or to fund capital expenditures 
The NYL Shelf Agreement has been fully utilized. 

As of December 31, 2017, no request has been made to MetLife to purchase unsecured senior debt under the MetLife Shelf Agreement. 

The Prudential Shelf Agreement, the MetLife Shelf Agreement and the NYL Shelf Agreement set forth certain business covenants to which we are subject when any note is outstanding, including covenants 
that limit or restrict our ability, and the ability of our subsidiaries, to incur indebtedness, or place or penn it liens and encumbrances on any of our property or the property of our subsidiaries. 

Slwri-Term /Jorroll'ings 

Our outstanding short-term borrowings at December 31, 2017 and 2016 were $251 0 million and $209.9 million, respectively, at weighted average interest rates of2.42 percent and 1.43 percent, respectively. 

We utilize bank lines of credit to provide funds for our shon-tenn cash needs to meet seasonal working capital requirements and to temporarily fund portions of the capital expenditure program. In 
November2017, we entered into a new $40.0 million credit 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 2017 Fonn 10-K Page 46 

https://www.sec.gov/ Archives/edgar/data/19745/0001628280 18002594/cpk123120171 0- ... 10/18/2018 



Document Page 55 of 120 

Table of Contems 

facility with a new lender. As of December J I, 2017, we had tive unsecured bank credit facilities with four financial institutions totaling $220.0 million in available credit. In addition, since October 2015, 
we have $150.0 million of additional short-term debt capacity available under the Revolver with five participating Lenders. The terms of the Revolver are described in further detail below. None of the 
unsecured bank lines of credit requires compensating balances. We are currently authorized by our Board of Directors to borrow up to $275.0 million of short-term borrowing As of February 27,2018 the 
Board increased this limit from $275.0 million to $350.0 million. 

The $150.0 million Revolver has a five-year term and is subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the Credit Agreement. Borrowings under the Revolver will be used for general corporate purposes, 
including repayments ofshort-tenn borrowings, working capital requirements and capital expenditures. Borrowings under the Revolver will bear interest at: (i) the LIBOR Rate plus an applicable margin of 
1.25 percent or less, with such margin based on total indebtedness as a percentage of total capitalization, both as defmed by the Credit Agreement, or (ii) the base rate plus 0.25% or less. Interest is payable 
quarterly, and the Revolver is subject to a commitment fee on the unused portion of the facility. We have the right, under certain circumstances, to extend the expiration date for up to two years on any 
anniversary date of the Revolver, with such extension subject to the Lenders' approval. We may also request the Lenders to increase the Revolver to .$200.0 million, with any increase at the sole discretion of 
each Lender. 

Our outstanding short-term borrowings at December J I, 2017 and 2016 included $10.3 million and $8.6 million, respectively, of book overdrafts. Book overdrafts are not actual borrowings under the credit 
facilities, however, these book overdrafts, if presented, would be funded through the credit facilities and, therefore, were included in the short-term borrowings. 

As of December J I, 2017, we had issued $5.0 million in letters of credit to various counterparties under the Revolver. AI! hough the letters of credit are not included in the outstanding short-tenn borrowings 
and we do not anticipate they will be drawn upon by the counterparties, the letters of credit reduce the available borrowings under the Revolver. 

Our outstanding borrowings under these unsecured short-term credit facilities at December J I, 2017 and 2016 were $240.7 million and $201.3 million, respectively. Short-tenn borrowings were as follows 
during 2017, 2016 and 2015: ' 

(in thousands) 

Average borrowings 

Weighted average interest rate 

Maximum month-end borrowings 

Cash Flows 

2017 

183,561 

2.03% 

240,671 

The following table provides a summary of our operating, investing and fmancing cash flows for the years ended December J I, 2017, 2016 and 2015: 

2016 

172,808 

1.43% 

201,311 

For the Yenr Ended December 31, 

(lnthotmmd5) 

Net cash provided by (used in): 

Operating activities 

Investing activities 

Financing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents-beginning of period 

Cash and cash equivalents-end of period 

Cash Flows Provided bv Operating Activities 

$ 

2017 

110,089 

(186,895) 

78,242 

1,436 

4,178 

5,614 

2016 

104,141 

(170,037) 

67,219 

1,323 

2,855 

4,178 

2015 

2015 

102,220 

1.19% 

168,757 

104,715 

(164,539) 

58,013 

(1,811) 

4,574 

2,763 

Changes in our cash flows from operating activities are attributable primarily to changes in net income, adjusted for non-cash items such as depreciation and changes in deferred income taxes, and working 
capital. Changes in working capital are determined by a variety of factors, including weather, the prices of natural gas, electricity and propane, the timing of customer collections, payments for purchases of 
natural gas, electricity and propane, and deferred fuel cost recoveries. 

We normally generate a large portion of our annual net income and related increases in our accounts receivable in the first and fourth quarters of each year due to significant volumes of natural gas and 
propane delivered by our natural gas and propane distribution operations and our natural gas supply, gathering r~nd processing operation to customers during the peak heating season 
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In addition, our natural gas and propane inventories, which usually peak in the fall months, are largely drawn down in the heating season and provide a source of cash as the inventory is used to satisfy winter 
sales demand 

During 2017 and 2016, net cash provided by operating activities was $110.1 million and $104.1 million, respectively, resulting in an increase in cash flows of 6.0 million Significant operating activities 
generating the cash flows change were as follows: 

Net income, adjusted for reconciling activities, decreased cash flows by $485,000. Key reconciling items included: the revaluation of deferred tax assets and liabilities of our unregulated businesses 
as a result of the implementation of the TCJA, which decreased our deferred tax expense by $14.3 million, higher non-cash adjustments for depreciation and amortization related to increased 
investing activities and realized losses on sales of assets. 

Net cash flows from changes in other inventories decreased by approximately $6.5 million, due primarily to purchases of additional pipes and other construction inventory as a result of the large 
expansion projects currently underway. 

Changes in income taxes receivable increased cash flows by $5.6 million, due to higher tax refunds as a result of increased tax deductions associated with bonus depreciation. 

Changes in net regulatory assets and liabilities increased cash flows by $4.7 million, due primarily to the change in fuel costs collected through the various cost recovery mechanisms and GRIP. 

Changes in net accounts receivable, accrued revenue, accounts payable and accrued liabilities increased cash flows by $3.5 million, due primarily to higher revenues and the timing of customer 
payments and payments to vendors. 

Changes in net prepaid expenses and other current assets and customer deposits and refunds decreased cash flows by $2.2 million. 

During 2016 and 2015, net cash provided by operating activities was $104.1 million and $104.7 million, respectively, resulting in a decrease in cash flows of$574,000 in 2016. Significant operating 
activities generating the cash flow change were as follows: 

Changes in net accounts receivable and accrued revenue and accounts payable and accrued liabilities decreased cash flows by $13.2 million, due primarily to higher revenues and the timing of the 
receipt of customer payments as well as increased expenses and the timing of payments to vendors. 

Net income, adjusted for non-cash adjustments and reconciling activities, increased cash flows by $18.3 million, due primarily to an increase in deferred income taxes as a result of the availability and 
utilization of bonus depreciation in 2016, which resulted in a higher book-to-tax timing difference and higher non-cash adjustments for depreciation and amortization. 

Changes in net regulatory assets and liabilities decreased cash flows by $11.4 million, due primarily to the change in fuel costs collected through the various fuel cost recovery mechanisms. 

The changes in income taxes increased cash flows by $7.4 million, due primarily to higher pre-tax income as a result of continued investment in the infrastructure, treatment, storage and distribution 
of natural gas, propane and electricity. 

Net cash flows from changes in propane, natural gas and materials inventories decreased net cash flows by approximately $4.1 million. 

Cash Flows U'led in bwesliug Aclil•ilies 

Net cash used in investing activities totaled $186.9 million and $170.0 million during 2017 and 2016, respectively, resulting in a decrease in cash flows of $16.9 million in 2017. Significant investing 
activities generating the cash flows change were as follows: 

Cash paid for capital expenditures increased by $5.4 million to $175.3 million for 2017, compared to $169.9 million in 2016. 

Net cash of$11.9 million was used to acquire assets in various transactions during 2017, including ARM, Chi pol a and Central Gas; there were no corresponding transactions in 2016 

Net cash used in investing activities totaled $170.0 million and $164.5 million for 2016 and 2015, respectively, resulting in a decrease in cash flows of $5.5 million in 2016. Significcmt investing activities 
contributing to the cash flow change were as follows: 

An increase in cash paid for capital expenditures year-over-year, due primarily to our GRIP investment in our Florida natural gas distribution operations, Eight Flags' construction of the CHP plant 
and Eastern Shore expansion projects, which collectively decreased cash flows by $26.3 million. 

In 2015, we paid $20.7 million in cash (.$27.5 million paid, less $6.8 million of cash acquired) through our short-term borrowings in conjunction with the acquisition ofGatherco. In addition to the net 
cash consideration, we also issued 592,970 shares of our common stock, which had no cash flow impact 
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Ca.!1h Flows Provided hF Financing Activities 

Net cash provided by financing activities totaled $78 2 million and $67.2 million for 2017 and 2016, respectively. The increase in net cash provided by financing activities in 2017 resulted primarily from the 
following: 

We received $69.8 million in net cash proceeds from the issuance of the Prudential Shelf Notes, offset by the payment of $3.0 million in scheduled long-tenn debt principal and capital lease 
obligations payments. 

Net cash flows decreased by $57.4 million due to the absence of proceeds related to the issuance of common stock during the third quarter of2016. 

Net borrowing under our line of credit arrangements of $39.3 million for 2017, compared to net borrowing of$32.5 million for 2016, increased cash nows by $6.8 million Change in cash overdrafts 
decreased cash flows by $2.2 million. 

We paid $19.9 million in cash dividends for2017 compared to $17.5 million for 2016. 

Net cash provided by financing activities totaled $67.2 million and $58.1 million for 2016 and 2015, respectively, resulting in an increase of $9.2 million in 2016. Significant financing activities generating 
the cash now change were as follows: 

Net proceeds of $57.4 million, after deducting underwriting commissions and expenses, from the issuance of common stock during the third quarter of 2016, were used to pay down short~term debt 
under unsecured lines of credit 

Net borrowings/repayments under the line of credit agreements decreased cash flows by $48.0 million largely due to the common stock issuance mentioned above. 

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS 

We have the following contractual obligations and other commercial commitments as of December 31, 2017: 

Pnymcnls Due by Pericul 

Lcullum I MorclhMn 5 
ConlracluMIObllgMiinns year 1-J~·cars J-5)Cftr.J years ToiRI 
(ill lhou.Jrolli.J} 

Long-term debt <•J 7,971 26,226 38,700 132,300 205,197 
Operating leases <2) 2,665 2,733 1,469 3,702 10,569 
Capital leases <2J 1,451 620 2,071 
Purchase obligations (J) 

Transmission capacity 32,320 60,197 41,375 146,772 280,664 
Storage capacity 1,336 1,567 567 71 3,541 
Commodities 103,047 42,889 145,936 
Electric supply 16,216 18,165 2,701 2,755 39,837 

Unfunded benefits HJ 361 709 914 1,432 3,416 
Funded benefits <JJ 1,898 6,734 8,632 
Totnl Contrnctunl Oblignlions $ 167,265 153,106 $ 85,726 293,766 699,863 

,,, This represents principal payments on long·tenn debL Sec Item 8, Fi11ancial Statement.J and Supplementary Data, Note 12, Lo11g·Term Debt, for additionnl mfonnation. The expected interest pnymcnts on long-term debt arc $8.8 m1lhon, il6.0 
million, Sl2.7 m\l11on and $18.5 million, rcspo.:tn·cly, for the periods indicated above. Expected interest payments for 1111 p-eriods toto! $56.1 m1llion. 
See Item 8, Financial Stoteme11t$ and S11pplementwy Dolo, Note 14, LeO.Je Obligatioii.J, for ndd1tionol infonnotton. 
See Item 8, Fmoncial Statement$ and Supple/IJentory Datu, Note 20, Other Commllmeiii.J o1KIContingencie.J, for add1tionlll infonnation 
We ho\'c recorded long·tcnn hobtlitics of S3 4 million at ~ccmbcr 31, 2017 for unfunded post-employment and post-retirement benefit pions. The amounts specilied in the table arc based on exp-ected pa)•mcnts to current retirees and assume o 
retirement 11ge of 62 for currently active employees. There arc many factors that would cause octuol payments to di!Ter from these amounts, includmg early retirement, future henlth care costs !hot dill'er from past cxpencncc and discount mtcs 
implicit in c;ll\culations. See flem 8, Finonciul Statemellls t»lll &tpplemelllmy Data, Note 16, Employee Benefit Plum, for oddttiOnol information on the plans 
We ha\'c recorded long·tenn liobilities of $18.4 million el December 31, 2017 for two qualified, defined benefit pension plans. The osscls funding these pions ore m a separate trust and arc not considered assets of ours or included in our b!llonce 
sheets. The Contrnclual Obligations table obo\'e includes $1 9 million rcl1cc;ting the pn)'lnents we expect to mol.:c.to the trust funds m 2017. /\ddttional contributions moy be required in future years based on the actual return earned by thl.' pion o55cts 
and other actuanol 11s.mmptions, such as the discount rate ond \ong-tenn c.\pectcd mtc of return on pion assets. Sec Item 8, Financial Statemellt.J w1d S11pplementory Data, Note 16, l!iuployee Benefit Plans, tbr further infonnnt10n on the plans 
Additionally, the Contracmal Obligations table abo\'e includes deferred compensation obligations totaling $6.7 million, funded w1th Rabbt Trust assets in the somc amount. The lhbbt Trust os..sets arc rcc;orded under ln\'Cslmenls on the consohdalcd 
balance sheet~. We assume a retirement age of65 for purposes of distribution from this account. 
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OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS 

We have issued corporate guarantees to certain vendors of our subsidiaries, primarily PES CO. These corporate guarantees provide for the payment of propane and natural gas purchases in the event of the 
respective subsidiary's default. These subsidiaries have never defaulted on their obligations to pay their suppliers The liabilities for these purchases are recorded in our financial statements when incurred. 
The aggregate amount guaranteed at December 31, 2017 was $72.0 million, with the guarantees expiring on various dates throughout 2018. 

We have issued leuers of credit totaling $5.0 million related to the electric transmission services for FPU's northwest electric division, the fim1 transportation service agreement between TETLP i\nd our 
Delaware and Maryland divisions, and to our current and previous primary insurance carrier. These letters of credit have varying expiration dates extending through November 4, 2018. There were no draws 
on these letters of credit as of December 31, 2017. We do not anticipate that the letters of credit will be drawn upon by the counterparties, and we expect that the letters of credit will be renewed to the extent 
necessary in the future. Additional information is presented in /!em 8, Financial Srarements and Supplementary /Jara, Note 20, Other Commitment.\· aud Couliugencie.r; in the consolidated financial 
statements. 

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

We prepare our financial statements in accordance with GAAP Application of these accounting principles requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, 
revenues And expenses, and related disclosures of contingencies during the reporting period. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various assumptions that are believed to be reasonable 
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the canying value of assets and liabili!ies that are not readily apparent from other sources. Since most of our 
businesses are regulated and the accounting methods used by these businesses must comply with the requirements of the regulatory bodies, the choices available are limited by these regulatory requirements. 
In the normal course of business, estimated amounts are subsequentlY adjusted to actual results that may differ from the estimates. 

Regullllory Assets t11Ul Uuhifities 

As a result of the ratemaking process, we record certain assets and liabililies in accordance with ASC Topic 980, Regulated Operaliom·, and consequently, the accounting principles applied by our regulated 
energy businesses differ in certain respects from those applied by the unregulated businesses. Amounts are deferred as regulatory assets and liabilities when there is a probable expectation that they will be 
recovered in future revenues or refunded to customers as a result of the regulatory process. This is more fully described in Item 8, Financial Statements and SupplemeHiary Data, Note 2, Summary of 
Significall/ Accounting Policies, in the consolidated financial statements. If we were required to terminate the applicMion of ASC Topic 980, we would be required to recognize all such deferred amounts as a 
charge or a credit to eArnings, net of applicable income taxes. Such an adjustment could have a material effect on our results of operations 

Vultwtion of Em•i,.onmentul Liabilities t~ml Reltltell Regulutory Assets 

As more fully described in Item 8, Finam:ial Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 19, Em•ironmental Commilmems and Contingencies, in the consolidated financial statements, we are currently 
participating in the investigation, assessment or remediation of seven former MGP sites for which we have sought or will seek regulatory approval to recover through rates the estimated costs of remediation 
and related activities. Amounts have been recorded as environmental liabilities based on estimates of future costs to remediAte these sites, which are provided by independent consultants. 

Derimth•e Instruments 

We use derivative and non-derivative instruments to manage the risks related to obtaining adequate supplies and the price fluctuations of natural gas, electricity and propane. We continually monitor the use 
of these instruments to ensure compliance with our risk management policies and account for them in accordance with the appropriate GAAP, such that every derivative instrument is recorded as either an 
asset or a liability measured at its fair value. It also requires that changes in the derivatives' fair value are recognized in the current period earnings unless specific hedge accounting criteria are met. If these 
instruments do not meet the definition of derivatives or are considered "normal purchases and normal sales," they are accounted for on an accrual basis of accounting. 

Additionally, GAAP also requires us to clAssify the derivative assets and liabilities based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Our assessment of the significance of a 
particular input to the fair value measurement requires judgment and may affect the fair value oft he assets and liabilities and their placement within the fair value hierarchy. 
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We determined that certain propane put options, call options, swap agreements and natural gas futures contracts met the specific hedge accounting criteria. We also determined that most of our contracts for 
the purchase or sale of natural gas, electricity and propane either: (i) did not meet the definition of derivatives because they did not have a minimum purchase/sell requirement, or (ii) were considered 
"normal purchases and normal sales" because the contracts provided for the purchase or sale of natural gas, electricity or propane to be delivered in quantities that we expect to use or sell over a reasonable 
period of time in the normal course of business. Accordingly, these contracts were accounted for an an accrual basis of accounting. 

Additional information about our derivative instruments is disclosed in Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Dala, Note 7, Deri1•a!il•e Juslrumenl!i, in the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Operuting Re\•e1111es 

Revenues for our natural gas and electric distribution operations are based on rates approved by the PSC of each state in which we operate. Customers' base rates may not be changed without fonnal 
approval by these PSCs However, PSCs authorized our regulated operations to negotiate rates, based on approved methodologies, with customers that have competitive alternatives. Eastern Shore's 
revenues are based on rates approved by the FERC. The FERC has also authorized Eastern Shore to negotiate rates above or below the FERC-appraved maximum rates, which customers can elect as an 
alternative to negotiated rates. 

Peninsula Pipeline, our Florida intrastate pipeline subsidiary that is subject to regulation by the Florida PSC, has negotiated firm transportation service contracts with third-party customers and with certain 
affiliates. 

For regulated deliveries of natural gas, propane and electricity, we read meters and bill customers on monthly cycles that do not coincide with the accounting periods used for financial reporting purposes. 
We accrue unbilled revenues for natural gas and electricity that have been delivered, but not yet billed, at the end of an accounting period to the extent that they do not coincide. We estimate the amount of 
the unbilled revenue by jurisdiction and customer class. A similar computation is made to accrue unbilled revenues for propane customers with meters, such as community gas system customers and natural 
gas marketing customers, whose billing cycles do not coincide with the accounting periods. 

Our natural gas supply operation in Ohio recognizes revenues based on actual volumes of natural gas shipped, using contractual rates, which are based upon index prices that are published monthly. 

Eight Flags records revenues based on the amount of electricity and steam generated and sold to its customers. 

Each of our natural gas distribution operations in Delaware and Maryland, our bundled natural gas distribution service in Florida and our electric distribution operation in Florida has a fuel cost recovery 
mechanism. This mechanism provides a method of adjusting billing rates to reflect changes in the cost of purchased fuel. The difference between the current cost of fuel purchased and the cost of fuel 
recovered in billed rates is deferred and accounted for as either unrecovered fuel cost or amounts payable to customers. Generally, these deferred amounts are recovered or refunded within one year. 

We charge flexible rates to industrial interruptible customers on our natural gas distribution systems to compete with the price of alternative fuel that they can use. Neither we, nor any of our interruptible 
customers, are contractually obligated to deliver or receive natural gas on a finn service basis. 

Allowtmce for Doubtful Acco11111s 

An allowance for doubtful accounts is recorded against amounts due to reduce the net receivable balance to the amount we reasonably expect to collect based upon our collections experience, the condition 
of the overall economy and our Bssessment of our customers' inability or reluctance to pay. If circumstances change, however, our estimate of the recoverability of accounts receivable may also change. 
Circumstances which could affect our estimates include, but are not limited La, customer credit issues, the level of natural gas, electricity and propane prices and general economic conditions. Accounts are 
written ofT once they are deemed to be uncollectible. 

Gom/wi/1 mul Otlrer lntrmgible Assets 

We test goodwill for impairment at least annually in December. The annual impainnent testing for 2017 indicated no impainnent of goodwill. Additional infonnation is presented in Item 8, Fmam:ial 
Slatemenls and Supplementary Dala, Note 10, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, in the consolidated fmancial statements. 

Otlrer Assets lmpuirmenl Ewtluutions 

We periodically evaluate whether events or circumstances have occurred which indicate that long~lived assets may not be recoverable. When events or circumstances indicate that an impainnent is present, 
we record an impairment loss equal to the excess of the asset's carrying value over its fair value, if any. 
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Pem.·io11 11m/ Ot/1er Postretiremeut /Jenefits 

Pension and other postretirement plan costs and liabilities are determined on an actuarial basis and are affected by numerous assumptions and estimates including the market value of plan assets, estimates of 
the expected returns on plan assets, assumed discount rates, the level of contributions made to the plans, and current demographic and actUiuial mortality data. The assumed discount rates and the expected 
returns on plan assets are the assumptions that generally have the most significant impact on the pension costs and liabilities. The assumed discount rates, the assumed heallh care cost trend rates and the 
assumed rates of retirement generally have the most significant impact on our postretirement plan costs and liabilities. Additional infonnation is presented in Item 8, Financial Slatemenls and Supple me mary 
Data, Nme 16, Employee Benejil Plans, in the consolidated ftnancial statements, including plan asset investment allocation, estimated future benefit payments, general descriptions of the plans, significant 
assumptions, the impact of certain changes in assumptions, and significant changes in estimates. 

For 2017, actuarial assumptions include expected long-term rates of return on plan assets of 6.00 percent and 6.50 percent for Chesapeake Utilities' pension plan and FPU's pension plan, respectively, and 
discount rates ofJ.SO percent and 3.75 percent for Chesapeake Utilities' and FPU's plans, respectively. The discount rate for each plan was determined by management considering high-quality corporate 
bond rates, such as the Prudential curve index and the Citigroup yield curve, changes in those rates from the prior year and other peninent factors, including the expected lives of the plans and the availability 
of the lump-sum pAyment option. A 0.25 percent decrease in the discount rate could increase our annual pension and postretirement costs by approximately $7,000, and a 0.25 percent increase could decrease 
our annual pension and postretirement costs by approximately $9,000. 

Actual changes in the fair value of plan assets and the differences between the actual return on plan assets and the expected return on plan assets could have a material effect on the amount of pension benefit 
costs that we ultimately recognize. A 0.25 percent change in the rate of return could change our annual pension cost by approximately $143,000 and would not have an impact on the postretirement and 
Chesapeake SERP because these plans are not funded. 

Ttu-Relfltetl CoutiugeiiC)' 

We account for uncenainty in income taxes in the consolidated financial statements only if it is more likely than not that an uncertain tax position is sustainable based on its technical merits. Recognizable 
tax positions are then measured to determine the amount of benefit recognized in the consolidated financial statements. We recognize penalties and interest related to unrecognized tax benefits as a 
component of other income. 

We account for contingencies associated with taxes other than income when the likelihood of a loss is both probable and quantifiable. In assessing the likelihood of a loss, we do not consider the existence of 
current inquiries, or the likelihood of future inquiries, by tax authorities as a factor. Our assessment is based solely on our application of the appropriate statutes and the likelihood of a loss, assuming the 
proper inquiries are made by tax authorities. 

ITEM 7 A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABO liT MARKET RISK. 

INTEREST RATE RISK 

Long-tenn debt is subject to potential losses based on changes in interest rates. Our long-term debt at December 31, 2017 consists of fixed-rate Senior Notes and $8.0 million of fixed-rate secured debt. We 
evaluate whether to refmance existing debt or pennanently refinance existing short-term borrowings based in part on the fluctuation in interest rates. Additional information about our long-term debt is 
disclosed in Item 8, Financial Statemenls and S11ppleme111ary Data, Note 12, Loug-ferm Debt, in the consolidated financial statements. 

COJ\11\lODin' PRICE RISK 

Regulr~tetl E11ergy Segment 

We have entered into agreements with various wholesale suppliers to purchase natural gas and electricity for resale to our customers. Our regulated energy distribution businesses that sell natural gas or 
electricity to end-use customers have fuel cost recovery mechanisms authorized by the PSCs that allow us to periodically adjust fuel rates to reflect changes in the wholesale cost of natural gas and electricity 
and to ensure that we recover all of the costs prudently incurred in purchasing natural gas and electricity for our customers. Therefore, our regulated energy distribution operations have limited commodity 
price risk exposure. 

Unregllllltetl E11ergy Segmelll 

Sharp and Flo-gas are exposed to commodity price risk as a result of the competitive nature of retail pricing offered to our customers. In order to mitigate this risk, we utilize propane storage activities and 
forward contracts for supply. 
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We can store up to approximately 6.8 million gallons of propane (including leased storage and rail cars) during the winter season to meet our customers' peak requirements and to serve metered customers. 
Decreases in the wholesale price of propane mr~y cause the value of stored propane to decline, particularly if we utilize fixed price forward contracts for supply. To mitigate the risk of propane commodity 
price fluctuations on the inventory valuation, we have adopted a Risk Management Policy that allows our propane distribution operation to enter into fair value hedges, cash flows hedges or other economic 
hedges of our inventory. 

Aspire Energy is exposed to commodity price risk, primarily during the winter season, to the extent we are not successful in balancing our natural gas purchases and sales and have to secure natural gas from 
ahernative sources at higher spot prices. ln order to mitigate this risk, we procure firm capacity that meets our estimated volume requirements and we continue to seek out new producers with which to 
contract in order to fulfill our natural gas purchase requirements. 

PESCO is a party to natural gas swap and futures contracts. These contracts provide PESCO with the right to purchase naturAl gas at a fixed price at future dates. Upon expiration, the contracts can be settled 
financially without taking delivery of natural gas, or PESCO can procure natural gas for its customers. 

PESCO is subject to commodity price risk on its open positions to the extent that market prices for natural gAs liquids and natural gas deviate from fixed contract settlement prices. Market risk associated 
with the trading of futures and forward contracts is monitored daily for compliance with our Risk Management Policy, which includes volumetric limits for open positions. To manage exposures to changing 
market prices, open positions are marked up or down to market prices and reviewed daily by our oversight officials In addition, the Risk Management Commiuee reviews periodic reports on markets, 
approves any exceptions to the Risk Management Policy (within limits established by the Board of Directors) and authorizes the use of any new types of contracts. 
The following table reflects the changes in the fair market value of financial derivatives contracts related to natural gas and propane purchases and sales from December 31, 2016 to December 31, 2017: 

Increase (Decrease) in Fnir 
(m thousaud!J) Bnlnnce ill December 31,2016 Mnrl<et Vnlue Less Amounts Settled 
PESCO (677) (5,470) (6) 
Sharp 710 (1,124) 1,606 

Total 33 (6,594) 1,600 

There were no changes in methods of valuations during the year ended December 31, 2017. 

The following is a summary of fair market value of financial derivatives as of December 31, 2017, by method of valuation and by maturity for each fiscal year period. 

(in thousands) 

Price bosed on ICE- PESCO 

Price based on Mont Belvieu- Sharp 

Total 

WHOLESALE CREDIT RISK 

2018 

(6,163) 

1,175 

(4,988) 

2019 

(297) 

17 

(280) 

2020 2021 

341 

341 

The Risk Management Committee reviews credit risks associated with counterparties to commodity derivative contracts prior to such contracts being approved. 

(34) 

(34) 

Bnlnnce nt December 31,2017 

Totnl Fnir Vnlue 

(6,153) 

1,192 

(4,961) 

(6,153) 

1,192 

(4,961) 

Additional information about our derivative instruments is disclosed in Item 8, Financial Stafemems and SupplemelllmJ' Data, Note 7, Derimfi1•e lusJIJuments, in the Consolidated FinanciAl Stiltements. 

INFLATION 

Inflation affects the cost of supply, labor, products and services required for operations, maintenance and capital improvements. While the impact of inflation has remained low in recent years, natural gas 
and propane prices are subject to rapid fluctuations. In the regulated natural gas and electric distribution operations, fluctuations in natural gas and electricity prices are passed on to customers through the 
fuel cost recovery mechanisrrl in our tariffs. To help cope with the effects of inflation on our capital investments and returns, we periodically seek rate increases from regulatory commissions for our 
regulated operations and closely monitor the returns of our unregulated energy business operations. To compensate for fluctuations in propane gas prices, we adjust propane sales prices to the extent allowed 
by the market 

ChesApeake Utilities Corporation 2017 Form IO·K Page 53 

https://www.sec.gov/ Archives/edgar/data/19745/000162828018002594/cpk123120 171 0- ... 10/18/2018 



Document 

Table of Contents 

ITEM 8, FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA. 

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of 
Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIR!tl 

Opinions on the Consolid~ued Finnncinl Statements nnd Intermtl Control over Finnncinl Reporting 

Page 62 of 120 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and Subsidiaries (the "Company") as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the related consolidated 
statements of income, comprehensive income, stockholders' equity, and cash flows, for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2017, and the related notes and fmancial statement 
schedule listed in Item 15(a)2 (collecrively referred to as the "consolidated financial statemen1s"). We also have audited lhe Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2017, 
based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework: (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission ("COSO"). 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial·position of the CompAny as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the results of their operations and 
their cash nows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31,2017, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in our opinion, the 
Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over fmancial reponing as of December 31, 2017, based on criteria established in Internal Conlroi-Jutegrated Framework: (20/3) 
issued by COSO. 

Basis ror Opinion 

The Company's management is responsible for these consolidaled financial statements, for maintaining effective internal control over fmancial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of 
internal control over financial reponing, included in the accompanying Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reponing. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's 
consolidated financial statements and an opinion on the Company's internal control over ftnancial reporting based on our audits. We are a public accounting finn registered with the Public Company 
Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (''PCAOB") and are required to be independent with respect to lhe Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and 
regulations of the Securities And Exchange Commission and the PCAOB. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those stAndArds require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
stalements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud, and whether effective internal control over financial reponing was maintained in all material respects. 

Our audits of the consolidated financial statements included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and 
performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated fmancial statements. Our audits 
also included e'laluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by manAgement, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. Our audit of 
internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. \Ve belie'le that 
our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

Definition nnd Limitnlions orinternal Control Over Finnncinl Reporting 

A company's internal control over financial reponing is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the prepAration of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles A company's internal control O'ler financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (I) pertain to the maintenance 
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that trAnsactions are recorded as necessary to 
penni! preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the compAny are being made only in accordance with 
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's 
assets that could have a material effect on lhe financial statements. 
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Bee~ use of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the 
risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

lsi Baker Tilly Virchow Krause LLP 

We have served as the Company's auditor since 2007. 

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 
February 28, 2018 
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(i!l tlrou:mnd5, except Jhare:r and per Jltore data) 

OperAting Revenues 

Regulated Energy 

Unregulated Energy 

Other businesses and eliminations 

Total operating revenues 

Oj)erntlng Expenses 

Regulated Energy cost of sales 
Unregulated Energy and other cost of sales 

Operations 

Maintenance 

Gain from a settlement 

Depreciation and amortization 
Other taxes 

Total operating expenses 

Operating Income 

Other(expense) income, net 

Interest charges 

Income Before Income Tnxes 

Income taxes 

Net Income 

Weigh led A\•ernge Common Share! Outstanding: 

Basic 

Diluted 

Earnings Per Shnre of Common Stock: 

Basic 

Diluted 

Cash Dividends Declared Per Shnre of Common Stock 
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Consolidated Statements of Income 

For the Year Ended December 31, 

2017 

326,310 

324,595 

(33,322) 

617,583 

118,769 

219,145 

127,571 

12,701 

(130) 

36,599 

17,085 

531,740 

85,843 

(765) 

12,645 

72,433 

14,309 

58,124 

16,336,789 

16,383,352 

71le accompanying uoles are an integral part oft he jiuaucial.vtatements. 

3.56 

3.55 

1.2800 

2016 

305,689 

203,778 

(10,607) 

498,860 

109,609 

128,434 

117,571 

12,391 

(130) 

32,159 

14,730 

414,764 

84,096 

(441) 

10,639 

73,016 

28,341 

44,675 

15,570,539 

15,613,091 

2.87 

2.86 

1.2025 

2015 

301,902 

162,108 

(4,766) 

459,244 

122,814 

97,228 

107,562 

11,803 

(1,500) 

29,972 

13,607 

381,486 

77,758 

293 

10,006 

68,045 

26,905 

41,140 

15,094,423 

15,143,373 

2.73 

$ 272 

$ 1.1325 
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Chesapenl{e Utilities Corporation nnd Subsidinries 

Consolidnted Statements of Comprehensh•e Income 

(i11 Thousands) 

Net Income 

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), net of lnx: 
Employee Benefits, net of tax: 

Amortization of prior service cost, net of lax of $(31), $(29) and $(27), respectively 

Net gain, net of tax of $432, $178, and $73, respectively 

Cash Flow Hedges, net of tax: 

Unrealized (Joss)/gain on commodi1y contract cash flow hedges, net of tax of$(8), $496 and $(150), respectively 

Total Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) 

Comprehensive lucorne 

s 

2017 

nre accompanying notes are an inregral part of the jinancial statements. 
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For the Yenr Ended December 31, 

2016 

58,124 

(46) 

663 

(11) 

606 

58,730 

2015 

44,675 

(48) 

268 

742 

962 

45,637 

41,140 

(40) 

103 

(227) 

(164) 

40,976 
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(in thouswul!,, except shares wid per share dala) 

Property, Plnnt nnd Equipment 

Regulated Energy 
Unregulated Energy 

Other businesses and eliminations 

Total property, plant and equipment 

Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization 
Plus: Construction work in proJ.j"ess 

Net property, plant and equipment 

Current Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Chesnpenke Utilities Corpornlion nnd Subsidinries 

Consolidated Bnlnnce Sheets 

Accounts receivable (less allowance for uncollectible Accounts of$936 and $909, respectively) 

Accrued revenue 

Propane inventory, iH average cost 

Other inventor), at average cost 

Regulatory assets 

Storage gas prepayments 

Income taxes receivable 

Prepaid expenses 

Derivative assets, at fair value 

Other current assets 

Total current assets 

Deferred Chnrges nnd Other Assets 

Goodwill 

Other intangible assets, net 

Investments, at fair value 

Regulatory assets 

Receivables and other deferred charges 

Total deferred charges and other assets 

Total Assets 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 2017 Form 10-K P~tge 58 

The accompanying nole.l· ON! an integral pari oft he financial slatements. 

2017 

$ 
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As or December Jl, 

2016 

1,073,736 957,681 

210,682 196,800 

27,699 21,114 

1,312,117 1,175,595 

(270,599) (245,207) 

84,509 56,276 

1,126,027 986,664 

5,614 4,178 

77,223 62,803 

22,279 16,986 

8,324 6,457 

12,022 4,576 

10,930 7,694 

5,250 5,484 

14,778 22,888 

13,621 6,792 

1,286 823 

7,260 2,470 

178,587 141,151 

22,104 15,070 

4,686 1,843 

6,756 4,902 

75,575 76,803 

3,699 2,786 

112,820 101,404 

1,417,434 I ,229,219 
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Cnpitnlization nnd Llnbilities 

(m lhOIISOilds, e'rcepr shares and per share data) 

CnJlilnlizntion 

Stockholders' equily 

Chesapeake Ulilities Corpornlion and Subsidinries 

Consolidnted Balnnce Sheets 

Preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share (authorized 2,000,000 shares), no shRres issued and outstanding 

Common stock, par value $0.4867 per shitre (authorized 50,000,000 shares) 

Additional paid-in CApital 

Retained earnings 

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 

Deferred compensation obligation 

Treasury stock 

Total stockholders' equity 

Long-lerm debt, net of current maturities 

Total capitalization 

Current Linbililies 

Current portion of long-term debt 

Short-term borrowing 

Accounts payable 

Customer deposits and refunds 

Accrued interest 

Dividends payable 

Accrued compensation 

Regulatory liabilities 

Derivative liabilities, at fair value 

Other accrued liabilities 

Total current liabilities 

Dererred Credits nnd Other Linbilities 

Deferred income taxes 

Regulatory liabilities 

Environmental liabilities 

Other pension and benefit costs 

Deferred investment tax credits and other liabilities 

Total deferred credits and other liabilities 

Environmental and other commitments and contingencies (Note 19 and 20) 

Totnl Cnpitnlizntion nnd Liabilities 

The accompanying notes are au integral part of the financial statements. 

$ 

$ 
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As of December 31, 

2017 2016 

7,955 7,935 

253,470 250,967 

229,141 192,062 

(4,272) (4,878) 

3,395 2,416 

(3,395) (2,416) 

486,294 446,086 

197,395 136,954 

683,689 583,040 

9,421 12,099 

250,969 209,871 

74,688 56,935 

34,751 29,238 

1,742 1,312 

5,312 4,973 

13,112 10,496 

6,485 1,291 

6,247 773 

10,273 7,063 

413,000 334,051 

135,850 222,894 

140,978 43,064 

8,263 8,592 

29,699 32,828 

5,955 4,750 

320,745 312,128 

1,417,434 1,229,219 
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(illlho11.nmd.JJ 

Operuti11g ActMties 

Net 1ncomc 

Adjustmenl-'i to reconcile net income to net operating cash: 

Dcprccmtion and amortization 

Depreciation and accretion included in operations expenses 

Dcrerrcd income lilxes, net 

Realized (gain) loss on sale or assctslin\'cstmcnl-'i 

Unrealized (goin) Joss on im•cstmcntslcommodity contracts 

Employee benefits ond cornpensntion 

Share· based compensation 

Olhcr,net 

Changes in assets nnd liabilities: 

Accounts receivable nnd accrued revenue 

Propane inventory, storage gas 11nd other in\'Cnlory 

Regulatory assclslliobilitics, net 

Prepaid c~pcnscs and olhcr current ilsscts 

Accounts payable nnd olhcr accrued liabilities 

Income ta.xcs recei,•ablc (payable) 

Customer deposits and refunds 

Accrued compensation. 

Other nsselS and liabilities, net 

Net cash prm•idcd by operating acti\•ities 

flnoesting Actil'ilies 

Property, plant and equipment expenditures 

Proceeds from sale of assets 

Acquisitions, net of cash acquired 

Em•ironmental expcnditun~s 

Net cash used in im•csting ncti\'itics 

Fimmcing Acti1•ities 

Common stock di,•idcnds 

Issuance of stock for Di"idend Rcim·cstmcnt Plan 

Proceeds from issuance of common stock, nel of expenses 

Tax withholding pn)·mcnts related to net scU!ed stock compensation 

Clmnge in cash O\'Crdrafis due to outstanding checks 

Net borrowing under line of credit agreements 

Proceeds from issunncc oflong-tenn debt 

Repayment of long-term debt and capital lease obligntion 

Net cash prol'idcd by finnncing activities 

Net Increase (Decrease) ;, Caslr mul Cush Eqllil•alellls 

Ccuh ami Cculr Equh•ule11ts- /Jegi1111ing of Period 

Ct~sh uml Cculr Equil·alents- End of Period 

S11pplememal CaJ.'h Flow DiJ."dosures (.ree Note 6) 
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Chesnpenke Utilities Corporation and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

2017 

58,124 

36,599 

8,122 

11,085 

3,179 

(1,001) 

1,577 

2,490 

(750) 

(19,506) 

(9,036) 

(2,855) 

(7,001) 

15,596 

8,110 

5,513 

2,488 

(2,645) 

110,089 

(175,329) 

708 

(11,945) 

(329) 

(186,895) 

(19,928) 

89 

(10) 

(692) 

1,738 

39,338 

69,807 

(12,100) 

78,242 

1,436 

4,178 

l11e accompanying no/es are an integral part of the fmaucial statements. 
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For the Yenr Ended December 31, 

2016 

44,675 

32,159 

7,334 

31,2;? 

695 

(385) 

1,887 

2,367 

(79) 

(27,013) 

(2,531) 

(7,523) 

(1,387) 

19,599 

2,466 

2,065 

358 

(1,803) 

104,141 

(169,861) 

174 

(350) 

(170,037) 

(17,482) 

811 

57,360 

(770) 

3,920 

32,526 

(9,146) 

67,219 

1,323 

2,855 

4,178 

lOIS 

41,140 

29,972 

6,978 

20j20 

(340) 

96 

1,235 

1,937 

47 

17,097 

1,527 

3,M83 

(759) 

(11,324) 

(4,%7) 

1,976 

(331) 

(3,972) 

104,715 

(143,599) 

164 

(20,930) 

(174) 

(164,539) 

(15,924) 

813 

(592) 

2,450 

82,178 

(10,820) 

58,105 

(1,719) 

4,574 

2,855 
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Chesapeake Utilities Coq1orntion nnd Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Slntemenls of Stockholders' Equity 

Common Stock''' 

t\ccumulatrd 
Nunthn 1 .-\tldlthw,.l Other 

"' l'ar l'aitl-ln Kd1innl ComprMrnd•·e l>cfrrntl TrH~!ul') (in dwusands, e:rcepl share.J m~tl per .JI{ln dot a) Shu~s(JI \'•lut Cartt•l i!•ming'l '~· Compt'f!nlion Stock 

lbllnttaiDraombrrJI,lOU l-l,5K8,7JI 7,100 1.56,5¥1 1-U,J\7 (5,676) 1,258 (1,25H) 
Nellnc:omc: 

41,140 

Dlhcrcomprchen~\elon 
(164) 

Dh1dendsdeclarcd(SI.I325persh.are) (17,222) 

Retlremrnt ~··in!s plan and di1·idend reirlle~mcnt plan 43,275 21 2,214 

Common sind: is.rued 1n a~quis1tion 592,970 "' 19,1176 

Sh~~re-ba.<iC'dcolltro:'MHtionlll'ldla'tbel!efit 1~"11 -15,70) 22 1,6-W 

TreMUI)'stod:ll(ll\'itie!i'~ 625 (625) 

lblanctallJrcrmbrr31,2015 15,270,659 1,.02 1~,311 166,235 (5,!1~0) 1,8113 (1,11!13) 

Net Income 44,675 

Othcrcomprchensi\'eincome 962 

Dil·idend.sdedartd(SI.2025~r~hare) (18,848) 

Retif<'<nCiliSBI'ill!SploniUiddi,•idendreirwescmentplan 36,25] 17 2225 

St()(:kissuancelll 960,488 ,,, S6,S93 

Share·basaloomro:nsationalldtubenefit~<J<ll 16,099 " 1,538 

T muury ~lock acti1•ities071 
;]3 (533) 

lla1anrc-ai1Jrcrnrbrr31,2016 16,303,4!19 7,935 150,967 192,061 (-',878) 2,-'16 (l,-'16) 

Net income 511,124 

Dlh.:rcomprrhem•il'eincmne 606 

Dilidend.sdo:dared(Sl.2800pershare) (21,045) 

DinLI(ndR'rnl·estmcntplllll 10,771 730 

Stod.:is.ruancell1 (10) 

Share·buc-doompe11.511tionandta.'Lbenefit''llll 30,172 15 1,78] 

freuuryslockPctil'ities'lt 

'" {979) 

llal3nrc-at!Jrcrrnbrr31,lDI7 16,3~,442 7,955 253,471) lZ9,141 (-',272) 3,395 (3,395) 

2,000,000 shares ofprererTed stock at $0.01 par value per shore hnvc been authom:cd No shares hove been issued or nrc outstandmg, accordingly, no infonnation hos been included in 1he Statements or Stockholders' Equity. 
Includes 90,961, 76,745 and 70,631 shores at December 31, 2017, 2016 ond 2015, respectively, held ma Rabb1 Trust related to our Non-Qualified Dcfcrnd Compensatiun Plan. 

Total 

]00,322 

-U,I-10 

(16-t) 

(17,222) 

2,235 

30,165 

1,662 

35!1,1311 

4-&,675 

"' 
(18,1148) 

2,142 

57,360 

1,557 

"'-'6,a86 

51t,IH 

606 

(21,0-'5) 

"' 
(I D) 

1,7911 

.486,294 

On Scptembl:r 22, 2016, we completed n public o!Tcnng of 960,488 shares of our common stock at 11 price per shnrc of $62.26 The net proce«h from the sole of common swck, nficr deducting underwriting commissions and expenses, wt:rc 
approximately S57.4 mtllion 

Includes amounts for shores issued for directors' com~nsotion. 

The shores i~sucd under the SICP ore net of shares withheld for employee tnxcs. F11r 2017, 2016 and 2015, we withheld 10,269, 12,031 nnd 12,620 shores, respcctil'cly, fortnxcs 

'lr1e accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial stalemeiJ/s. 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

l. ORGANIZATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

Chesapeake Utilities, incorporated in 1947 in Delaware, is a diversified energy company engaged in regulated and unregulated energy businesses. 

Our regulated energy businesses consist of: (a) regulated natural gas distribution operations in central and southern Delaware, Maryland's eastern shore and Florida; (b) regulated natural gas transmission 
operations on the Delmarva Peninsula, in Pennsylvania and in Florida; and (c) regulated electric distribution operations serving customers in northeast and northwest Florida. 

Our unregulated energy businesses primarily include: (a) propane distribution operations in Delaware, Maryland, the eastern shore of Virginia, southeastern Pennsylvania and Florida; (b) our natural gas 
marketing operation providing natural gas supplies directly to commercial and industrial customers in Florida, Delaware, Maryland, Ohio and other states; (c) our natural gas supply, gathering and processing 
operation in central and eastern Ohio; and (d) our CHP plant in Florida that generates electricity and steam. 

Our consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Chesapeake Utilities and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. We do not have any ownership interest in investments accounted for using the equity 
method or any interest in a variable interest entity. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. We have assessed and, if applicable, reported on subsequent events 
through the date of issuance of these consolidated financial statements. 

We reclassified certC\in amounts in the consolidated statement of cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 to confonn to the current year's presentation. 

2. SUMMAR\' OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Use of Estimt~tes 

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates in measuring assets and liabilities and related revenues and expenses. These 
estimates involve judgments with respect to, among other things, various future economic factors that are difficult to predict and are beyond our control; therefore, actual results could differ from these 
estimates. As additional infonnation becomes available, or actual amounts are detennined, recorded estimates are revised. Consequently, operating results can be affected by revisions to prior accounting 
estimates. 

Property, Plmrtmul Equipmeut 

Property, plilnt and equipment are stated at original cost less accumulated depreciation or fair value, if impaired. Costs include direct labor, materials and third-party construction contractor costs, AFUDC, 
and certain indirect costs related to equipment and employees engaged in construction. The costs of repairs and minor replacements are charged to expense as incurred, and the costs of major renewals and 
bettennents are capitalized. Upon retirement or disposition of property within the regulated businesses, the gain or loss, net of salvage value, is charged to accumulated depreciation. Upon retirement or 
disposition of property owned by the unregulated businesses, the gain or loss, nel of salvage value, is charged to income. A summary of property, plant and equipment by classification as of December 31, 
2017 and 2016 is provided in the following table: 
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Propeny, plant and equipment 

Regulated Energy 

Natural gas distribution- Delmarva Peninsula 
Natural gas distribution- Florida 

Natural gas transmission- Delmarva 
Natural gas transmission- Florida 

Electric distribution- Florida 
Unregulated Energy 

Propane distribution- Delmarva Peninsula 
Propane distribution- Florida 

Other unregulated natural gas services- Ohio 
CHP -Florida 

Other unregulated energy 

Other 

Total propeny, plant and equipment 

Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization 

Plus· Construction work in progress 

Net property, plant and equipment 

Comributions or AdPance.r iu Aid of Construction 

$ 

$ 

Page 71 of 120 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

As of December 31, 

2017 2016 

234,654 220,083 

354,495 331,281 

357,264 285,746 

27,096 27,018 

100,227 93,553 

79,139 73,686 

29,038 26,359 

66,037 61,383 

35,239 35,237 

1,229 135 

27,699 21,114 

1,312,117 1,175,595 

(270,599) (245,207) 

84,509 56,276 

1,126,027 986,664 

Customer contributions or advances in aid of construction reduce property, plant and equipment, unless the amounts are refundable to customers Contributions or advances may be refundable to customers 
after a number of years based on the amount of revenues generated from the customers or the duration of the service provided to the customers. Refundable contributions or advances are recorded initially as 
liabilities The amounts lhat are determined to be non-refundable reduce property, plant and equipment at the time of such determination. During the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, there 
were $2.1 million, $1.0 million and $1.7 million, respectively, of non-refundable contributions or advances that reduced property, plant and equipment. 

Allowance for Funds Used During Construction 

Some of the additions to our regulated property, plant and equipment include AFUDC, which represents the estimated cost of funds, from both debt and equity sources, used to finance the construction of 
major projects. AFUDC is capitalized in the applicable rate base for rate making purposes when the completed projects are placed in service. During the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, 
AFUDC, which was reflected as a reduction of interest charges, was not material. 

Assets Used iu Leases 

Property, plant and equipment for the Florida natural gas transmission operation included $1.4 million of assets, at December 31, 2017 and 2016, consisting primarily of mains, measuring equipment and 
regulation station equipment used by Peninsula Pipeline to provide natural gas transmission service pursuant to a conlract with a third party. This contract is accounted for as an operating lease due to the 
exclusive use of the assets by the customer. The service under this contract commenced in January 2009 and generates $264,000 in annual revenue for a 20-year term. Accumulated depreciation for these 
assets totaled $652,000 and $580,000 at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Capilal Lease Asset 

Property, phmt and equipment for our Delmarva Peninsula natural gas distribution operation included a capital lease asset of $2.0 million and $3.4 million, net of accumulated amortization, at December 31, 
2017 and 2016, respectively, related to Sandpipers capacity, supply and operating agreement The original fair value of this asset was $7.1 million. See Note 20, Other Commilmc11fs and Comiugem:ie.s, for 
additional information. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, accumulated amortization for this cApital lease asset was $5.1 million and $3.7 million, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 
and 2015, we recorded $1.4 million, $1.4 million itnd $1.3 million, respectively, in amortization of this capital lease asset, which was included in our fuel cost recovery mechanisms. 

Jointly-owned Pipeline 

Property, plant and equipment for our Florida natural gas transmission operation also included $6.7 million of assets, at December31, 2017 and 2016, which consists of the 16-mile pipeline from the 
Duvai/Nassau County line to AmeliA Island in Nassau County, Florida, jointly owned by Peninsula Pipeline and Peoples Gas. The amount included in property, plant and equipment represents Peninsula 
Pipeline's 45-percent ownership of this pipeline. Each party was responsible for fmancing its portion of the jointly-owned pipeline. This \6-mile pipeline was placed in service in December 2012. 
Accumulated depreciAtion for this pipeline totaled $1.3 million and $1.0 million, at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 

Asset/mpairmel/1 Em/uations 

We periodically evaluate whether events or circumstances have occurred, which indicate that other long-lived assets may not be fully recoverable. The determination of whether an impairment has occurred 
is based on an estimate ofundiscounted future cash flows altributable to the asset, compared to the carrying value of the asset. When such events or circumstances are present, we record an impairment Joss 
equal to the excess oft he asset's carrying value over its fair value, if any. 

In May 2015, we entered into a settlement agreement with a vendor related to the implementation of a customer billing system. Pursuant to the agreement, we received $1.5 million in cash, which is renected 
as "Gain from a settlement" in the accompanying consolidated statements of income. In May 2016, we received an additional $650,000 in cash; however, retention of this amount is contingent upon 
engaging this vendor to provide agreed-upon services through May 2020. 

/Jepreciatio11 am/ Accrelioll luc/mletl iu Opemtion.'i E"tpeuses 

We compute depreciation expense for our regulated operations by applying composite, annual rates, as approved by the respective regulatory bodies. The following table shows the average depreciation rates 
used for regulated operations during the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015: 

Natural gas distribution- Delmarva Peninsula 

Natural gas distribution -Florida 
Natural gas lransmission- Delmarva Peninsula 

Natural gas transmission- Florida 
Electric distribution- Florida 
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2017 2016 

2.5% 2.5% 
2.9% 2.9% 
2.8% 2.7% 

3.5% 3.9% 
3.4% 3.5% 
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2.4% 

2.9% 

2.7% 

4.0% 
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For our unregulated operations, we compute depreciation expense on a strr~ight-line bRsis over the following estimated useful lives of the assets: 

AntiDescripliun 

Propane distribution mains 
Propane bulk plants and lanks 

Propane equipment 

Meters and meter installations 
Measuring and regulating station equipment 

Natural gas pipelines 

Natural gas right of ways 

CHP plant 

Natural gas processing equipment 

Office furniture and equipment 

Transportation equipment 

Structures and improvements 

Other 
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Uscrul Lire 

10-37 years 

10-40 years 

5-33 years 

5-33 years 

5-37 years 

45 years 

Perpetual 

30 years 

20-25 years 

3-10 years 

4-20 years 

5-45 years 

Various 

We report certain depreciation and accretion in operittions expense, rather than as a depreciation and amortization expense, in the accompanying consolidated statements of income in accordance with 
industry practice and regulatory requirements. Depreciation and accretion included in operations expense consists of the accretion of the costs of removal for future retirements of utility assets, vehicle 
depreciation, computer software and hardware depreciation, and other minor amounts of depreciation expense. For the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, we reponed $8.1 million, $7.3 million 
and $7.0 million, respectively, of depreciation and accretion in operations expenses. 

Regulated Opemtions 

We account for our regulated operations in accordance with ASC Topic 980, Regulated Opetatiom·, which includes accounting principles for companies whose rates ore detennined by independent third­
party regulators When setting rates, regulators often make decisions, the economics of which require companies to defer costs or revenues in different periods .than may be appropriate for unregulated 
enterprises. When this situation occurs, a regulated company defers the associated costs as regulatory assets on the balance sheet and records them as expense on the income statement as it collects revenues. 
Further, regulators can also impose liabilities upon a regulated company, for amounts previously collected from customers Rnd for recovery of costs that are expected to be incurred in the future, as 
regulatory liabilities. If we were required to terminate the application of these regulatory provisions to our regulated operations, all such deferred amounts would be recognized in the statement of income 11.1 
that time, which could have a material impact on our financial position, results of operations and cash flows. 

We monitor our regulatory and competitive environments to detennine whether the recovery of our regulatory assets continues to be probable. If we were to determine that recovery of these assets is no 
longer probable, we would write off the assets against earnings. We believe that the provisions of ASC Topic 980, Regulated Operations, continue to apply to our regulated operations and that the recovery 
of our regulatory assets is probable. 

Re1•euue Recoguition 

Revenues for our natural gas and electric distribution operations are based on rates approved by the PSC in each state in which they operate Eastern Shore's revenues are based on rates approved by the 
FERC. Customers' base rates may not be changed without fonnal approval by these commissions. The PSCs, however, have authorized our regulated operations to negotiate rates, based on approved 
methodologies, with customers that have competitive alternatives. The FERC has also authorized Eastern Shore to negotiate rates above or below the FERC-approved maximum rates, which customers can 
elect as an alternative to negotiated rates. 

For regulated deliveries of natural gas and electricity, we read meters and bill customers on monthly cycles that do not coincide with the accounting periods used for financial reponing purposes We accrue 
unbilled revenues for natural gas and electricity that have been delivered, but not yet billed, at the end of an accounting period to the extent that they do not coincide. We estimate the Amount of the unbilled 
revenue by jurisdiction and customer class A similar computation is made to accrue unbilled revenues for propane customers with meters and natural gas marketing customers, whose billing cycles do not 
coincide with our accounting periods. 

Our Ohio natural gas supply operation recognizes revenues based on actual volumes of natural gas shipped using contractual rates, which 11.re based upon index prices that are published monthly. 
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Our natural gas marketing operation recognizes revenue based on the volume of natural gas delivered to its customers. 

The propane wholesale marketing operation records trading activity for open contracts on a net mark-to-market basis in our consolidated statements of income. For propane bulk delivery customers without meters, we record revenue in the period the products are delivered and/or services are rendered. 

Eight Flags records revenues based on the amount of electricity and steam generated and sold to its customers. 

All of our natural gas and electric distribution operations, except for two utilities that do not sell natural gas to end-use customers as a result of deregulation, have fuel cost recovery mechanisms. These mechAnisms provide a method of adjusting the billing rates to reflect changes in the cost of purchased fuel. The difference between the current cost of fuel purchased and the cost of fuel recovered in billed rates is deferred and accounted for as either unrecovered fuel cost or amounts payable to customers. Generally, these deferred amounts are recovered or refunded within one year. ChesapeAke Utilities' Florida Division and FPU's Indiantown division provide unbundled delivery service to their customers, whereby the customers cue penniued to purchase their gas requirements directly from competitive natural gas marketers. 

We charge flexible rates to our natural gas distribution industrial intem.~ptible customers to compete with prices of alternative fuels which these customers are able to use. Neither we nor our intermptible customers are contractually obligated to deliver or receive natural gas on a tirm service basis. 

We report revenue taxes, such as gross receipts taxes, franchise taxes, and sales taxes, on a net basis. 

Costtif Sales 

Cost of sales includes the direct costs attributable to the products sold or services provided to our customers. These costs include primarily the variable cost of natural gas, electricity and propane commodities, pipeline capacity costs needed to transport and store natural gas, transmission costs for electricity, gathering and processing gas costs, transportation costs to transport propane purchases to our storage facilities, and steam and electricity generation costs. Depreciation expense is not included in our cost of sales. 
Operutions am/ Afuintemmce E'(penses 

Operations and maintenance expenses include operations and maintenance salaries and benefits, materials anO supplies, usage of vehicles, tools and equipment, payments to contractors, utility plant maintenance, customer service, professional fees and other outside services, insurance expense, minor amounts of depreciation, accretion of cost of removal for future retirements of utility assets and other administrative expenses. 

Caslr am/ Cfl.~l• Eqlli1'fllellls 

Our policy is to invest cash in excess of operating requirements in overnight income-producing accounts. Such amounts are stated at cost, which approximates fair vAlue. Investments with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased are considered cash equivalents. 

Acco11111s Receh•t~hle IIJHI Allnwrmcefor J)ouhlfu/ AccOIIIIIJ 

Accounts receivable consist primarily of amounts due for distribution sales of natural gas, electricity and propane and transportation services to customers. An allowance for doubtful accounts is recorded against amounts due to reduce the receivables balance to the amount we reasonably expect to collect based upon our collections experiences and our assessment of customers' inability or reluctance to pay. If circumstances change, our estimates of recoverable accounts receivable may also change. Circumstances which could affect such estimates include, but are not limited to, customer credit issues, the level of natural gas, electricity and propane prices and general economic conditions. Accounts are written off when they are deemed to be uncollectible. 
Jn,•e11tories 

We use the average cost method to value propane, materials and supplies, and other merchandise inventory. If market prices drop below cost, inventory balances that are subject to price risk are adjusted to their net realizable value. There was no lower-of-cost-or-net realizable value adjustment during 2017, 2016 or 2015. 
Gnmlwilluml Other lntrmgihle Assets 

Goodwill is not amonized but is tested for impairment at least annually. Goodwill of a reporting unit is tested for impairment between annual tests if an event occurs or circumstances change that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of a reporting unit below its carrying value. We use a present value technique based on discounted cash flows to estimate the fair value of our reporting units. An impairment charge is recognized if the carrying value of a reporting unit's goodwill exceeds its implied fair value. The testing of goodwill for 2017, 2016 and 2015 indicated no goodwill impairment. 
Other intangible assets are amonized on a straight-line basis over their estimated economic useful lives. 
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Other Deferred Clwrges 

Other deferred charges primarily include issuance costs associated with short-teffil borrowings. These charges are amortized over the life of the related short-term debt borrowings. 
A.uel Remmwl Cos/ 

As authorized by the appropriate PSC, we accrue future asset removal costs associated with utility property, plant and equipment even if a legal obligation does not exisL Such accruals are provided for 
through depreciation expense and are recorded with corresponding credits to regulatory liabilities or assets. When we retire depreciable utility plant and equipment, we charge the associated original costs to 
accumulated depreciation and amortization, and any related removal costs incurred are charged to regulatory liabilities or assets The difference between removal costs recognized in depreciation rates and 
the accretion expense and depreciation expense recognized for financial reporting purposes is a timing difference between recovery of these costs in rates and their recognition for financial reporting 
purposes. Accordingly, these differences are deferred as regulatory liabilities or assets In the rate selling process, the regulatory liability or asset is excluded from the rate base upon which those utilities have 
the opportunity to earn their allowed rates of return. The costs associated with our asset retirement obligations are either currently being recovered in rates or are probable of recovery in future rates. 
Pe11sio11 and Other Postretirement Plans 

Pension and other postretirement plan costs and liabilities are determined on an actuarial basis and are affected by numerous assumptions and estimates, including the fair value of plan assets, estimates of 
the expected returns on plan assets, assumed discount rates, the level of contributions made to the plans, and current demographic and actuarial mortality data. We review annually the estimates and 
assumptions underlying our pension and other postretirement plan costs and liabilities with the assistance of third-party actuArial firms The assumed discount rates, expected returns on piAn assets and the 
mortality assumption are the factors that generally have the most significant impact on our pension costs and liabilities. The assumed discount rates, health care cost trend rates and mtes of retirement 
generally have the most significant impact on our postretirement plan costs and liabilities. 

The discount rates are utilized principally in calculating the actuarial present value of our pension and postretirement obligations and net pension and postretirement costs When estimating our discount 
rates, we consider high quality corporate bond rates, such as the Prudential curve index and the Citigroup yield curve, changes in those rates from the prior year and other pertinent factors, including the 
expected life of each of our plans and their respective payment options. 

The expected long-term rates of return on assets are utilized in calculating the expected returns on the plan assets component of our annur~l pension plan costs. We estimate the expected returns on plan assets 
of each of our plans by evaluating expected bond returns, asset allocations, the effects of active plan management, the impact of periodic plan asset rebalancing and historical perfonnance. We also consider 
the guidance from our investment advisors in making a final determination of our expected rates of return on assets. 

We estimate the health care cost trend rates used in determining our postretirement net expense based upon actual health care cost experience, the effects of recently enacted legislation and general economic 
conditions. Our assumed rate of retirement is estimated based upon our annual reviews of participant census information as of the measurement date. 

The mortality assumption used for our pension and postretirement plans is based on the actuarial table that is most reflective of the expected mortality of the plan participants and reviewed periodically. 

Actual changes in the fair value of plan assets and the differences between the actual and expected return on plan Assets could have a material effect on the amount of pension and postretirement benefit costs 
that we ultimately recognize. A 0.25 percent decrease in the discount rate could increase our annual pension and postretirement costs by approximately $7,000, r~nd a 0.25 percent increase could decrease our 
annual pension and postretirement costs by approximately $9,000. A 0.25 percent change in the rate of return could change our annual pension cost by approximately $143,000 and would not have an impact 
on the postretirement and supplemental executive retirement plans because these plans are not funded. 

Income TtL\:el-, lm•e!itmeut TtL\: Credit Adjustments mul TtL\:-Relllted Contingency 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded for the income tax effect of temporary differences between the financial statement basis and tax basis of assets and liabilities and are measured using the 
enacted income tax rates in effect in the years in which the differences are expected to reverse. Deferred tax assets are recorded net of any valuation allowance when it is more likely than not that such 
income tax benefits will be realized. Investment tax credits on utility property have been deferred and are allocated to income ratably over the lives of the subject property. 

We account for uncertainty in income taxes in our consolidated financial statements only if it is more likely than not that an uncertain tax position is sustainable based on technical merits. Recognizable tax 
positions are then measured to determine the 
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amount of benefit recognized in the consolidated financial statements. We recognize penalties and interest related to unrecognized tax benefits as a component of other income. 

We account for contingencies associated with taxes other than income when the likelihood of a loss is both probable and estimable. In assessing the likelihood of a loss, we do not consider the existence of 
current inquiries, or the likelihood of future inquiries, by tax authorities as a factor. Our assessment is based solely on our application of the appropriate statutes and the likelihood of a Joss assuming the 
proper inquiries are made by tax authorities. 

Fimmciu/ Instruments 

Prior to its wind down in the second quarter of 2017, Xeron engaged in trading activities using forward and futures contracts, which were accounted for using the MTM method of accounting. Under MTM 
accounting, our trading contracts were recorded at fair value as derivative assets and liabilities. The changes in fair value of the contracts were recognized as gains or losses in revenues in the consolidated 
statements of income in the period of change. 

Our natural gas, electric and propane distribution operations and natural gas marketing operations enter into agreements with suppliers to purchase natural gas, electricity, an-d propane for resale to our 
respective customers. Purchases under these contracts, as well as distribution and marketing operations sales agreements with counterparties or customers, either do not meet the defmition of a derivative, or 
qualify for "normal purchases and sales" treatment under ASC Topic 815 Derimth•es and Hedging, and are accounted for on an accrual basis. 

Our propane distribution operations enter into derivative transactions, such as swaps, put options and call options in order to mitigate the impact of wholesale price fluctuations on inventory valuation and 
future purchase commitments. 

Our natural gas marketing operation enters into natural gas futures and swap contracts to mitigate any price risk associated with the purchase and/or sAle of natural gas to specific customers. 

These transactions may be designated as fair value hedges or cash flow hedges, if they meet all of the accounting requirements pursuant to ASC Topic 815, Denmth•es and Hedging, and we elect to 
designate the instruments as hedges. If designated 1\S a fair value hedge, the value of the hedging instrument, such as a swap, future, or put option, is recorded at fair value, with the effective ponion of the 
gain or loss of the hedging instrument effectively reducing or increasing the value of the hedged item. If designated as a cash flow hedge, the value of the hedging instrument, such as a swap, call option or 
natural gas futures contract, is recorded at fair value with the effective ponion of the gain or loss of the hedging instrument being recorded in comprehensive income. The ineffective ponion of the gain or 
loss of a hedge is recorded in earnings. If the instrument is not designated as a fair value or cash flow hedge, or it does not meet the accounting requirements of a hedge under ASC Topic 815, Derivatives 
and Hedging, it is recorded at fair value with all gains or losses being recorded directly in earnings. In 2018, we will be adopting ASU 2017-12, Targeted Improvemellls Ia Accounting for Hedging Aclii•Wes, 
the updated hedge accounting standard, which we expect will reduce the MTM volatility in PES CO's results due to better alignment of risk management activities and financial reporting, risk component 
hedging and certain other simplifications of hedge accounting guidance 

F ASH Stuteme11ts 

RecentiJ' Adopled At't'Olllllim:Standards 

Inventory (ASC 330) - In July 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-11, Simplifying the AJeasuremelll of !m•enlory. Under this guidance, inventories are required to be measured at the lower of cost or net 
realizable value Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price less costs associated with completion, disposal and transportation We adopted ASU 2015-11 on January I, 2017, on a prospective 
basis. Adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on our financial position or results of operations. 

Ueceut AccoumimrStandards Yet to be Adopted 

Revenue from Contracts with Customers (ASC 606)- In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Re1•enue from Contract.-; with Customers. This standard provides a single comprehensive revenue 
recognition model for all contracts with customers to improve comparability within industries, as well as across industries and capital markets. The standard contains principles that entities will apply to 
determine the measurement of revenue and when it is recognized. The underlying principle is that an entity will recognize revenue to depict the transfer of goods or services to customers at an amount that 
the entity expects to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services. The guidance also requires a number of disclosures regarding the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and the related 
cash flows. In March 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-08, Principa/1•ersus Agent Comideratwus (Reporting Revenue Gross 1•ersus Nel), to clarify the implementation guidance on principal versus agent 
considerations. For public entities, this standard is effective for interim and annual financial statements issued beginning January I, 2018. 

We have completed our evaluation or our revenue sources and the impact on our financial position, results or operations and cash nows. In tandem, we have developed and documented accounting policies 
and position papers, which are intended to meet the 
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requirements of this new revenue recognition standard. We have also completed our plan to update our internal controls. Since the third quarter of 2017, we have provided additional training to our 
employees and have implemented system and process changes that are associated with the adoption of the standard. We will adopt the updated accounting guidance in the first quarter of 2018, using the 
modified retrospective transition method, which will result in a cumulative adjustment that will decrease retained earnings and receivables and other deferred charges by $1.5 million, related to one long-teml 
firm transmission contract with Rn industrial customer for which the timing and recognition of revenue will be shifted to later years. Based on our assessment, we believe that the implementation of this new 
standard will not hRve a material impact on the amount and timing of revenue recognition, other than the one long-term contract for which we will delay the recognition of approximately $407,000 in 
revenue from 2018 to future years. 

Leases (ASC 842)- In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases, which provides updated guidance regarding accounting for leases. This update requires a lessee to recognize a lease liability 
and a lease asset for i!llleilses, including operating leases, with a term greater than 12 months on its balance sheet. The update also expands the required quantitative and qualitative disclosures surrounding 
leases. ASU 2016-02 will be effective for our annual and interim fmancial statements beginning January I, 2019, although early adoption is permitted. 

The FASB allows companies to elect several practical expedients, in order to simplify the transition to the new standard. The following three expedients must all be elected together: 

An entity need not reassess whether any expired or existing contracts are or contain leases. 
An entity need not reassess the lease classification for any expired or existing leases (that is, all existing leases that were classified as operating leases in accordance with Topic 840 will continue to 
be classified as operating leases, i!nd all existing leilses that were classified as capital leases in accordance with Topic 840 will continue to be classified as capital leases). 
An entity need not reassess initial direct costs for any existing leases. 

Other practical expedients that can be elected individually are: 

An entity may elect to use hindsight in detennining the lease term and in assessing impairment of the entity's right-of-use assets. 
An entity may elect to apply the provisions of the new lease guidance at the effective date, without adjusting the comparative periods presented. 

We expect to use the practical expedients to assist in implementation of this standard. We have assessed all of our leases and have concluded that we may have some operating leilses that qualify for the 
short-term lease exception. Upon adoption, we will record the right-of-use assets and the lease liabilities related to our operating leases with a leilse tem1 in excess of one year. We do not believe that this will 
have a materii!l impact on our finilncial position, results of operations or cash flows. 

In January 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-01, Land Easement Prac.:tical Er:pedientfor TrmiSitionto Topic 8-12, which provides il practical expedient to not evaluate, under Topic 842, existing or expired 
land easements that were not previously accounted for as leases. We plan to utilize the provided practical expedient for existing and expired land easements and will assess all new or modified land 
easements and right-of-way agreements, under the guidance of ASU 2016-02, following its adoption. 

Statement of Cash Flows (ASC 230) -In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-15, Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and CaJh Payments, which clarifies how certain transactions are classified in 
the statement of cash flows. ASU 2016-15 will be effective for our annual and interim financial statements beginning January 1, 2018, although early adoption is permitted. We believe that the 
implementation of this new standard will not have a material impact on our consolidated statement of cash flows. 

Intangibles-Goodwill (ASC 350) -In January 2017, the FASD issued ASU 2017-04, Simplifying the Test for Goodwill Jmpamnent, which simplifies how an entity is required to test goodwill for impairment 
by eliminating Step 2 from the goodwill impairment test. ASU 2017-04 will be effective for our annual and interim financial statements beginning January 1, 2020, although early adoption is permitted. The 
amendments included in this ASU are to be applied prospectively. We believe that the implementation of this new standard will not have a material impact on our financial position or results of operations. 

Compensation-Retirement Benefits (ASC 715)- In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-07, Jmprtwing the Presentation of Net Periodic Pension Cost aud Net Periodic Post Retirement /Jenefll Cos/. 
Under this guidance, employers are required to report the service cost component in the same line item or items as other compensation costs arising from services rendered by the pertinent employees during 
the period. The other components of net benefit costs are required to be presented in the income statement separately from the service cost component and outside a subtotal of income from operations. The 
update allows for capitalization of the service cost component when applicable. ASU 2017-07 will be effective for our annual and interim financial statements beginning January I, 2018, although early 
adoption is permitted. The presentation of the service cost and other components in this update are to be applied retrospeclively, and the capitalization of the service cost is to be applied prospectively 
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on or af\er the effective date. Aside from changes in presentation, we believe that the implementation of this new standard will not have a material impact on our financial position or results of operations. 

Compensation- Stock Compensation (ASC 718)- In May 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-09, Scope ojModificanon Ac:c:mmting, to clarify when to account for a change in the terms or conditions of a 
share-based payment award as a modification. Under this guidance, modification accounting is required only if the fair value, the vesting conditions or the award classification (equity or liability) changes as 
a result of a change in the terms or conditions of the award. The guidance is effective for our annual fmancial statements beginning January I, 2018, although early adoption is pennitted. The amendments 
included in this standard cue to be applied prospectively We believe that the implememation of this new stnndard will not have a matericd impact on our financial position or results of operations 

Derivatives and Hedging (ASC 815)- In August 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-12, Targeted lmprm•emellfs to Accmmting for Hedging AcJivilies, to better align an entity's risk management activities 
and financial reporting for hedging relationships through changes to both the designation and measurement guidance for qualifying hedging relationships and the presentation of hf!:dge results Among other 
changes to hedge designation, ASU 2017-12 expands the risks that can be designated as hedged risks in cash flow hedges to include cash flow variability from contractually specified components of 
forecasted purchases or sales of non-financial assets. ASU 2017-12 requires the entire change in fair value of a hedging instrument included in the assessment of hedge effectiveness to be presented in the 
same income statement line that is used to present the earnings effects of the hedged item for fair val.ue hedges and in other comprehensive income for cash flow hedges. For disclosures, ASU 2017-12 
requires a tabular presentation of the income statement effect of fair value and cash flow hedges, and it eliminates the requirement to disclose the ineffective portion of the change in fair value of hedging 
instruments. ASU 2017-12 ,will be effective for our annual and interim financial statements beginning January 1, 2019, although early adoption is permitted. We are evaluating the effect of this standard on 
our future financial position and results of operations. In 2018, we will be adopting the updated hedge accounting standard, which we expect will reduce the MTM volatility in PESCO's results due to better 
alignment of risk management activities and financial reporting, risk component hedging and certain other simplifications of hedge accounting guidance. 

Income Statement- Reporting Comprehensive Income (ASC 220)- In February 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-02, Reclassification of Certain Tar Effects from Accumulated Other Comprellensh•e 
luc:ome, which allows a reclassification from accumulated other comprehensive income to retained earnings for stranded tax effects resulting from the TCJA. ASU 2018-02 will be effective for our annual 
and interim financial statements beginning January I, 2019, although early adoption is permitted. We are evaluating the effect of this standard on our future financial position and results of operations. 
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3. EARNINGS PER SHARE 

The following table presents the calculation of the Company's basic and diluted earnings per share for the years ended December 31: 

(ill lhousands, e.fcept :shares mid per share dolo) 

Cnlcuhuion orBnsic Enrnings Per Share: 

Net Income 

Weighted average shares outstanding 

Bnsic Earnings Per Shnre 

Calculation or Diluted Enrnings Per Shnre: 

Net Income 

Reconciliation or Denominator: 

Weighted average shares outstanding- Basic 

Effect of dilutive securities- Share-based compensation 

Adjusted denominator- Diluted 

Diluted Earnings Per Shnre 

4. ACQUISITIONS 

Acqulsilions in 2017 

ARA1, Chipola ami Cemml G'as A.'i.'fet Acqnisilious 

$ 

Page 79 of 120 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the Yenr Ended Occcrnber 31, 

2017 2016 2015 

58,124 44,675 41,140 

16,336,789 15,570,539 15,094,423 

3.56 2.87 2.73 

58,124 44,675 41,140 

16,336,789 15,570,539 15,094,423 

46,563 42,552 48,950 

16,383,352 15,613,091 15,143,373 

3.55 2 86 2.72 

In August 2017, PESCO acquired certain natural gas marketing assets of ARM. We have accounted for the purchase of these assets as a business combination and recorded goodwill of $6 8 million, which is 
included in Unregulated Energy segment The acquired assets complement PESCO's current asset portfolio and expand our regional footprint and retail demand in a market where we have existing pipeline 
capacity and wholesale liquidity. In connection with the acquisition, we recorded a contingent liability of $2.5 million, which represents the expected future payment of additional consideration to ARM 
based on the achievement of certain performance targets. The payment, which is expected to be paid in 2019, is contingent upon the achievement of certain gross margin targets during the 2018 calendar 
year. The recorded liability is based upon our most recent gross margin projections for the acquired assets and is subject to change based on actual perfonnance or changes in our gross margin projeclions. 

In August 2017, Flo-gas acquired certain operating assets of Chi pol a, which provides propane distribution service to approximately 800 residential and commercial customers in Bay, Calhoun, Gadsden, 
Jackson, Liberty, and Washington Counties, Florida. 

In December 2017, Flo-gas acquired certain operating assets of Central Gas, which provides propane distribution service to approximately 325 residential ctnd commercial customers in Glades, Highlands, 
Martin, Okeechobee, and St. Lucie Counties, Florida. 

The revenue and net income from these acquisitions that were included in our consolidated statement of income for the year ended December 31, 2017, were not material The amounts recorded in 
conjunction with these acquisitions are preliminary and subject to adjustment based on additional valuations performed during the measurement period. 

Acquisilion in 2015 

Gutlrerco 1'1-ferger 
On April I, 2015, we completed the merger with Gatherco, in which Gatherco merged with and into Aspire Energy, our then newly formed, wholly-owned subsidiary. 

At closing, we issued 592,970 shares of our common stock, valued at $30.2 million based on the closing price of our common stock as reported on the NYSE on April I, 2015. In addition, we paid $27.5 
million in cash and assumed $1.7 million of existing outstanding debt, which we paid off on the same date. We also acquired $6,8 million of cash on hand at closing 
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(inthousandr) 

Chesapeake Utilities common stock issued 
Cash 

Acquired debt 

Aggregate amount paid in the acquisition 

Less: cash acquired 

Net amount paid in the acquisition 
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Net PurclulSe Price 

30,164 

27,494 

1,696 

59,354 

(6,806) 

52,548 

The merger agreement provided for additional contingent cash consideration to Gatherco's shareholders of up to $15.0 million based on a percentage of revenue generated from potential new gathering 
opportunities during the five-year period following the closing. As of December J I, 2017, there have been no related gathering opportunities developed; therefore, no contingent liability has been recorded. 
We are unable to estimate the range of future undiscounted contingent liability outcomes at this time However, a liability for additional contingent cash consideration may be recorded prior to April 2020 as 
additional infonnation becomes available. 

We incurred $1.3 million in transaction costs associated with this merger, of which $514,000 and $786,000 were expensed during the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Transaction 
costs were included in operations expense in the consolidated statements of income. The revenues and net income from this acquisition for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 20 I 5, included in 
our consolidated statements of income, were $33.3 million and $8.9 million, respectively, for 2017, $26.6 million and $2.1 million, respectively, for 2016 and $16.7 million and $312,000, respectively, for 
2015. 

The purchase price allocation of the Gatherco acquisition is as follows. 

(m thousands) 

Purchase price 

Propeny plant and equipment 

Cash 

Accounts receivable 

Income taxes receivable 

Other assets 

Total assets acquired 

Long·term debt 

Deferred income taxes 

Accounts payable 

Other current liabilities 

Total liabilities assumed 

Net identifiable assets acquired 

Goodwill 

Purchase Price Allocation 

57,658 

53,203 

6,806 

3,629 

3,163 

425 

67,226 

1,696 

\J,409 

3,837 

745 

19,687 

47,539 

10,119 

The goodwill reflects the value paid primarily for opponunities for growth in a new and strategic geographic area. All of the goodwill from this acquisition was recorded in the Unregulated Energy segment 
and is not deductible for income tax purposes 

5, SEGMENT INFORMATION 

We use the management approach to identify operating segments. We organize our business around differences in regulatory environment and/or products or services, and the operating results of each 
segment are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker (our Chief Executive Officer) in order to make decisions about resources and to assess performance. 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 2017 Fonn IO·K Page 72 

https://www.sec.gov/ Archives/edgar/data/19745/000162828018002594/cpk123120171 0- ... 10/18/2018 



Document Page 81 of 120 

Tahll!ufConh:nls 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our operations comprise two reportable segments: 

Regulated Energy. Includes natural gas distribution, natural gas transmission and electric distribution operations. All operations in this segment are regulated, as to their rates and services, 
by the PSC having jurisdiction in each operating territory or by the FERC in the case of Eastern Shore 

Unregulated Energy. Includes propane distribution as well as natural gas marketing, gathering, processing, transportation and supply. These operations are unregulated as to their rates and 
services. Effective June 2016, this segment includes electricity and steam generation through Eight Flags' CHP plant. Through March 2017, this segment also included the operalions of 
Xeron, our propane and crude oil trading subsidiary that began winding down operations at the end of the first quarter of2017. Also included in this segment are other unregulated energy 
services, such as energy-related merchandise sales and heating, ventilation and air conditioning, plumbing and electrical services. 

The remainder of our operations is presented as "Other businesses and eliminations", which consists of unregulated subsidiaries that own real estate ler~sed to Chesapeake Utilities, as well as certain 
corporate costs not allocated to other operations. 

The following table presents information about our reportable segments. 

(111/fiOII!OIIc/J} 

Operating Revenues, Unaffilinted Customers 

Regulated Energy 

Unregulated Energy 

Total operating revenues, unaffiliated customers 

lntersegment Revenues <1> 

Regulated Energy 

Unregulated Energy 

Other businesses 

Total intersegment revenues 

Opernting Income 

Regulated Energy 

Unregulated Energy 

Other businesses and eliminations 

Operating Income 

Other (expense) income 

Interest charges 

Income Before Income taxes 

Income taxes 

Net Income 

Depreci11tion nnd Amortization 

Regulated Energy 

Unregulated Energy 

Other businesses and eliminations 

Total depreciation and amortization 

Capital Expenditures 

Regulated Energy 

Unregulated Energy 

Other businesses 

Total cApital expenditures 

All significant intcrscgmcnl re\'cnucs arc billed at mnrket roles and have been eliminntcd from consohdatcd re\'cnucs 

2017 

$ 

s 

For the Year Ended December 31, 

2016 2015 

316,971 302,402 300,674 

300,612 196,458 I 58,570 

617,583 498,860 459,244 

9,339 3,287 1,228 

23,983 7,321 3,537 

774 880 880 

34,096 11,488 5,645 

73,160 69,851 60,985 

12,477 13,844 16,355 

206 401 418 

85,843 84,096 77,758 

(765) (441) 293 

12,645 10,639 10,006 

72,433 73,016 68,045 

14,309 28,341 26,905 

58,124 44,675 41,140 

28,554 25,677 24,195 

7,954 6,386 5,679 

91 96 98 

36,599 32,159 29,972 

159,011 139,994 98,372 

26,190 23,984 90,895 

5,902 5,398 5,994 

191,103 169,376 195,261 
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Jdentilinble Assets 

Regulated Energy 

Unregulated Energy 

Other businesses 

Total identifiable assets 

Our operations are entirely domestic. 

6. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW DISCLOSURES 

Cash paid for interest and income taxes during the years ended December 3 I, 2017, 2016 and 2015 were as follows: 

(inlhortsands) 

Cash paid for interest 

Cash paid for income taxes, net of refunds 

Non·cash investing and financing activities during the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015 were as follows: 

(ill thousmJd.r) 

Capital property and equipment acquired on account, but not paid for as of December J I 
Common stock issued for the Retirement Savings Plan 

Common stock issued under the SICP 

Capital lease obligation 

Common stock issued in acquisition 

7. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS 

2017 

2017 

$ 

$ 

$ 
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$ 

As or December 31, 

2017 

1,121,673 

261,541 

34,220 

1,417,434 

For the Year Ended December 31, 

12,420 

(4,114) 

2016 

10,315 

(5,308) 

For the Year Ended December 31, 

2016 

15,457 9,791 

777 

1,127 1,027 

2,070 3,471 

2016 

986,752 

226,368 

16,099 

1,229,219 

2015 

2015 

9,497 

11,076 

10,268 

690 

1,594 

4,824 

30,164 

We use derivative and non-derivative contracts to engage in trading activities and manage risks related to obtaining adequate supply and the price fluctuations of natural gas, electricity and propane. Our 
natural gas, electric and propane distribution operations have entered into agreements with suppliers to purchase natural gas, electricity and propane for resale to our customers. Aspire Energy has entered 
into contracts with producers to secure natural gas to meet its obligations. Purchases under these contracts typically either do not meet the definition of derivatives or are considered "normal purchases and 
sales" and are accounted for on an accrual basis. Our propane distribution and natural gas marketing operations may also enter into fair value hedges of their inventory or cash flow hedges of their future 
purchase commitments in order to mitigate the impact of wholesale price fluctuations. As of December 31, 2017, our natural gas and electric distribution operations did not have any outstanding derivative 
contracts. 

Hetlging Actil•Wes in 2017 

Jn 2017, Sharp entered into futures and swap agreements to mitigrne the risk of fluctuations in wholesale propane index prices associated with 7.7 million gallons of propane expected to be purchased from 
October 2017 through March 2019, of which positions covering 4.9 million gallons of forecasted future purchases were outstanding as of December 3 I, 2017. Under the futures and swap agreements, Sharp 
will receive the difference between the index prices (Mont Belvieu prices in October 2017 through March 2019) and the swap prices of $0.59 per gallon, to the extent the index price exceeds the contracted 
price. lf the index prices are lower than the swap prices, Sharp will pay the difference. Sharp received a total of approximately $440,000, which represented the difference between the index prices and the 
contracted prices during 2017. We designated and accounted for these agreements as cash flow hedges, and there is no ineffective portion of these hedges. In October 2017, we exited agreements associated 
with 1.5 million gallons expected to be purchased from November 2017 through February 2018 and reclassified $520,000 of unrealized gains from other comprehensive income to propane cost of sales. At 
December 31, 2017, the f1,1tures and swap agreements had a 
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fair value asset of approximately $1.2 million and a fAir value liability of $2,000. The change in the fair value of the swap agreements is recorded as unrealized gain (loss) in other comprehensive income 
(loss). 

PES CO enters into natural gas futures contracts associated with the purchase and sale of natural gas to specific customers. These contracts are effective through October 2021, and we designAte and account 
for them as cash flow hedges. There is no ineffective portion of these hedges. At December 31, 2017, PES CO had a total of 17.2 million Dts hedged under natural gas futures contracts, with an asset fair 
value of approximately $92,000. The change in fair value of the natural gas futures contracts is recorded as unrealized gain (lass) in other comprehensive income (loss). 

In August2017, PESCO entered into natural gas swap agreements associated with financial contracts acquired in the ARM acquisition to mitigate the risk of fluctuations in wholesale natural gas prices 
associated with 591,000 Dts PESCO expects to purchase through January 2020. We accounted for these swap agreements as cash flow hedges, which have a fair value liability of approximately $469,000 as 
of December 31, 2017. The change in fair value of the natural gas swap agreements is recorded as unrealized gain (loss) in other comprehensive income (loss). 

The impact of PES CO's fmancial instruments that were not designated as hedges in our consolidated fmancial statements as of December 31, 2017 was $5.8 million, which was recorded as an increase in gas 
costs during the year ended December 31, 2017 and is Associated with 2.9 million Dts of natural gas. 

Hedging Acth•itie.~ ;n 2016 

In 2016, Sharp entered into swap agreements to mitigate the risk of fluctuations in wholesale propane index prices associated with 4.1 million gallons of propane expected to be purchased through September 
2017. Under the swap agreements, Sharp would receive the difference between the index prices (Mont Belvieu prices in October 2016 through September 20 17) and the swap prices of $0.5225 and $0.5650 
per gallon, to the extent the index prices exceeded the swap prices. Sharp received a total of approximately $663,000, which represented the difference between the index prices and swap prices during the 
months of October 2016 through September 2017. We designated and accounted for these swap agreements as cash flow hedges. 

In December 2016, Sharp paid a total of $33,000 to purchase a put option to protect against a decline in propane prices and related potential inventory losses associated with 630,000 gallons for its propane 
price cap program in the 2016-2017 heating season. The put option expired without being exercised because the propane prices did not fall below the strike price of$0.5650 per gallon in December 2016, 
January 2017, or February 2017. We accounted for the put option as a fair value hedge, and there was no ineffective portion of this hedge. 

In January 2016, PES CO entered into a supplier agreement with Columbia Gas of Ohio to provide natural gas supply for one of its local distribution customer pools. PESCO also assumed the obligation to 
store natural gas inventory to satisfy its obligations under the supplier agreement, which terminated on March 31, 2017. In conjunction with the supplier agreement, PESCO entered into natural gas futures 
contracts during the second quarter of 2016 in order to protect its natural gas inventory against market price fluctuations. We previously accounted for these contracts as fair value hedges, with any 
ineffective portion being reponed directly in earnings and offset by any associated gain (loss) on the inventory value being hedged. During the third quaner of 2016, we discontinued hedge accounting as the 
hedges were no longer highly effective As of March 31, 2017, all of these contracts had expired. The impact of our natural gas futures commodity contracts previously designated as fair value hedges and 
the related hedged item on our consolidated income statement for the year ended December 31, 2016, is presented below: 

lin thousands) 

Commodity contracts 

Fair value adjustment for natural gas inventory designated as the hedged item 

TotAl increase in purchAsed gns cost 

The increase in purchased gas cost is ~omprised of the following: 

Basis ineffectiveness 

Timing ineffectiveness 

Totnl ineffectiveness 
There were no natural gas futures conunodil)' conlmcls desiBnRted ns fair \'Blue hedges in 2017. 

YcnrEndccl 

Decemberll,2016 1'> 

(233) 

681 

448 

(83) 

531 

448 

Basis ineffectiveness arises from natural gas market price differences between the locations of the hedged inventory and the delivery location specified in the hedging instruments. Timing ineffectiveness 
arises due to changes in the difference between the spot price and the futures price, as well as the difference between the timing of the settlement of the futures and the valuation of the underlying physical 
commodity. As the commodity contract nears the settlement date, spot-to-forward price differences should 
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converge, which should reduce or eliminate the impact of this ineffectiveness on purchased gas cost. To the extent that our natural gas inventory does not qualify as a hedged item in a fair-value hedge, or 
has not been designated as such, the natural gas inventory is valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value. 

Herlgi11g Actil•ities in 2015 

In March, May and June 2015, Sharp paid a total of$143,000 to purchase put options to protect against a decline in propane prices and related potential inventory losses associated with 2 5 million gallons 
for the propane price cap program in the 2015-2016 heating season. We exercised the put options as propane prices fell below the strike prices of$0.4950, $0.4888 and $0.4500 per gallon in December 2015 
through February 2016 and $0.4200 per gallon in January through March 2016. We received approximately $239,000, which represented the difference between the market prices and the strike prices during 
those months. We accounted for the put options as fair value hedges. 

In March, May and June 2015, Sharp entered into swap agreements to mitigate the risk of fluctuations in wholesale propane index prices associated with 2.5 million gallons expected to be purchased for the 
2015-2016 heating season. Under these swap agreements, Sharp would have received the difference between the index prices (Mont Belvieu prices in December 2015 through March 2016) and the swap 
prices, which ranged from $0.5200 to $0.5950 per gallon, for each swap agreement, to the extent the index prices exceeded the swap prices If the index prices were lower than the swap prices, Sharp would 
hRve paid the difference. These swap agreements essentially fixed the price of the 2.5 million gRIIons that we purchased during this period. We accounted for the swap agreements as cash flow hedges. Sharp 
paid approximately $484,000, which represented the difference between the index prices and swap prices during the months of December 2015 through March 2016. 

Commodity Contracts for Trmling Ac/i)•i/ies 

Shortly after the first quarter of2017, Xeron wound down its operations. Xeron was previously engaged in trading activities using fonvard and futures contracts for propane and crude oiL These contracts 
were considered derivatives and were accounted for using the mark-to-market method of accounting. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, Xeron had no outstanding contracts that were accounted for as 
derivatives. 

Buhmce slreet offsettillg 
PESCO has entered into master netting ilgreements with counterparties that enable it net the counterprmies' outstanding accounts receivable and payable, which are presented on a net basis in the 
consolidated balance sheets. The following table summarizes the accounts receivable and payables on a gross and net basis at December 31, 2017 and 2016: 

At December 31, 2017 

(in thousands) Gross amounts Amounts offset Net amounts 
Accounts receivable 8,283 2,391 5,892 
Accounts payable 16,643 2,391 14,252 

At December 31, 2016 

(in thousands) Gross amounts Amounts offset Net amounts 
Accounts receivable 2,764 1,431 1,333 
Accounts payable 5,335 1,431 3,904 

The following tables present information about the fair value and related gains and losses of our derivative contracts. We did not have any derivative contracts with a credit-risk-related contingency 

Fair values of the derivative contracts recorded in the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, are as follows: 
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Dcri\'llfh·cs nul deslgnnled as hcrlging inslrumcnls 

Pmpanc swap agreements 

Put options 

Deri\'ftth·cs tlulgnntcd liS cash now hedges 

Noturalgas futurcscontmcls 

PrupilnC swnp agrcemen!s 

Toto] ossct dcnvoh\'cs 

(illlhOIIJOIIdJ) 

Derh·nlin:J not designated as hedging lnstrun1cnls 

Natural gas futurcsconlmcls 

Dcrh·ath·u deslgnatctliU cash n()l\' hedges 

Nnturalgasswapcontrucls 

Propane swap agrccmcm.s 

Totnlliability dcnvati\·cs 

The effects of gains and losses from derivative instruments are as follows: 

Dalnncc Sheet Locnllon 

lkrivnti\·cnsscls,atfairYn]uc 

Deri\'Hiivcosscls,at fair\n]uc 

Dcri\·atiYc asset~. otfmrvnluc 

DcrimtiYCII~scts, ul fair value 

B"lnnce Shccl Locnllun 

Dcrwotivc hnhilities,at fair value 

Dcri\'llti"eliabilitics,atfuirvaluc 

lkrivati\'c liabilities, II! fnirvalue 
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A net Dcrh·ath·u 

December Jl, 2011 

Llnblllty Dcrintl]\u 

Dcccnllu·rll 1 2017 

FnlrVnlueAsOr 

13 

92 

1,181 

1,286 

FnlrYnlueAsOr 

5,776 

, .. 
6,247 

DccemherJJ, 2016 

DcccmbcrJI,lOlti 

113 

693 

823 

773 

773 

An10untofGMin (Loss) un Dcrh•atln~s: 

(in thousands) 

Dcrintth·cs no I dcJ!gnnled IU hedging lnslrumcnls 

Realized gain (loss) on forward contrncts and options'" 

Unrealized l]oss) on forwardconlnlclsuo 

Nnluralgas fulurescuntracts 

Propane swop agreement! 

Natural gas swap contmcts 

Dcrin1th·cs tlcslgnRicd u f11ir \·nlue hctlgu 

PutfCall option 

i'utfCall option<l-' 

Nnlurnl gas futures contracts 

D~:rinalh cs dcslgnnlcd ~~~cash Row lu:tlgcs 

Propane swap agrecmenl5 

Totnl 

Propane swap agreements 

Call options 

Naturnl gas futures contracts 

Nnlural gas swap contracts 

Naturalgasfuturescontmcts 

Natural gos swap contracts 

Location ufGoin 
(Lon) on Dcri\·nth·cs 

Re,·cnue 

Rc\'enuc 

Coslofsales 

Cost of sales 

Cost of sales 

Cost of sales 

Propnnc m\ cntOJ)' 

Nnlumlgnsin\·cntor)' 

Costofsnlcs 

Other comprchcnsh·e income (loss) 

Cost of sales 

Cost of sales 

Costofsnles 

Other comprehensive income (loss) 

Other comprehensive income (loss) 

(I) All of the realized and unrealized gnin (loss) on forward contracts represents the dfccl oftrndingacti,ities on ourconsnlitlated stutcmcllls ofmcome 

2017 

Fur the Vent Ended Deecmln:rJl, 

2016 2015 

112 l5.J6) 416 

(126) 

(J,6JJ) (541) 

IH 

(9) 4Y 528 

<3 

(133) 

1,607 (364) (110) 

487 1,016 (313) 

(81) 

(456) 345 

(822) 

{1,476) m [Q') ... 
(3,195) (45) <74 

(2) As a tim value hedge with no ineffective por1ion, the unrealized gains and los5Cs nssocmtcd with this call option are recorded m cost of snlcs, offscl by the corresponding chnnge in the value of propane tn\'cnlor)' (hedged item), which is nlso recorded in 
cost of .sales. The amoWils in cost of .sales off5Ct to zero, and the unreshzetl gains and losses ofthis call option elfccti\'ely changed the value ofprupnne in\'cntOr)' on the consolidated balance sheets. 
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8. FAIR VALUE or FINANCIAL INSTRUftiENTS 

GAAP establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation methods used to measure fair value. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are the following: 

Level I: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities; 

Level2: Quoted prices in markets that are not active, or inputs which are observable, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the asset or liability; and 

Level3: Prices or valuation techniques requiring inputs that are both significant to the fair value measurement and unobservable (i.e. supported by litlle or no market activity). 

Fimmcia/ Assets mul Liabilities A1eus11retl ell Fuir Value 

The following tables summarize our financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis and the fair value measurements, by level, within the fair value hierarchy as of 
December 31,2017 and 2016, respectively: 

Asu(Dcccmhcrll, 20J7 

(IIIIIIOIISOI/ds) 

Assets: 

Investments-equity securities 

Investments-guaranteed income fund 

Investments-mutual funds and other 

Total investments 

Derivative assets 

Total assets 

Liabilities: 

Derivative liabilities 

As orDcccml•erJI, 2016 

(mt/louscmds) 

Assets· 

Investments-equity securities 

Investmenls-guaranteed income fund 

Investments-mutual funds and other 

Total investments 

Derivative assets 

Total assets 

Liabilities: 

Derivative liabilities 
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22 

648 

6,086 

6,756 

1,286 

$ 8,042 $ 

6,247 

FHirVulue 

21 

561 

4,320 

4,902 

823 

5,725 

773 

Fulr Vnluc McK~urcmcnls Using: 

SlgnlncMnl Other 
Quoted l'rlcc! In OhscrnliJic 
Acth·c.Mnrltcls In (lUI! 

(Lcnll) (Le\"dl) 

22 $ 

6,086 

6,108 

1,286 

6,108 1,286 

$ 6,247 $ 

Fnlr Value MeoJuremenh Udng: 

Slgnineunl Other 
ObJcn·ablc 

Quoted Prlecsln Acth·c lnpuh 
MRrkeh(lncll) (Le\ell) 

21 

4,320 

4,341 

823 

4,341 823 

773 

https://www.sec.gov/ Archives/edgar/data/19745/0001628280 18002594/cpk123120171 0- ... 

Slgnlncunl 
Unobscn•uhlc 

JnJIUIS 
(lt\"cl l) 
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SlgniricHnl 
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lnJIUIJ 
{Le\·ciJ) 

561 

56! 

561 
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The following valuation techniques were used to measure fair value assets on a recurring basis as of December 31, 20 17 and 2016: 

Level I Fair Value Measurements: 

/Jweslmellls- equily .\·ecurUies- The fair values of these trading securities are recorded at fair value based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical securities 

lm'e.l'/menls -mutual funds and other- The fair values of these investments, comprised of money market and mutual funds, are recorded at fair value based on quoted net asset values of the shares. 

Level 2 Fair Value Measurements: 

Derh•atil•e assets and liabilities- The fair values of forward contracts are measured using market transactions in either the listed or OTC markets The fair value of the propane put/call options, swap 
agreements and natural gas futures contracts are measured using market transactions for similar assets and liabilities in either the listed or OTC markets. 

Level 3 Fair Value Measurements: 

lm•eslmellls- guaranteed iucome fimd ~The fair values of these investments are recorded at the contrAct value, which approximates their fair value. 

The following table sets forth the summary of the changes in the fair value of Level 3 investments for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016. 

(in/IJOIISII/N/Sj 

Beginning Balance 

Purchases and adjustments 

Transfers/disbursements 

Investment income 

Ending Balance 

Investment income from the Level3 investments is reflected in other (expense) income ih the consolidated statements of income. 

For the Yenr Ended December 31, 

2017 

561 

79 

(53) 

61 

648 

2016 

279 

123 
151 

561 

At December 31, 2017 and 2016, there were no non-fmancial assets or liabilities rectuired to be reported at fair value We review our non-fmancial assets for impairment at least on an annual basis, as 
rectuired. 

01/rer Finrmcial Assels am/ Liabililies 

Financial assets with carrying values approximating fair value include cash and cash ectuivalents and accounts receivable. Financial liabilities with carrying values approximating fair value include accounts 
payable and other accrued liabilities and short-term debt. The fair value of cash and cash equivalents is measured using the comparable value in the active market and approximates its carrying value (Level I 
measurement). The fair value ofshort-tenn debt approximates the carrying value due to its short maturities and because interest rates approximate current market rates (Level3 measurement). 

At December 31, 2017,long-term debt, which includes the current maturities but excludes a capital lease obligation, had a carrying value of $205.2 million, compared to a fair value of $215.4 million, using 
a discounted cash flow methodology that incorporates a market imerest rate based on published corporate borrowing rates for debt instruments with similar terms and average maturities, adjusted for 
duration, optionality and risk profile. At December 31, 2016, long-term debt, which includes the current maturities but excludes a capital lease obligation, had a carrying value of $145.9 million compared to 
the estimated fair value of$161.5 million. The valuation technique used to estimate the fair value of long-term debt would be considered a Level 3 measurement. 

See Note 16, Employee Benefit Plans, for fair value measurement information related to our pension plan assets. 
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9. INVESTMENTS 

The investment balances at December 31, 2017 and 2016, consisted of the following: 

(inllwusands) 

Rabbi trust (associated with the Non~Qualifled Deferred Compensation Plan) 

Investments in equity securities 

Total 

2017 

As or December 31, 

2016 

6,734 4,881 

22 21 

6,756 4,902 

We classify these investments as trading securities and report them at their fair value. For the years ended December 31, 2017, 20 I 6 and 2015, we recorded net unrealized gains of $1.0 million, $379,000 and 
$7,000, respectively, in other income (expense) in the consolidated statements of income related to these investments. For the investment in the Rabbi Trust, we also have recorded an associated liability, 
which is included in other pension and benefit costs in the consolidAted balance sheets and is adjusted each period for the gains and losses incurred by the investments in the Rabbi Trust. 

10, GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE. ASSETS 

The carrying value of goodwill as of December 31 1 2017 and 2016 was as follows· 

fmthOII50IIdsJ 

Regulated Energy 

Unregulated Energy 

Total 

2017 

As of December 31, 

3,353 

18,751 

22,104 

2016 

3,353 

11,717 

15,070 

As of December J 11 2017, goodwill in our Regulated Energy segment is comprised of approximately $2.5 million from the FPU merger in October 2009, $170,000 from the purchase of operating assets from 
IGC in August 20 I 0 and $714,000 from the purchase of Fort Meade in December 20 1J. As of December J I, 20171 goodwill in our Unregulated Energy segment is comprised of $10.1 million from the 
acquisition ofGatherco in April 2015, $6.8 million from the acquisition of certain operating assets from ARM in August2017, and $1.9 million from the Requisition of the operating assets of several propane 
distribution companies. The annual impairment testing for 2017 and 2016 indicated no impairment of goodwill. 

The carrying value and accumulated amortization of intangible assets subject to amortization as of December J I, 2017 and 2016 are as follows: 

Customer lists 

Non-Compete agreements 

Other 

Total 

$ 

Gron 
CHrf)lng 
Amuunl 

7,393 

270 

270 

7,933 

As of December 31, 

2017 

Gron 
Accuntuhalctl Cnrrylnll, 
Amorlb.ollun Amounl 

2,880 

175 

192 

$ 3,247 

2016 

Accunauhalcd 
Anlllrli"J.IIIiun 

4,012 2,379 

270 146 

270 184 

4,552 2,709 

The customer lists acquired in the purchases of the operating assets of several companies are being amortized over seven to 12 years. The non-compete agreements acquired in the purchase of the operating 
assets of several companies are being amortized over a six-year or seven-year period The other intangible assets consist of acquisition costs from our propane distribution acquisitions in the late 1980s and 
1990s and are being amortized over 40 years. 

For the years ended December 31, 20171 2016 and 2015, amortization expense of intangible assets was $537,000, $380,000, and $367,000, respectively. Amortization expense of intangible assets is expected 
to be $790,000 for each of the years 2018, 2019 and 2020,$725,000 for 2021 and $471,000 for 2022. 
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1l.INCDME TAXES 

We fde a consolidated federal income tax return. Income tax expense allocated to our subsidiaries is based upon their respective taxable incomes and tax credits. State income tax returns are filed on a 
separate company basis in most states where we have operations and/or are required to f1le. Our returns for tax years after 2013 are subject to examination. 

We had no net operating loss for federal income tax purposes as of December 31, 2017. As of December 31, 2016, we had a net operating Joss for federal income tax purposes of $14.0 million, which we 
carried back two years. For state income tax purposes, we had net operating losses in various slates of $34.2 million Rnd $19.6 million as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, almost all of which 
will expire in 2036 We have recorded deferred tax assets of $1.6 million and $893,000 related to state net operating loss carry·forwards at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, but we have not 
recorded a valuation allowance to reduce the future benefit of the tax net operating losses because we believe they will be fully utilized. 
Federal Tax Rejhrm 

On December 22, 2017, President Trump signed into law the TCJA. Substantially all of the provisions of the TCJA are effective for taxable years beginning on or after January I, 2018. The provisions 
significantly impacting us include the reduction of the corporate federal income tax rate from 35 percent to 21 percent and several technical provisions, including, among others, limiting the utilization of net 
operating losses arising after December 31, 2017 to 80 percent of taxable income with an indef1nite carryforward. Our federal income tax expense for periods beginning on January I, 2018 will be based on 
the new federal corporate income tax rate. The specific TCJA provisions related to regulated public utilities generally allow for the continued deductibility of interest expense, the elimination of full 
expensing for tax purposes of certain property acquired after September 27, 2017, and continuation of certain rate normalization requirements for accelerated depreciation benefits. 

Additionally, enactment of the TCJA resulted in changes to the Internal Revenue Code, which materially impacted our 2017 f1nancial statements. ASC 740,/ncome Taxes, requires recognition of the effects 
of changes in tax laws in the period in which the law is enacted. ASC 740 requires deferred tax assets and liabilities to be measured at the enacted tax rate expected to apply when temporary differences are 
to be realized or settled. We have completed and have made a reasonable estimate of the measurement and accounting of certain effects of the TCJA, which have been reflected in the December 31, 2017 
consolidated fmancial statements, the period in which the TCJA was enacted. At the date of enactment, we re-measured deferred income taxes based upon the new corporate tax rate. For our regulated 
businesses, the change in deferred income taxes of$98.5 million was recorded as an offset to a regulatory liability, some portion of which may ultimately be subject to refund to customers. We are at various 
stages of discussion with our regulatory jurisdictions. For our unregulated businesses, the change in deferred income taxes of $14.3 million was recorded as an adjustment to our deferred income taxes and 
increased our net income. 

The following tables provide: (a) the components of income tax expense in 2017,2016, and 2015; (b) the reconciliation between the statutory federal income tax rate and the effective income tax rate for 
2017, 2016, and 2015; and (c) the components of accumulated deferred income tax assets and liabilities at December 31, 2017 and 2016. 

(mthourands) 

Current Income Tnx Expense 

Federal 

State 
Other 

Total current income tax expense 

Deferred Income Tnx Expense (I) 

Property, plant and equipment 
Deferred gas costs 
Pensions and other employee benefits 
FPU merger-related premium cost and deferred gain 
Net operating loss carry forwards 
Other 

Total deferred income tax expense 

Tolallncome Tnx Expense 

111lncludcs $873,000, $2.1 million nnd $2. r million or dercrred slate income taxes for the ycnrs 2017. 2016 nnd 2015, rcspccll\'cly. 

2017 

$ 

$ 

For the Yenr Ended December 31, 

2016 2015 

2,803 {4,898) 4,875 

492 2,053 1,533 

(71) (71) (23) 

3,224 (2,916) 6,385 

8,314 31,062 21,205 

2,002 1,163 (1,539) 

180 237 (84) 

(1,148) (572) (556) 

193 (9) 2,078 

1,544 (624) (584) 

11,085 31,257 20,520 

14,309 28,341 26,905 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 2017 Form 10-K Page 81 

https://www.sec.gov/ Archives/edgar/data/19745/000162828018002594/cpk123120171 0- ... 10/18/2018 



Document 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

(in thousands) 

Reconcilintion of Effective Income Tnx R<Hes 

Federal income tax expense t•l 

State income taxes, net of federal benefit 

ESOP dividend deduction 

Revaluation of deferred tax assets and liabilities 

Other 

Totnl Income Tnx Expense 

Effective Income Tnx Rnte m 
OJ Fcdcml income tuxes were cD!culatcd a\35 percent for each y~:11r represented 

2017 

121 En·ecli\'C tux rotc for 2017 includes the im[JIIC\ of the Il:\'n]ual!on of deferred tux osscls and liabilities for our unrcgulnted businesses due to implcmcntBIIon oflhc TCJA 

(ill lhousonds) 

Deferred Income Taxes 

Deferred income tax liabilities: 

Property, plant and equipment 
Acquisition adjustment~ 

Loss on reacquired debt 

Deferred gas costs 

Other 

Total deferred income ta:o;: liabilities 

Deferred income tax assets: 

Pension and other employee benefits 

Environmental costs· 

Net operating loss carryforwards 

Investment tax credit carry forwards 

Self insurance 

Storm reserve liability 

Other 

Total deferred income tax assets 

Deferred Income Taxes Per Consolidated Bnhmce Sheets 
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For the Yenr Ended December 31, 

2016 2015 

25,351 22,759 23,865 
1,894 3,422 3,062 

(257) (264) (263) 

(14,299) 

1,620 2,424 241 

14,309 28,341 26,905 

19.75% 38.81% 3954% 

As of December 31, 

2017 2016 

133,581 218,074 

9,323 14,840 

153 442 

2,574 1,846 

5,422 6,375 

151,053 241,577 

4,698 6,230 

1,744 2,592 

1,625 952 

2,643 

164 189 

717 1,131 

6,255 4,946 

15,203 18,683 

135,850 222,894 
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12. LONG· TERM DEBT 

Our outstanding long-term debt is shown below: 

(iu lhoumnds) 

FPU secured first mortgage bonds: 

9.08% bond, due June I, 2022 

Uncollateralized ~enior Notes: 

6.64%note, due October 31,2017 

5.50% note, due October 12,2020 

5. 93% note, due October 31, 2023 

5.68% note, due June 30, 2026 

6.43% note, due May 2, 2028 

3. 73% note, due December 16, 2028 

3.88% note, due May 15,2029 

3.25% note, due April 30, 2032 

Promissory notes 

Capital lease obligation 

Less: debt issuance costs 

Total long-term debt 

Less: current maturities 

Totallong-tenn debt, net of current maturities $ 
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As or December 31, 

2017 2016 

7,982 7,978 

2,727 

6,000 8,000 

18,000 21,000 

26,100 29,000 

7,000 7,000 

20,000 20,000 

50,000 50,000 

70,000 

97 168 

2,070 3,471 

(433) (291) 

206,816 149,053 

(9,421) (12,099) 

197,395 136,954 

Annual maturities and principal repayments of long-term debt, excluding the capital lease obligation, are as follows: $8.0 million for 2018; $10.6 million for 2019; $15.6 million for 2020; $13.6 million for 
2021; $25.1 million for 2022 and $132 3 million thereafter. See Note 14, !.ease Ohligalfons, for future payments related to the capital lease obligation. 

Shelf Agreemellls 

In October 2015, we entered into the Prudential Shelf Agreement, under which we may request that Prudential purchase, through October 8, 2018, up to $150.0 million of Prudential Shelf Notes. The 
Prudential Shelf Notes have a fixed interest rate and a maturity date not to exceed twenty years from the date of issuance. Prudential is under no obligation to purchase any of the Prudential Shelf Notes. The 
interest rate and terms of payment of any series of the Prudential Shelf Notes will be determined at the time of purchase. 

In May 2016, Prudential agreed to purchase $70.0 million of 3.25 percent Prudential Shelf Notes, which were issued on April21, 2017. The proceeds received from this issuance of Prudential Shelf Notes 
were used to reduce short-term borrowings under the Revolver. The balance under the Revolver had accumulated over time as capital expenditures were temporarily financed. As of December 31, 2017, $80 
million remains available for issuance under the Prudential Shelf Agreement. 

In March 2017, we entered into the MetLife Shelf Agreement and the NYL Shelf Agreement, under which we may request that MetLife and NYL, through March 2, 2020, purchase up to .$150.0 million and 
$100.0 million, respectively, of our unsecured senior debt. The unsecured senior debt would have a fixed interest rate and a maturity date not to exceed twenty years from the date of issuance. MetLife and 
NYL are under no obligation to purchase any unsecured senior debt. The interest rate and tenns of payment of any series of unsecured senior debt will be determined at the time of purchase. 

In November 2017, NYL agreed to purchase $50.0 million of 3.48% Series A notes and $50.0 million of 3.58% Series B notes. The Series A notes and Series B notes will be issued on or before May 21, 
2018 and November 20, 2018, respectively. The proceeds received from the issuances of these shelf notes will be used to reduce short-term borrowings under the Revolver and/or lines of credit and/or to 
fund capital expenditures. The NYL Shelf Agreement has been fully utilized. 

As of December 31, 2017, we had not requested that Metlife purchase unsecured senior debt under the Metlife Shelf Agreement 

The Prudential Shelf Agreement, the Metlife Shelf Agreement, and the NYL Shelf Agreement set forth certain business covenants to which we are subject when any Note is outstanding, including 
covenants that limit or restrict our ability, and the ability of our subsidiaries, to incur indebtedness, or place or permit liens and encumbnmces on any of our property or the property of our subsidiaries. 
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Secured Firj'/ A1ortguge /Jomls 

We guaranteed FPU's first mortgage bonds, which are secured by a lien covering all of FPU's property. FPU's first mortgage bonds contain a restriction that limits the payment of dividends by FPU. It 
provides that FPU cannot make dividends or other restricted payments in excess of the sum of $2.5 millior plus FPU's consolidated net income accrued on and after January I, 1992. As of December 31, 
2017, FPU's cumulative net income base was $142.6 million, offset by restricted payments of $37.6 million, leaving $104.9 million of cumulative net income for FPU free of restrictions pursuant to this 
covenant 

The dividend restrictions in FPU's first mortgage bonds resulted in approximately $43.0 million of the net assets of our consolidated subsidiaries being restricted at December 31, 2017. This represents 
approximately 9 percent of our consolidated net assets. Other than the dividend restrictions in FPU's first mortgage bonds, there are no legal, contractual or regulatory restrictions on the net assets of our 
subsidiaries. 

Unco/lutemlizefl Senior Note.'i 

All of our uncollateralized Senior Notes require periodic principal and interest payments as specified in each note. They also contain various restrictions. The most stringent restrictions state that we must 
maintain equity of at least 40 percent of total capitalization, and the fixed charge coverage ratio must be at least 1.2 times. The most recent Senior Notes issued in December 2013 also contain a restriction 
that we must maintain an aggregate net book value in our regulated business assets of at least 50 percent of our consolidated total assets. Failure to comply with those covenants could result in accelerated 
due dates and/or termination of the Senior Note agreements. 

Certain uncollateralized Senior Notes contain a "restricted payments" covenant as defined in the respective note agreements. The most restrictive covenants of this type are included within the 5.93 percent 
Senior Note, due October 31, 2023. The covenant provides that we cannot pay or declare any dividends or make any other restricted payments in excess of the sum of $10.0 million, plus our consolidated net 
income accrued on and after January I, 2003. As of December 31, 2017, the cumulative consolidated net income base was $387.7 million, offset by restricted payments of $178.0 million), leaving $209.7 
million of cumulative net income free of restrictions. 

As of December 31, 2017, we are in compliance with all of our debt covenants. 

13. SHORT·TERM BoRROWINGs 

At December 31, 2017 and 2016, we had $251.0 million and $209.9 million, respectively, of short-term borrowings outstanding at the weighted average interest rates of 2.42 percent and 1.43 percent, 
respectively. ln October 2015, we entered into a Credit Agreement with the Lenders for a $150.0 million Revolver through October 2020 subject to the terms and conditions as specified. In November 2017, 
we entered into a new $40.0 million short-term credit facility with a new lender. As a result, we now have an aggregate of $370.0 million in credit lines comprised offive unsecured bank credit fitcilities with 
four financial institutions, with $220.0 million in total available credit, and a Revolver with five participating Lenders totaling $150.0 million. We incurred commitment fees of $131,000, $145,000 and 
$106,000 in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The following table summarizes our short-term borrowing facilities information at December 31, 2017 and 2016. 
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(in thousand.s) 

Bnnk Credit Fncility 

Comnul!cd rc\'oh·ing credit facility A 

Comm1Hcd rc\'oh•ing credit facility B 

Short-tcm1 rc\·olving credit note C 

Committed rc\'oh·ing credit facility D 

Committed rc\'olving credit facility E 

Com milled rc\·ol,·ing credit fac1lity F" 

Total short term credit facilities 

Book O\'crdrnnsl11 

Total short-tcm1 borrowing 

TotRI Fncility 

55,000 

30,000 

50,000 

45,000 

40,000 

150,000 

370,000 

Interest RRte Expiration D11.te 

LIBOR plus 1.00 perccntu 1 October 2!!, 2018 S 
LIBOR plus 1.00 percent lit October 3 I, 2018 

LIBOR plus 0.80 percent 111 October 31,201!! 

LIBOR plus 0 85 pcrcent 1lJ October 3 I, 2018 

LIBOR plus 0.85 percent <ll October 31, 201!! 

Ll BOR plus 1.00 percent 111 October 08, 2020 

(IJ This facility bears interest at LIDOR for !he applicable JX:rind plus up to 1.00 percent, based on Toto] [ndcbtcdncss as 11 percentage of Total Capitabzation. 

(l) At our d•scrction,thc borro\\ings under thts fnc1hty con bear interest at the lender's base rntc plus 0.80 percent 

(JJ At ourdiscrcllon, the borrowing under this fncility Cllfl bear interest at the lender's base rote plus 0.85 percent. 
(~J If presented, these book o\'erdrafls would be funded tluough the b.onk rc\'oh·ing. crcd1t facililles. 

(~)Th1s eommillcd re\·olving credit fPcilit}' includes 11 restriction that our sh011-tenn borrowings, e\cluding Dfl)' borrowing.s under the comm11tcd rem]ving 
credit fociluy, sholl not e.~eeed S200 0 million. 
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Outstanding borrowings at 

AvRiiRble Rl December 
December 31,2017 December31,2016 31,2017 

55,000 45,000 

20,500 21,311 9,500 

50,000 50,000 

40,171 35,000 4,829 

40,000 

75,000 50,000 75,000 

240,671 201,311 129,329 

10,298 8,560 

250,969 209,871 

These bank credit facilities are available to provide funds for our short-term cash needs to meet seasonal working capital requirements and to temporarily fund portions of our capital expenditures. We are 
authorized by our Board of Directors to borrow up to $275.0 million of shon-tenn debt, as required, from these short-term lines of credit. As of February 27, 2018 the Board increased this limit from $275.0 
million to $350.0 million. 

The availability of funds under our credit facilities is subject to conditions specified in the respective credit agreements, all of which we currently satisfy. These conditions include our compliance with 
fmancial covenants and the continued accuracy of representations and warranties contained in these agreements. We are required by the fmancial covenants in our revolving credit facilities to maintain, at the 
end of each fiscal year, a funded indebtedness ratio of no greater than 65 percent We are in compliance with all of our debt covenanls. 

14. LEASE 0BLtGATIONS 

We have entered into several operating lease arrangements for office space, equipment and pipeline facilities. Rent expense related to these leases for 2017, 2016 and 20 I 5 was $3.6 million, $2.5 million, and 
Sl. 7 million, respectively. As of December 31, 2017, future minimum payments under our current lease agreements-for the years 2018 through 2022 are $2.7 million, $1.7 million, $1 0 million, $815,000, 
and $654,000, respectively and approximately $3.7 million thereafter, with an aggregate total of approximately $10.6 million. 

For each of the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015, we paid $1.5 million, for a capital lease arrangement related to Sandpiper's capacity, supply and operating agreement. Future minimum 
payments under this lease arrangement are .$1 5 million for 2018 and $625,000 in 2019, with an aggregate total of $2.1 million. 
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15, STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Preferred Stock 

We have 2,000,000 ~uthorized and unissued shares of $0.01 par value preferred stock as of December 31, 2017 and 20\6. Shares of preferred stock may be issued from time to time, by authorization of our 
Board of Directors and without the necessity of further action or authorization by stockholders, in one or more series and with such voting powers, designations, preferences and relative, participating, 
optional or other special rights and qualifications as the Board of Directors may, in its discretion, determine. 

Common Stock Puhlic OfferiJJg 

In September 2016, we completed a public offering of 960,488 shares of our common stock at a public offering price per share of $62.26. The net proceeds from the sale of common stock, after deducting 
underwriting commissions and expenses, were approximately $57.4 million, which were added to our general funds and used primarily to repay a portion of our short-term debt under unsecured lines of 
credit. 

Slwrelwlders' Rig/Its 

Effective February 27,2018, we entered into the Amendment to the Rights Agreement to accelerate the expiration of the Rights (as defined below) from 5:00P.M, New York City time, on August20, 2019, 
to 5.00 P.M., New York City time, on February 27, 2018 and, which has the effect of terminating the Rights Agreement on that date At the time of the termination of the Rights Agreement, all of the Rights 
distributed to holders of our common stock pursuant to the Rights Agreement will expire by their respective terms. Accordingly, the Rights Agreement is of no further force and effect. 

Prior to termination of the Rights Agreement, each outstanding share of our common stock held of record on September 3, 1999, as adjusted for our stock split in September 2014, and additional shares of 
common stock issued since that time, was accompanied by one preferred stock purchase right (each, a "Right," and, collectively, the "Rights"). Each Right initially entitled the holder to purchase one fiftieth 
of a share of our Series A Participating Cumulative Preferred Stock, par value $0.01 per share, at a price of $70 per unit, subject to anti-dilution adjustments. Upon a person or entity becoming an Acquiring 
Person, each Right (other than the Rights held by the Acquiring Person) would have become exercisable to purchase a number of shares of our common stock having a market value equal to two times the 
exercise price of the Right. 

Accumulutetf Other Comprehe11sh•e (Loss) 

Defmed benefit pension and postretirement plan items, unrealized gains (losses) of our propane swap agreements, call options and natural gas futures and swap contracts, designated as commodity contracts 
cash flow hedges, are the components of our accumulated comprehensive income (loss). 

The following tables present the changes in the balance of accumulated other comprehensive loss for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016. All amounts in the following tables are presented net of 
tax. 

(inlhormmds) 

As of December 31, 2016 

Other comprehensive income before reclassifications 
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss) 

Net current-period other comprehensive income/(loss) 

As of December 31,2017 
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Delinctl Benefit Pension 
and Po,trelln:nJenl Plnn 

lleniJ 

(5,360) 

281 

336 

617 

(4,743) 

Commodity Conlrncl Cruh 
FlowHetlges Tuhtl 

482 

159 

(170) 

(II) 

471 
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440 
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(111/hOfiSU/Ids) 

As of December 31, 2015 

Other comprehensive income/(loss) before reclassifications 

Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss) 

Net current-period other comprehensive income 

As of December 31,2016 

Defined Bencnt Pemlon 
Rnd PuJircllremcnl Pion 

Items 

(5,580) 

(254) 

474 

220 

(5,360) 
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Cummotllty ConlrnciJ 
CRsh Fluw HcdgcJ Tn!RI 

(260) (5,840) 

762 508 

(20) 454 

742 962 

482 (4,878) 

The following table presents amounts reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015. Deferred gains and losses of our commodity 
contracts cash flow hedges are recognized in earnings upon settlement. 

(flllhOIIJOI!ds) 

Amortization of defined benefit pension and postretirement plan items: 

Prior service cost 11 ' 

Netgain°1 

Total before income taxes 

Income tax benefit 

Net of tax 

2017 

For the Year Ended December 31, 

2016 

77 77 

(636) (871) 

(559) (794) 

223 320 

(336) (474) 

Gains and losses on commodity contracts cash now hedges 

Propane swap agreements <!J 1,607 (322) 
Natural gas swaps m 
Natural gas futures <!J 

Total before income taxes 

Income tax impact 

Net of tax 

Total reclassifications for the period 

These amounts nre included in the computation of net pcnO<hc benefits. Sec Note 16, Emplo;'f!e IJenefit Plcms, fur adduional dctnils. 
These amounts nrc included in the ciTccts of gains and losses Iium dcrivalii'C instruments See Note 7, Dem'Uiil'f! Jmtnunenls, for adlhtional details 

(822) 

(456) 34S 

329 23 

(159) (3) 

170 20 

(166) (454) 

2015 

68 

(650) 

(582) 

233 

(349) 

(120) 

(S5) 

(31) 

(206) 

83 

(123) 

(472) 

Amortization of defined benefit pension and postretirement plan items is included in operations expense, and gains and losses on propane swap agreements, call options and natural gas futures contracts are 
included in cost of sales in the accompanying consolidated statements ofincome. The income tax benefit is included in income tax expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of income. 

16. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS 

We measure the assets and obligations of the defined benefit pension plans and other postretirement benefits plans to determine the plans' funded status as of the end of the year as an asset or a liability on 
our consolidated balance sheets. We record as a component of other comprehensive income/loss or a regulatory asset the changes in funded status that occurred during the year that are not recognized as part 
of net periodic benefit costs. 
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1Jeji11etl Benefit Pem;;ou Plans 

We sponsor three defmed benefit pension plans: the Chesapeake Pension Plan, the FPU Pension Plan and the Chesapeake SERP 

The Chesapeake Pension Plan was closed to new participants, effec1ive January 1, 1999, and was frozen with respect to additional years of service and additional compensation, effective January I, 2005. 
Benefits under the Chesapeake Pension Plan were based on each participant's years of service and highest average compensation, prior to the freezing of the plan Active participants on the date the 
Chesapeake Pension Plan was frozen were credited with two additional years of service. The unfunded liability for the Chesapeake Pension Plan of approximately $2.1 million and $2.7 million at December 
31, 2017 and 2016, is included in the other pension and benefit costs liability in our consolidated balance sheets. 

The FPU Pension Plan covers eligible FPU non-union employees hired before JRnuary I, 2005 and union employees hired before the respective union contract expiration dates in 2005 and 2006. Prior to the 
FPU merger, the FPU Pension Plan was frozen with respect to additional years of service And additional compensation, effective December 31, 2009. The unfunded liability for the FPU Pension Plan of 
approximately $16.3 million and $20.6 million at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, is included in the other pension and benefit costs liability in our consolidated balance sheets. 

The Chesapeake SERP was frozen with respect to additional years of service and additional compensation as of December 31, 2004. Benefits under the Chesapeake SERP were based on each participant's 
years of service and highest average compensation, prior to the freezing of the plan. Active participants on the date the Chesapeake SERP was frozen were credited with two additional years of service. The 
unfunded liability for the Chesapeake SERP of approximately $2.4 million, at both December 31, 2017 and 2016, is included in the other pension and benefit costs liability in our consolidated balance sheets. 

The following schedule sets forth the funded status at December 31, 2017 and 2016 and the net periodic cost for the years ended December31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 for the ChesApeake and FPU Pension 
Plans: 

Chesnpcnke FPU 
Pension Plnn Pension Plnn 

At December 31. 2017 2016 2017 2016 
(in lhou!011ds) 

Chnnge in benefll obligntion: 

Benefit obligation- beginning of year 11,355 11,501 63,832 64,435 
Interest cost 402 421 2,482 2,525 
Actuarial loss (gain) 454 330 1,199 (216) 
Effect of settlement (433) 
Benefits paid (768) (464) (2,849) (2,912) 

Benefit obligation- end of year 11,443 11,355 64,664 63,832 
Chnnge in plnn nssets: 

Fair value of plan assets- beginning of year 8,668 8,752 43,272 42,207 
Actual return on plan assets 1,144 424 6,025 2,343 
Employer contributions 306 389 1,948 1,634 
Benefits paid (768) (464) (2,849) (2,912) 
Effect of settlement (433) 

Fair value of plan assets- end of year 9,350 8,668 48,396 43,272 
Reconcilialion: 

Funded status (2,093) (2,687) (16,268) (20,560) 
Accrued pension cost (2,093) (2,687) (16,268) (20,560) 

Assttmptions: 

Discount rate 3.50% 3.75o/o 3.75% 4.00% 
Expected return on plan assets 6.00% 6.00% 6,50% 6.50% 
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For lhe Years Ended December 31. 

(i11lhmmmds) 

ComJJonents of net periodic pension cost: 

Interest cost 

Expected return on assets 
Amortization of actuarial loss 
Settlement expense 

Net periodic )Jension cost 

Amortization of pre·merger regulatory asset 

Totnl periodic cost 

Assumptions: 

Discount rate 

Expected return on plan assets 

2017 

402 

(495) 

399 

306 

306 

3.75% 

6.00% 

Chesnpenke 
Pension Plnn 

2016 2015 

421 407 

(501) (530) 

459 392 

161 

540 269 

540 269 

3.75% 3.50% 

6.00% 6.00% 
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FPU 
Pension Phw 

2017 2016 2015 

$ 2,482 2,525 2,504 

(2,779) (2,702) (3,107) 

513 519 456 

216 342 (147) 

761 761 761 

$ 977 1,103 614 

4.00% 4.00% 3.75% 

6.50% 6.50% 7.00% 

Included in the net periodic costs for the FPU Pension Plan is continued amortization of the FPU pension regulatory asset, which represents the portion attributable to FPU's regulated operations for the 
changes in funded status that occurred, but were not recognized as part of net periodic cost, prior to the merger with Chesapeake Utilities in October 2009. This was previously deferred as a regulatory asset 
to be recovered through rates pursuant to an order by the Florida PSC. The unamonized balance of this regulatory asset was $1.3 million and $2.1 million at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 

The following sets forth the funded status at December 31, 2017 and 2016 and the net periodic cost for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 for the Chesapeake SERP: 

At December 31. 

(Ill thousands) 

Chn11ge in benefit obligntion: 

Benefit obligation~ beginning of year 

Interest cost 

Actuarial loss (gain) 

Benefits paid 

Benefit obligation~ end of year 

Change in j)lnn assets: 

Fair value of plan assets~ beginning of year 
Employer contributions 

Benefits paid 

Fair value of plan assets~ end of year 

Reconciliation: 

Funded status 

Accrued pension cost 

Assumptions: 

Discount rate 

2017 

2,428 

89 

63 

(152) 

2,428 

152 

(152) 

(2,428) 

(2,428) 

3,50% 

2016 

2,510 

91 

(21) 

(152) 

2,428 

152 

(152) 

(2,428) 

(2,428) 

3.75% 
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For the Yenr.s Ended December 31. 

(mlhounmds) 

Components of net periodic pension cost: 

Interest cost 

Amortization of prior service cost 

Amortization of actuarial loss 

Net periodic pension cost 

Assumptions: 

Discount rate 

2017 

$ 

s 
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2016 2015 

89 91 91 

87 87 99 

176 178 199 

3.75% 3.75% 3.50% 

Our funding policy provides that payments to the trustee of each qualified plan shall be equal to at least the minimum funding requirements of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974. The 
following schedule summarizes the assets of the Chesapeake Pension Plan and the FPU Pension Plan, by investment type, at December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015: 

ChesnJ)enke FPU 
Pension Plan Pension Phtn 

At December 31. 2017 2016 2015 2017 2016 2015 
Asset Category 

Equity securities 52.70% 52.93% 48.01% 55.17% 53.18% 48 56% 
Debt securities 37.79% 37.64% 39 62% 36.56% 37.74% 41.74% 
Other 9.51 o/o 9.43% 12.37% 8.27% 9.08% 9.70% 

Toto I 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 10000% 100.00% 

The investment policy of both the Chesapeake and FPU Pension Plans is designed to provide the capital assets necessary to meet the financial obligations of the plans. The investment goals and objectives 
are to achieve investment returns that, together with contributions, will provide funds adequate to pay promised benefits to present and future beneficiaries of the plans, earn a long-term investment return in 
excess of the growth of the plans' retirement liabilities, minimize pension expense and cumulative contributions resulting from liability measurement and asset performance, and maintain a diversified 
portfolio to reduce the risk of large losses. 

The following allocation range of asset classes is intended to produce a rate of return sufficient to meet the plims' goals and objectives: 

AssetCinu 

Domestic Equities (Large Cap, Mid Cap and Small Cap) 

Foreign Equities (Developed and Emerging Markets) 
Fixed Income (Inflation Bond and Taxable Fixed) 

Alternative Strategies (Long/Short Equity and Hedge Fund of Funds) 
Diversifying Assets (High Yield Fixed Income, Commodities, and Real Estate) 
Cosh 

Am~l A!locwtiun SlrRlcg\ 

Minimum 
A!locnlfun 
Pen:cnlnge 

hln.1lmum 
All., eM lion 
Pcrccnlngc 

14% 32% 

13% 25% 

26% 40% 

6% 14% 

7% 19% 

0% 5% 

Due to periodic contributions and different asset classes producing varying returns, the actual asset values may temporarily move outside of the intended ranges. The investments are monitored on a quarterly 
basis, at a minimum, for asset allocation and performance. 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 2017 Form 10-K Page 90 

https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/19745/000162828018002594/cpk123120 171 0- ... 10/18/2018 



Document Page 99 of 120 

Tnbll!ofConlo:nls 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the assets of the Chesapeake Pension Plan and the FPU Pension Plan were comprised of the following investments: 

Fair Value 1\'lcasurement Hierarchy 

At DecemberJl, 2017 At December 31, 2016 
Asset Category Levell Le\·ell Lcvel3 Total Levell Levell Leve13 
(i111houro11ds) 

Mutual Funds- Equity securities 
U.S. Large Cap <O 4,245 4,245 4,031 
U.S. Mid Cap 1" 1,775 1,775 1,677 
U.S. Small Cap 1" 918 918 845 
International m 11,916 11,916 9,574 
Alternative Strategies <lJ 5,528 5,528 5,238 

24,382 24,382 21,365 
Mutual Funds- Debt securities 

Fixed income l~) 18,454 18,454 16,958 
High Yield <~> 2,772 2,772 2,636 

21,226 21,226 19,594 
Mutual Funds - Other 

Commodities l'l 2,154 2,154 2,134 
Real Estate <61 2,300 2,300 2,116 
Guaranteed deposit {1J 436 436 498 

4,454 436 4,890 4,250 498 
Total Pension Plan Assets in fair value hierarchy 50,062 $ 436 50,498 45,209 498 
Investments measured at net asset value (SJ 7,248 

Total Pension Plan Assets 57,746 
Includes funds that in\'Csl primanly in Unttcd St11tes common stocks. 
Includes funds that in\'Csl pnmonly in foreign equities and emerging. markets equities. 
Includes funds that actively invest in both equity and debt securities, funds that sell short securities and funds that provide long-tem1 Cllpitalapprecintion. The funds mil)" in\"Csl in debt sec unties below in\·estmenl g!lldc. 
Includes li.mW that im·esl in investment g.rade and fixed mcomc securities. 
Includes funds that m\'esl primarily in commodity-linked deril·ntive instruments and lixcd income securities. 
Includes funds tho! invest prim11rily in renl estate. 
Includes im·cstmenl in a a-roup 11nnuity product issued by on imumnce compa.ny. 
Certain im·estments that were measured nl net asset vrliue per shore hove not been clossilicd in the fair value hiernrchy. These omounls ore presented to reconcile to Ioiii! pension pl11n A §.Sets. 

Totnl 

4,031 

1,677 

845 

9,574 

5,238 

21,365 

16,958 

2,636 

19,594 

2,134 

2,116 

498 

4,748 

45,707 

6,233 

51,940 

At December 31, 2017 and 2016, all of the investments were classified under the same fair value measurement hierarchy (Level I through Level 3) described under Note 8, Fair Va/11e of Finandal 
lnslrumenls. The Level 3 investments were recorded at fair value based on the contract value of annuity products underlying guaranteed deposit accounts, which was calculated using discounted cash flow 
models. The contract value of these products represented deposits made to the contract, plus earnings at gmuanteed crediting rates, less withdrawals and fees. 
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The following table sets forth the summary of the changes in the fair value oflevel3 investments for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016: 

(mthormmds) 

Bnlnnce, beginning or yenr 

Purchases 
Transfers in 

Disbursements 

Investment income 

Bnlance, end ofycnr 

Otlrer Poslretiremelll JJenejits Plflns 

$ 

Page 100 of 120 

For the Yenr Ended December 31, 

2017 2016 

498 1,286 

2,271 2,023 

1,743 1,435 

(4,101) (4,268) 

25 22 

436 498 

We sponsor two defined benefit plans: the Chesapeake Postretirement Plan and the FPU Medical Plan. The following table sets forth the funded status at December 31, 2017 and 2016 and the net periodic 
cost for the years ended December 3 I, 2017, 2016, and 2015: 

Chesnpenke FPU 
Postretirement Plnn Medicnl Plnn 

At December 31, 2017 2016 2017 2016 

(lnllmusands) 

Change in benefit obligation: 

Benefit obligation- beginning of year 1,132 1,153 1,349 1,444 
Interest cost 41 43 50 55 
Plan participants contributions 118 90 48 64 

Actuarial loss (gain) 72 20 (48) (41) 
Benefits paid (235) (174) (ll2) (173) 

Benefit obligation- end of year 1,128 1,132 1,287 1,349 

Change in plan assets: 

Fair value of plan assets- beginning of year 

Employer contributionst 1l 117 84 64 109 

Plan participants contributions ll8 90 48 64 

Benefits paid (235) (174) (ll2) (173) 

Fair value of plan assets- end of year 

Reconciliation: 

Funded status (1,128) (1,132) (1,287) (1,349) 

Accrued postretirement cost (1,128) (1,132) (1,287) (1,349) 

Assumptions: 

Discount rate 3.50°/u 3.75% 3.75% 4.00% 

(I) The Chcsopcakc Poslrcliremcnt Plan docs not rccci\'e a Medicare Pari·D subsidy. The FPU Medical Plan d1d not rccei\'C 11 significant subsidy for the posl·meq~,er period 
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Net periodic postretirement benefit costs for 20\7, 2016, and 2015 include the following components: 

For the Years Ended December 31, 

(inlhormmds) 

Components of net periodic postretirement cost: 

Interest cost 

Amortization of: 

Actuarial loss 

Prior service cost 

Net periodic cost 

Amortization of pre-merger regulatory asset 

Net periodic cost 

Assumptions 

Discount rate 

2017 

$ 

Chesapeake 
Postretirement Plan 

2016 

41 43 

53 64 

(77) (77) 

17 30 

17 30 

3.75% 3.75% 

2015 2017 

42 

72 

(77) 

37 

37 

3.50% 
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50 

50 

58 

4.00% 

FPU 
Medical Plnn 

2016 

55 

55 

63 

4.00% 

2015 

57 

57 

65 

3.75% 

Similar to the FPU Pension Plan, continued amortization of the FPU Medical Plan regulatory asset related to the unrecognized cost prior to the merger with Chesapeake Utilities was included in the net 
periodic cost. The unamortized balance of this regulatory asset was $22,000 and $30,000 at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 

The following table presents the amounts not yet reflected in net periodic benefit cost and included in accumulated other comprehensive loss or as a regulatory asset as of December 31, 2017: 

ChcSIIJICnkc FPU ChunJICKkc 
PcnJiun Pen dun ChcJMjlCAI<c Puslrclircmcnl 

tin lhoustmdsJ Pl"n Plun SERP Plan 

Prior service cost (credit) (601) 
Net Joss 3,629 17,483 733 767 
To!al 3,629 17,483 733 166 

Accumulated other comprehensive loss pre-tax(IJ 3,629 3,322 733 166 
Post-merger regulatory asset 14,161 

Subtotal 3,629 17,483 733 166 
Pre-merger regulatory asset 1,304 

Total unrecognized cost 3,629 18,787 733 166 

(IJ The IO!IIl amount of accumulaled other comprehensive loss recorded on our consolidated balance shcc111s of December J I, 2017 is net o(mcomc t11'1: benclits of $3 I milhon. 

FPU 
Mctlh:al 

Plnn 

10 

10 

10 

22 

32 

ToiRI 

(601) 

22,622 

22,021 

7,852 

14,169 

22,021 

1,326 

23,347 

Pursuant to a Florida PSC order, FPU continues to record as a regulatory asset a portion of the unrecognized pension and postretirement benefit costs afier the merger with Chesapeake Utilities related to its 
regulated operations, which is included in the above table as a post-merger regulatory asset. FPU also continues to maintain and amortize a portion of the unrecognized pension and postretirement benefit 
costs prior to the merger with Chesapeake Utilities related to its regulated operations, which is shown as a pre-merger regulatory asset 
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The amounts in accumulated other comprehensive loss and recorded as a regulatory asset for our pension and postretirement beneflls plans that are expected to be recognized as a component of net periodic 
benefit cost in 2018 are set forth in the following table: 

fill/hOI/JUJldJ) 

Prior service cost (credit) 

Net loss 

Amortization of pre-merger regulatory asset 

Au·r~mptions 

ChcupcRite 
Pen !ion 

Phm 

351 

FPU 
Penslun 

Plnn 

434 

761 

CheJMJICIIItc 
SERP 

101 

Chcnlpcnlu.· 
Pu~ln:llrcrnenl 

Plnn 

(77) 

58 

FPU 
J\ledlenl 

(77) 

944 

769 

The assumptions used for the discount rate to calculate the benefit obligations of all the plans were based on the interest rates of high-quality bonds in 2017, reflecting the expected lives of the plans In 
determining the average expected retum on plan assets for each applicable plan, various factors, such as historical long-term return experience, investment policy and current and expected allocation, were 
considered. Since Chesapeake Utilities' plans and FPU's plans have different expected plan lives, particularly in light of the lump-sum-payment option provided in the Chesapeake Pension Plan, different 
assumptions regarding discount rate and expected return on plan assets were selected for Chesapeake Utilities' and FPU's plans. Since both pension plans are frozen with respect to additional years of service 
and compensation, the rate of assumed compensation increases is not applicable. 

The health care inflation rate for 2017 used to calculate the benefit obligation is 5.0 percent for medical and 6.0 percent for prescription drugs for the Chesapeake Postretirement Plan, and 5.0 percent for 
both medical and prescription drugs for the FPU Medical Plan. A one-percentage point increase in the health care inflation rate from the assumed rate would increase the accumulated postretirement benefit 
obligation by approximately $277,000 as of December 31, 2017, and would increase the aggregate of the service cost and interest cost components of the net periodic postretirement benefit cost for 2017 by 
approximately $11,000. A one-percentage point decrease in the health care inflation rate from the assumed rate would decrease the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation by approximately $215,000 
as of December 31, 2017, and would decrease the aggregate of the service cost and interest cost components of the net periodic postretirement benefit cost for 2017 by approximately $8,000. 

E.ftiumted Future Benefit Payments 

In 2018, we expect to contribute $359,000 and $1.5 million to the Chesapeake Pension Plan and FPU Pension Plan, respectively, and $151,000 to the Chesapeake SERP. We also expect to contribute 
$97,000 and $88,000 to the Chesapeake Postretirement Plan and FPU Medical Plan, respectively, in 2017. The schedule below shows the estimated future benefit payments for each of the plans previously 
described: 

(mthousunds) 

2018 

2019 

2020 

2021 

2022 

ChcsapeRilc Pcnshm 
Plnn(l) 

687 

490 

675 

779 

592 

Years 2023 through 2027 5,278 
,,, 
(!) 

The pension p!on is funded; lhcrdorc, benefit payments nn: c.~ peeled to be paid oul uf the p!un assets 

Henelit paymenls are expected to be pa1d out of our scncml funds 

Retirement Srn•ings Pltm 

FPU Pension ChcsRpcMIU~ 

Plnn(l) SERP<J> 

3,078 

3,207 

3,304 

3,362 

3,536 

18,608 

Chcsll(leRilc FPU 
Poslrctln:mcnl Mctllenl 

PlunP> Phm(l) 

151 97 88 

ISO 96 94 

149 85 87 

385 82 91 

146 81 93 

738 290 404 

For the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, we sponsored a 40 I (k) Retirement Savings Plan. This plan is offered to all eligible employees who have completed three months of service. We 
match 100 percent of eligible participants' pre-tax contributions to the Retirement Savings Plan up to a maximum of six percent of eligible compensation. The employer matching contribution is made in 
cash and is invested based on a participant's investment directions. In addition, we may make a discretionary supplemental contribution to participants in the plan, without regard to whether or not they make 
pre-tax contributions. Any 
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supplemen!al employer contribution is generally made in our common stock. With respect to the employer match and supplemental employer contribution, employees are 100 percent vested after two years 
of service or upon reaching 55 years of age while still employed by us. New employees who do not make an election to contribute and do not opt out of the Retirement Savings Plan will be automatically 
enrolled at a deferral rate of three percent, and the automatic deferral rate will increase by one percent per year up to a maximum of six percent. In 2018, the maximum automatic deferral rate will be 
increased to ten percent. All contributions and matched funds can be invested among the mutual funds available for investment. 

Employer contributions to our Retirement Savings Plan totaled $5.0 million, $4.5 million, and $4.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively. As of December 31, 2017, 
there were 831,183 shares of our common stock reserved to fund future contributions to the Retirement Savings Plan 

Non-Qualifietl Deferred Compenmtion Pltm 

Members of our Board of Directors, and executive officers designated by the Compensation Committee, are eligible to participate in the Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Plan. Directors can elect to 
defer any portion of their cash or stock compensation and executive officers can defer up to 80 percent of their base compensation, cash bonuses or any amount of their stock bonuses (net of required 
withholdings). Executive officers may recei..,e a matching contribution on their cash compensation deferrals up to six percent of their compensation, provided it does not duplicate a match they receive in the 
Retirement Savings Plan. Stock bonuses are not eligible for matching contributions Participants are able to elect the payment of benefits to begin on a specified future date or upon separation from service. 
Additionally, participants can elect to receive payments upon the earlier of a fixed date or separation from service or they can elect to receive payment upon the later of a fixed date or separation from 
service. The payments can be made in one lump sum or annual installments for up to 15 years. 

All obligations arising under the Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Plan are payable from our general assets, although we have established a Rabbi Trust to informally fund the plan. Deferrals of cash 
compensation may be invested by the participants in various mutual funds (the same options that are available in the Retirement Savings Plan). The participants are credited with gains or losses on those 
investments. Deferred stock compensation may not be diversified. The participants are credited with dividends on our common stock in the same amount that is received by all other stockholders. Such 
dividends are reinvested into our common stock. Assets held in the Rabbi Trust had a fair value of $6.7 million and $4.9 million at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. (See Note 9, !m•e_oaments, for 
further details). The assets of the Rabbi Trust are at all times subject to the claims of our general creditors. 

Deferrals of executive base compensation and cash bonuses and directors' cash retainers are paid in cash All deferrals of executive performance shares, which represent deferred stock units, and directors' 
stock retainers are paid in shares of our common stock, except that cash is paid in lieu of fractional shues. The value of our stock held in the Rabbi Trust is classified within the stockholders' equity section 
of the consolidated balance sheets and has been accounted for in a manner similar to treasury stock. The amounts recorded under the Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Plan totaled $3.4 million and $2 4 
million at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 
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17. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS 

Our non-employee directors and key employees have been granted share-based awards through our SICP. We record these share-based awards as compensation costs over the respective service period for 
which services are received in exchange for an award of equity or equity-based compensation. The compensation cost is based primarily on the fair value of the shares awarded, using the estimated fair value 
of each share on the date it was granted and the number of shares to be issued at the end of the service period. We have 509,202 shares of common stock reserved for issuance under the SICP. 

The table below presents the amounts included in net income related to share-based compensation expense for the awards gnmted under the SICP for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 

(inllwlmmds) 

Awards to non-employee directors 

Awards to key employees 

Total compensation expense 

Less: tax. benefit 

Share-based compensation amounts included in net income 

Stock Options 

2017 

s 

For the Yenr Ended December 31, 

2016 

540 580 

1,950 1,787 

2,490 2,367 

(1,003) (952) 

1,487 1,415 

We did not have any s10ck options outstanding at December 31, 2017 or 2016, nor were any stock options issued during the years 2015 through 2017. 

Noll-employee Directors 

2015 

640 

1,297 

1,937 

(780) 

I, 157 

Shares granted to non-employee directors are issued in advance of these directors' service periods and are fully vested as of the date of the grant. We record a prepaid expense equal to the fair value of the 
shares issued and amortize the expense equally over a service period of one year. In May 2017, each of our non-employee directors received an annual retainer of835 shares of common stock under the SICP 
for board service through the 2018 Annual Meeting of Stockholders. A summary of stock activity for our non-employee directors for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 is presented below: 

Outstanding- December 31, 2015 

Granted 

Vested 

Outstanding- December 31, 2016 

Granted 

Vested 

Outstanding- December 31, 2017 

Numbcrur 
Shart"s 

8,577 

(8,577) 

7,515 

(7,515) 

Wclghlcd A\·eragc 
Grnnl Dale FRir V~tluc 

62.90 

62.90 

71.80 

71.80 

The weighted average grant date fair value of shAres granted to our non-employee directors during 2017, 2016 and 2015 was $71.80, $62.90 and $45.54 per share, respectively. The intrinsic values of the 
shares granted to our non-employee directors are equal to the fair value of these awards on the date of grant. At December 31, 2017, there was $179,000 of unrecognized compensation expense related to 
these awards. This expense will be fully recognized by April 2018, which approximates the expected remaining service period of those directors. 

Key Employees 

Our Compensation Committee is authorized to gnmt our key employees the right to receive awards of shares of our common stock, contingent upon the achievement of established performance goals. These 
awards are subject to certain post-vesting transfer restrictions. 

We currently have outstanding several multi-year performance plans, which are based upon the successful achievement of long·term goals, growth and financial results which comprise both market-based 
and performance-based conditions or targets. The fair value of each share of stock, tied to a performance-based condition or target, is equal to the market price of our common stock on 
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the date of the granl. For the market-based conditions, we used the Black-Scholes pricing model to estimate the fair value of each share of market-based award granted. 

The table below presents the summAry of the stock activity for awards to key employees: 

Outstanding~ December 31, 2015 

Granted 

Vested 

Expired 

Outstanding- December 31, 2016 

Granted 

Vested 

Expired 

Outstanding- December 31, 2017 

Numherof 
Sluu~s 

Welghh:d Ann1ge 
F11irVKiue 

110,398 38.34 

46,571 67.90 

(39,553) 31.79 

(2,325) 42.25 

115,091 51.85 

52,355 63.42 

(32,926) 38.88 

(1,878) 39.97 

132,642 53,00 

In 2017,2016 and 2015, we withheld shares with a value at least equivalent to the employees' minimum statutory obligation for the applicable income and other employment taxes, and remitted the cash to 
the appropriate taxing authorities with the executives electing to receive the net shares. The total number of shares withheld of 10,269, 12,031 and 12,620 for 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively, were based 
on the closing price of the shares on their award date. Total payments for the employees' tax obligations to the taxing authorities were approximately $692,000, $770,000 and $592,000, in 2017, 2016 and 
2015, respectively. The tax benefits associated with these obligations for 2017, '2016 and 2015 are $349,000, $285,000, and $297,000, respectively. The tax benefit for 2015 was recorded in additional paid­
in capital in the consolidated statements of stockholders' equity. The tax benefit for 2017 and 2016 was included in the statements of income due to the adoption of new accounting guidance. 

The weighted average grant-date fair value of shares granted to key employees during 2017,2016 and 2015 was $63.42,$67.90 and $47.65 per share, respectively. The intrinsic value of these awards was 
$10.4 million, $7.7 million and $63 million in 2017,2016 and 2015, respectively. At December31, 2017, there was $2.3 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to these awards, which is 
expected to be recognized during 2018 through 2019. 
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18. RATES AND OTHER REGULATORY ACTIVITIES 

Our natural gas and electric distribution operations in Delaware, Maryland and Florida are subject to regulation by their respective PSC; Eastern Shore, our natural gas transmission subsidiary, is subject to 
reguhuion by the FERC; and Peninsula Pipeline, our intrastate pipeline subsidiary, is subject to regulation by the Florida PSC. Chesapeake Utilities' Florida Division and FPU's natural gas and electric 
distribution operations continue to be subject to regulation by the Florida PSC as separate entities. 

Deltnl'llre 
Rate Case Filing: In December 2015, our Delaware Division ftled an application with the Delaware PSC for a base rate increase and certain other changes to its tariff. The Delaware Division, Delaware PSC 
Staff, the Division of the Public Advocate and other intervenors met and reached a settlement agreement in November 2016. The terms of the settlement agreement included an annual increase of 
approximately $2.3 million in base rates. The order became fmal in December 2016, and the new rates became effective January I, 2017. Amounts collected through interim rates in excess of the respective 
portion of the $2.3 million increase through December 31, 2016 were accrued as of that date. In January 2017, we flied our proposed refund plan with the Delaware PSC and subsequently issued refunds to 
customers in March 2017. 

Effect of the 7LJA 011 rate payers: As result of the enactment of the TCJA, the Delaware PSC issued an order requiring all rate-regulated utilities to file estimates of their detennination of the impact of the 
TCJA on their cost of service for the most recent test year available (including new rate schedules). The order also requires utilities to propose procedures for changing rates to reflect those impacts on or 
before March 31, 2018. Our Delaware Division is assessing the impact of the TCJA and will f1le the requisite reports with the Delaware PSC. If, after reviewing the required filing, the Delaware PSC 
detennines to reduce our rates, it will open a new docket and establish a procedural schedule for conducting an evidentiary hearing regarding the impacts of the TCJA on our operations and existing rates. 
We believe that the ultimate resolution of this matter will not have a material impact on our financial position or results of operations 

In addition, the Division of the Public Advocate filed a Motion to direct regulated public utilities to accrue regulatory liabilities, starting February I, 2018, to reflect the Delaware jurisdictional revenue 
requirement impacts of the changes in the federal corporate income tax rate effected by the TCJA. On February I, 2018, the PSC issued an order requiring Delaware rate-regulated public utilities to accrue 
regulatory liabilities reflecting the jurisdictional revenue requirement impacts of the changes in the federal corporate income tax laws. 

A'lllryluml Dil•ision unrl Sum/piper 
Affect of the TCJA 011 rate payers: The Maryland PSC issued an order requiring all Maryland public utilities whose rates are explicitly grossed-up for income taxes to track the impacts of the TCJA 
beginning January I, 2018. The order required utilities to: (a) apply regulatory accounting treatment, which includes the use of regulatory assets and liabilities for all impacts of the TCJA; (b) file, on or 
before February 15, 2018, an explanation of the expected effects of the TCJA on their expenses and revenues; and (c) explain when and how they expect to pass on to their customers the net results of those 
effects. Our Maryland division and Sandpiper prepared filings that included preliminary estimates of the annual impact of the change in the statutory federal income tax rate from 35 percent to 21 percent and 
also requested that the Maryland PSC grant us additional time to finalize our calculations. We will be recommending appropriate treatment and/or amortization periods for the regulatory liabilities created 
from the deferred tax revaluation. 

Florhlu 
Co!1·t Recm>eryfor the Electric Interconnect Project: In September 2015, FPU's electric division filed to recover the cost of the proposed FPL interconnect project through FPU's annual Fuel and Purchased 
Power Cost Recovery Clause filing. The interconnect project would enable FPU's electric division to negotiate a new power purchase agreement to mitigate fuel costs for its Northeast division. FPU's 
proposal was approved by the Florida PSC at its Agenda Conference held in December 2015. Tn January 2016, however, the Office of Public Counsel filed an appeal of the Florida PSC's decision with the 
Florida Supreme Court. The Florida Supreme Court reversed the Florida PSC decision in March 2017, after consideration of the parties' legal briefs and oral arguments As a result, FPU excluded the 
recovery of these costs from its 2018 Fuel and Purchased Power Cost Recovery Clause and included the costs for recovery in the limited proceeding filing described below. 

Surcharge Assocmted with lvfodernizallon of Electric: /Ji.,·Jhhution ~)'stem l)roject: In February 2017, FPU's electric division filed a petition with the Florida PSC requesting a temporary surcharge 
mechanism to recover costs and generate an appropriate return on investment associated with an essential reliability and modernization project for its electric distribution system. FPU requested approval to 
invest approximately $59.8 million, over a five~year period, associated with the modernization project In February 2017, the Office of Public Counsel intervened in this petition The Florida PSC requested 
that FPU file a limited proceeding to include these investments in base rates instead of seeking approval of a temporary surcharge. In April 2017, FPU voluntarily withdrew its petition and subsequently filed 
the limited proceeding described in the next paragraph. 
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Electric Limited Proceeding: In July 2017, FPU's electric division filed a petition with the Florida PSC, requesting approval to include $15.2 million of certain capital project expenditures in its rate base and 
to adjust its base rates accordingly. These expenditures are designed to improve the stability and safety of the electric system while enhancing the capability of.FPU's grid Included in the $15.2 million is the 
interconnection project with FPL, which enables FPU to mitigate fuel costs for its electric customers. In December 2017, the Florida PSC approved this petition with an effective date of January I, 2018. The 
settlement agreement prescribes the methodology for adjusting the new rates based on the lower federal income tax rate and the process and methodology regarding the refund of deferred income taxes, 
reclassified as a regulatory liability, as a result of the TCJA. 

Northwesl Florida t..Ypansion Project: Peninsula Pipeline and our Florida Division are constructing a pipeline in Escambia County, Florida, that will interconnect with FGTs pipeline. The project consists of 
33 miles of 12-inch transmission line from the FGT interconnect that will be operated by Peninsula Pipeline and eight miles of 8-inch lateral distribution line that will be operated by Chesapeake Utilities1 

Florida Division. We have entered into agreements to seJVe two large customers and are marketing to other customers located close to the facilities. 

New Smyrna Beach, Florida Proje,·t: In 2017, Peninsula Pipeline constructed a pipeline in Volusia County, Florida, that interconnects with FGTs pipeline. The project, which was placed into seJVice in the 
fourth quarter of2017, consists of 14 miles of transmission line from the FGT interconnect operated by Peninsula Pipeline and seJVes FPU's natural gas distribution system. 

(Palm Beach Comuy) Bell'edere, Florida Projecf 

Peninsula Pipeline is constructing a pipeline in Palm Beach County, Florida that will interconnect with FGTs pipeline. The project consists of approximately two miles of transmission pipe that will bring 
gas directly to FPU's distribution system in West Palm Beach. This interconnection, which will be operated by Peninsula Pipeline, will bring gas directly to FPU's distribution system in the vicinity of 
Belvedere Road and Sansbury Way in West Palm Beach, Florida. This expansion is expected to be placed into seJVice by the end of the third quarter of201 8. 

Effect of the TCJA on rate payers: The Office of Public Counsel filed a petition requesting the Florida PSC to establish a general docket to investigate and adjust rates for all investor-owned utilities related 
to the passage of the TCJA. The Florida PSC issued a Memorandum with a recommendation that, if utilities do not agree to a January I, 2018 effective date, then the effective date should be February 6, 
2018 On January 30,2018, the Florida PSC scheduled informAl meetings between its staff and interested persons to discuss the impact ofTCJA. Meetings to discuss the impact of the TCJA for natural gas 
utilities, electric utilities and water and wastewater utilities hAve been scheduled individually in mid~February 2018 Jn the case of our FPU electric division, an order was issued in December regarding the 
limited proceeding, which prescribes the applicability, timing and treatment of the implications of tax reform. We believe that the ultimate resolution of this matter will not have a material impact on our 
financial position or results of operations. 

Emlleru Shore 

Whife Oak A~Jainline Expansion Project: In July 2016, Eastern Shore received FERC authorization to construct, own and operate certain expansion facilities designed to provide 45,000 Dts/d of finn 
transportation seJVice to an electric power generator in Kent County, Delaware. Eastern Shore constructed approximately 5.4 miles of 16-inch diameter pipeline looping in Chester County, Pennsylvania and 
increased compression capability at Eastern Shore's existing Delaware City compressor station in New Castle County, Delaware. At the end of MArch 2017, the entire project was placed into seJVice. The 
total cost to complete the project was approximately $42.0 million 

System Reliability Project: In September 2016, the FERC approved Eastern Shore's application to construct, own and operate approximately 10.1 miles of 16-inch pipeline looping and auxiliary facilities in 
New Castle and Kent Counties, Delaware, and a new compressor at its existing Bridgeville compressor station in Sussex County, Delaware. Eastern Shore further proposed to reinforce critical points on its 
pipeline system. Previously, in July 2016, the FERC granted Eastern Shore's pre-determination of rolled-in rate treatment absent any significant change in circumstances. As of June 2017, the entire project 
was placed into seJVice. The total cost to complete the project was approximately $38.0 million. We began to recover the projeds costs in August 2017, coinciding with the proposed effectiveness of new 
rates, subject to refund, pending final resolution of the base rate case described below. 

2017 Expamion ProJect: In May 2016, FERC approved Eastern Shore's request to initiate the pre-filing review process for its 2017 Expansion Project. The 2017 Expansion Project's facilities include 
approximately 23 miles of pipeline looping in Pennsylvania, Maryland and Delaware; upgrades to existing metering facilities in Lancaster County, Pennsylvania; installation of an additional compressor unit 
at Eastern Shore's existing Daleville compressor station in Chester County, Pennsylvania; and approximately 17 miles of new mainline extension and two pressure control stations in Sussex County, 
Delaware. Eastern Shore entered into precedent agreements with seven existing customers, including three affiliates of Chesapeake Utilities, for a total of 61,162 Dts/d of additional firm natural gas 
transportation seJVice on Eastern Shore's pipeline system with an additional 52,500 Dts/d of firm transportation seJVice at certain Eastern Shore receipt facilities. 
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In December 2016, Eastern Shore submitted an application for a CP authorizing construction of the expansion facilities, which the FERC issued in October 2017. The estimated cost of the 2017 Expansion 
Project is approximately $117.0 million. In December 2017, the TETLP interconnect was placed into service, as requested. The remaining segments of the Expansion Project are expected to be placed into 
service in various phases over the second through fourth quarters of 20 18. 

2017 Rate Case Fibug: In January 2017, Eastern Shore filed a base rate proceeding with the FERC, as required by the tenns of its 2012 rate case settlement agreement. Eastern Shore's proposed rates were 
based on the mainline cost of service of approximately $60.0 million, resulting in an overall requested revenue increase of approximately $18.9 million and a requested rate of return on common equity of 
13.75 percent. In March 2017, the FERC issued an order suspending the tariff rates for the usual five-month period. 

On August I, 2017, Eastern Shore implemented new rates, subject to refund based upon the outcome of the rate proceeding. Eastern Shore recorded incremental revenue of approximately $3.7 million for 
the year ended December 31,2017, and established a regulatory liability to reserve a portion of the total incremental revenues generated by the new rates until the rate case settlement is approved by the 
FERC and customers receive refunds according to the terms of the settlement agreement. Eastern Shore filed an uncontested settlement agreement and a motion to place interim settlement rates into effect on 
January I, 2018. In December 2017, FERC issued an order approving the implementation of interim settlement rates. Not considering the effects of the TCJA, base rates will increase, on an annual basis, by 
approximately $9.8 million. On February 28, 2018, FERC approved the settlement agreement by a letter order. The order will be deemed final upon the expiration of the right to rehearing on March 30, 
2018. Eastern Shore will recover the costs of its 2016 System Reliability Project (placed into service in 2017), along the cost of investments and expenses associated with various expansion, reliability and 
safety initiatives. 

Effect of the TCJA 011 rate payers: As set forth in the settlement agreement flied with the FERC in the rate case, Eastern Shore agreed to make a filing to reflect the change in the federal corporate income tax 
rate. Any excess accumulated deferred income tax balances would flow back to customers over the period determined in the next rate case, absent any transition rule included in the TCJA or other statutes or 
rules that would govern the t1ow-back period. We believe that the ultimate resolution of this matter will not have a material impact on our financial position or results of operations. 
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At December 31,2017 and 2016, our regulated utility operations had recorded the following regulatory assets and liabilities included in our consolidated balance sheets. These assets and liabilities will be 
recognized as revenues and expenses in future periods as they are reflected in customers' rates. 

(inthOI/SOIIliJ} 

Rcgttlatory Assets 

Under-recovered purchased fuel and conservation cost recovery tl> 

Under-recovered GRIP revenue 12> 

Deferred postretirement benefits tl> 

Deferred conversion and development costs ttl 

Environmental regulatory assets and expenditures 1 ~> 

Acquisition adjustment l'> 
Loss on reacquired debt 16> 

Other 

Total Regulatory Assets 

Regulatory Liabililies 

Self-insurance <7> 

Over-recovered purchased fuel and conservation cost recovery tn 

Under-recovered GRIP revenue<!> 

Stann reserve <
7> 

Accrued asset removal cost <8> 

Deferred income taxes due to rate ch~nge <
9> 

Other 

Total Regulatory Liabilities 

We ue nllowOO to recover the asset or urc rcqutrcd to pn)' the liabihty in roles. We do nut cam on o\'crnll role of return on these nsscls 

2017 

As of December 31, 

2016 

9,869 5,703 

164 1,469 

15,498 18,379 

11,735 8,051 

3,222 3,694 

39,992 41,864 

1,031 1,145 

4,994 4,192 

86,505 84,497 

1,013 987 

2,Q48 808 

2,245 

669 2,310 

40,948 39,826 

98,492 

2,048 424 

147,463 44,355 

'I he Flondn PSC allowed us to recover throuE,h a surcharge, copital and other prugmm-rclutcd-cosls, inclusive of on appropriate return on in\'cslmcnt, nssoctDicd w1th accelerating !he replacement of []Unlifying distribul!on nmins 11nd seniccs 
(dclincd us an)' material other than coated steel or plastic) in FPU's noturul gas dtslribution, Fort Meade and Chesopeakc Utilities' Florida Division. We arc allowed to recover the asset or arc rcqutrcd to pny the liability in rules rcloted to GRIP 
The Florida PSC allowed FI'U to Ire<~! as a rcgulntory ussclthe portion of the unrecognized costs pursuant to ASC Topic 715, Compenmlion- Rellremelll Benefits, related to its regulated opcrntions. See Note \6, l!"mployee /Jenefit Plans, fur 
udditional infom1ation. 
All of our environmenlol cxpendttures incurred to dute and our current estimate of future en\'ironmental e:.;pcnditurcs ha\'C been oppro\·cd by \'arious I1SCs for reco\'CI)'. Sec Note 19, E11virrmmentol Commilmellls andConl/ngencies, fur additionBI 
infmmation on our en\'ironmcniB\ contmgcncics 
WeBre allowed to include !he premiums paid m \•anous natu111\ gns utili\}' ocquisiuons in Florida m our rate bHscs and rcco\'er them o\'er n spe.::illc time period pursuant to the Florida PSC approvals. Included in these nmounts nre $1 3 million of 
the premium pnid by FPU, $34.2 nulhon of the premium pnid b)• us in 2009, including the gross up of the amount for mcome tnx, because it is not lox deducliblc, and $746,000 of the pn:mtum paid by FPU in 2010 
Gains and losses resulting from the rcacquisttion oflong-tcnn debt are amor1ized O\'er future periods os adjustments to interest expense in accordance with established regula!OI)' procllce. 
We ha\'e se\f·insurancc and stonn resen.·es in our Flonda regulotcd energy opemtions that allow us to collect through rates amounts to be used og11inst general cl11ims, stotm restoration costs and other losses as the)' arc incurred 
Sec Note I, StlllllliO')' ofSignifica/11 Acconnli11g Policies, for addtllonal information on our asset remo\'al cost policies 
We recorded a regulatOI)' liobilit}' for our regulated businesses related to the revaluation of aC()umulated deferred tax a.~sctsfhabilitics as a result of the TCJA. Bnsed upon the rcgulatOI}' proceedings, we will pass bnck the respective portion of the 
excess accumulated deferred taxes to rotc payers. See Note II, Income 1'a.'r:e.s, for additional information 

19. ENVIRONMENTAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

We are subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations governing environmental quAlity and pollution control. These laws and regulations require us to remove or remediate at current and former 
operating sites the effect on the environment of the disposal or release of specified substances 
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MGPSites 

We have panicipated in the investigation, assessment or remediation of, and have exposures at, seven former MGP sites. Those sites are located in Salisbury, Maryland, Seaford, Delaware and Winter 
Haven, Key West, Pensacola, Sanford and West Palm BeaCh, Florida. We have also been in discussions with the MOE regarding another former MGP site located in Cambridge, Maryland 

As of December 31, 2017, we had approximately $9.6 million in environmental liabilities, related to FPU's MGP sites in Florida, which include the Key West, Pens<!cola, Sanford and West Palm Beach 
sites. FPU has approval to recover, from insurance and from customers through rates, up to $14.0 million of its environmentAl costs related to its MGP sites. Approximately $11.0 million has been recovered 
as of December 31, 2017, leaving approximately $3.0 million in regulatory assets for future recovery of environmental costs from FPU's customers. 

Environmental liabilities for our MGP sites are recorded on an undiscounted basis based on the estimate of future costs provided by independent consultants. We continue to expect that all costs related to 
environmental remediation and related activities, including any potential future remediation costs for which we do not currently have approval for regulatory recovery, will be recoverable from customers 
through rates. The following is a summary of our remediation status and estimated costs to implement clean-up of our key MGP sites: 

Jurisdiction MGPSite 

Floridn West Palm Beach 

Florida Sanford 

Florida Winter Haven 

Delnwnre Seaford 

Mnrylnud Cambridge 
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Stntus 

Remedial actions approved by FDEP have been 
implemented on the east parcel of the site. Similar 
remedial actions expected to be implemented on other 
remaining portions. 

In January 2007, FPU and the Sanford group signed a 
Third Participation Agreement. FPU's share of 
remediation costs under the Third Participation 
Agreement is set at five percent of a maximum of $13.0 
million, or $650,000, which has been paid to an escrow 
account. 

The EPA issued a preliminary close·out repon in 
December 2014. Groundwater monitoring and statutory 
five-year reviews to ensure performance of the approved 
remedy will continue on this site. 

Remediation is ongoing. 

Cost to Clenn UJ1 

Between $4.5 million to $15.4 million, 
including costs associated with the relocation 
ofFPU's operations at this site, which is 
necessary to implement the remedial plan, 
and any potential costs associated with future 
redevelopment of the propenies. 

FPU's remaining remediation expenses, 
including attorneys' fees and costs, are 
estimated to be approximately $24,000. 

Not expected to exceed $425,000, which 
includes costs of implementing institutional 
controls at the site. 

Proposed plan for implementation approved by DNREC $273,000 to $465,000. 
in July 2017. 

Currently in discussions with MOE. Unable to estimate. 

Recovery through Rntes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

NIA 
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20. OTHER COMMITJ\IENfS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Nalurtlf Gus, Electric rmd Propuue Supply 

We have entered into contractual commitments to purchase natural gas, electricity and propane from various suppliers. The contracts have various expiration dates. In 2017, our Delmarva Peninsula natural 
gas distribution operations entered into asset management agreements with PESCO to manage a portion of their naiUral gas transportation and storage capacity. The agreements were effective as of April I, 
2017, and each has a three-year term, expiring on March 31, 2020. Previously, the Delaware PSC approved PESCO to serve as an asset manager with respect to our Delaware Division. 

In May 2013, Sandpiper entered into a capacity, supply and operating agreement with EGWIC to purchase propane over a six -year term ending in May 2019. Sandpiper's current annual commitment is 
estimated at approximately 2.7 million gallons. Sandpiper has the option to enter into either a fixed per-gallon price for some or all of the propane purchases or a market-based price utilizing one of two local 
propane pricing indices. 

Also in May 2013, Sharp entered into a separate supply and operating agreement with EGWIC. Under this agreement, Sharp has a commitment to supply propane to EGWIC over a six-year term ending in 
May 2019. Sharp's current annual commitment is estimated at approximately 2.7 million gallons. The agreement between Sharp and EGWIC is separate from the agreement between Sandpiper and EGWIC, 
and neither agreement permits the parties to set off the rights and obligations specified in one agreement against those specified in the other agreement. 

Chesapeake Utilities' Florida Division has fum transportation service contracts with FGT and Gulfstream. Pursuant to a capacity release program approved by the Florida PSC, all of the capacity under these 
agreements has been released to various third parties, including PESCO. Under the terms of these capacity release agreements, Chesapeake Utilities is contingently liable to FGT and Gulfstream should any 
party that acquired the capacity through release fail to pay the capacity charge. 

FPU's electric fuel supply contracts require FPU to maintain an acceptable standard of creditworthiness based on specific fmancial ratios. FPU's agreement with FPL requires FPU to meet or exceed a debt 
service coverage ratio of 1.25 times based on the results of the prior 12 months If this ratio is not met by FPU, it must provide an irrevocable letter of credit or pay all amounts outstanding under the 
agreement within five business days. FPU's electric fuel supply agreement with Gulf Power requires FPU to meet the following ratios based on the average of the prior six quarters· (a) funds from operations 
interest coverage ratio (minimum of2 times), and (b) total debt to total capital (maximum of65 percent). IfFPU fails to meet the requirements, it has to provide the supplier a written explanation of actions 
taken, or proposed to be taken, to become compliant Failure to comply with the ratios specified in the Gulf Power agreement could also result in FPU having to provide an irrevocable letter of credit As of 
December 31, 2017, FPU was in compliance with all of the requirements of its fuel supply contracts. 

Eight Flags provides electricity and steam generation services through its CHP plant located on Amelia Island, Florida. In June 2016, Eight Flags began selling power generated from the CHP plant to FPU 
pursuant to a 20-year power purchase agreement for distribution to its retail electric customers. In July 2016, Eight Flags also started selling steam, pursuant to a separate 20-year contract, to Rayonier, the 
land owner on which the CHP plant is located. The CHP plant is powered by natural gas transported by FPU through its distribution system and Peninsula Pipeline through its intrastate pipeline. 

The total purchase obligations for natural gas, electric and propane supplies are approximately $152.9 million for 2018, $122.8 million for 2019-2020, $44.6 million for 2021-2022 and $149.6 million 
thereafter. 

Corporate Gut~mnlees 

The Board of Directors has authorized the Company to issue corporate guarantees securing obligations of our subsidiaries and to obtain letters of credit securing our subsidiaries' obligations The maximum 
authorized liability under such guarantees and letters of credit was $95.0 million. 

We have issued corporate guarantees to certain vendors of our subsidiaries, primarily PESCO. These corporate guarantees provide for the payment of natural gas purchases in the event that PES CO defaults. 
PESCO has never defaulted on its obligations to pay its suppliers. The liabilities for these purchases are recorded when incurred. The aggregate amount guaranteed at December 31, 2017 was $72.0 million, 
with the guarantees expiring on various dates through December 2018. 

Chesapeake Utilities also guarantees the payment of FPU's tirst mortgage bonds. The maximum exposure under this guarantee is the outstanding principal plus accrued interest balances. The outstanding 
principal balances ofFPU's first mortgage bonds approximate their carrying values (see Note 12, L011g-Term Debt, for further details). 

As of December 31, 2017, we have issued letters of credit totaling approximately $5.0 million related to the electric transmission services for FPU's electric division, the tinn transportation service agreement 
between TETLP and our Delaware and Maryland 
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divisions, the payment of natural gas purchases for PESCO, and to our current and previous primary insurance carriers. These letters of credit have various expiration dates through December 2018. There 
have been no draws on these letters of credit as of December 31, 2017. We do not anticipate that the leuers of credit will be drawn upon by the counterparties, and we expect that the letters of credit will be 
renewed to the extent necessary in the future. 

21. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED) 

In our opinion, the quarterly financial information shown below includes all adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of the operations for such periods. Due to the seasonal nature of our business, there 
are substantial variations in operations reported on a quarterly basis. 

(m lhO/IjOiid!i excepl per :rhare omol/1/l:r) 

2017 (I) 

Operating Revenues 

Operating Income 

Net Income 

Earnings per share: 

Basic 

Diluled 

2016 (I) 

Operating Revenues 

Operating Income 

Net Income 

Earnings per share: 

Basic 
Diluled 

(IJ The sum of the four quarters docs nol equal tl1e total ycnr due to rounding. 
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MMrchJI 

185,160 

$ 34,676 

19,144 

1.17 

1.17 

146,296 

36,380 

20,367 

I 33 

1.33 

For I he QuHrleu Ended 

JuneJO Seph:mher JO 

125,084 126,936 

$ 13,666 14,239 

6,046 6,833 

0.37 0.42 

0.37 0.42 

102,342 108,348 

15,742 10,156 

8,029 4,416 

0.52 0.29 

0.52 0.29 
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180,403 

23,263 

26,101 

$ 1.60 

$ 1.59 

141,874 

21,819 

11,863 

0.73 

0.73 
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE. 

None. 

ITEM 9A, CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES. 

EVALUATION OF DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 

Page 113 of 120 

Our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, with the participation of other Company officials, have evaluated our "disclosure controls and procedures" (as such term is defmed under Rule 13a-
15(e) and 15d ~ 15(e) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) as of December 31, 2017. Based upon their evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Offtcer 
concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December 31, 2017. 

CHANGEININTERNALCONTROLS 

There has been no change in internet! control over fmancial reporting (as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f)) that occurred during the quarter ended December 31, 2017, that materially 
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, internal control over financial reporting. 

CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATIONS 

Our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have filed with the SEC the certifications required by Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of2002 as Exhibits 31.1 and 31.2 to our Annual Report 
on Fonn 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017. In addition, on June I, 2017, our Chief Executive Officer certified to the NYSE thAt he was not aware of any violation by us of the NYSE 
corporate governance listing standards 

MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) of the Exchange Act. A company's internal control 
over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of fmancial statements for external purposes in accordance 
with GAAP. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that: (i) pertain to the maintenance of records which in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the Assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with GAAP and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the principal executive officer and principal fmancial officer, our management conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of its 
internal control over financial reporting based on the criteria established in an updi\led report entitled "Internal Control- Integrated Framework," issued in May 2013 by the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of 
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inctdequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Our management has evaluated and concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2017. 

Our independent auditors, Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP, have audited the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2017, as stated in their report which appears 
under Part II, Item 8. Financial Statemems and Supplememary Data. 
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ITEM 9fi. OTHER INFORMATION. 

Effective February 27, 2018, we entered into the Amendment to the Rights Agreement. The Amendment accelerates the expiration of the Rights from 5:00P.M., New York City time, on August 20, 2019, to 
5:00P.M., New York City time, on February 27, 2018, and has the effect of tenninating the Rights Agreement on that date. At the time of the termination of the Rights Agreement, all of the Rights 
distributed to holders of our common stock pursuant to the Rights Agreement will expire by their respective tenns. Accordingly, the Rights Agreement is of no further force and effect. 

In connection with the expiration of the Rights Agreement described above, our Board of Directors approved the filing of a Certificate of Elimination (the "Certificate of Elimination") to eliminate from our 
Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, the Certificate of Voting Powers, Designation, Preferences and Relative Participating Common Optional and Other Special Rights and 
Qualifications, Limitations, or Restrictions of Series A Participating Cumulative Preferred Stock (the "Certificate of Designation") with the Secretary of State for the State of Delaware on February 28, 2018 

The foregoing are summaries of the tenns of the Amendment and the Certificate of Elimination. These summaries do not purport to be complete and are qualified in their entirety by reference to the 
Amendment and the Certificate of Elimination, copies of which are attached as Exhibits 4 13 and 3.6, respectively, and are incorporated herein by reference. 

PART III 

lTEM 10. DIRECfORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE. 

We have adopted a Code of Ethics that applies to our principal executive officer, president, principal fmancial officer, principal accounting officer or controller, and persons perfonning similar functions, 
which is a "code of ethics" as defmed by applicable rules of the SEC. This Code of Ethics is publicly available on our website at http://www.chpk.com/wp-contentluploads/Code~oCEthics.pdf. If we make 
any amendments to this code other than technical, administrative or other non-substantive amendments, or grant any waivers, including implicit waivers, from a provision of this code to our principal 
executive officer, president, principal fmancial officer, principal accounting officer or controller, we intend to disclose the nature of the amendment or waiver, its effective date and to whom it applies by 
posting such infonnation on our website at the address and location specified above. 

The remaining information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections of our Proxy Statement captioned "Election of Directors (Proposal 1)," "Overview ," "Corporate 
Governance," "Board of Directors and its Committees" and "Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reponing Compliance." 

ITEM I I. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION. 

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections of our Proxy Statement captioned "Director Compensation," "Executive Compensation" and "Compensation 
Discussion and Analysis" in the Proxy Statement 

ITEM 12, SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS. 

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the section of our Proxy Statement captioned "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management." 

(TEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACflONS, AND DIRECfOR INDEPENDENCE. 

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the section of our Proxy Statement captioned "Corporate Governance." 

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES. 
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The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the portion of the Proxy Statement captioned "Fees and Services of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm." 

PART IV 

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCfAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES. 

The following documents are filed as part of this report: 

(a}{ I) All of the financial statements, reports and notes to the financial statements included in Item 8 of Part II of this Annual Report on Fonn 10-K. 

(a)(2) Schedule II-Valuation and Qualifying Accounts. 

(a)(3) The Exhibits below. 

Exhibit I. I 

ExhibitJ.I 

Exhibit 3.2 

Exhibit 3.3 

Exhibit 3.4 

Exhibit3.5 

Exhibit 3.6 

Exhibit 4.1 

Exhibit 4.2 

Exhibit 4.3 

Underwriting Agreement entered into by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and Wells Fargo Securities LLC RBC Capital Markets LLC Janney 
Montgomery Scott LLC Raben W. Baird & Co. lncomorated J.J.B. Hilliard W.L. Lyons LLC Ladenburg Thalmann & Co. Inc. US. Capital 
Advisors LLC and BB&T Securities LLC on September 22 2016 relating to the sale and issuance of 835 207 shares of the Company's common 
stock is incornorated herein by reference to Exhibit I I of the Comoany's current report on Fonn 8-K filed on September 28 2016 File No. 001-
11590. 

Amended and Restated Certiftcate of Incorporation of Chesapeake Utilities Comoration is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3 I of our 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 for the period ended June 30 2010 File No. 001-11590. 

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation effective December 4 2012 are incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3 
of our Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 7 2012 File No. 001-11590. 

First Amendment to the Amended and Restated Bylaws of Chesapeake Utilities Corooration effective December 3 2014 is incoroorated herein by 
reference to Exhibit 3.3 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2014. 

Second Amendment to the Amended and Restated Bylaws of Chesapeake Utilities Corooration effective November2 2016 is incorporated herein 
by reference to Exhibit 3.3 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 for the quarter ended September 30 2016 File No. 001-11590. 

Certificate of Amendment to the Amended and Restated Certificate of lncornoration of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation is incorporated herein by 
reference to Exhibit 3 I of our Current Report on Form 8-K tiled May 9 2017 File No. 00 1-11590. 

Certificate of Elimination of Series A Participating Cumulative Preferred Stock of Chesapeake Utilities Cornoration is tiled herewith 

Note Agreement dated October 31 2002 between Chesapeake Utilities Corporation as issuer and Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance Company 
C.M. Life Insurance Company American United Life Insurance Company Pioneer Mutual Life Insurance Company and The State Life Insurance 
Company relating to the private placement of Chesapeake Utilities Corooration's 6 64% Senior Notes due 2017 is incoroorated herein by 
reference to Exhibit 2 of our Current Report on Fonn 8-K filed November 6 2002 File No. 001 -11590. 

Note Agreement dated October 18 2005 between Chesapeake Utilities Cornoration as issuer and Prudential Investment Management Inc. 
relating to the private placement of Chesapeake Utilities Corooration's 5.5% Senior Notes due 2020 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 
4.1 of our Annual Report on Form I 0-K for the year ended December 31 2005 File No. 001-11590. 

Note Agreement dated October 31, 2008, among Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, as issuer, General American Life Insurance Company and New 
England Life Insurance Company, relating to the private placement of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation's 5.93% Senior Notes due 2023.t 
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Exhibit 4 4 Note Agreement dated June 29, 2010, among Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, as issuer, Metropolitan Life Insurance Company and New England 
Life Insurance Company, relating to the private placement of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation's 5.68% Senior Notes due 2026 and Chesapeake 
Utilities Corporation's 6.43% Senior Notes due 202S.t 

Exhibit 4.5 Note Agreement dated September 5, 2013, among Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, as issuer, and certain note holders, relating to the private 
placement of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation's 3.73% Senior Notes due 2028 and Chesapeake Utilities Corporation's 3 88% Senior Notes due 
2029 t 

Exhibit 4.6 Form of Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust dated September I, 1942, between Florida Public Utilities Company and the trustee, for the First 
Mortgage Bonds, is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 7-A of Florida Public Utilities Company's Registration No. 2-6087. 

Exhibit 4.7 Seventeenth Supplemental Indenture dated April 12 2011 between Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and Florida Public Utilities Company 
pursuant to which Chesapeake Utilities Corooration guarantees the payment and performance obligations of Florida Public Utilities Company under 
the Indenture is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit4.1 of our Quarterly Repon on Form 10-0 for the period ended March 31 2011 File 
No. 001-11590. 

Exhibit 4.8 Sixteenth Supplemental Indenture dated December I 2009 between Chesapeake Utilities Corooration and Florida Public Utilities Company 
pursuant to which Chesapeake Utilities Corooration guaranteed the secured First Mortgage Bonds of Florida Public Utilities Company under the 
Merger Agreement is incoroorated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.9 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2010 
FileNo. 001-11590. 

Exhibit 4.9 Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture dated June I, 1992, pursuant to which Florida Public Utilities, on May I, 1992, privately placed $8,000,000 of 
its 9.08% First Mortgage Bonds, is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit4 to Florida Public Utilities Company's Quarterly Report on Form 
I 0-Q for the period ended June 30, 1992 

Exhibit 4.10 Private Shelf Agreement dated October 8 20 I 5 between Chesapeake Utilities Corporation as issuer and Prudential Investment Management Inc. 
relating to the purchase of Chesapeake Utilities Corooration unsecured Senior Notes is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of our 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 for the period ended September 30 2015 File No. 001-11590. 

Exhibit4.11 Rights Agreement dated August 20 1999 by and between Registrant and BankBoston N.A. as rights agent is incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 24 1999 File No. 001-11590. 

Exhibit 4.12 First Amendment to Rights Agreement dated September 12 2008 by and between Registrant and Computershare Trust Comoany N A. as 
successor rights agent is incomorated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Repon on Form 8-K filed on September 12 2008 File No. 001-
11590. 

Exhibit 4.13 Second Amendment to Rights Agreement by and between Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and Computershare Trust Company N.A. dated as of 
February 27 2018 is filed herewith. 

Exhibit 10.1* Chesapeake Ut1lities Corporation Cash Bonus Incentive Plan effective Januarv I 2015 is incoroorated herein by reference to our Proxy Statement 
dated March 31 2015 in connection with our Annual Meeting held on May 6 2015 File No. 001-11590. 

Exhibit 10.2* Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 2013 Stock and Incentive Compensation Plan effective May 2 2013 is incorporated herein by reference to our 
Proxy Statement dated March 29 2013 in connection with our Annual Meeting held on May 2 2013 File No. 001-11590. 

Exhibit 10.3* Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Plan effective January I 2014 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.8 of our Annual Report on 
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2013 File No. 001-11590. 

Exhibit 10.4• Executive Employment Agreement dated January 14 20 II between Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and Michael P. McMasters is incoroorated 
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of our Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 21 2011 File No 001-11590. 

Exhibit 10 5* Amendment to Executive Employment Agreement effective January I 2014 between Chesapeake Utilities Corooration and Michael P. 
McMasters is incoroorated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of our Current Report on Fonn 8-K fjled January 14 2014 File No. 001-11590. 
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Executive Employment Agreement dated January 9 2013 between Chesapeake Utilities Corooration and Stephen C. Thompson is incorporated 
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.9 of our Annual Report on Form !O·K for the year ended December 31 2012 File No. 001-11590. 

Executive Employment Agreement dated January 9 2013 between Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and Beth W. Cooper is incornorated herein 
by reference to Exhibit 10.10 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2012 File No. 001-11590. 

Executive Employment Agreement dated Januarv 9 2013 between Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and Elaine B. Bittner incorporated herein by 
reference to Exhibit 10.11 of our Annual Report on Fonn 10-K for the year ended December 31 2012 File No. 001-11590. 

Executive Employment Agreement dated January I 2015 between Chesapeake Utilities Cornoration and Jeffry M. Householder is incomorated 
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.15 of our Annual Report on Fmm 10-K for the year ended December 31 2014 File No. 001-11590. 

Form of Performance Share Agreement effective January 7 2014 for the period 2014 to 2016 pursuant to Chesapeake Utilities Comoration 2013 
Stock and Incentive Compensation Plan by and between Chesapeake Utilities Cornoration and each of Michael P. McMasters Beth W. Cooper 
Stephen C. Thompson Elaine B. Bittner and Jeffry M. Householder is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.18 of our Annual Report on 
Form I 0-K forthe year ended December J I 20 I J File No. 001-11590 

Form of Performance Share Agreement effective January 13 2015 for the period 2015 to 2017 pursuant to Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 20 13 
Stock and Incentive Compensation Plan by and between Chesapeake Utilities Comoration and each of Michael P. McMasters Beth \V. Cooper. 
Stephen C. Thompson Elaine B. Bittner and Jeffry M. Householder is incornorated herein by reference to Exhibit I 0. 19 of our Annual Report on 
Form 10-KfortheyearendedDecemberJI 2014 FileNo.OOI-11590. 

Form of Performance Share Agreement dated March 6 2015 for the period 2015 to 2017 pursuant to Chesapeake Utilities Comomtion 2013 Stock 
and Incentive Compensation Plan by and between Chesapeake Utilities Cornoration and James F. Moriarty is incoroorated herein by reference to 
Exhibit I 0.2 to our Quarterly Report on Form I 0-0 for the period ended September 30 2015 File No. 001-11590 

Form of Performance Share Agreement dated January 12 2016 for the period 2016 to 2018 pursuant to Chesapeake Utilities Cornoration 2013 
Stock and Incentive Compensation Plan by and between Chesapeake Utilities Comoration and each of Michael P. McMasters Beth W. Cooper. 
Stephen C. Thompson Elaine B. Binner Jeffry M. Householder and James F. Moriarty is incoroorated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to our 
Annual Report on Fonn I 0-K for the period ended December J I 2015 File No. 001-11590. 

Chesaoeake Utilities Corooration Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan as amended and restated effective January I 2009 is incoroorated 
herein by reference to Exhibit I 0.27 of our Annual Report on Fonn I 0-K for the year ended December 31 2008 File No 00 l-11590. 

First Amendment to the Chesapeake Utilities Cornoration Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan as amended and restated effective January I 
2009 is incomorated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.30 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2010 File No 
001-11590. 

Revolving Credit Agreement dated December 29 2014 between Chesapeake Utilities Corooration and Citizens Bank National Association as 
lender is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.25 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2014 File No. 
001-11590. 

Revolving Credit Agreement dated October 8 2015 between Chesapeake Utilities Comoration and PNC Bank National Association Bank of 
America N.A. Citizens Bank N.A. Royal Bank of Canada and Wells Fargo Bank National Association as lenders is incornorated herein by 
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of our Ouanerly Report on Form 10-0 for the period ended September 30 2015 File No. 001-1 1590. 

First Amendment dated February 25 201610 the Revolving Credit Agreement dated October 8 2015 between Chesapeake Utilities Corooration 
and PNC Bank National Association B:mk of America N.A. Citizens Bank N.A. Royal Bank of Canada and Wells Fargo Bank National 
Association as lenders is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.24 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31. 
2015 FileNo.OOI-11590. 
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Exhibit 23.1 

Exhibit 31.1 

Exhibit 31.2 

Exhibit 32. I 

Exhibit 32.2 
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Promissory Note contained as an exhibit to the Revolving Credit Agreement dated December 29 2014 between Chesapeake Utili lies Corporation 
and Citizens Bank National Association as lender is incomorated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.26 of our Annual Report on Form !O-K for the 
year ended December 3 I 2014 File No. 001-11590. 

Executive Employment Agreement dated May 10 2016 between Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and James F. Moriarty is incoruorated herein 
by reference to Exhibit lO.l of our Ouanerly Repon on Form I 0-0 for the year ended June 30 2016 File No. 001-11590. 

Form of Performance Share Agreement effective February 23 2017 for the period 2017 to 2019 oursuant to Chesapeake Utilities Comoration 
2013 Stock and Incentive Compensation Plan by and between Chesapeake Utilities Corooration and each of Michael P. McMasters Beth W. 
Cooper Stephen C. Thompson Elaine B_ Bittner Jeffry M. Householder and James F. Moriarty is incoroorated herein by reference to Exhibit 
I 0.1 of our Quarterly Report on Form I 0-0 for the year ended June 30 2017 File No. 001-11590. 

Computation of Ratio of Earning to Fixed Charges is Hied herewith. 

Subsidiaries of the Registrant is tiled herewith. 

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm is filed herewith. 

Cenificate of Chief Executive Officer of Chesapeake Utilities Corooration pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a} and 15d ~ 14(al is flied 
herewith. 

Ceniflcate of Chief Financial Officer of Chesapeake Utilities Corooration pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a) and l5d ~ 14(a) is filed 
herewith 

Cenificate of Chief Executive Officer of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 is filed herewith. 

Cenificate of Chief Financial Officer of Chesapeake Utilities Comoration pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 is filed herewith. 

Exhibit !Ol.INS XBRL Instance Document is filed herewith 

Exhibit IOI.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document is filed herewilh. 

Exhibit IOI.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document is filed herewith. 

Exhibit IOJ.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document is filed herewith 

Exhibit IOI.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document is filed herewith. 

Exhibit IOI.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document is filed herewith. 

Management contract or compensatory plan or agreement 
These agreements have not bee~ filed herewith pursuant to Item 60l(b)(4)(v) of Regulation S-K under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. We hereby agree to furnish copies to the SEC 
upon request. 
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ITEM 16. FORM !O-K SUMMARY. 

None. 

Page 119 of 120 

SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section lJ or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Chesapeake Utilities Corporation has duly crmsed this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, 
thereunto duly authorized. 

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION 

By: lsi MICHAEL P. McMASTERS 

Michael P. McMasters, 

President and Chief Executive' Officer 
February 28, 2018 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the diltes indicated. 

Is/ MICHAEl. P. MCMAS"I HRS 

Michael P. McMasters, 

President, Chief Executive Officer and Director 
February 28, 2018 

/s/ JOHN R. SCHIMKAITIS 

John R. Schimkaitis 

Chair of the Board and Director 

February 28, 2018 

/s/ EUGENE H. BAYARD, ESQ 

Eugene H. Bayard, Esq., Director 

February 28, 2018 

is/ THOMAS J. BRESNAN 

Thomas J. Bresnan, Director 

February 28, 2018 

is/ THOMAS P. HILL, JR. 

Thomas P. Hill, Jr., Director 

February 28, 2018 

/s/ PAULL. MADDOCK, JR. 

Paul L. Maddock, Jr., Director 
February 28, 2018 

/s/ BETH W. COOPER 

Beth W. Cooper, Senior Vice President 

and Chief Financial Officer 

(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer) 
Febmary 28,2018 

/s/ RONALD G. FORSYTHE, JR. 

Dr. Ronald G. Forsythe, Jr., Director 
February 28, 2018 

/s/ DENNIS S. HUDSON, Ill 

Dennis S. Hudson, III, Director 

February 28,2018 

lsi DIANN/\ F. MORGAN 

Dianna F. Morgan, Director 

February 28, 2018 

is/CALVERT A. MORGAN, JR. 

Calvert A. Morgan, Jr., Director 
February 28, 2018 
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UNITED STATES 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549 

FORM 
10-Q 

[RJ QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE 
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

For the quarterly period ended: June 30, 2018 

OR 

D TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE 
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

For the transition period from ____ to ___ _ 

Commission File Number: 001-11590 

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION 
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter) 

Delaware 
(State or other jurisdiction 

of incorporation or organization) 

51-0064146 
(I.R.S. Employer 

Identification No.) 

909 Silver Lake Boulevard, Dover, Delaware 19904 
(Address of principal executive offices, including Zip Code) 

(302) 734-6799 
(Registrant's telephone number, including area code) 

Page 1 of108 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15 (d) of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was 
required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes IRl No 0 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, 
every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this 
chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post 
such files). Yes IRl No 0 
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, a 
smaller reporting company, or an emerging growth company. See definitions of"large accelerated filer," "accelerated 
filer" "smaller reporting company," and "emerging growth company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one): 

Large accelerated filer 

Non-accelerated filer 0 

Accelerated filer 

Smaller reporting company 

Emerging growth 
company 

0 

0 

0 
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If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition 
period for complying with any new or revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the 
Exchange Act. 

0 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange 
Act). Yes D No !Rl 

Common Stock, par value $0.4867- 16,378,545 shares outstanding as of July 31, 2018. 

https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/19745/00016282801801 0892/cpk0630201810-... 10/18/2018 



Document 

Table of Contents 

Table of Contents 
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ITEM 3. 
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GLOSSARY OF DEFINITIONS 

ARM: ARM Energy Management, LLC, a natural gas supply and supply management company servicing commercial and 
industrial customers in Western Pennsylvania, which sold certain natural gas marketing assets to PES CO in August 2017 

ASC: Accounting Standards Codification issued by the F ASB 

Aspire Energy: Aspire Energy of Ohio, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Chesapeake Utilities 

ASU: Accounting Standards Update issued by the F ASB 

AutoGas: Alliance AutoGas, a national consortium of companies, of which Sharp is a member, providing an industry­
leading complete program for fleets interested in shifting from gasoline to clean-burning propane 

CDD: Cooling degree-day, which is a measure of the variation in weather based on the extent to which the daily average 
temperature (from 10:00 am to 10:00 am) is above 65 degrees Fahrenheit 

Central Gas: Central Gas Company of Okeechobee, Incorporated, a propane distribution provider in Southeast Florida, 
which sold certain assets to Flo-gas in December 2017 

CGC: Consumer Gas Cooperative, an Ohio natural gas cooperative 

CGS: Community Gas Systems 

Chesapeah:e or Chesapeake Utilities: Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, and its direct and indirect subsidiaries, as 
appropriate in the context of the disclosure 

Chesapeake Pension Plan: A defined benefit pension plan sponsored by Chesapeake Utilities 

Chesapeake Postretirement Plan: An unfunded postretirement health care and life insurance plan sponsored by 
Chesapeake Utilities 

Chesapeake SERP: An unfunded supplemental executive retirement pension plan sponsored by Chesapeake Utilities 

Chipola: Chipola Propane Gas Company, Inc., a propane distribution service provider in Northwest Florida, which sold 
certain assets to Flo-gas in August 2017 

CHP: Combined heat and power plant 

CIAC: Contributions from customers that are used to construct facilities 

Columbia Gas: Columbia Gas of Ohio, an unaffiliated local distribution company based in Ohio 

Company: Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, and its direct and indirect subsidiaries, as appropriate in the context of the 
disclosure 

CP: Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity 

Credit Agreement: The Credit Agreement dated October 8, 2015, among Chesapeake Utilities and the Lenders related to 
the Revolver 

Deferred Compensation Plan: A non-qualified, defen·ed compensation arrangement under which ce1tain of our 
executives and members of the Board of Directors are able to defer payment of all or a part of certain specified types of 
compensation, including executive salaries and cash bonuses, executive performance shares, and directors' retainers 

Degree-Day: A degree-day is the measure of the variation in the weather based on the extent to which the average daily 
temperature (from 10:00 am to 10:00 am) falls above or below 65 degrees Fahrenheit 

Delaware Division: Chesapeake Utilities' natural gas distribution operation serving customers in Delaware 
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Delmarva Peninsula: A peninsula on the east coast of the United States of America occupied by Delaware and portions 
of Maryland and Virginia 

DNREC: Delaware Department ofNatural Resources and Environmental Control 

DSR: Delivery Service Rate 
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Dt(s): Dekathenn(s), which is a natural gas unit of measurement that includes a standard measure for heating value 

Dts/d: Dekathenns per day 

Eastern Shore: Eastern Shore Natural Gas Company, a wholly-owned natural gas transmission subsidiary of Chesapeake 
Utilities 

EGWIC: Eastem Gas & Water Inv~stment Company, LLC, an affiliate ofESG 

Eight Flags: Eight Flags Energy, LLC, a subsidiary of Chesapeake On Sight Services, LLC, which owns and operates a 
CHP plant on Amelia Island, Florida, that supplies electricity to FPU and industrial steam to Rayonier 

EPA: United States Environmental Protection Agency 

ESG: Eastern Shore Gas Company and its affiliates 

F ASB: Financial Accounting Standards Board 

FDEP: Florida Department of Environmental Protection 

FERC: Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, an independent agency of the United States government that regulates 
the interstate transmission of electricity, natural gas, and oil 

FGT: Florida Gas Transmission Company 

Flo-gas: Flo-gas Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary ofFPU 

FPL: Florida Power & Light Company, an unaffiliated electric company that supplies electricity to FPU 

FPU: Florida Public Utilities Company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Chesapeake Utilities 

FPU Medical Plan: A separate unfunded postretirement medical plan for FPU sponsored by Chesapeake Utilities 

FPU Pension Plan: A separate defined benefit pension plan for FPU sponsored by Chesapeake Utilities 

GAAP: Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 

GRIP: The Gas Reliability Infrastructure Program, a natural gas pipeline replacement program in Florida pursuant to 
which we collect a surcharge from certain of our customers to recover capital and other program-related costs associated 
with the replacement of qualifying distribution mains and services 

Gulf Power: Gulf Power Company, an unaffiliated electric company that supplies electricity to FPU 

Gulfstream: Gulfstream Natural Gas System, LLC, an unaffiliated pipeline network that supplies natural gas to FPU 

HDD: Heating degree-day, which is a measure of the variation in weather based on the extent to which the daily average 
temperature (from 10:00 am to 10:00 am) is below 65 degrees Fahrenheit 

JEA: The unaffiliated community-owned utility located in Jacksonville, Florida, fonnerly known as Jacksonville Electric 
Authority 

Lenders: PNC, Bank of America N.A., Citizens Bank N.A., Royal Bank of Canada, and Wells Fargo Bank, National 
Association, which are collectively the lenders that entered into the Credit Agreement with Chesapeake Utilities 

MDE: Maryland Department of Environment 

MetLife: MetLife Investment Advisors, an institutional debt investment management finn, with which we entered into the 
MetLife Shelf Agreement 
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MetLife Shelf Agreement: An agreement entered into by Chesapeake Utilities and MetLife in March 2017 pursuant to 
which Chesapeake Utilities may request that MetLife purchase, through March 2, 2020, up to $150.0 million of unsecured 
senior debt at a fixed interest rate and with a maturity date not to exceed 20 years from the date of issuance 

MetLife Shelf Notes: Unsecured senior promissory notes issuable under the MetLife Shelf Agreement 

MGP: Manufactured gas plant, which is a site where coal was previously used to manufacture gaseous fuel for industrial, 
commercial and residential use 
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MTM: Fair value (mark-to-market) accounting required for derivatives in accordance with ASC 815, Derivatives and 
Hedging 

MW: Megawatts, which is a unjt of measurement for electric base load power and capacity 

NYL: New York Life Investors LLC, an institutional debt investment management firm, with which we entered into the 
NYL Shelf Agreement 

NYL Shelf Agreement: An agreement entered into by Chesapeake Utilities and NYL pursuant to which Chesapeake 
Utilities may request that NYL purchase, through March 2, 2020, up to $100.0 million of unsecured senior debt at a fixed 
interest rate and with a maturity date not to exceed 20 years from the date of issuance 

NYL Shelf Notes: Unsecured senior promissory notes issuable under the NYL Shelf Agreement 

OPT Service: Off Peak :S 30 or :S 90 Firm Transportation Service, a tariff associated with Eastern Shore's firm 
transportation service that allows Eastern Shore to not schedule service for up to 30 or 90 days during the peak months of 
November through April each year 

OTC: Over-the-counter 

Peninsula Pipeline: Peninsula Pipeline Company, Inc., Chesapeake Utilities' wholly-owned Florida intrastate pipeline 
subsidiary 

PESCO: Peninsula Energy Services Company, Inc., Chesapeake Utilities' wholly-owned natural gas marketing subsidiary 

PNC: PNC Bank, National Association, the administrative agent and primary lender for our Revolver 

Prudential: Prudential Investment Management Inc., an institutional investment management firm, with which we have 
entered into the Prudential Shelf Agreement 

Prudential Shelf Agreement: An agreement entered into by Chesapeake Utilities and Prudential pursuant to which 
Chesapeake Utilities may request that Prudential purchase, through October 7, 2018, up to $150.0 million of Prudential 
Shelf Notes at a fixed interest rate and with a maturity date not to exceed 20 years from the date of issuance 

Prudential Shelf Notes: Unsecured senior promissory notes issuable under the Prudential Shelf Agreement 

PSC: Public Service Commission, which is the state agency that regulates the rates and services provided by Chesapeake 
Utilities' natural gas and electric distribution operations in Delaware, Maryland and Florida and Peninsula Pipeline in 
Florida 

RAP: Remedial Action Plan, which is a plan that outlines the procedures taken or being considered in removing 
contaminants fi·om a MGP formerly owned by Chesapeake Utilities or FPU 

Rayonier: Rayonier Performance Fibers, LLC, the company that owns the property on which Eight Flags' CHP plant is 
located, and a customer of the steam generated by the CHP plant 

Retirement Savings Plan: Chesapeake Utilities' qualified 40l(k) retirement savings plan 

Revolver: Our unsecured revolving credit facility with the Lenders 

Sandpiper: Sandpiper Energy, Inc., Chesapeake Utilities' wholly-owned subsidiary, which provides a tariff-based 
distribution service to customers in Worcester County, Maryland 

Sanford Group: FPU and other responsible parties involved with the Sanford MGP site 

SEC: U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission 

Senior Notes: Our unsecured long-term debt issued primarily to insurance companies on various dates 
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Sharp: Sharp Energy, Inc., Chesapeake Utilities' wholly-owned propane distribution subsidiary 

SICP: 2013 Stock and Incentive Compensation Plan 

SIR: A system improvement rate adder designed to fund system expansion costs within the city limits of Ocean City, 
Maryland 

TCJA: The Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017, which is legislation passed by Congress and signed into law by the President 
on December 22, 2017, and which, among other things, reduced the corporate income tax rate from 35 percent to 21 
percent, effective January 1, 2018 
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TETLP: Texas Eastem Transmission, LP, an interstate pipeline interconnected with Eastem Shore's pipeline 

Xeron: Xeron, Inc., an inactive subsidiary of Chesapeake Utilities, which previously engaged in propane and crude oil 
trading 
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PART I-FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Item 1. Financial Statements 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and Subsidiaries 

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income (Unaudited) 

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended 

June 30, June 30, 

2018 2017 2018 2017 

(in thousands, except shares and per share data) 

Operating Revenues 

Regulated Energy $ 70,504 $ 70,996 $ 179,897 $ 168,650 
Unregulated Energy and other 66,160 54,088 196,123 141,594 

Total Operating Revenues 136,664 125,084 376,020 310,244 

Operating Expenses 

Regulated Energy cost of sales 20,010 24,167 68,241 64,411 
Unregulated Energy and other cost of sales 49,393 40,505 149,219 101,260 

Operations 36,281 30,013 68,983 62,502 
Maintenance 3,619 3,403 7,211 6,634 

Gain from a settlement (130) (130) (130) (130) 

Depreciation and ammtization 9,839 9,094 19,543 17,906 

Other taxes 4,404 3,971 9,299 8,501 

Total Operating Expenses 123,416 111,023 322,366 261,084 

Operating Income 13,248 14,061 53,654 49,160 

Other expense, net (262) ( 1,002) (194) (1,703) 

Interest charges 3,881 3,073 7,545 5,811 

Income Before Income Taxes 9,105 9,986 45,915 41,646 

Income taxes 2,718 3,940 12,674 16,456 

Net Income $ 6,387 $ 6,046 $ 33,241 $ 25,190 

Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding: 

Basic 16,369,641 16,340,665 16,360,540 16,329,009 

Diluted 16,417,082 16,382,207 16,410,061 16,373,038 

Earnings Per Share of Common Stock: 

Basic $ 0.39 $ 0.37 $ 2.03 $ 1.54 

Diluted $ 0.39 $ 0.37 $ 2.03 $ 1.54 

Cash Dividends Declared Per Share of Common Stock $ 0.3700 $ 0.3250 $ 0.6950 $ 0.6300 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

- 1 
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Chesapeal{e Utilities Corporation and Subsidiaries 

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Unaudited) 

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended 

June 30, June 30, 

2018 2017 2018 2017 
(in thousands) 

Net Income $ 6,387 $ 6,046 $ 33,241 $ 25,190 
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), net of tax: 

Employee Benefits, net of tax: 

Amortization of prior service cost, net of tax of $(5), $(8), 
$(11) and $(16), respectively (14) (12) (28) (23) 
Net gain, net of tax of$41, $69,$80 and $145, 
respectively 108 101 217 194 

Cash Flow Hedges, net of tax: 

Unrealized gain (loss) on commodity contract cash flow 
hedges, net oftax of$429, $(554), $(327) and $(362), 
respectively 1,061 (875) (728) (537) 

Total Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), net of tax 1,155 (786) (539) (366) 

Comprehensive Income $ 7,542 $ 5,260 $ 32,702 $ 24,824 

The accompanying notes are an integral pmt of these financial statements. 
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Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and Subsidiaries 

Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets (Unaudited) 

June 30, December 31, 
Assets 2018 2017 

(in thousands, except shares and per share data) 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Regulated Energy $ 1,174,407 $ 1,073,736 
Unregulated Energy 216,125 210,682 
Other businesses and eliminations 30,170 27,699 

Total prope1ty, plant and equipment 1,420,702 1,312,117 
Less: Accumulated depreciation and ammtization (287,942) (270,599) 
Plus: Construction work in progress 101,904 84,509 

Net property, plant and equipment 1,234,664 1,126,027 
Current Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 4,512 5,614 

Trade and other receivables (less allowance for uncollectible accounts of 
$1,076 and $936, respectively) 53,419 77,223 
Accrued revenue 12,353 22,279 

Propane inventory, at average cost 6,597 8,324 
Other inventory, at average cost 4,791 12,022 
Regulatory assets 13,330 10,930 
Storage gas prepayments L- 4,365 5,250 

Income taxes receivable 6,420 14,778 

Prepaid expenses 5,162 13,621 

Derivative assets, at fair value 534 1,286 

Other cunent assets 4,560 7,260 

Total current assets 116,043 178,587 

Deferred Charges and Other Assets 

Goodwill 19,604 19,604 

Other intangible assets, net 4,277 4,686 

Investments, at fair value 7,486 6,756 

Regulatory assets 76,427 75,575 

Other assets 4,440 3,699 

Total deferred charges and other assets 112,234 110,320 

Total Assets $ 1,462,941 $ 1,414,934 

The accompanying notes are an integral pmt of these financial statements. 
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Chesapeal\e Utilities Corporation and Subsidiaries 

Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets (Unaudited) 

Capitalization and Liabilities 

(in thousands, except shares and per share data) 

Capitalization 

Stockholders' equity 

Prefened stock, par value $0.01 per share (authorized 2,000,000 shares), no 
shares issued and outstanding 

Common stock, par value $0.4867 per share (authorized 50,000,000 shares) 

Additional paid-in capital 

Retained earnings 

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 

Deferred compensation obligation 

Treasury stock 

Total stockholders' equity 

Long-term debt, net of current maturities 

Total capitalization 

Current Liabilities 

Current portion of long-term debt 

Short-term bonowing 

Accounts payable 

Customer deposits and refunds 

Accrued interest 

Dividends payable 

Accrued compensation 

Regulatory liabilities 

Derivative liabilities, at fair value 

Other accrued liabilities 

Total current liabilities 

Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities 

Deferred income taxes 

Regulatory liabilities 

Environmental liabilities 

Other pension and benefit costs 

Deferred investment tax credits and other liabilities 

Total deferred credits and other liabilities 

Environmental and other commitments and contingencies (Note 5 and 6) 

Total Capitalization and Liabilities 

$ 

$ 

June 30, 
2018 

7,971 

255,356 

250,377 

(5,718) 

3,782 

(3,782) 

507,986 

241,596 

749,582 

9,977 

235,288 

60,769 

32,018 

1,891 

6,060 

7,953 

22,194 

886 

11,495 

388,531 

143,147 

141,499 

8,090 

28,996 

3,096 

324,828 

1,462,941 

The accompanying notes are an integral pmt of these financial statements. 
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December 31, 
2017 

$ 

7,955 

253,470 

229,141 

(4,272) 

3,395 

(3,395) 

486,294 

197,395 

683,689 

9,421 

250,969 

74,688 

34,751 

1,742 

5,312 

13,112 

6,485 

6,247 

10,273 

413,000 

135,850 

140,978 

8,263 

29,699 

3,455 

318,245 

$ 1,414,934 
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Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and Subsidiaries 

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited) 

(in thousands) 

Operating Activities 

Net income 

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization 

Depreciation and accretion included in other costs 

Deferred income taxes 

Realized loss on commodity contracts/sale of assets/investments 

Unrealized (gain) loss on investments/commodity contracts 

Employee benefits and compensation 

Share-based compensation 

Other, net 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Accounts receivable and accrued revenue 

Propane inventory, storage gas and other inventory 

Regulatory assets/liabilities, net 

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 

Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities 

Income taxes receivable 

Customer deposits and refunds 

Accrued compensation 

Other assets and liabilities, net 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Investing Activities 

Property, plant and equipment expenditures 

Proceeds from sales of assets 

Environmental expenditures 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Financing Activities 

Common stock dividends 

(Purchase) issuance of stock under the Dividend Reinvestment Plan 

Tax withholding payments related to net settled stock compensation 

Change in cash overdrafts due to outstanding checks 

Net repayment under line of credit agreements and short-term borrowing under the Revolver 

Proceeds from long-term debt and long-term borrowing under the Revolver 

Repayment of long-term debt, long-term borrowing under the Revolver and capital lease 
obligation 

Net cash provided (used) in financing activities 

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents-Beginning of Period 

$ 

Page 16 of 108 

Six Months Ended 

June 30, 

2018 2017 

33,241 $ 25,190 

19,543 17,906 

4,428 3,939 

7,668 12,034 

3,857 2,223 

(114) 184 

456 819 

2,247 812 

(23) (17) 

32,230 26,862 

9,844 (2,543) 

11,035 4,255 

11,523 2,129 

(26,152) (280) 

8,358 8,500 

(2,733) 1,487 

(5,196) (3,876) 

(1,860) (3,254) 

108,352 96,370 

(126,811) (88,627) 

323 185 

(173) (135) 

(126,661) (88,577) 

(10,301) (9,636) 

(328) 421 

(1,210) (692) 

632 (2,370) 

(16,313) (61,910) 

74,916 69,800 

(30,189) (5,165) 

17,207 (9,552) 

(1,102) (1,759) 

5,614 4,178 
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Cash and Cash Equivalents-End of Period $ 4,512 $ 2,419 
===== 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Chesapeal{e Utilities Corporation and Subsidiaries 

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Stocl{holders' Equity (Unaudited) 

Common Stock til 

(mtho11sands, except shares and per share Number of 
data) Shnresl'l 

Par 
Value 

Additional 
Paid-In 
Capital 

Accumulated 
Other 

Retained Comprehensive Deferred 
Earnings Loss Compensation 

Page 18 of 108 

Tre;~sury 

Stock Total 

Balance at December 31, 2016 16,303,499 $ 7,935 $ 250,967 $ 192,062 $ (4,878) $ 2,416 $ (2,416) $446,086 

Net income 

Other comprehensive income 

Dividend declared ($1.28 per share) 

Dividend reinvestment plan 

Stock issuance 

Share-based compensation and tax benefit 
{3X-1) 

Treasury stock activities 

Balance at December 31,2017 

Net income 

Cumulative effect of the adoption of ASU 
2014-09 

Reclassification upon the adoption of ASU 
2018-02 

Other comprehensive loss 

Dividend declared ($0.6950 per share) 

Dividend reinvestment plan 

Share-based compensation and tax 
benefit PI l'l 

Treasury stock activities 

Balance at June 30, 2018 

58,124 

(21,045) 

10,771 730 

(10) 

30,172 15 1,783 

16,344,442 7,955 253,470 229,141 

33,241 

(1,498) 

907 

(11,414) 

(2) 

34,103 16 1,888 

16,378,545 $ 7,971 $ 255,356 $ 250,377 $ 

606 

(4,272) 

(907) 

(539) 

979 

3,395 

387 

(979) 

58,124 

606 

(21,045) 

735 

(10) 

1,798 

(3,395) 486,294 

(387) 

33,241 

(1,498) 

(539) 

(11,414) 

(2) 

1,904 

(5,718) $ 3,782 $ (3,782) $507,986 
====== 

(I) 2,000,000 shares of preferred stock at $0.01 par value have been authorized. None has been issued or is outstanding; accordingly, no 
information has been included in the statements of stockholders' equity. 

121 

(3) 

(<) 

Includes 96,204 and 90,961 shares at June 30,2018 and December 31,2017, respectively, held in a Rabbi Trust related to our Deferred 
Compensation Plan. 
Includes amounts for shares issued for directors' compensation. 
The shares issued under the SICP are net of shares withheld for employee taxes. For the six months ended June 30, 2018, and for the year 
ended December 3 I, 2017, we withheld 16,918 and I 0,269 shares, respectively, for taxes. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) 

1. Summary of Accounting Policies 

Basis of Presentation 

References in this document to the "Company," "Chesapeake Utilities," "we," "us" and "our" are intended to mean 
Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, its divisions and/or its subsidiaries, as appropriate in the context of the disclosure. 

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the 
rules and regulations of the SEC and GAAP. In accordance with these rules and regulations, certain information and 
disclosures normally required for audited financial statements have been condensed or omitted. These financial statements 
should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto, included in our latest Annual 
Report on Form 1 0-K for the year ended December 31, 2017. In the opinion of management, these financial statements 
reflect normal recurring adjustments that are necessary for a fair presentation of our results of operations, fmancial 
position and cash flows for the interim periods presented. 

Due to the seasonality of our business, results for interim periods are not necessarily indicative of results for the entire 
fiscal year. Revenue and earnings are typically greater during the first and fourth quarters, when consumption of energy is 
highest due to colder temperatures. 

ARM, Cltipola ami Central Gas Asset Acquisitions 
In August 2017, PES CO acquired certain natural gas marketing assets of ARM. The acquired assets complement 
PESCO's existing asset portfolio and expanded our regional footprint and retail demand in a market where we had 
existing pipeline capacity and wholesale liquidity. We accounted for the purchase of these assets as a business 
combination and initially recorded goodwill of $6.8 million, within our Unregulated Energy segment. In connection with 
the acquisition, we initially recorded a contingent consideration liability of $2.5 million, based on the acquired business 
achieving a gross margin target in 2018. During the second qumter of 2018, we identified certain kAown information as of 
the acquisition date that was not considered in our original assessment and would have resulted in no contingent 
consideration liability being initially recorded. Therefore, we reversed the originally-recorded contingent liability and 
reduced goodwill by $2.5 million. We have similarly revised the condensed consolidated balance sheet as of 
December 31, 2017. These revisions are considered immaterial to our condensed consolidated financial statements. The 
contingent liability will be re-evaluated each reporting period in 2018. However, our current assessment is that no 
contingent consideration will be paid. 

In August 2017, Flo-gas acquired certain operating assets of Chipola, which provides propane distribution service to 
approximately 800 residential and commercial customers .in Bay, Calhoun, Gadsden, Jackson, Liberty, and Washington 
Counties, Florida. 

In December 2017, Flo-gas acquired certain operating assets of Central Gas, which provides propane distribution service 
to approximately 325 residential and commercial customers in Glades, Highlands, Martin, Okeechobee, and St. Lucie 
Counties, Florida. 

The revenue and net income from these acquisitions that were included in our condensed consolidated statements of 
income for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018, were not material. The amounts recorded in conjunction with 
our acquisitions are preliminary and subject to adjustment based on additional valuations performed during the 
measurement period. 

FASB Statements and Other Authoritative Pronouncements 

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards 

Revenue from Contracts with Customers (ASC 606) - On January 1, 2018, we adopted ASU 2014-09, Revenue ji-om 
Contracts with Customers, and all the related amendments using the modified retrospective method. We recognized the 
cumulative effect of initially applying the new revenue standard to all of our contracts as an adjustment to the beginning 
balance of retained earnings. The comparative information has not been restated and continues to be reported under the 
accounting standards in effect for those periods. We expect the impact of the adoption of the new revenue standard to be 
immaterial to our net income on an ongoing basis. 
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This standard requires entities to recognize revenue when control of the promised goods or services is transfened to 
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration that the entity expects to receive in exchange for those goods or 
services. The guidance also requires a number of disclosures regarding the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of 
revenue and the related cash flows. See Note 3, Revenue Recognition, for additional information. 
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The following highlights the impact of the adoption of ASC 606 on our condensed consolidated income statements for the 
three and six months ended June 30,2018 and condensed consolidated balance sheet as of June 30,2018: 

Income statement 

(in thousands) 

Regulated Energy operating revenues 

Regulated Energy cost of sales 

Depreciation and amortization 

Income before income taxes 

Income taxes 

Net income 

Balance sheet 

(in thousands) 

Assets 

Accrued revenues 

Other assets 

Capitalization 

Retained earnings 

$ 

Three months ended June 30, 2018 Six months ended June 30, 2018 

As 
Reported 

70,504 

20,010 

9,839 

9,105 

2,718 

6,387 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Effect of Effect of 
Without Change Without Change 

Adoption of Higher As Adoption Higher 
ASC 606 (Lower) Reported of ASC 606 (Lower) 

$ 70,728 $ (224) $ I79,897 $ 180,780 $ (883) 

20,139 (129) 68,241 68,942 (701) 

9,832 7 19,543 19,521 22 

9,207 (102) 45,915 46,119 (204) 

2,746 (28) 12,674 12,733 (59) 

6,461 (74) 33,241 33,386 (145) 

As of June 30, 2018 

As Reported 
Without Adoption of 

ASC 606 
Effect of Change 
Higher (Lower) 

12,353 $ 

4,440 $ 

250,377 $ 

13,659 $ 

4,777 $ 

248,734 $ 

(I ,306) 

(337) 

1,643 

The primary impact of the adoption of ASC 606 on our income statement was the delayed recognition of approximately 
$204,000 in revenue in the first six months of 2018 to future years and a cumulative adjustment that decreased retained 
earnings and other assets by $1.6 million at June 30, 2018, associated with a long-term fi1m transmission contract with an 
industrial customer. 

Compensation-Retirement Benefits (ASC 715) - In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-07, Improving the 
Presentation of Net Periodic Pension Cost and Net Periodic Post Retirement Benefit Cost. Under this guidance, employers 
are required to report the service cost component in the same line item or items as other compensation costs arising from 
services rendered by the pertinent employees during the period. The other components of net benefit costs are required to 
be presented in the income statement separately from the service cost component and outside a subtotal of income from 
operations. The update allows for capitalization of the service cost component when applicable. We adopted ASU 2017-07 
on January 1, 2018 and applied the changes in the presentation of the service cost and other components of net benefit 
costs, retrospectively. Aside from changes in presentation, implementation of this standard did not have a material impact 
on our financial position or results of operations. 

Statement of Cash Flows (ASC 230) - In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-15, Classification of Certain Cash 
Receipts and Cash Payments, which clarifies how certain transactions are classified in the statement of cash flows. We 
adopted ASU 2016-15 on January 1, 20I8. Implementation of this new standard did not have a material impact on our 
condensed consolidated statement of cash flows. 

Compensation- Stock Compensation (ASC 718)- In May 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-09, Scope of Modification 
Accounting, to clarify when to account for a change in the terms or conditions of a share-based payment award as a 
modification. Under this guidance, modification accounting is required only if the fair value, the vesting conditions or the 
award classification (equity or liability) changes because of a change in the terms or conditions of the award. We adopted 
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ASU 2017-09, prospectively, on January 1, 2018. Implementation of this new standard did not have a material impact on 
our financial position or results of operations. 

Income Statement - Reporting Comprehensive Income (ASC 220) - In February 2018, the F ASB issued ASU 2018-02, 
Reclassification of Certain Tax Effectsfi·om Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income, which allows a reclassification 
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from accumulated other comprehensive income to retained earnings for stranded tax effects resulting from the TCJA. We 
adopted ASU 2018-02 on January 1, 2018 and reclassified stranded tax effects from accumulated other comprehensive 
loss related to our employee benefit plans and commodity contract cash flows hedges. Implementation of this new 
standard did not have a material impact on our financial position and results of operations. See Note 8, Stockholders' 
Equity, for additional information. 

Recent Accounting Standards Yet to be Adopted 

Leases (ASC 842) - In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases, which provides updated guidance 
regarding accounting for leases. This update requires a lessee to recognize a lease liability and a lease asset for all leases, 
including operating leases, with a term greater than 12 months on its balance sheet. The update also expands the required 
quantitative and qualitative disclosures sunounding leases. ASU 2016-02 will be effective for our annual and interim 
financial statements beginning January 1, 2019, although early adoption is pe1mitted. 

The F ASB allows companies to elect several practical expedients, in order to simplify the transition to the new standard. 
The following three expedients must all be elected together: 

An entity need not reassess whether any expired or existing contracts are or contain leases. 
An entity need not reassess the lease classification for any expired or existing leases (that is, all existing leases 
that were classified as operating leases in accordance with Topic 840 will continue to be classified as operating 
leases, and all existing leases that were classified as capital leases in accordance with Topic 840 will continue to 
be classified as capital leases). 
An entity need not reassess initial direct costs for any existing leases. 

Other practical expedients that can be elected individually are: 

An entity may elect to use hindsight in determining the lease term and in assessing impairment of the entity's 
right-of-use assets. 
An entity may elect to apply the provisions of the new lease guidance at the effective date, without adjusting the 
comparative periods presented. 

We expect to use the practical expedients to assist in implementation of this standard. We have assessed all of our leases 
and have concluded that we may have some operating leases that qualify for the short-term lease exception. Upon 
adoption, we will record the right-of-use assets and the lease liabilities related to our operating leases with a lease tenn in 
excess of one year. We do not believe that this will have a material impact on our financial position, results of operations 
or cash flows. 

In January 2018, the F ASB issued ASU 2018-01, Land Easement Practical Expedient for Transition to Topic 842, which 
provides a practical expedient under Topic 842 to not evaluate existing or expired land easements that were not previously 
accounted for as leases. We plan to utilize the provided practical expedient for existing and expired land easements and 
will assess all new or modified land easements and right-of-way agreements, under the guidance of ASU 2016-02, 
following its adoption. 

Intangibles-Goodwill (ASC 350)- In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-04, Simplifying the Test for Goodwill 
Impairment, which simplifies how an entity is required to test goodwill for impairment by eliminating Step 2 from the 
goodwill impairment test. ASU 2017-04 will be effective for our annual and interim financial statements beginning 
January 1, 2020, although early adoption is permitted. The amendments included in this ASU are to be applied 
prospectively. We believe that implementation of this new standard will not have a material impact on our financial 
position or results of operations. 

Derivatives and Hedging (ASC 815)- In August 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-12, Targeted Improvements to 
Accounting for Hedging Activities, to better align an entity's risk management activities and financial reporting for 
hedging relationships through changes to both the designation and measurement guidance for qualifying hedging 
relationships and the presentation of hedge results. Among other changes to hedge designation, ASU 2017-12 expands the 
risks that can be designated as hedged risks in cash flow hedges to include cash flow variability from contractually 
specified components of forecasted purchases or sales of non-financial assets. ASU 2017-12 requires the entire change in 
fair value of a hedging instrument included in the assessment of hedge effectiveness to be presented in the same income 
statement line that is used to present the earnings effects of the hedged item for fair value hedges and in other 
comprehensive income for cash flow hedges. For disclosures, ASU 2017-12 requires a tabular presentation of the income 
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statement effect of fair value and cash flow hedges, and it eliminates the requirement to disclose the ineffective pmtion of 
the change in fair value of hedging instruments. ASU 2017-12 will be effective for our annual and interim financial 
statements beginning January 1, 2019, although early adoption is permitted. We intend to adopt the updated hedge 
accounting standard in 2018, which we expect will reduce the MTM volatility in PESCO's results due to better alignment 
of risk management activities and financial reporting, risk component hedging and certain other simplifications of hedge 
accounting guidance. 
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Compensation - Stock Compensation (ASC 718) - In June 2018, the F ASB issued ASU 2018-07, Improvements to 
Nonemployee Share-Based Payment Accounting, which expands the scope of Topic 718 to include share-based payment 
transactions for acquiring goods and services from nonemployees. ASU 2018-07 will be effective for our annual and 
interim financial statements beginning January 1, 2019, although early adoption is permitted. We believe that 
implementation of this new standard will not have a material impact on our financial position or results of operations. 

2. 

3. 

Calculation of Earnings Per Share 

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended 

June 30, June 30, 

2018 2017 2018 2017 

(in thousands, except shares and per share data) 

Calculation of Basic Earnings Per Share: 

Net Income $ 6,387 $ 6,046 $ 33,241 $ 25,190 

Weighted average shares outstanding 16,369,641 16,340,665 16,360,540 16,329,009 

Basic Earnings Per Share $ 0.39 $ 0.37 $ 2.03 $ 1.54 

Calculation of Diluted Earnings Per Share: 

Reconciliation of Numerator: 

Net Income $ 6,387 $ 6,046 $ 33,241 $ 25,190 
Reconciliation of Denominator: 

Weighted shares outstanding-Basic 16,369,641 16,340,665 16,360,540 16,329,009 

Effect of dilutive securities-Share-based 
compensation 47,441 41,542 49,521 44,029 

Adjusted denominator-Diluted 16,417,082 16,382,207 16,410,061 16,373,038 

Diluted Earnings Per Share $ 0.39 $ 0.37 $ 2.03 $ 1.54 

Revenue Recognition 

We recognize revenue when our performance obligations under contracts with customers have been satisfied, 
which generally occurs when our businesses have delivered or transported natural gas, electricity or propane to 
customers. We exclude sales taxes and other similar taxes from the transaction price. Typically, our customers 
pay for the goods and/or services we provide in the month following the satisfaction of our performance 
obligation. 

The following table displays our revenue by major source based on product and service type for the three months 
ended June 30, 2018: 
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Regulated Unregulated Other and 
Energy Energy Eliminations Total 

Energy distribution 

Florida natural gas 
division $ 6,317 $ $ $ 6,317 
Delaware natural gas 
division 11,882 11,882 

FPU electric distribution 18,362 18,362 
FPU natural gas 
distribution 18,281 18,281 
Maryland natural gas 
division 4,001 4,001 

Sandpiper 4,367 4,367 

Total energy distribution 63,210 63,210 

Energy transmission 

Aspire Energy 5,854 5,854 

Eastern Shore 14,502 14,502 

Peninsula Pipeline 2,968 2,968 

Total energy transmission 17,470 5,854 23,324 

Energy generation 

Eight Flags 4,230 4,230 

Propane delivery 

Delmarva Peninsula 
propane delivery 15,264 15,264 

Florida propane delivery 4,942 4,942 

Total propane delivery 20,206 20,206 

Energy services 

PES CO 48,798 48,798 

Other and eliminations 

Eliminations (10,176) (3,248) (10,379) (23,803) 

Other 505 194 699 

Total other and eliminations (10,176) (2,743) (10,185) (23, I 04) 

Total operating 
revenues (tJ $ 70,504 $ 76,345 $ (10,185) $ 136,664 

111 Includes other revenue (revenues from sources other than contracts with customers) of $(356,000) and $82,000 for our Regulated and 
Unregulated Energy segments, respectively. The sources of other revenues include revenue from alternative revenue programs related to 
weather normalization for Maryland division and Sandpiper and late fees. 
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The following table displays our revenue by major source based on product and service type for the six months 
ended June 30, 2018: 

Regulated Unregulated Other and 
Energy Energy Eliminations Total 

Energy distribution 

Florida natural gas 
division $ 12,180 $ $ $ 12,180 

Delaware natural gas 
division 43,954 43,954 

FPU electric distribution 37,103 37,103 

FPU natural gas 
distribution 41,494 41,494 

Maryland natural gas 
division 14,673 14,673 

Sandpiper 13,331 13,331 

Total energy distribution 162,735 162,735 

Energy transmission 

Aspire Energy 17,931 17,931 

Eastern Shore 30,100 30,100 

Peninsula Pipeline 5,065 5,065 

Total energy transmission 35,165 17,931 53,096 

Energy generation 

Eight Flags 8,608 8,608 

Propane delivery 

Delmarva Peninsula 
propane delivery 60,735 60,735 

Florida propane delivery 11,576 11,576 

Total propane delivery 72,311 72,311 

Energy services 

PES CO 130,357 130,357 

Other and eliminations 

Eliminations (18,003) (8,494) (25,976) (52,473) 

Other 999 387 1,386 

Total other and eliminations (18,003) (7,495) (25,589) (51,087) 

Total operating 
revenues <IJ $ 179,897 $ 221,712 $ (25,589) $ 376,020 

(I) Includes other revenue (revenues from sources other than contracts with customers) of $(945,000) and $155,000 for our Regulated and 
Unregulated Energy segments, respectively. The sources of other revenues include revenue from alternative revenue programs related to 
weather normalization for Maryland division and Sandpiper and late fees. 

Regulated Energy segment 
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The businesses within our Regulated Energy segment are regulated utilities whose operations and customer 
contracts are subject to rates approved by the state PSC or the FERC. 

Our energy distribution operations deliver natural gas or electricity to customers and we bill the customers for 
both the delivery of natural gas or electricity and the related commodity, where applicable. In most jurisdictions, 
our customers are also required to purchase the commodity from us, although certain customers in some 
jurisdictions may purchase the commodity from a third-party retailer (in which case we provide delivery service 
only). We consider the delivery of natural gas or electricity and/or the related commodity sale as one performance 
obligation because the commodity and its delivery are highly interrelated with two-way dependency on one 
another. Our performance obligation is satisfied over time as natural gas or electricity is delivered and consumed 
by the customer. We recognize revenues based on monthly meter readings, which are based on the quantity of 
natural gas or electricity used and the approved rates. We accrue 
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unbilled revenues for natural gas and electricity that have been delivered, but not yet billed, at the end of an 
accounting period to the extent that billing and delivery do not coincide. 

Revenues for Eastern Shore are based on rates approved by the FERC. The FERC has also authorized Eastern 
Shore to negotiate rates above or below the FERC-approved maximum rates, which customers can elect as an 

·alternative to the FERC-approved maximum rates. Eastem Shore's services can be firm or interruptible. Firm 
services are offered on a guaranteed basis and are available at all times unless prevented by force majeure or 
other permitted curtailments. Interruptible customers receive service only when there is available capacity or 
supply. Our performance obligation is satisfied over time as we deliver natural gas to the customers' locations. 
We recognize revenues based on meter readings at the end of the month, which are based on capacity used or 
reserved and the fixed monthly charge. 

Peninsula Pipeline is engaged in natural gas intrastate transmission to third-party customers and certain affiliates 
in the State of Florida. Our performance obligation is satisfied over time as the natural gas is transpmted to 
customers. We recognize revenue based on rates approved by the Florida PSC and the capacity used or reserved. 
Since we bill customers at the end of each month, we do not have any unbilled revenue. 

Unregulated Energy segment 
Revenues generated from the Unregulated Energy segment are not subject to any federal, state, or local pricing 
regulations. Aspire Energy primarily sources gas from hundreds of conventional producers and performs 
gathering and processing functions to maintain the quality and reliability of its gas for its wholesale customers. 
Aspire Energy's performance obligation is satisfied over time as natural gas is delivered to its customers. Aspire 
Energy recognizes revenue based on the deliveries of natural gas at contractually agreed upon rates (which are 
based upon an established monthly index price and a monthly operating fee, as applicable). For natural gas 
customers, we accrue unbilled revenues for natural gas that has been delivered, but not yet billed, at the end of an 
accounting period to the extent that billing and delivery do not coincide with the end of the accounting period. 

Eight Flags' CHP plant, which is located on land leased from Rayonier, produces three sources of energy: 
electricity, steam and heated water. Rayonier purchases the steam (unfired and fired) and heated water, which is 
used in Rayonier's production facility. Our electric distribution operation purchases the electricity generated by 
the CHP plant for distribution to its customers. Eight Flags' perfonnance obligation is satisfied over time as 
deliveries of heated water, steam and electricity occur. Eight Flags recognizes revenues over time based on the 
amount of heated water, steam and electricity generated and delivered to its customers. 

For our propane delivery operations, we recognize revenue based upon customer type and service offered. 
Generally, for propane bulk delivery customers (customers without meters) and wholesale sales, our performance 
obligation is satisfied when we deliver propane to the customers' locations (point-in-time basis). We recognize 
revenue from these customers based on the number of gallons delivered and the price per gallon at the point-in­
time of delivery. For our propane delivery customers with meters, we satisfY our performance obligation over 
time when we deliver propane to customers. We recognize revenue over time based on the amount of propane 
consumed and the applicable price per unit. For propane delivery metered customers, we accrue unbilled 
revenues for propane that has been delivered, but not yet billed, at the end of an accounting period to the extent 
that billing and delive1y do not coincide with the end of the accounting period. 

PESCO provides natural gas supply and asset management services to customers (including affiliates of 
Chesapeake Utilities) located primarily in Florida, the Delmarva Peninsula, and the Appalachian Basin. PESCO's 
performance obligation is satisfied over time as natural gas is delivered to its customers. PESCO recognizes 
revenue over time based on customer meter readings, on a monthly basis. We accrue unbilled revenues for 
natural gas that has been delivered, but not yet billed, at the end of an accounting period to the extent that billing 
and delivery do not coincide with the end of the accounting period. 
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Contract balances 
The timing of revenue recognition, customer billings and cash collections results in trade receivables, unbilled 
receivables (contract assets), and customer advances (contract liabilities) in our consolidated balance sheets. The 
opening and closing balances of our trade receivables, contract assets, and contract liabilities are as follows: 

Contract Contract 
Trade Assets (Non- Liabilities 

Receivables current) (Current) 
in thousands 

Balance at 12/31/2017 $ 74,962 $ 1,270 $ 407 
Balance at 6/3 0/2018 51,511 1,967 175 

Increase (decrease) $ (23,451) $ 697 $ (232) 

Our trade receivables are included in trade and other receivables in the condensed consolidated balance sheets. 
Our non-current contract assets are included in other assets in the condensed consolidated balance sheet and 
relate to operations and maintenance costs incurred by Eight Flags that have not yet been recovered through rates 
for the sale of electricity to our electric distribution operation pursuant to a long-term service agreement. 

At times, we receive advances or deposits from our customers before we satisfy our performance obligation, 
resulting in contract liabilities. At June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, we had a contract liability, which was 
included in other accrued liabilities in the condensed consolidated balance sheet, of $175,000 and $407,000, 
respectively, and which relates to non-refundable prepaid fixed fees for our Delmarva Peninsula propane delivery 
operation's retail offerings. Our performance obligation is satisfied over the term of the respective retail offering 
plan on a ratable basis. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2018, we recognized revenue of $84,000 and 
$336,000, respectively. 

Practical expedients 
For our businesses with agreements that contain variable consideration, we use the invoice practical expedient 
method. We determined that the amounts invoiced to customers correspond directly with the value to our 
customers and our performance to date. 

For our long-term contracts, the revenue we recognize corresponds directly to the amount we have the right to 
invoice, which corresponds directly to our performance obligation. Our performance obligations under our long­
term contracts are satisfied over time. As a practical expedient, we do not disclose information about remaining, 
or unsatisfied, performance obligations for these long-term contracts since the revenue recognized corresponds to 
the amount we have the right to invoice. 

4. Rates and Other Regulatory Activities 

Our natural gas and electric distribution operations in Delaware, Maryland and Florida are subject to regulation 
by their respective PSC; Eastern Shore, our natural gas transmission subsidiary, is subject to regulation by the 
FERC; and Peninsula Pipeline, our intrastate pipeline subsidiary, is subject to regulation by the Florida PSC. 
Chesapeake Utilities' Florida natural gas distribution division and FPU's natural gas and electric distribution 
operations continue to be subject to regulation, as separate entities, by the Florida PSC. 

Delaware 

Effect of the TCJA on rate payers: As a result of the enactment of the TCJA, the Delaware PSC issued an order 
requiring all rate-regulated utilities to file estimates of the impact of the TCJA on their cost of service for the 
most recent test year available (including new rate schedules). The order also required utilities to propose 
procedures for changing rates to reflect those impacts on or before March 31, 2018. Our Delaware Division filed 
the requisite reports with the Delaware PSC on March 30, 2018. Subsequently, the Delaware Division filed an 
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updated report reflecting the impact of the TCJA on May 31, 2018. If, after reviewing the required filing, the 
Delaware PSC determines to reduce our rates, it will open a new docket and establish a procedural schedule for 
conducting an evidentiary hearing regarding the impacts of the TCJA on our operations and existing rates. 

In addition, on February 1, 2018, the Delaware PSC issued an order requiring Delaware rate-regulated public 
utilities to accrue regulatory liabilities reflecting the jurisdictional revenue requirement impacts of changes in the 
federal corporate 
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income tax laws. In compliance with this order, we have established a regulatory liability to reflect the estimated 
impacts of the changes in the federal corporate income tax rate. We believe that the ultimate impact of the TCJA 
on rates charged by our Delaware Division will not have a material effect on our fmancial position or results of 
operations. 

Underserved Area Rates: In December 2017, we filed an application for approval of natural gas expansion 
service offerings. We requested authorization to utilize existing expansion area tariff rates to serve customers 
located outside of the current Sussex County, Delaware expansion area boundaries that cannot be economically 
served under the regular tariff rates. In June 2018, we reached a settlement agreement with the relevant parties, 
which allows us to utilize higher rates for areas outside of our existing expansion area. The settlement agreement 
was presented before the Delaware PSC at its public meeting on July 10, 2018, where it was unanimously passed. 

CGS: In June 2018, we filed with the Delaware PSC an application requesting approval of the acquisition and 
subsequent conversion of propane CGS to natural gas located within our tenitory. We requested the 
establishment of regulatory accounting treatment and valuation of the acquisition of certain CGS, approval of a 
methodology to set new distribution rates for CGS customers and approvql of a new system-wide tariff rate that 
will recover CGS conversion costs. The Delaware PSC has not reached a decision as of the date of this filing. 

Maryland Division and Sandpiper 

Effect of the TCJA on rate payers: The Maryland PSC issued an order requiring all Maryland public utilities 
whose rates are explicitly grossed-up for income taxes to track the impacts of the TCJA beginning January 1, 
2018. The order required utilities to: (a) apply regulatory accounting treatment, which includes the use of 
regulatory assets and liabilities, for all impacts of the TCJA; (b) file an explanation of the expected effects of the 
TCJA on their expenses and revenues; and (c) explain when and how they expect to pass on to their customers 
the net results of those effects. We established a regulatory liability to reflect the impacts of the changes in the 
federal corporate income tax rate in compliance with the Maryland PSC's order. In addition, our Maryland 
Division and Sandpiper made compliance filings that included preliminary estimates of the annual impact of the 
change in the statutory federal income tax rate from 35 percent to 21 percent. In April2018, the Maryland PSC 
ordered both the Maryland Division and Sandpiper to implement reduced rates effective May 1, 2018 reflecting 
the impact of the TCJA. We implemented a one-time bill credit for the regulatory liability established for the 
refunds and issued the refunds to customers in June. We must also submit an informational filing to the Maryland 
PSC within 60 days of the refund payment date. Additionally, pursuant to the Maryland PSC's order, if in the 
future the Maryland Division or Sandpiper identify any additional tax savings, we must submit an additional 
filing to the Maryland PSC in order to return those savings to customers as soon as possible. We believe that the 
ultimate impact of the TCJA on rates charged by our Maryland Division and Sandpiper will not have a material 
effect on our financial position or results of operations. 

Florida 

Florida Electric Reliability/Modernization Pilot Program: In July 2017, FPU's electric division filed a petition 
with the Florida PSC requesting approval to include $15.2 million of ce1tain capital project expenditures in its 
rate base and to adjust its base rates accordingly. These expenditures are designed to improve the stability and 
safety of the electric system, while enhancing the capability of FPU's electrical grid. An interconnection project 
with FPL, which enables FPU to mitigate fuel costs for its electric customers, was included in the $15.2 million 
capital project expenditures. In December 2017, the Florida PSC approved this petition, effective January I, 
2018. The settlement agreement prescribed the methodology for adjusting the new rates based on the lower 
federal income tax rate and the process and methodology regarding the refund of deferred income taxes, 
reclassified as a regulatory liability, as a result of the TCJA. We have established a regulatory liability to reflect 
the impacts of the changes in the federal corporate income tax rate in compliance with the settlement agreement. 

Electric Limited Proceeding-Storm Recove1y: In February 2018, FPU's electric division filed a petition with the 
Florida PSC, requesting recovery of incremental storm restoration costs related to several hurricanes and tropical 
stmms, along with the replenishment of FPU's storm reserve to its pre-storm level of $1.5 million. As a result of 
these hurricanes and tropical storms, FPU's storm reserve was depleted and is currently at a deficit of $779,000. 
FPU is requesting approval of a surcharge of $1.82 per kilowatt per hour for two years to recover and replenish 
storm-related costs. At this time, no date for approval of this petition has been scheduled by the Florida PSC. 
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Effect of the TCJA on ratepayers: The Office of Public Counsel filed a petition requesting that the Florida PSC 
establish a general docket to investigate and adjust rates for all investor-owned utilities related to the passage of 
the TCJA. The Florida PSC issued a Memorandum with a recommendation that, if utilities do not agree to a 
January I, 2018 effective date, then the effective date should be February 6, 2018. On January 30, 2018, the 
Florida PSC scheduled informal meetings between its staff and interested persons to discuss the impact of the 
TCJA. Hearings for Florida's electric utilities 
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are tentatively scheduled for the first qumter of 2019 and hearings for the natural gas utilities are tentatively 
scheduled for the fourth quarter of2018. 

In December 2017, the Florida PSC issued an order regarding the limited proceeding for FPU's electric division, 
which prescribes the applicability, timing and treatment of the implications of the TCJA, as discussed above. In 
June, each of our Florida natural gas operations filed a petition and testimony in support of the disposition ofthe 
impacts created by the TCJA. We believe that the ultimate impact of the TCJA on rates charged by FPU's electric 
division and our Florida natural gas operations will not have a material effect on our financial position or results 
of operations. 

Eastern Shore 

2017 Expansion Project: In May 2016, the FERC approved Eastern Shore's request to initiate the pre-filing 
review process for its 2017 Expansion Project. The 2017 Expansion Project's facilities include approximately 23 
miles of pipeline looping in Pennsylvania, Maryland and Delaware; upgrades to existing metering facilities in 
Lancaster County, Pennsylvania; installation of an additional compressor unit at Eastern Shore's existing 
Daleville compressor station in Chester County, Pennsylvania; and approximately 17 miles of new mainline 
extension and two pressure control stations in Sussex County, Delaware. Eastern Shore entered into precedent 
agreements with seven existing customers, including three affiliates of Chesapeake Utilities, for a total of 61,162 
Dts/d of additional fi1m natural gas transportation service on Eastern Shore's pipeline system with an additional 
52,500 Dts/d offi1m transportation service at ce1tain Eastern Shore receipt facilities. 

In October 2017, the FERC issued a CP authorizing Eastem Shore to construct the expansion facilities. The 
estimated cost of the 2017 Expansion Project is approximately $117.0 million. Eastern Shore submitted its 
Implementation Plan in October 2017, addressing the actions Eastern Shore will undertake to meet the 
environmental conditions set forth in the PERC's order. 

In December 2017, the TETLP interconnect upgrade was placed into service. In June 2018, the Fair Hill Loop in 
Chester County, Pennsylvania and Cecil County, Maryland was placed into service. With the exception of some 
minor facilities, the remaining segments of the 2017 Expansion Project are expected to be placed into service in 
various phases during the remainder of2018. 

2017 Rate Case Filing: In January 2017, Eastern Shore filed a base rate proceeding with the FERC, as required 
by the terms of its 2012 rate case settlement agreement. Eastern Shore based its proposed rates on the mainline 
cost of service of approximately $60.0 million resulting in an overall requested revenue increase of 
approximately $18.9 million and a requested rate of return on common equity of 13.75 percent. In March 2017, 
the FERC issued an order suspending the tariff rates for the usual five-month period. 

In August 2017, Eastern Shore implemented new rates, subject to refund, based on the outcome of the rate 
proceeding. Eastern Shore recorded incremental revenue of approximately $3.7 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2017, and established a regulatory liability to reserve a portion of the total incremental revenues 
generated by the new rates until the rate case settlement is approved by the FERC and customers receive refunds 
according to the terms of the settlement agreement. Eastern Shore filed an uncontested settlement agreement and 
a motion to place interim settlement rates into effect beginning on January 1, 2018. The FERC approved the 
settlement agreement in February 2018, and it became final in March 2018. Exclusive of the TCJA impact, base 
rates would have increased, on an annual basis, by approximately $9.8 million. 

Effect of the TCJA on ratepayers: In March 2018, Eastern Shore filed with the FERC its revised base rates, 
reflecting the change in its federal corporate income tax rate. These adjusted base rates became effective April 1, 
2018 and will generate approximately $6.6 million, on an annual basis. Any excess accumulated deferred income 
tax balances will flow back to customers over the period determined in the next rate case, absent any transition 
rule included in the TCJA or other statutes or rules that would govern the flow-back period. In April 2018, 
Eastern Shore refunded to its customers, with interest, the difference between the proposed rates ·and the 
settlement rates. The refund to customers also reflected the difference in rates due to the impact of the TCJA. 

In March 2018, the FERC issued a Notice of Proposed Rulemaking that proposed a process to determine which 
jurisdictional natural gas pipelines may be collecting unjust and unreasonable rates in light of the recent reduction 
in the corporate income tax rate in the TCJA and changes to the FERC's income tax allowance policies following 
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the United Airlines, Inc. v. FERC decision. The Notice of Proposed Rulemaking proposed requiring interstate 
natural gas pipelines to provide an informational filing to allow the FERC to evaluate the impact of the TCJA on 
the pipelines' revenue requirement. In April 2018, Eastern Shore filed comments in this proceeding requesting 
confirmation that Eastern Shore is not required to provide an informational filing because it has already 
implemented lower rates in accordance with the settlement agreement in its 2017 rate case approved by the 
FERC. In July 2018, the FERC issued a final rule, which largely adopted the process proposed in the Notice of 
Proposed Rulemaking requiring all interstate natural gas companies 

- 16 

https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/19745/000 16282801801 0892/cpk063020181 0-... 10/18/2018 



Document Page37of108 

Table of Contents 

to file an informational filing for the purpose of evaluating the impact of the TCJA and the United Airlines, Inc. 
v. FERC decision on interstate natural gas pipelines' revenue requirements. The final rule provides that an 
individual pipeline has the option to request a waiver if the pre-March 2018 settlement justifies not adjusting its 
rates at this time. We plan to file such a request. We believe that the ultimate resolution of this matter will not 
have a material effect on Eastern Shore's financial position or results of operations. 

5. Environmental Commitments and Contingencies 

We are subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations governing environmental quality and pollution 
control. These laws and regulations require us to remove or remediate, at cunent and former operating sites, the 
effect on the environment of the disposal or release of specified substances. 

MGPSites 

We have participated in the investigation, assessment or remediation of, and have exposures at, seven former MGP 
sites. Those sites are located in Salisbury, Maryland; Seaford, Delaware; and Winter Haven, Key West, Pensacola, 
Sanford and West Palm Beach, Florida. We have also been in discussions with the MDE regarding another former 
MGP site located in Cambridge, Maryland. 

As of June 30, 2018, we had approximately $9.5 million in environmental liabilities related to FPU's MGP sites in 
Key West, Pensacola, Sanford and West Palm Beach, Florida. FPU has approval to recover, from insurance and 
from customers through rates, up to $14.0 million of its environmental costs related to its MGP sites. 
Approximately $11.3 million has been recovered as of June ·30, 20 18, leaving approximately $2.7 million in 
regulatory assets for future recovery of environmental costs from FPU's customers. 

Environmental liabilities for our MGP sites are recorded on an undiscounted basis based on the estimate of future 
costs provided by independent consultants. We continue to expect that all costs related to environmental 
remediation and related activities, including any potential future remediation costs for which we do not cunently 
have approval for regulatory recovery, will be recoverable from customers through rates. 

The following is a summary of our remediation status and estimated costs to implement clean-up of our key MGP 
sites: 
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Recovery 
Jurisdiction MGP Site Status Cost to Clean up through Rates 

Remedial actions approved by 
Between $4.5 million to 

the FDEP have been $15.4 million, including 

implemented on the east parcel 
costs associated with the 
relocation ofFPU's of the site. We expect to 
operations at this site, West Palm implement similar remedial Florida 

Beach actions on other remaining 
which is necessary to Yes 

portions, including the implement the remedial 

anticipated demolition of plan, and any potential 

buildings on the site's west 
costs associated with 

parcel in 2018. 
future redevelopment of 
the properties. 

In March 2018, the EPA 
approved a "site-wide ready for 
anticipated use" status, which 
is the final step before delisting 
a site. Construction has been 

FPU's remaining completed and restrictive 
covenants are in place to remediation expenses, 

Florida Sanford ensure protection of human including attorneys' fees Yes 

health. The only remaining and costs, are anticipated 

activity is long-term to be less than $10,000. 

groundwater monitoring. It is 
unlikely that FPU will incur 
any significant future costs 
associated with the site. 

Not expected to exceed 
$425,000, which 

Florida Winter Haven Remediation is ongoing. 
includes costs of 

Yes 
implementing 
institutional controls at 
the site. 

Proposed plan for 

Delaware Seaford 
implementation approved by Between $273,000 and 

Yes the DNREC in July 2017. Site $465,000. 
assessment is ongoing. 

Maryland Cambridge 
Currently in discussions with 

Unable to estimate. NIA the MDE. 

6. Other Commitments and Contingencies 

Natural Gas, Electric and Propane Supply 

We have entered into contractual commitments, with various expiration dates, to purchase natural gas, electricity 
and propane from various suppliers. In 2017, our Delmarva Peninsula natural gas distribution operations entered 
into asset management agreements with PESCO to manage their natural gas transportation and storage capacity. 
The agreements were effective as of April I, 2017, and each has a three-year term, expiring on March 31, 2020. 
Previously, the Delaware PSC approved PESCO to serve as an asset manager with respect to our Delaware 
Division. 
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In May 2013, Sandpiper entered into a capacity, supply and operating agreement with EGWIC to purchase 
propane over a six-year tenn ending in May 2019. Sandpiper's current annual commitment is approximately 2.2 
million gallons. Sandpiper has the option to enter into either a fixed per-gallon price for some or all of the 
propane purchases or a market-based price utilizing one of two local propane pricing indices. 

Also in May 2013, Sharp entered into a separate supply and operating agreement with EGWIC. Under this 
agreement, Sharp has a commitment to supply propane to EGWIC over a six-year tenn ending in May 2019. 
Sharp's current annual commitment is approximately 2.2 million gallons. The agreement between Sharp and 
EGWIC is separate from the agreement between Sandpiper and EGWIC, and neither agreement permits the 
parties to set off the rights and obligations specified in one agreement against those specified in the other 
agreement. 
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Chesapeake Utilities' Florida Division has firm transportation service contracts with FGT and Gulfstream. 
Pursuant to a capacity release program approved by the Florida PSC, all of the capacity under these agreements 
has been released to various third parties, including PESCO. Under the terms of these capacity release 
agreements, Chesapeake Utilities is contingently liable to FGT and Gulfstream should any party that acquired the 
capacity through release fail to pay the capacity charge. 

FPU's electric fuel supply contracts require FPU to maintain an acceptable standard of creditworthiness based on 
specific financial ratios. FPU's agreement with FPL requires FPU to meet or exceed a debt service coverage ratio 
of 1.25 times based on the results of the prior 12 months. If FPU fails to meet this ratio, it must provide an 
irrevocable letter of credit or pay all amounts outstanding under the agreement within five business days. FPU's 
electric fuel supply agreement with Gulf Power requires FPU to meet the following ratios based on the average of 
the prior six quarters: (a) funds from operations interest coverage ratio (minimum of2 times), and (b) total debt to 
total capital (maximum of 65 percent). If FPU fails to meet the requirements, it has to provide the supplier a 
written explanation of actions taken, or proposed to be taken, to become compliant. Failure to comply with the 
ratios specified in the Gulf Power agreement could also result in FPU having to provide an irrevocable letter of 
credit. As of June 30, 2018, FPU was in compliance with all of the requirements of its fuel supply contracts. 

Eight Flags provides electricity and steam generation services through its CHP plant located on Amelia Island, 
Florida. In June 2016, Eight Flags began selling power generated from the CHP plant to FPU pursuant to a 
20-year power purchase agreement for distribution to its retail electric customers. In July 2016, Eight Flags also 
started selling steam, pursuant to a separate 20-year contract, to Rayonier, the landowner on which the CHP plant 
is located. The CHP plant is powered by natural gas transported by FPU through its distribution system and 
Peninsula Pipeline through its intrastate pipeline. 

Corporate Guarantees 

We have issued corporate guarantees to certain vendors of our subsidiaries, primarily PESCO. These corporate 
guarantees provide for the payment of natural gas purchases in the event that PESCO defaults. PES CO has never 
defaulted on its obligations to pay its suppliers. The liabilities for these purchases are recorded when incurred. 
The aggregate amount guaranteed at June 30, 2018 was approximately $72.5 million, with the guarantees 
expiring on various dates through June 2019. 

Chesapeake Utilities also guarantees the payment of FPU's first mortgage bonds. The maximum exposure under 
this guarantee is the outstanding principal plus accrued interest balances. The outstanding principal balances of 
FPU's first mortgage bonds approximate their carrying values (see Note 14, Long-Term Debt, for further details). 

Letters of Credit 

As of June 30, 2018, we have issued letters of credit totaling approximately $5.0 million related to the electric 
transmission services for FPU's electric division, the firm transpmtation service agreement between TETLP and 
our Delaware and Maryland divisions, the payment of natural gas purchases for PESCO, and to our current and 
previous primary insurance carriers. These letters of credit have various expiration dates through December 2019. 
There have been no draws on these letters of credit as of June 30, 2018. We do not anticipate that the 
counterparties will draw upon these letters of credit, and we expect that the letters of credit will be renewed to the 
extent necessary in the future. 

Other 

We are involved in certain other legal actions and claims arising in the normal course of business. We are also 
involved in certain legal and administrative proceedings before various governmental agencies concerning rates. 
In the opinion of management, the ultimate disposition of these proceedings will not have a material effect on our 
consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows. 

7. Segment Information 
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We use the management approach to identifY operating segments. We organize our business around differences 
in regulatory environment and/or products or services, and the operating results of each segment are regularly 
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker (our Chief Executive Officer) in order to make decisions about 
resources and to assess performance. 

Our operations are comprised of two reportable segments: 

Regulated Energy. Includes energy distribution and transmission services (natural gas distribution, 
natural gas transmission and electric distribution operations). All operations in this segment are 
regulated, as to their rates 
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and services, by the PSC having jurisdiction in each operating territory or by the FERC in the case of 
Eastern Shore. 

Unregulated Energy. Includes energy transmission, energy generation, propane delivery, and other 
energy services (propane distribution, the operations of our Eight Flags' CHP plant, as well as natural 
gas marketing, gathering, processing, transportation and supply). These operations are unregulated as to 
their rates and services. Through March 2017, this segment also included the operations of Xeron, our 
propane and crude oil trading subsidiary that wound down its operations shortly after the first qumter of 
2017. Also included in this segment are other unregulated energy services, such as energy-related 
merchandise sales and heating, ventilation and air conditioning, plumbing and electrical services. 

The remainder of, our operations is presented as "Other businesses and eliminations", which consists of 
unregulated subsidiaries that own real estate leased to Chesapeake Utilities, as well as certain corporate costs not 
allocated to other operations. 

The following table presents financial information about our reportable segments: 

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended 

June 30, June 30, 

2018 2017 2018 2017 

(in thousands) 

Operating Revenues, Unaffiliated Customers 

Regulated Energy segment $ 67,731 $ 68,815 $ 173,685 $ 165,261 

Unregulated Energy segment and other 
businesses 68,933 56,269 202,335 144,983 

Total operating revenues, unaffiliated customers $ 136,664 $ 125,084 $ 376,020 $ 310,244 

lntersegment Revenues<'> 

Regulated Energy segment $ 2,773 $ 2,181 $ 6,212 $ 3,389 

Unregulated Energy segment 7,412 6,780 19,377 10,791 

Other businesses 194 159 387 387 

Total intersegment revenues $ 10,379 $ 9,120 $ 25,976 $ 14,567 

Operating Income 

Regulated Energy segment $ 14,304 $ 14,086 $ 41,015 $ 37,481 

Unregulated Energy segment 490 2 14,174 11,577 

Other businesses and eliminations (1,546) (27) (1,535) 102 

Total operating income 13,248 14,061 53,654 49,160 

Other expense, net (262) (1,002) (194) (1,703) 

Interest charges 3,881 3,073 7,545 5,811 

Income before Income Taxes 9,105 9,986 45,915 41,646 

Income taxes 2,718 3,940 12,674 16,456 

Net Income $ 6,387 $ 6,046 $ 33,241 $ 25,190 

t>J All significant intersegment revenues are billed at market rates and have been eliminated from consolidated operating revenues. 

December 31, 
(in thousands) June 30, 2018 2017 

Identifiable Assets 

Regulated Energy segment $ 1,199,672 $ 1,121,673 

Unregulated Energy segment 227,191 259,041 
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Other businesses and eliminations 

Total identifiable assets 

Our operations are entirely domestic. 
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36,078 34,220 

$ 1,462,941 $ 1,414,934 
===== 
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8. Stocl\holder's Equity 

Preferred Stock 

We had 2,000,000 authorized and unissued shares of preferred stock, $0.01 par value per share, as of 
June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017. Shares of preferred stock may be issued from time to time, by 
authorization of our Board of Directors and without the necessity of further action or authorization by 
stockholders, in one or more series and with such voting powers, designations, preferences and relative, 
participating, optional or other special rights and qualifications as the Board of Directors may, in its discretion, 
determine. 

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss 

Defined benefit pension and postretirement plan items, unrealized gains (losses) of our propane swap agreements, 
call options and natural gas futures contracts, designated as commodity contracts cash flow hedges, are the 
components of our accumulated other comprehensive loss. During the first quarter of 2018, we elected early 
adoption of ASU 2018-02, Reclassification of Certain Tax Effects ji·om Accumulated Other Comprehensive 
Income. Accordingly, we reclassified stranded tax effects resulting from the TCJA from accumulated other 
comprehensive loss to retained earnings, related to our employee benefit plans and commodity contracts cash 
flow hedges. 

The following tables present the changes in the balance of accumulated other comprehensive (loss)/income as of 
June 30, 2018 and 2017. All amounts except the stranded tax reclassification are presented net of tax. 

Defined Benefit Commodity 

Pension and Contracts 

Postretirement Cash Flow 

Plan Items Hedges Total 

(in thousands) 

As of December 31, 2017 $ (4,743) $ 471 $ (4,272) 

Other comprehensive loss before 
reclassifications (1,440) (1,440) 

Amounts reclassified from accumulated other 
comprehensive income 189 712 901 

Net current-period other comprehensive income/ 
(loss) 189 (728) (539) 

Stranded tax reclassification to retained 
earnings (1,022) 115 (907) 

As of June 30,2018 $ (5,576) $ (142) $ (5,718) 
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Defined Benefit Commodity 

Pension and Contracts 

Postretirement Cash Flow 

Plan Items Hedges Total 

(in thousands) 

As of December 31, 2016 $ (5,360) $ 482 $ (4,878) 
Other comprehensive (loss)/income before 
reclassifications (9) 837 828 
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other 
comprehensive income/(loss) 180 (1,374) (1, 194) 

Net prior-period other comprehensive income/(loss) 171 (537) (366) 
As ofJune 30, 2017 $ (5,189) $ (55) $ (5,244) 

The following table presents amounts reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive loss for the three and 
six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017. Deferred gains or losses for our commodity contracts cash flow 
hedges are recognized in earnings upon settlement. 

(in thousands) 

Am01tization of defmed benefit pension and 
postretirement plan items: 

Prior service credit (I) 

Net loss(Il 

Total before income taxes 

Income tax benefit 

Net of tax 

Gains and losses on commodity contracts cash flow 
hedges: 

Propane swap agreements (Z) 

Natural gas swaps <2l 

Natural gas futures <2l 

Total before income taxes 

Income tax benefit (expense) 

Net of tax 

Total reclassifications for the period 

Three Months Ended 

June 30, 

2018 2017 

$ 19 $ 20 

(149) (170) 

(130) (150) 

36 61 

$ (94) $ (89) 

$ (181) $ 77 

(31) 

(161) 631 

(373) 708 

105 (273) 

(268) 435 

$ (362) $ 346 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Six Months Ended 

June 30, 

2018 2017 

39 $ 39 

(297) (339) 

(258) (300) 

69 120 

(189) $ (180) 

(645) $ 465 

(481) 

137 1,781 

(989) 2,246 

277 (872) 

(712) 1,374 

(901) $ 1,194 

(IJ These amounts are included in the computation of net periodic costs (benefits). See Note 9, Employee Benefit Plans, for additional details. 
(l) These amounts are included in the effects of gains and losses from derivative instruments. See Note 12, Derivative Instruments, for 
additional details. 

Amortization of defined benefit pension and postretirement plan items is included in operations expense, and 
gains and losses on propane swap agreements, call options and natural gas futures contracts are included in cost 
of sales in the accompanying consolidated statements of income. The income tax benefit is included in income 
tax expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of income. 
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9. Employee Benefit Plans 

Net periodic benefit costs for our pension and post-retirement benefits plans for the three and six months ended 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 are set forth in the following tables: 

Chesapeake FPU 
Chesapeake FPU Chesapeake l'ostretirement Medical 
Pension Plan Pension Plan SERP Plan Plan 

For the Three Months Ended June 
30, 2018 2017 2018 20I7 20I8 20I7 2018 20I7 20I8 20I7 ----
(in thousands) 

Interest cost $ 98 $103 $S92 $624 $ 2I $ 22 $ 9 $ II $ I3 $ 13 

Expected return on plan assets (138) (127) (774) (700) 

Amortization of prior service credit (I9) (20) 

Amortization of net loss 88 106 I08 131 2S 22 IS 17 ---- ----
Net periodic cost (benefit)"' 48 82 (74) 55 46 44 s 8 I3 13 
Amortization of pre-merger 
regulatory asset I9I 191 2 2 ---- -- ----
Total periodic cost $ 48 $ 82 $117 $246 $ 46 $ 44 $ s $ 8 $ IS $ 15 

== == == 

Chesapeake FPU 
Chesapeake FPU Chesapeake Postretirement Medical 
Pension Plan Pension Plan SERP Plan Plan 

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 20I8 20I7 20I8 20I7 20I8 20I7 20I8 20I7 20I8 20I7 ---- ----- -----
(in thousands) 

h1terest cost $ I9S $206 $I,I84 $1,247 $ 42 $ 44 $ I9 $ 21 $ 26 $ 26 

Expected return on plan assets (276) (254) (I,S49) (1,399) 

Amortization of prior service credit (39) (39) 

Amortization of net loss I76 213 2I7 262 so 44 30 32 ---- ----- -----
Net periodic cost (benefit) 1'' 9S 165 (I48) 110 92 88 IO 14 26 26 
Amortization of pre-merger 
regulatory asset 38I 381 4 4 ---- ----- ----- --
Total periodic cost $ 9S $165 $ 233 $ 491 $ 92 $ 88 $ IO $ 14 $ 30 $ 30 

== == == 

"'As a result of our adoption of ASU 2017-07 on January I, 2018, the "other than service" cost components of net periodic costs have been 
recorded or reclassified to other income (expense), net in the condensed consolidated statements of income. 

We expect to record pension and postretirement benefit costs of approximately $913,000 for 20 18. Included in 
these costs is approximately $769,000 related to continued amortization of the FPU pension regulatory asset, 
which represents the pmtion attributable to FPU's regulated energy operations for the changes in funded status 
that occurred, but were not recognized, as part of net periodic benefit costs prior to the FPU merger in 2009. This 
was deferred as a regulatory asset by FPU prior to the merger, to be recovered through rates pursuant to a 
previous order by the Florida PSC. The unamortized balance of this regulatory asset was approximately $942,000 
and approximately $1.3 million at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively. 

Pursuant to a Florida PSC order, FPU continues to record, as a regulatory asset, a portion of the unrecognized 
pension and postretirement benefit costs related to its regulated operations after the FPU merger. The portion of 
the unrecognized pension and postretirement benefit costs related to FPU's unregulated operations and 
Chesapeake Utilities' operations is recorded to accumulated other comprehensive loss. 
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The following tables present the amounts included in the regulatory asset and accumulated other comprehensive 
loss that were recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost during the three months ended June 30, 2018 
and 2017: 

Chesapeake FPU Chesapeake FPU 
For the Three Months Ended Jnne Pension Pension Chesapeal<e Postretirement Medical 
30,2018 Plan Plan SERP Plan Plan Total 
(in thousands) 

Prior service credit $ $ $ $ (19) $ $ (19) 
Net loss 88 108 25 15 236 
Total recognized in net 
periodic benefit cost 88 108 25 {4) 217 
Recognized from accumulated 
other comprehensive loss (I) 88 21 25 (4) 130 
Recognized from regulatory 
asset 87 87 
Total $ 88 $ 108 $ 25 $ (4) $ $ 217 

Chesapeake FPU Chesapeal<e FPU 
For the Three Months Ended June Pension Pension Chesapeake Postretirement Medical 
30,2017 Plan Plan SERP Plan Plan Total 

(in thousands) 

Prior service credit $ $ $ $ (20) $ $ (20) 
Net loss 106 131 22 17 276 

Total recognized in net 
periodic benefit cost 106 131 22 (3) 256 
Recognized from accumulated 
other comprehensive loss (I) 106 25 22 (3) !50 
Recognized from regulatory 
asset 106 106 

Total $ 106 $ 131 $ 22 $ (3) $ $ 256 

Chcsapeal<e FPU Chesapeake FPU 
For the Six Months Ended June 30, Pension Pension Chesapcal<e Postretirement Medical 
2018 Plan Plan SERP Plan Plan Total 

(in thousands) 

Prior service credit $ $ $ $ (39) $ $ (39) 

Net loss 176 217 50 30 473 

Total recognized in net 
periodic benefit cost 176 217 50 (9) 434 
Recognized from accumulated 
other comprehensive loss (I) 176 41 50 (9) 258 
Recognized from regulatory 
asset 176' 176 

Total $ 176 $ 217 $ 50 $ (9) $ $ 434 
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For the Six Months Ended June 30, 
2017 

(in thousands) 

Prior service credit 

Net loss 

Total recognized in net 
periodic benefit cost 

Recognized from accumulated 
other comprehensive loss (!J 

Recognized from regulatory 
asset 

Chesapeal<e FPU 
Pension Pension Chesapeal<e 

Plan Plan SERP 

$ $ $ 

213 262 44 

213 262 44 

213 50 44 

212 
----

Chesapeake 
Postretirement 

Plan 

$ (39) $ 

32 

(7) 

(7) 

FPU 
Medical 

Plan 

Page 50 of 108 

Total 

$ (39) 

551 

512 

300 

212 
Total $ 213 $ 262 $ 44 $ (7) $ $ 512 

=== 
(>)See Note 8, Stockholder's Equity. 

During the three and six months ended June 30, 2018, we contributed approximately $126,000 and $198,000, 
respectively, to the Chesapeake Pension Plan and approximately $539,000 and $848,000, respectively, to the 
FPU Pension Plan. We expect to contribute a total of approximately $359,000 and approximately $1.5 million to 
the Chesapeake Pension Plan and FPU Pension Plan, respectively, during 2018, which represents the minimum 
annual contribution payments required. 

The Chesapeake SERF, the Chesapeake Postretirement Plan and the FPU Medical Plan are unfunded and are 
expected to be paid out of our general funds. Cash benefits paid under the Chesapeake SERF for the three and six 
months ended June 30, 2018, were approximately $38,000 and $76,000, respectively. We expect to pay total cash 
benefits of approximately $151,000 under the Chesapeake SERF in 2018. Cash benefits paid under the 
Chesapeake Postretirement Plan, primarily for medical claims for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018, 
were approximately $7,000 and $18,000, respectively. We estimate that approximately $97,000 will be paid for 
such benefits under the Chesapeake Postretirement Plan in 2018. Cash benefits paid under the FPU Medical Plan, 
primarily for medical claims for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018, were approximately $13,000 and 
$24,000, respectively. We estimate that approximately $88,000 will be paid for such benefits under the FPU 
Medical Plan in 2018. 

10. Investments 

The investment balances at June 30, 20 18 and December 31, 2017, consisted of the following: 

(in thousands) 

Rabbi trust (associated with the Deferred Compensation Plan) 

Investments in equity securities 

Total 

$ 

$ 

June 30, 
2018 

7,465 $ 

21 

7,486 

December 31, 
2017 

6,734 

22 

6,756 

We classify these investments as trading securities and report them at their fair value. For the three months ended 
June 30, 2018 and 2017, we recorded a net unrealized loss of approximately $158,000 and a net unrealized gain 
of approximately $181,000, respectively, in other expense, net in the condensed consolidated statements of 
income related to these investments. For the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, we recorded a net 
unrealized loss of approximately $113,000 and a net unrealized gain of approximately $433,000, respectively, in 
other expense, net in the condensed consolidated statements of income related to these investments. For the 
investment in the Rabbi Trust, we also have recorded an associated liability, which is included in other pension 
and benefit costs in the consolidated balance sheets and is adjusted each period for the gains and losses incurred 
by the investments in the Rabbi Trust. 
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11. Share-Based Compensation 

Our non-employee directors and key employees are granted share-based awards through our SICP. We record 
these share-based awards as compensation costs over the respective service period for which services are 
received in exchange for an award of equity or equity-based compensation. The compensation cost is based 
primarily on the fair value of the shares awarded, using the estimated fair value of each share on the date it was 
granted and the number of shares to be issued at the end of the service period. 
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The table below presents the amounts included in net income related to share-based compensation expense for the 
three and six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017: 

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended 

June 30, June 30, 

2018 2017 2018 2017 

(in thousands) 

A wards to non-employee directors $ 135 $ 136 $ 269 $ 271 
A wards to key employees 1,190 37 2,575 541 
Total compensation expense 1,325 173 2,844 812 
Less: tax benefit (363) (70) (779) (327) 
Share-based compensation amounts included in net 
income $ 962 $ 103 $ 2,065 $ 485 

Non-employee Directors 

Shares granted to non-employee directors are issued in advance of the directors' service periods and are fully 
vested as of the grant date. We record a prepaid expense equal to the fair value of the shares issued and amortize 
the expense eq~ally over a one-year service period. In May 2018, each of our non-employee directors received an 
annual retainer of792 shares of common stock under the S1CP for service as a director through the 2019 Annual 
Meeting of Stockholders. The table below presents the summary of the stock activity for awards to non-employee 
directors for the six months ended June 30, 2018: 

Weighted Average 
Number of Shares Fair Value 

Outstanding-December 31, 2017 $ 

Granted 

Vested 

Outstanding-June 30, 2018 

7,128 $ 

(7,128) $ 

75.70 

75.70 
-------
$ 

At June 30, 2018, there was approximately $450,000 of unrecognized compensation expense related to these 
awards. This expense will be recognized over the directors' remaining service periods ending April30, 2019. See 
Note I, Summary of Accounting Policies, for additional information regarding ASU 2018-07 and its impact on 
the accounting for non-employee share-based payments. -

Key Employees 

The table below presents the summary of the stock activity for awards to key employees for the six months ended 
June 30, 2018: 

Outstanding-December 31, 2017 

Granted 

Vested 

Vested- Accelerated pursuant to separation agreement<1J 

Expired 

Outstanding-June 30,2018 

('>Includes 2,569 shares that were forfeited. 

Number of Shares 

132,642 

49,494 

(29,786) 

(16,676) 

(3,933) 

131,741 

Weighted Average 
Fair Value 

$ 59.31 

$ 67.76 

$ 47.39 

$ 75.78 

$ 49.66 

$ 67.46 
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In February 2018, our Board of Directors granted awards of 49,494 shares of common stock to key employees 
under the SICP. The shares granted are multi-year awards that will vest at the end of the three-year service period 
ending December 31, 2020. All of these stock awards are earned based upon the successful achievement of long­
term financial results, which comprise market-based and performance-based conditions or targets. The fair value 
of each performance-
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based condition or target is equal to the market price of our common stock on the grant date of each award. For 
the market-based conditions, we used the Black-Scholes pricing model to estimate the fair value of each market­
based award granted. 

In March 2018, upon the election of certain of our executive officers, we withheld shares with a value at least 
equivalent to each such executive officer's minimum statutory obligation for applicable income and other 
employment taxes related to shares that we awarded for the performance period ended December 31, 2017, 
remitted the cash to the appropriate taxing authorities, and paid the balance of such awarded shares to each such 
executive officer. We withheld 10,436 shares, based on the value ofthe shares on their award date, determined by 
the average of the high and low prices of our common stock. Total combined payments for the employees' tax 
obligations to the taxing authorities were approximately $719,000. 

In June 2018, the Company and a fanner executive officer entered into a separation agreement and release (the 
"Separation Agreement"). Pursuant to the Separation Agreement, three awards, representing a total of 14, I 07 
shares of common stock previously granted to the executive officer under the SICP, immediately vested at the 
time of separation, and an additional 2,569 shares were forfeited. We settled the awards that vested in cash and 
recognized $1.1 million as share-based compensation expense. 

At June 30, 2018, the aggregate intrinsic value of the SICP awards granted to key employees was approximately 
$10.5 million. At June 30, 2018, there was approximately $3.2 million of unrecognized compensation cost related 
to these awards, which is expected to be recognized from 2018 through 2020. 

Stock Options 

We did not have any stock options outstanding at June 30, 2018 or 2017, nor were any stock options issued 
during these periods. 

12. Derivative Instruments 

We use derivative and non-derivative contracts to engage in trading activities and manage risks related to 
obtaining adequate supplies and the price fluctuations of natural gas, electricity and propane. Our natural gas, 
electric and propane distribution operations have entered into agreements with suppliers to purchase natural gas, 
electricity and propane for resale to our customers. Aspire Energy has entered into contracts with producers to 
secure natural g"s to meet its obligations. Purchases under these contracts typically either do not meet the 
definition of derivatives or are considered "nmmal purchases and nmmal sales" and are accounted for on an 
accrual basis. Our propane distribution and natural gas marketing operations may also enter into fair value hedges 
of their inventory or cash flow hedges of their future purchase commitments in order to mitigate the impact of 
wholesale price fluctuations. As of June 30,2018, our natural gas and electric distribution operations did not have 
any outstanding derivative contracts. 

Hedging Activities in 2018 

PESCO enters into natural gas futures contracts associated with the purchase and sale of natural gas to specific 
customers. These contracts are effective through March 2022, and we designate and account for them as cash 
flow hedges. There is no ineffective portion ofthese hedges. At June 30, 2018, PESCO had a total of 16.9 million 
Dts hedged under natural gas futures contracts, with a liability fair value of approximately $779,000. The change 
in fair value of the natural gas futures contracts is recorded as unrealized gain (loss) in other comprehensive 
income (loss). 

In June 2018, Sharp entered into futures and swap agreements to mitigate the risk of fluctuations in wholesale 
propane index prices associated with 1.4 million gallons of propane expected to be purchased from August 2018 
through June 2021. Under the futures and swap agreements, Sharp will receive the difference between the index 
prices (Mont Belvieu prices in August 2018 through June 2021) and the swap prices of $0.76 to $0.875 per 
gallon, to the extent the index price exceeds the contracted prices. If the index prices are lower than the swap 
prices, Sharp will pay the difference. At June 30, 2018, the futures and swap agreements had a fair value asset of 
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approximately $18,000 and a fair value liability of $3 0,000. The change in the fair value of the swap agreements 
is recorded as unrealized gain (loss) in other comprehensive income (loss). 

Hedging Activities in 2017 

In 2017, Sharp entered into futures and swap agreements to mitigate the risk of fluctuations in wholesale propane 
index prices associated with 7. 7 million gallons of propane expected to be purchased from October 2017 through 
March 2019, of which positions covering 1.4 million gallons of forecasted future purchases were outstanding as 
of June 30, 2018. Under the futures and swap agreements, Sharp will receive the difference between the index 
prices (Mont Belvieu prices in October 2017 through March 20 19) and the swap prices of $0.59 per gallon, to the 
extent the index price exceeds the contracted price. If the index prices are lower than the swap prices, Sharp will 
pay the difference. Sharp received 
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approximately $645,000, which represented the difference between the index prices and the contracted prices in 
2018 related to hedging activities originated in 2017 and received $11,000, which represented the mark-to-market 
activities for the three months ended June 30,2018. At June 30, 2018, the futures and swap agreements had a fair 

·value asset of approximately $306,000. The change in the fair value of the swap agreements is recorded as 
unrealized gain (loss) in other comprehensive income (loss). 

In August 2017, PES CO entered into natural gas swap agreements associated with financial contracts acquired in 
the ARM acquisition to mitigate the risk of fluctuations in wholesale natural gas prices associated with 844,000 
Dts of natural gas PESCO expects to purchase through January 2020. We accounted for these swap agreements as 
cash flow hedges, which have a fair value liability of approximately $120,000 at June 30, 2018. The change in 
fair value of the natural gas swap agreements is recorded as unrealized gain (loss) in other comprehensive income 
(loss). 

The impact of PESCO's financial instruments that were not designated as hedges in our consolidated financial 
statements as of June 30, 2018 was a fair value asset of $90,000 and fair value liability of $77,000, respectively, 
which was recorded as an increase in gas costs during the six months ended June 30, 2018 associated with 1.1 
million and 512,500 Dts ofnatmal gas, respectively. 

Balance Sheet Offsetting 

PESCO has entered into master netting agreements with counterparties that enable it to net the counterparties' 
outstanding accounts receivable and payable, which are presented on a net basis in the consolidated balance 
sheets. The following table summarizes the accounts receivable and payable on a gross and net basis at June 30, 
2018 and December 31, 2017: 

At June 30, 2018 

(in thousands) Gross amounts Amounts offset Net amounts 

Accounts receivable $ 5,723 $ 1,288 $ 4,435 

Accounts payable $ 10,326 $ 1,288 $ 9,038 

At December 31,2017 

(in thousands) Gross amounts Amounts offset Net amounts 

Accounts receivable $ 8,283 $ 2,391 $ 5,892 

Accounts payable $ 16,643 $ 2,391 $ 14,252 

The following tables present information about the fair value and related gains and losses of our derivative 
contracts. We did not have any derivative contracts with a credit risk-related contingency. 

The fair values of the derivative contracts recorded in the condensed consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 
2018 and December 31, 2017, are as follows: 

(in thousands) 

Derivatives not designated as hedging 
instruments 

Propane swap agreements 

Natural gas futures contracts 

Derivatives designated as cash flow . 
hedges 

Natural gas futures contracts 

Asset Derivatives 

Fair Value As Of 

December 31, 
BaJa nee Sheet Location June30,2018 2017 

Derivative assets, at fair 
value 

Derivative assets, at fair 
value 

$ 

90 

120 

$ 13 

92 
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Propane swap agreements 

Total asset derivatives 

Derivative assets, at fair 
value 

Derivative assets, at fair 
value 

-28 

$ 
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324 1,181 

534 $ 1,286 
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(l) 

(in thousands) 

Derivatives not designated as hedging 
instruments 

Natural gas futures contracts 

Derivatives designated as cash flow 
hedges 

Natural gas futures contracts 

Natural gas swap contracts 

Propane swap agreements 

Total liability derivatives 

Liability Derivatives 

Fair Value As Of 

December 31, 
Balance Sheet Location June 30,2018 2017 

Derivative liabilities, at fair 
value 

Derivative liabilities, at fair 
value 

Derivative liabilities, at fair 
value 

Derivative liabilities, at fair 
value 

$ 

$ 

77 $ 5,776 

779 469 

2 

30 

886 $ 6,247 

The effects of gains and losses from derivative instruments on the condensed consolidated financial statements 
are as follows: 

(in thousands) 

Derivatives not designated as hedging 
instruments 

Realized gain on forward contracts 
and options (I) 

Natural gas futures contracts 

Propane swap agreements 

Derivatives designated as fair value 
hedges 

Put /Call option (z) 

Derivatives designated as cash flow 
hedges 

Propane swap agreements 

Propane swap agreements 

Natural gas futures contracts 

Natural gas swap contracts 

Natural gas swap contracts 

Natural gas futures contracts 

Total 

Location of Gain 

(Loss) on Derivatives 

Revenue 

Cost of sales 

Cost of sales 

Cost of sales 

Cost of sales 

Other 
comprehensive loss 

Cost of sales 

Cost of sales 

Other 
comprehensive 

mcome 

Other 
comprehensive loss 

Amount of Gain (Loss) on Derivatives: 

For the Three For the Six Months 
Months Ended June 

30, 

2018 2017 

$ $ 

(128) 497 

(4) 

(181) 77 

106 (218) 

(161) 631 

(31) 

523 

861 (1 ,211) 

$ 985 $ (224) 

Ended June 30, 

$ 

2018 

(2,963) 

{13) 

(645) 

(886) 

137 

(481) 

588 

(871) 

$(5,134) 

2017 

$ 112 

621 

{4) 

(9) 

465 

(775) 

1,781 

(124) 

$2,067 

All of the realized and unrealized gain (loss) on forward contracts represents the effect of trading activities on our condensed consolidated 
statements of income. 
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As a fair value hedge with no ineffective portion, the unrealized gains and losses associated with this call option are recorded in cost of 
sales, offset by the corresponding change in the value of propane inventory (hedged item), which is also recorded in cost of sales. The 
amounts in cost of sales offset to zero, and the unrealized gains and losses of this put option effectively changed the value of propane 
inventory on the condensed consolidated balance sheets. 

13. Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

GAAP establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation methods used to measure fair 
value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities (Level I measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The 
three levels of the fair value hierarchy are the following: 

Level I: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for 
identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities; 
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Level 2: Quoted prices in markets that are not active, or inputs which are observable, either directly or 
indirectly, for substantially the full term of the asset or liability; and 

Level 3: Prices or valuation techniques requiring inputs that are both significant to the fair value 
measurement and unobservable (i.e. supported by little or no market activity). 

Financial Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value 

The following table summarizes our financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recuiTing 
basis and the fair value measurements, by level, within the fair value hierarchy as of June 30, 2018 and 
December 31, 2017: 

As of June 30, 2018 

(in thousands) 

Assets: 

Investments-equity securities 

Investments-guaranteed income fund 

Investments-mutual funds and other 

Total investments 

Derivative assets 

Total assets 

Liabilities: 

Derivative liabilities 

As of December 31,2017 

(in thousands) 

Assets: 

Investments-equity securities 

Investments-guaranteed income fund 

Investments-mutual funds and other 

Total investments 

Derivative assets 

Total assets 

Liabilities: 

Derivative liabilities 

Fair Value Measurements Using: 

Significant Other Significant 
Quoted Prices in Observable Unobservable 
Active Markets Inputs Inputs 

Fair Value (Levell) (Leve12) (Level3) 

$ 21 $ 21 $ $ 

671 671 

6,794 6,794 

7,486 6,815 671 

534 534 

$ 8,020 $ 6,815 $ 534 $ 671 

$ 886 $ - $ 886 $ 

Fair Value Measurements Using: 

Significant Other Significant 
Quoted Prices in Observable Unobservable 
Active Markets Inputs Inputs 

Fair Value (Levell) (Level2) (Leve13) 

$ 22 $ 22 $ $ 

648 648 

6,086 6,086 

6,756 6,108 648 

1,286 1,286 

$ 8,042 $ 6,108 $ 1,286 $ 648 

$ 6,247 $ - $ 6,247 $ 

The following valuation techniques were used to measure the fair value of assets and liabilities in the tables 
above: 

Levell Fair Value Measurements: 

Investments - equity securities - The fair values of these trading securities are recorded at fair value based on 
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical securities. 
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Investments - mutual funds and other - The fair values of these investments, comprised of money market and 
mutual funds, are recorded at fair value based on quoted net asset values of the shares. 
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Level2 Fair Value Measurements: 

Derivative assets and liabilities- The fair values of forward contracts are measured using market transactions in 
either the listed or OTC markets. The fair value of the propane put/call options, swap agreements and natural gas 
futures contracts are measured using market transactions for similar assets and liabilities in either the listed or 
OTC markets. 

Level3 Fair Value Measurements: 

Investments - guaranteed income fund- The fair values of these investments are recorded at the contract value, 
which approximates their fair value. 

The following table sets forth the summary of the changes in the fair value ofLevel3 investments for the six 
months ended June 30,2018 and 2017: 

Six Months Ended 
June 30, 

2018 2017 

(in thousands) 

Beginning Balance $ 648 $ 561 

Purchases and adjustments 54 65 

Transfers (24) 

Distribution (12) 

Investment income 5 4 

Ending Balance $ 671 $ 630 

Investment income from the Level 3 investments is reflected in other expense, (net) in the accompanying 
condensed consolidated statements of income. 

At June 30, 2018, there were no non-financial assets or liabilities required to be reported at fair value. We review 
our non-financial assets for impairment at least on an annual basis, as required. 

Other Financial Assets am/ Liabilities 

Financial assets with carrying values approximating fair value include cash and cash equivalents and accounts 
receivable. Financial liabilities with carrying values approximating fair value include accounts payable and other 
accrued liabilities and short-term debt. The fair value of cash and cash equivalents is measured using the 
comparable value in the active market and approximates its carrying value (Level 1 measurement). The fair value 
of short-term debt approximates the caJTying value due to its short maturities and because interest rates 
approximate cuJTent market rates (Level 3 measurement). At June 30, 2018, long-term debt, including cunent 
maturities but excluding a capital lease obligation, had a carrying value of approximately $250.7 million. This 
compares to a fair value of approximately $250.3 million, using a discounted cash flow methodology that 
incorporates a market interest rate based on published corporate bonowing rates for debt instruments with similar 
terms and average maturities, and with adjustments for duration, optionality, and risk profile. At December 31, 
2017, long-term debt, including the current maturities but excluding a capital lease obligation, had a carrying 
value of approximately $205.2 million, compared to the estimated fair value of approximately $215.4 million. 
The valuation technique used to estimate the fair value of long-term debt would be considered a Level 3 
measurement. 
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14. Long-Term Debt 

Our outstanding long-term debt is shown below: 

June 30, December 31, 

(in thousands) 2018 2017 

FPU secured first mortgage bonds (IJ: 

9.08% bond, due June 1, 2022 $ 7,984 $ 7,982 
Uncollateralized senior notes: 

5.50% note, due October 12, 2020 6,000 6,000 
5.93% note, due October 31, 2023 16,500 18,000 
5.68% note, due June 30, 2026 23,200 26,100 
6.43% note, due May 2, 2028 7,000 7,000 
3.73% note, due December 16, 2028 20,000 20,000 
3.88% note, due May 15, 2029 50,000 50,000 
3.25% note, due April 30, 2032 70,000 70,000 

3.48% note, due May 31, 2038 50,000 

Promissory notes 26 97 
Capital lease obligation 1,351 2,070 

Less: debt issuance costs (488) (433) 

Total long-term debt 251,573 206,816 

Less: current maturities (9,977) (9,421) 

Total long-term debt, net of current maturities $ 241,596 $ 197,395 
OJ FPU secured first mortgage bonds are guaranteed by Chesapeake Utilities. 

In January 2018, we bmTowed an additional $25.0 million under the Revolver, which we classified as long-term 
debt due to the stated maturity date of October 8, 2020. In May 2018, we utilized a portion of the proceeds from 
the issuance of $50.0 million of 3.48% Series A notes to repay the $25.0 million of long-term debt bmTowed 
under the Revolver. For additional information regarding the issuance of the Series A notes, see "Shelf 
Agreements" below. 

Shelf Agreements 

In October 2015, we entered into the $150.0 million Prudential Shelf Agreement, under which we may request 
that Prudential purchase up to $150.0 million of our unsecured senior debt. As of June 30, 2018, we have issued 
$70.0 million of 3.25% Prudential ShelfNotes. 

In March 2017, we entered into the MetLife Shelf Agreement and the NYL Shelf Agreement, under which we 
may request that MetLife and NYL, through March 2, 2020, purchase up to $150.0 million of Met Life Shelf 
Notes and $100.0 million NYL Shelf Notes, respectively. The unsecured senior debt would have a fixed interest 
rate and a maturity date not to exceed 20 years from the date of issuance. MetLife and NYL are under no 
obligation to purchase any unsecured senior debt. The interest rate and terms of payment of any series of 
unsecured senior debt will be determined at the time of purchase. 

In November 2017, NYL agreed to purchase $50.0 million of 3.48% Series A notes and $50.0 million of 3.58% 
Series B notes. The Series A notes were issued in May 2018 and the Series B notes will be issued on or before 
November 20, 2018. The proceeds received from the issuances of these NYL Shelf Notes will be used to reduce 
borrowings under the Revolver and/or lines of credit and/or to fund capital expenditures. The NYL Shelf 
Agreement has been fully utilized. 

As of June 30, 2018, we have $230.0 million of additional potential borrowing capacity under the Prudential and 
MetLife Shelf Agreements. The Prudential Shelf Agreement and the NYL Shelf Agreement set forth certain 
business covenants to which we are subject when any note is outstanding, including covenants that limit or 
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restrict our ability, and the ability of our subsidiaries, to incur indebtedness, or place or permit liens and 
encumbrances on any of our property or the propetty of our subsidiaries. , 
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Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations is designed to provide a reader 
of the financial statements with a narrative report on our financial condition, results of operations and liquidity. This 
discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the attached unaudited condensed consolidated financial 
statements and notes thereto and our Annual Repott on Form 1 0-K for the year ended December 31, 2017, including the 
audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto. 

Safe Harbor for Forward-Looking Statements 

We make statements in this Quarterly Report on Form I 0-Q that do not directly or exclusively relate to historical facts. 
Such statements are "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 
1995. One can typically identify forward-looking statements by the use of forward-looking words, such as "project," 
"believe," "expect," "anticipate," "intend," "plan," "estimate," "continue," "potential," "forecast" or other similar words, 
or future or conditional verbs such as "may," "will," "should," "would" or "could." These statements represent our 
intentions, plans, expectations, assumptions and beliefs about future financial performance, business strategy, projected 
plans and objectives ofthe Company. Forward-looking statements speak only as ofthe date they are made or as of the date 
indicated and we do not undertake any obligation to update forward-looking statements as a result of new information, 
future events or otherwise. These statements are subject to many risks, uncertainties and other impottant factors that could 
cause actual future results to differ materially from those expressed in the forward-looking statements. In addition to the 
risk factors described under Item lA, Risk Factors in our 2017 Annual Report on Form 1 0-K, such factors include, but are 
not limited to: 

state and federal legislative and regulatory initiatives (including deregulation) that affect cost and investment 
recove1y, have an impact on rate structures, and affect the speed and the degree to which competition enters the 
electric and natural gas industries; 
the outcomes of regulatory, tax, environmental and legal matters, including whether pending matters are resolved 
within current estimates and whether the costs associated with such matters are adequately covered by insurance or 
recoverable in rates; 
the impact of significant changes to current tax regulations and rates; 
the timing of ce1tification authorizations associated with new capital projects; 
the ability to construct facilities at or below estimated costs; 
changes in environmental and other laws and regulations to which we are subject and environmental conditions of 
property that we now, or may in the future, own or operate; 
possible increased federal, state and local regulation of the safety of our operations; 
general economic conditions, including any potential effects arising from terrorist attacks and any hostilities or 
other external factors over which we have no control; 
long-term global climate change, which could adversely affect customer demand or cause extreme weather 
conditions that disrupt the Company's operations; 
the weather and other natural phenomena, including the economic, operational and other effects of hurricanes, ice 
storms and other damaging weather events; 
customers' prefeJTed energy sources; 
industrial, commercial and residential growth or contraction in our markets or service territories; 
the effect of competition on our businesses; 
the timing and extent of changes in commodity prices and interest rates; 
the ability to establish new, and maintain key, supply sources; 
the effect of spot, forward and future market prices on our various energy businesses; 
the extent of our success in connecting natural gas and electric supplies to transmission systems and in expanding 
natural gas and electric markets; 
the creditworthiness of counterparties with which we are engaged in transactions; 
the capital-intensive nature of our regulated energy businesses; 
the results of financing efforts, including our ability to obtain financing on favorable terms, which can be affected 
by various factors, including credit ratings and general economic conditions; 
the ability to successfully execute, manage and integrate merger, acquisition or divestiture plans; regulatory or 
other limitations imposed as a result of a merger, acquisition or divestiture; and the success of the business 
following a merger, acquisition or divestiture; 
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the impact on our costs and funding obligations, under our pension and other post-retirement benefit plans, of 
potential downturns in the financial markets, lower discount rates, and costs associated with the Patient Protection 
and Affordable Care Act; 
the ability to continue to hire, train and retain appropriately qualifted personnel; 
the effect of accounting pronouncements issued periodically by accounting standard-setting bodies; 
the timing and success of technological improvements; and 
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risks related to cyber-attacks or cyber-terrorism that could disrupt our business operations or result in failure of 
information technology systems. 

Introduction 

We are a diversified energy company engaged, directly or through our operating divisions and subsidiaries, in regulated 
and unregulated energy businesses. These businesses center around energy distribution, energy transmission, energy 
generation, propane delivery and other energy services. 

Our strategy is focused on growing earnings from a stable utility foundation and investing in related businesses and 
services that provide oppmtunities for returns greater than traditional utility returns. We are focused on identifying and 
developing opportunities across the energy value chain, with emphasis on midstream and downstream investments that are 
accretive to eamings per share and consistent with our long-term growth strategy. 

The key elements ofthis strategy include: 

executing a capital investment program in pursuit of growth opportunities that generate retums equal to or 
greater than our cost of capital; 
expanding our energy distribution and transmission businesses organically as well as into new geographic areas; 
providing new services in our cutTent service tetTitories; 
expanding our footprint in potential growth markets through strategic acquisitions; 
entering new unregulated energy markets and business lines that will complement our existing operating units 
and growth strategy while capitalizing on opportunities across the energy value chain; and 
differentiating the Company as a full-service energy supplier/partner/provider through a customer-centric 
model. 

Due to the seasonality of our business, results for interim periods are not necessarily indicative of results for the entire 
fiscal year. Revenue and earnings are typically greater during the first and fourth quarters, when consumption of energy is 
normally highest due to colder temperatures. 

The following discussions and those later in the document on operating income and segment results include the use of the 
term "gross margin," which is determined by deducting the cost of sales ji'om operating revenue. Cost of sales includes 
the purchased cost of natural gas, electricity and propane and the cost of labor spent on direct revenue-producing 
activities, and excludes depreciation, amortization and accretion. Gross margin should not be considered an alternative to 
operating income or net income, which are determined in accordance with GAAP. We believe that gross margin, although 
a non-GAAP measure, is usefitl and meaning/it! to investors as a basis for making investment decisions. It provides 
investors with information that demonstrates the profitability achieved by us under our allowed rates for regulated energy 
operations and under our competitive pricing structures for unregulated energy operations. Our management uses gross 
margin in measuring our business units' performance and has historically analyzed and reported gross margin 
information publicly. Other companies may calculate gross margin in a different manner. 

Unless otherwise noted, earnings per share information is presented on a diluted basis. 
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Results of Operations for the Three and Six Months ended June 30, 2018 

Overview 

Page 68 of 108 

Chesapeake Utilities is a Delaware corporation formed in 1947. We are a diversified energy company engaged, through 
our operating divisions and subsidiaries, in regulated energy, unregulated energy and other businesses. We operate 
primarily on the Delmarva Peninsula and in Florida, Pennsylvania and Ohio and provide services centered on energy 
distribution, energy transmission, energy generation, propane delivery and other energy services. These services include: 
natural gas distribution, transmission, supply, gathering, processing and marketing; electric distribution and generation; 
propane distribution; steam generation; and other energy-related services. 

Operational Highlights 

Our net income for the quarter ended June 30, 2018 was $6.4 million, or $0.39 per share. This represents an increase of 
$341,000, or $0.02 per share, compared to net income of $6.0 million, or $0.37 per share, reported for the same quarter in 
2017. Operating income decreased by $813,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2018, compared to the same period in 
the prior year, as margin increased by $6.9 million, or 11.3 percent, but was offset by a $1.0 million increase in 
depreciation, amortization and property taxes and a $6.6 million increase in other operating expenses. The decrease in 
operating income primarily reflected the impact of the TCJA on margins generated by our regulated energy businesses. 
During the second quarter, we refunded or reserved for future refunds $2.3 million in margin, which represents a pass­
through to regulated energy customers of the $2.3 million benefit from lower Federal income taxes during the quarter. 
Excluding the estimated customer refunds reserved or refunded during the second quarter of 2018 associated with the 
TCJA, gross margin and operating income increased by $9.1 million, or 15.1 percent, and $1.5 million, or 10.5 percent, 
respectively, compared to the same period in the prior year. The decrease in the Federal income tax rate positively 
impacted earnings in our unregulated) energy businesses. 

(in thousands except per share) 

Business Segment: 

Regulated Energy segment 

Unregulated Energy segment 

Other businesses and eliminations 

Operating Income 

Other expense, net 

Interest charges 

Pre-tax Income 

Income taxes 

Net Income 

Earnings Per Share of Common Stock 

Basic 

Diluted 
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Three Months Ended 

June 30, 

2018 2017 

$ 14,304 $ 14,086 

490 2 

(1,546) (27) 

$ 13,248 $ 14,061 

(262) (1,002) 

3,881 3,073 

9,105 9,986 

2,718 3,940 

$ 6,387 $ 6,046 

Increase 

(decrease) 

$ 218 

488 

(1,519) 

$ (813) 

$ 

740 

808 

(881) 

(1,222) 

341 

$ 

$ 

0.39 $ 0.37 $ 

0.39 $ 0.37 $ 

0.02 

0.02 
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Key variances, between the second quarter of 2018 and the second quarter of 2017, included: 

Pre-tax Net Earnings 
(in thousands, except per share data) Income Income Per Share 

Second Quarter of 2017 Reported Results $ 9,986 $ 6,046 $ 0.37 

Adjusting for unusual items: 

One-time separation expenses associated with a former executive (1,548) (1,421) (0.09) 

Absence of Xeron expenses, including 2017 wind-down expenses 173 122 0.01 

(1,375) (1,299) (0.08) 

Increased Gross Margins: 

Implementation of Eastern Shore settled rates* <'l 2,365 1,659 0.10 

TCJA impact- refunds and reserves for future refunds to ratepayers<2l (2,284) (1,602) (0.10) 

Service expansions* 1,652 1,158 0.07 

Natural gas growth (including customer and consumption growth but 
excluding service expansions) 1,575 1,105 0.07 

Return to normal weather 1,108 778 0.05 

Nonrecurring margin increase at PESCO 1,092 766 0.05 

Incremental margin from PESCO operations 592 415 0.03 

Unregulated Energy growth excluding PESCO 503 353 0.02 

Florida electric reliability/modernization program* 352 247 0.02 

GRIP* 306 215 0.01 

7,261 5,094 0.32 

Decreased (Increased) Other Operating Expenses: 

Higher outside services and facilities maintenance costs <3> (1,602) (1,124) (0.07) 

Higher payroll expense (increased staffing and annual salary increases) <3> (I ,534) (1,076) (0.07) 

Higher depreciation, asset removal and property tax costs due to new 
capital investments <3> (848) (595) (0.04) 

Higher incentive compensation costs (based on period-over-period 
results) <3> (811) (569) (0.03) 

Incremental operating expenses for PESCO (764) (536) (0.03) 

Higher benefit and other employee-related expenses <3> (365) (256) (0.02) 

(5,924) (4,156) (0.26) 

Interest charges (808) (567) (0.03) 

Income taxes - including TCJA impact - decreased effective tax rate 1,295 0.08 

Net other changes (35) (26) (0.01) 

(843) 702 0.04 

Second Quarter of2018 Reported Results $ 9,105 $ 6,387 $ 0.39 
111 Excluding amounts refunded to customers associated with the TCJA, which are broken out separately and discussed in footnote 2. 
121 "TCJA impact- refunds and reserves for future refunds to ratepayers" represents the amounts that have already been refunded to 

customers or reserves established for future refunds to customers in the second quarter of 2018 as a result of lower taxes due to the 
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TCJA. Refunds made to customers are offset by the corresponding decrease in federal income taxes and are expected to have no net 
impact on net income. 

tJ> Excluding incremental operating expenses at PESCO. 

*See the Major Projects and Initiatives table. 
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Our net income for the six months ended June 30,2018 was $33.2 million, or $2.03 per share. This represents an increase 
of $8.0 million, or $0.49 per share, compared to net income of $25.2 million, or $1.54 per share, reported for the same 
period in 2017. Operating income increased by $4.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018, compared to the same 
period in the prior year. This increase was driven by a $14.0 million, or 9.7 percent, increase in gross margin, which was 
partially offset by a $2.2 million increase in depreciation, amortization and property taxes and a $5.7 million increase in 
other operating expenses. Excluding the estimated customer refunds reserved or refunded to customers for the six months 
ended June 30, 2018 associated with the TCJA, gross margin and operating income increased by $19.4 million, or 13.4 
percent, and $9.9 million, or 20.2 percent, respectively, compared to the same period in the prior year. The decrease in the 
Federal income tax rate positively impacted earnings in our unregulated energy businesses. 

Six Months Ended 

June 30, Increase 

2018 2017 (decrease) 

(in thousands except per share) 

Business Segment: 

Regulated Energy segment $ 41,015 $ 37,481 $ 3,534 

Unregulated Energy segment 14,174 11,577 2,597 

Other businesses and eliminations (1,535) 102 (1,637) 

Operating Income $ 53,654 $ 49,160 $ 4,494 

Other expense, net (194) (1,703) 1,509 

Interest charges 7,545 5,811 1,734 

Pre-tax Income 45,915 41,646 4,269 

Income taxes 12,674 16,456 (3,782) 

Net Income $ 33,241 $ 25,190 $ 8,051 

Earnings Per Share of Common Stocl{ 

Basic $ 2.03 $ 1.54 $ 0.49 

Diluted $ 2.03 $ 1.54 $ 0.49 
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Key variances, between the six months ended 2018 and the six months ended 2017, included: 

Pre-tax Net Earnings 
(in thousands, except per share data) Income Income Per Share 

Six Months Ended June 30,2017 Reported Results $ 41,646 $ 25,190 $ 1.54 

Adjusting for unusual items: 

One-time separation expenses associated with a former executive (I ,548) (1,421) (0.09) 
Absence of Xeron expenses, including 2017 wind-down expenses 870 630 0.04 

(678) (791) (0.05) 

Increased Gross Margins: 

TCJA impact- refunds and reserves for future refunds to ratepayers<2l (5,421) (3,925) (0.24) 
Return to nonnal weather 5,159 3,735 0.23 
Implementation of Eastern Shore settled rates* (J) 5,095 3,689 0.22 
Natural gas growth (including customer and consumption growth but 
excluding service expansions) 3,342 2,420 0.15 
Service expansions* 2,316 1,677 0.10 
Unregulated Energy growth excluding PESCO 2,044 1,480 0.09 
NonrecuiTing margin decrease at PESCO (863) (625) (0.04) 

Florida electric reliability/modernization program* 767 555 O.Q3 

GRIP* 602 436 0.03 

Incremental margin from PESCO operations 255 185 0.01 

13,296 9,627 0.58 

Decreased (Increased) Other Operating Expenses: 

Higher payroll expense (increased staffing and annual salary increases) <3) (2,395) (1,734) (0.11) 

Higher depreciation, asset removal and property tax costs due to new 
capital investments <3l (1,949) (I ,411) (0.09) 

Incremental operating expenses for PESCO (1,715) (1,242) (0.08) 

Higher facilities maintenance costs <3l (1 ,554) (1, 125) (0.07) 

Lower regulatory and outside services costs <3l 1,298 940 0.06 

Higher incentive compensation costs (based on period-over-period 
results) <3l (1,187) (859) (0.05) 

(7,502) (5,431) (0.34) 

Interest charges (1,734) (1,255) (0.08) 

Income taxes - including TCJA impact - decreased effective tax rate 5,262 0.32 

Net other changes 887 639 0.06 

(847) 4,646 0.30 

Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 Reported Results $ 45,915 $ 33,241 $ 2.03 
11 l Excluding amounts refunded to customers associated with the TCJA, which are broken out separately and discussed in footnote 2. 
12l "TCJA impact - refunds and reserves for future refunds to ratepayers" represents amounts that have already been refunded to 

customers or reserves established for future refunds to customers in the first six months of2018 as a result of lower taxes due to the 
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TCJA. Refunds made to customers are offset by the corresponding decrease in federal income taxes and are expected to have no net 
impact on net income. 

<J>Excluding incremental operating expenses at PESCO. 

•see the Major Projects and Initiatives table. 

- 38 

https://www.sec.gov/ Archives/edgar/data/19745/000 16282801801 0892/cpk063020 1810-... 10/18/2018 



Document Page 74 of 108 

Table of Contents 

Summary of Key Factors 

Recently Completed am/ Ongoing Major Projects and Initiatives 
We constantly seek and develop additional projects and initiatives in order to increase shareholder value and serve our 
customers. The following table represents the major projects recently completed and currently underway. In the future, we 
will add new projects to this table as projects are initiated. 

Gross Margin for the Period 

Three Months 
Ended Six Months Ended Year Ended Estimate for 

June 30, June 30, December 31, Fiscal 
in thousands 2018 2017 2018 2017 2017 2018 2019 

Florida GRIP $ 3,647 $ 3,341 $ 7,211 $6,609 $ 13,454 $ 14,287 $ 14,370 

Eastern Shore Rate Case (I> 2,365 5,095 3,693 9,800 9,800 

Florida Electric 
Reliability/Modernization Pilot Program 

352 767 94 1,558 1,558 (I) 

New Smyrna Beach, Florida Project(>> 352 704 235 1,409 1,409 

2017 Eastern Shore System Expansion 
Project- including interim services (ll 859 1,995 433 8,101 15,799 

Northwest Florida Expansion Project (ll 870 870 3,484 6,500 

(Palm Beach County) Belvedere, Florida 
Project 01 635 1,131 

Total $ 8,445 $ 3,341 $ 16,642 $6,609 $ 17,909 $39,274 $ 50,567 

'' 1 Gross margin amount included in this table has not been adjusted to reflect the impact of the TCJA. The refunds and rate reductions implemented have 
been or will be offset by lower federal income taxes due to the TCJA. 

Ongoing Growth Initiatives 

GRIP 

GRIP is a natural gas pipe replacement program approved by the Florida PSC that allows automatic recovery, through 
regulated rates, of capital and other program-related costs, inclusive of a return on investment, associated with the 
replacement of mains and services. Since the program's inception in August 2012, we have invested $120.1 million to 
replace 250 miles of qualifying distribution mains, including $6.4 million during the first six months of 2018. The 
increased investments in GRIP generated additional gross margin of $306,000 and $602,000 for the three and six months 
ended June 30,2018, respectively, compared to the same periods in 2017. 

Regulatory Proceedings 

Eastern Shore Rate Case 
Eastern Shore's rate case settlement agreement became final on April I, 2018. The final agreement increases Eastern 
Shore's operating income by $6.6 million, which consists of $9.8 million in additional margin from base rates offset by 
$3.2 million in lower Federal income taxes resulting from the TCJA. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2018, 
Eastern Shore recognized incremental gross margin of approximately $2.4 million and $5.1 million, respectively. As of 
June 30,2018, Eastern Shore refunded its customers a total of$1.7 million related to the decrease in federal income taxes 
as a result of the TCJA. The settlement rates were effective January 1, 2018. 

Florida Electric Reliability/Modernization Pilot Program 
In December 2017, the Florida PSC approved a $1.6 million annualized rate increase, effective January 2018, for the 
recovery of a limited number of investments and costs related to reliability, safety and modernization for FPU's electric 
distribution system. This increase will continue through at least the last billing cycle of December 2019. For the three and 
six months ended June 30,2018, additional margin of$352,000 and $767,000, respectively, was generated. 

Major Projects and Initiatives Currently Underway 
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New Smyrna Beach, Florida Project 
In the fourth quarter of 2017, we commenced construction of a 14-mile gas transmission pipeline to provide additional 
capacity to serve current and planned customer growth in the New Smyrna Beach service area. The project was partially 
placed into service at the end of 2017 and is expected to be fully in service in September 2018. For the three and six 
months ended June 30, 2018, the project generated incremental gross margin of approximately $352,000 and $704,000, 
respectively. 
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2017 Eastern Shore System Expansion Project 
In November 2017, Eastern Shore began construction of a $117.0 million system expansion that will increase its capacity 
by 26 percent once completed. We have invested $89.6 million through June 30, 2018 and expect to invest approximately 
$24.8 million during the remainder of 2018 to substantially complete the project. The first phase of the project was placed 
into service in December 2017, and generated $859,000 and $2.0 million in incremental gross margin, including margin 
from interim services, during the three and six months ended June 30, 2018, respectively. With the exception of some 
minor facilities, the remaining segments are scheduled to be completed and begin generating margin during the second 
half of 2018. The project is expected to produce approximately $15.8 million in gross margin in its first full year of 
service. 

North west Florida Expansion Project 
Peninsula Pipeline has completed construction of transmission lines and the Florida natural gas division has completed 
construction of lateral distribution lines to serve two large customers and other customers close to these facilities. This is 
our first expansion of natural gas service into Northwest Florida. The project was placed into service in May 2018 and 
generated incremental gross margin of $870,000 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018. The estimated annual 
gross margin from this project is $6.5 million. 
(Palm Beaclt County) Belvedere, Florida Project 
Peninsula Pipeline is constructing a pipeline to bring gas directly to our natural gas distribution system in West Palm 
Beach, Florida. We expect to complete this project by the end of the third qumter of 2018. Estimated annual gross margin 
associated with the project is approximately $1.1 million. 

Other major factors influencing gross margin 

Weather and Consumption 
Gross margin increased by $1.1 million and $5.2 million in the three and six months ended June 30, 2018, respectively, as 
a result of colder temperatures, compared to the extremely wann temperatures experienced during the same period in 
2017. While temperatures during the first half of 2018 were colder than 2017, they were still wanner than nonnal, as 
shown in the table below. We estimate that we would have generated an additional $2.4 million in gross margin if 
temperatures for the six months ended June 30, 2018 had been nonnal. The following table summarizes HDD and CDD 
variances from the 10-year average HDD/CDD ("Normal") for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017. 

HDD and CDD Information 

Three Months 
Ended Six Months Ended 

June 30, June 30, 

2018 2017 Variance 2018 2017 Variance 

Delmarva 

Actual HDD 424 288 136 2,719 2,246 473 

10-Year Average HDD ("Delmarva Nonnal") 423 429 (6) 2,785 2,783 2 

Variance from Delmarva Normal 1 (141) (66) (537) 

Florida 

Actual HDD 17 13 4 507 298 209 

10-Year Average HDD ("Florida Nonnal") 16 19 (3) 533 555 (22) 

Variance from Florida Normal 1 (6) (26) (257) 

Ohio 

Actual HDD 662 508 154 3,652 2,992 660 

10-Year Average HDD ("Ohio Normal") 614 637 (23) 3,683 3,774 (91) 

Variance from Ohio Normal 48 (129) (31) (782) 

Florida 

Actual CDD 952 935 17 1,091 1,080 11 
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10-Year Average CDD ("Florida CDD 
Normal") 

Variance from Florida CDD Nonnal 

969 955 

(17) (20) 
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Natural Gas Distribution Customer and Consumption Growth 

The Company's natural gas distribution operations generated $1.6 million and $3.3 million of additional margin for the 
three and six months ended June 30,2018, respectively. The breakdown'ofthe increased margin is as follows: 

In thousands 

Customer growth: 

Residential 

Commercial and industrial excluding new service in Northwest Florida 

New service in Northwest Florida 

Total customer growth 

Volume growth: 

Residential 

Commercial and industrial 

Other - including unbilled revenue 

Total volume growth 

Total natural gas distribution growth 

Three Months 
Ended 

June 30, 2018 

Six Months Ended 

June 30, 2018 

$ 

$ 

351 $ 

303 

276 

930 

151 

387 

107 

645 

864 

604 

305 

1,773 

855 

1,026 

(312) 

1,569 

1,575 $ 3,342 
====== 

Customer growth for the Company's Delmarva Peninsula and Florida natural gas dish·ibution operations generated 
$930,000 and $1.8 million in additional gross margin for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018, respectively, 
compared to the same periods in 20 17. The additional margin was generated from an approximately 3. 8 percent increase 
in the average number of residential customers as well as growth in commercial and industrial customers on the Delmarva 
Peninsula in the second quarter and first six months of2018, compared to the corresponding periods in 2017. Residential 
customer growth on the Delaware Peninsula has averaged 3.0 percent over the past five years. The Company's Florida 
natural gas distribution operations generated additional gross margin for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018, 
due to growth in all customer classes and new service to customers in Northwest Florida. 

The Company's Delmarva Peninsula and Florida natural gas distribution operations generated $645,000 and $1.6 million 
in additional gross margin for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018, respectively, compared to the same periods in 
2017 from higher sales to residential and commercial customers. 

Propane Operations 

The Company's Florida and Delmarva Peninsula propane operations generated $1.6 million and $5.7 million in 
incremental margin for the three and six months ended June 30,2018, respectively, compared to the same periods in 2017. 
A return to more normal temperatures accounted for $806,000 and $2.9 million of the margin increase during the three and 
six months ended June 30, 2018, respectively. The balance of the increase reflects increased customer consumption driven 
by growth and other factors, higher sales and revenues from service contracts and increased wholesale sales activities. 

PESCO 

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2018, PES CO recorded a series of adjustments, MTM gains and recognized 
extraordinary costs, which impacted reported results. Excluding the impact of these items, PESCO's gross margin 
increased by $592,000 and $255,000, during the three and six months ended June 30,2018, respectively, compared to the 
same periods in 2017. The total of the adjustments increased gross margin by $1.1 million and reduced gross margin by 
$863,000 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018, respectively, compared to the same periods in 2017. The 
following table summarizes the changes in PESCO'S year-over-year margin for the three and six months ended June 30, 
2018: 
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Three Months Ended Six Months Ended 

June 30, 2018 June 30, 2018 

(in thousands) 

Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2017 Reported Results $ 921 $ 4,389 
Incremental Margin from Growth and ARM Acquisition in 2017 592 255 
Nonrecurring Margin factors- non-renewal of Supply Agreement, 
MTM and Other Adjustments 1,092 (863) 

2018 Margin $ 2,605 $ 3,781 

The following table compares the margin, operating expenses and operating income from PESCO for the three and six 
months ended June 30,2018 and 2017: 

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended 

June 30, June 30, 

in thousands 2018 2017 2018 2017 
Total Gross Margin $ 2,606 $ 921 $ 3,781 $ 4,389 

Operating Expense (1,918) (1 ,154) (3,857) (2, 143) 

Operating Income/(Loss) $ 688 $ (233) $ (76) $ 2,246 

Operating income for PESCO improved to $688,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2018, from a loss of$233,000 
during the same period in the prior year. The improvement reflects the benefit of several nonrecurring margin adjustments 
in the business, growth in margins from existing operations as well as the addition of margin from the business purchased 
from ARM during the third quarter of 2017. This was partially offset by a $764,000 increase in operating expenses, 
including $262,000 associated with the ARM margins previously mentioned, as well as $501,000 in increased staffing, 
infrastructure and risk management system costs to ensure the profitable future growth of this business. 

For the six months ended June 30, 2018, PES CO reported an operating loss of $76,000, compared to income of $2.2 
million during the same period in the prior year. The decline primarily reflects increased expenses incurred to build out the 
staff, infrastructure and risk management systems necessary for the success of this business, as well as the impact of 
several nonrecurring margin adjustments, largely during the first quarter of 2018. 

Xeron 

Xeron's operations were wound down during the second quarter of 2017. Operating income for the three and six months 
ended June 30,2018, improved by $173,000 and $870,000, respectively, due to the absence of wind-down expenses and 
the absence of operating losses for Xeron in 2018. 
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Regulated Energy Segment 

For the quarter ended June 30, 2018, compared to the quarter ended June 30,2017: 

Three Months Ended 

June 30, Increase 

2018 2017 (decrease) 

(in thousands) 

Revenue $ 70,504 $ 70,996 $ (492) 

Cost of sales 20,010 24,167 (4,157) 

Gross margin 50,494 46,829 3,665 

Operations & maintenance 25,022 22,407 2,615 

Depreciation & amortization 7,620 7,142 478 

Other taxes 3,548 3,194 354 

Other operating expenses 36,190 32,743 3,447 

Operating income $ 14,304 $ 14,086 $ 218 

Operating income for the Regulated Energy segment for the three months ended June 30, 2018 was $14.3 million, an 
increase of $218,000 compared to the same period in 2017. The increased operating income resulted from increased gross 
margin of $3.7 million, offset by a $3.4 million increase in operating expenses. 

Excluding the impact of the customer refunds and reserves for future refunds of approximately $2.3 million for lower 
income taxes due to the TCJA, gross margin and operating income for the three months ended June 30, 2018 increased by 
$5.9 million and $2.5 million, or 12.7 percent and 17.8 percent, respectively. 

Gross Margin 

Items contributing to the quarter-over-quarter increase in gross margin are listed in the following table: 

(in thousands) 

Implementation of Eastem Shore settled rates 

Service expansions 

Natural gas growth (including customer and consumption growth but excluding service 
expansions) 

Return to more normal weather 

Florida electric reliability/modernization program 

Florida GRIP 

Other 

Total 

TCJA impact- refunds and reserves for future refunds to ratepayers· 

Quarter-over-quarter increase in gross margin 

$ 

$ 

Margin Impact 

2,365 

1,652 

1,575 

359 

352 

306 

(660) 

5,949 

(2,284) 

3,665 

*As a result of the TCJA, an estimated amount of $2.3 million was reserved or refunded to customers during the second quarter of 2018 to reflect the 

impact of lower tax rates on our regulated businesses. In some jurisdictions, we have paid refunds to customers, while in other jurisdictions, we have 

established reserves until final agreements are approved and changes are made to customer rates. The reserves and lower customer rates are equal to the 

estimated reduction in Federal income taxes due to the TCJA and have no material impact on after-tax earnings from the Regulated Energy segment 

The following is a narrative discussion of the significant items in the foregoing table, which we believe is necessary to 
understand the information disclosed in the table. 
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Implementation of Eastern Shore Settled Rates 

Eastern Shore generated additional gross margin of $2.4 million from the implementation of new rates as a result of its 
rate case filing. See Note 4, Rates and Other Regulatmy Activities, to the condensed consolidated financial statements for 
additional details. 
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Service Expansions 

We generated additional gross margin of $1.7 million primarily from the following natural gas service expansions: 

$1.2 million generated by Peninsula Pipeline from the New Smyrna Beach and Northwest Pipeline Expansion 
Projects; and 

$859,000 from Eastern Shore's services, including those provided on an interim basis, to industrial customers in 
Delaware in conjunction with a portion of Eastern Shore's 2017 Expansion Project that was placed in service in 
December 2017, and $223,000 in additional margin as a result of an increase in rates from service provided to an 
industrial customer, partially offset by the absence of short-term contracts totaling $544,000 that were replaced 
by long-term service agreements. 

Natural Gas Growth (including customer and consumption growth but excluding service expansions) 

Increased gross margin of $1.6 million from natural gas growth and consumption (excluding service expansions) was 
generated primarily from the following: 

$645,000 from higher sales on the Delmarva Peninsula and in Florida that were not driven by weather; 

$560,000 from Florida natural gas customer growth, due primarily to an increase in residential and commercial 
customers served as well as expansion to Northwest Florida; and 

$371,000 from a 3.8 percent increase in the average number of residential customers served by the Delmarva 
natural gas distribution operations, as well as growth in the number of commercial and industrial customers 
served. 

Return to More Normal Weather 

Temperatures during the second quarter of 2018 were nearly normal, compared to 32.9 percent warmer than nmmal 
weather during the second quarter of 2017. Comparatively colder weather during the second quarter of 2018 increased 
usage and generated $359,000 in additional margin. 

Florida Electric Reliability/Modernization Program 

Gross margin increased by $352,000, due primarily to the rates that went into effect in January 2018. See Note 4, Rates 
and Other Regulatory Activities, to the condensed consolidated financial statements for additional details. 

GRIP 

Increased investment in GRIP generated additional gross margin of $306,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2018, 
compared to the same period in 2017. 

Impact of the TCJA on customer rates 

The adjustment to customer rates, because of the implementation of the TCJA,.decreased gross margin by $2.3 million due 
to refunds paid to customers and the establishment of reserves for future refunds and/or rate reductions to customers. The 
decrease in gross margin was offset by a $2.3 million reduction in Federal income taxes. 

Other Operating Expenses 

Other operating expenses increased by $3.4 million. The significant factors contributing to the increase in other operating 
expenses included: 

$1.2 million in higher costs related to outside services to support growth and facilities and maintenance costs to 
maintain system integrity; 

$1.0 million in higher staffing costs for additional personnel to support growth, including the largest project to 
date in our history, Eastern Shore's 2017 System Expansion Project; 
$722,000 in higher depreciation, asset removal and prope1ty tax costs associated with recent capital investments; 
and 
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$384,000 in higher incentive compensation costs due to improved period-over-period results. 
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For the six months ended June 30, 2018, compared to the six months ended June 30, 2017: 

Six Months Ended 

June 30, Increase 

2018 2017 (decrease) 

{in llwusands) 

Revenue $ 179,897 $ 168,650 $ 11,247 
Cost of sales 68,241 64,411 3,830 

Gross margin 111,656 104,239 7,417 
Operations & maintenance 48,169 45,987 2,182 
Depreciation & amortization 15,136 14,027 1,109 

Other taxes 7,336 6,744 592 

Other operating expenses 70,641 66,758 3,883 

Operating income $ 41,015 $ 37,481 $ 3,534 

Operating income for the Regulated Energy segment for the six months ended June 30, 2018 was $41.0 million, an 
increase of $3.5 million compared to the same period in 2017. The increased operating income resulted from increased 
gross margin of$7.4 million, offset by an increase in operating expenses of$3.9 million. 

Excluding the impact of refunds to customers and reserves for future refunds of approximately $5.4 million for lower 
income taxes due to the TCJA, gross margin and operating income increased by $12.8 million and $9.0 million, or 12.3 
percent and 24.0 percent, respectively. 

Gross Margin 

Items contributing to the period-over-period increase in gross margin are listed in the following table: 

{in thousands) 

Implementation of Eastern Shore settled rates 

Natural gas growth (including customer and consumption growth but excluding service 
expansions) 

Service expansions 

Return to more nmmal weather 

Florida electric reliability/modernization program 

Florida GRIP 

Other 

Total 

TCJA impact- refunds and reserves for future refunds to ratepayers* 

Period-over-Period increase in gross margin 

$ 

$ 

Margin Impact 

5,095 

3,342 

2,316 

1,314 

767 

602 

(598) 

12,838 

(5,421) 

7,417 

*As a result of the TCJA, an estimated $5.4 million was reserved or refunded to customers during the first half of 2018 to reflect the impact of lower tax 
rates on the Company's regulated businesses. In some jurisdictions, the Company has paid refunds to customers, while in other jurisdictions, the 
Company has established reserves until final agreements are approved and changes are made to customer rates. The reserves and lower customer rates 
are equal to the estimated reduction in Federal income taxes due to the TCJA and have no material impact on after-tax earnings from the Regulated 
Energy segment 

The following is a narrative discussion of the significant items in the foregoing table, which we believe is necessary to 
understand the information disclosed in the table. 

Implementation of Eastern Shore's Settled Rates 

https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/19745/00016282801801 0892/cpk063020181 0-... 10/18/2018 



Document Page 86 of 108 

Eastern Shore generated additional gross margin of $5.1 million from the implementation of new rates as a result of its 
rate case filing. See Note 4, Rates and Other Regulatory Activities, to the condensed consolidated financial statements for 
additional details. 

Natural Gas Growth (including customer and consumption growth but excluding service expansions) 

Increased gross margin of $3.3 million from natural gas growth and consumption (excluding service expansions) was 
generated primarily from the following: 

$1.6 million from higher sales on the Delmarva Peninsula and in Florida that were not driven by weather; 
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$889,000 from Florida natural gas customer growth, due primarily to an increase in residential and commercial 
customers served; and 

$885,000 from a 3.7 percent increase in the average number of residential customers served by the Delmarva 
natural gas distribution operations, as well as growth in the number of commercial and industrial customers 
served. 

Service Expansions 
We generated additional gross margin of $2.3 million primarily from the following natural gas service expansions: 

$2.0 million from Eastern Shore's services, including those provided on an interim basis, to industrial customers 
in Delaware in conjunction with a portion of Eastern Shore's 2017 Expansion Project that was placed in service in 
December 2017, and $447,000 in additional margin as a result of an increase in rates from service provided to an 
industrial customer, partially offset by the absence of short-term contracts totaling $1.2 million that were replaced 
by long-term service agreements; and 

$I .6 million generated by Peninsula Pipeline from the New Smyrna Beach and Northwest Pipeline Expansion 
Projects. 

Return to More Normal Weather 

Temperatures during the first six months of 2018 were 1.8 percent warmer than normal compared to 22.2 percent warmer 
than normal weather during the first six months of 2017. Comparatively colder weather during the first six months of 2018 
increased usage and generated $1.3 million in additional margin. 

Florida Electric Reliability/Modernization Program 

Gross margin increased by $767,000, due primarily to the rates that went into effect in January 2018. See Note 4, Rates 
and Other Regulatory Activities, to the condensed consolidated financial statements for additional details. 

GRIP 

Increased investment in GRIP generated additional gross margin of $602,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2018, 
compared to the same period in 2017. 

Impact of the TCJA on customer rates 

The adjustment to customer rates, because of the implementation of the TCJA, decreased gross margin by $5.4 million due 
to refunds and reserves for future refunds to customers. The decrease in gross margin was offset by a reduction in Federal 
income taxes. 

Other Operating Expenses 

Other operating expenses increased by $3.9 million. The significant factors contributing to the increase in other operating 
expenses included: 

$1.7 million in higher depreciation, asset removal and property tax costs associated with recent capital 
investments; 

$1.4 million in higher staffing costs for additional personnel to support growth, including the largest project to 
date in the Company's history, Eastern Shore's 2017 System Expansion Project; 
$I. I million in higher facilities and maintenance costs to maintain system integrity; and 
$592,000 in higher incentive compensation costs as a result of improved period-over-period results; offset by 
$1.1 million in lower regulatory and outside services costs due to the absence of rate case filings in 2018. 
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Unregulated Energy Segment 

For the quarter ended June 30,2018, compared to the quarter ended June 30,2017: 

Three Months Ended 

June 30, Increase 

2018 2017 (decrease) 

(in thousands) 

Revenue $ 76,345 $ 63,049 $ 13,296 
Cost of sales 59,430 49,313 10,117 

Gross margin 16,915 13,736 3,179 

Operations & maintenance 13,406 11,047 2,359 
Depreciation & amortization 2,198 1,929 269 
Other taxes 821 758 63 

Total operating expenses 16,425 13,734 2,691 

Operating income $ 490 $ 2 $ 488 

Operating income for the Unregulated Energy segml'mt for the three months ended June 30, 2018 was $490,000, compared 
to operating income of $2,000 for the same period in 2017. The increase in operating income of $488,000 was due to an 
increase in gross margin of $3.2 million, offset by a $2.7 million increase in operating expenses. 

Gross Margin 

Items contributing to the quarter-over-quarter increase in gross margin are listed in the following table: 

(in thousands) 

PES CO 

Propane delivery operations- additional customer consumption- weather 

Propane delivery operations - increased margin driven by growth and other factors 

Aspire Energy- increased margins largely due to higher commodity pricing 
on natural gas liquid sales 

Other 

Quarter-over-quarter increase in gross margin 

$ 

$ 

Margin Impact 

1,684 

806 

536 

207 

(54) 

3,179 

The following is a narrative discussion of the significant items in the foregoing table, which we believe is necessary to 
understand the information disclosed in the table. 

PESCO 

For the three months ended June 30, 2018, PESCO's gross margin increased by $1.7 million compared to the same period 
in 2017. Higher second quarter 2018 margin from PES CO resulted from the following: 

(in thousands) 

Nonrecurring margin increase associated with the Southeast p01tfolio 

Nonrecurring annual imbalance settlement from 2017 customer Supply Agreement 

Additional margin associated with the acquisition of the Midwest portfolio in the third quarter of2017 

Incremental margin from growth 

Margin Impact 

$ 642 

451 

325 

266 

Total Incremental Margin from PESCO for the Second Quarter of2018 $ 1,684 
====== 
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Propane delivery operations - additional customer consumption - weather 

Gross margin increased by $806,000, due primarily to increased deliveries of propane as a result of colder temperatures in 
the three months ended June 30, 2018, compared to the same period in 2017. 
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Propane delivery operations - increased margin driven by growth and other factors 

Gross margin increased by $536,000, due primarily to increased sales of propane as a result of growth in customers and 
other factors. 

Aspire Energy- increased margin due to changes in natural gas liquids commodity prices 

Gross margin increased by $207,000, as a result of higher commodity pricing on natural gas liquid sales, compared to the 
same period in 2017. 

Other Operating Expenses 

Other operating expenses increased by $2.7 million. The significant components of the increase in other operating 
expenses included: 

$764,000 in higher expenses as a result of increased staffing, infrastructure and risk management system costs to 
ensure the profitable future growth ofPESCO; 

$515,000 in higher staffing and associated costs for additional personnel to support growth and increased 
deliveries driven by the colder weather in the second quarter of 2018, compared to the same period in 2017; 

$475,000 in higher outside services associated primarily with growth and ongoing compliance activities; 

$427,000 in higher incentive compensation costs as a result of improved period-over-period results; 

$173,000 in higher benefits and employee-related costs (since we self-insure for healthcare, benefits costs 
fluctuate depending upon filed claims); and 

$131,000 in higher depreciation expense. 

For the six months ended June 30, 2018, compared to the six months ended June 30, 2017: 

Six Months Ended 

June 30, Increase 

2018 2017 (decrease) 

(in thousands) 

Revenue $ 221,712 $ 155,774 $ 65,938 

Cost of sales 174,496 115,219 59,277 

Gross margin 47,216 40,555 6,661 

Operations & maintenance 26,766 23,426 3,340 

Depreciation & amortization 4,364 3,833 531 

Other taxes 1,912 1,719 193 

Total operating expenses 33,042 28,978 4,064 

Operating income $ 14,174 $ 11,577 $ 2,597 

Operating income for the Unregulated Energy segment for the six months ended June 30, 2018 was $14.2 million, 
compared to operating income of $11.6 million for same period in 2017. The $2.6 million increase in operating income 
was due to an increase in gross margin of $6.7 million, offset by a $4.1 million increase in operating expenses. 

Gross Margin 
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Items contributing to the period-over-period increase in gross margin are listed in the following table: 

(in thousands) 

Propane delivery operations - additional customer consumption - weather 

Propane delivery operations- increased margin driven by growth and other factors 

Aspire Energy - customer consumption - weather 

PESCO 

Aspire Energy - increased margin driven by growth and other factors 

Growth in wholesale propane margins and sales 

Other 

Period-over-period increase in gross margin $ 

Page 91 of 108 

Margin Impact 

2,923 

1,789 

921 

(608) 

585 
333 

718 

6,661 

The following is a narrative discussion of the significant items in the foregoing table, which we believe is necessary to 
understand the information disclosed in the table. 

Propane delivery operations- additional customer consumption- weather 

Gross margin increased by $2.9 million, due primarily to increased propane deliveries as a result of colder temperatures in 
the six months ended June 30, 2018, compared to the same period in 2017. 

Propane delivery operations- increased margin driven by growth and other factors 

Gross margin increased by $1.8 million, due primarily to increased propane sales as a result of customer growth and other 
factors. 

Aspire Energy- customer consumption - weather 

Gross margin increased by $921,000, as a result of increased natural gas deliveries, due primarily to colder temperatures 
during the six months ended June 30, 2018, compared to the same period in 2017. 

PESCO 

For the six months ended June 30, 2018, PESCO's gross margin decreased by $608,000 compared to the same period in 
2017. Lower gross margin for the six months ended June 30,2018 from PESCO resulted from the following: 

(in thousands) 

Reversal of unrealized MTM loss recorded in the fourth quarter of 2017 

Nonrecurring margin and annual imbalance settlement from 2017 customer Supply Agreement 

Net impact of extraordinary costs associated with the 2018 Bomb Cyclone for the Mid-Atlantic wholesale 
portfolio <IJ 

Loss for the Mid-Atlantic retail portfolio caused by pipeline capacity constraints in January and warm weather in 
February 2018 <IJ 

Nonrecurring margin increase associated with the Southeast portfolio 

Additional margin associated with the acquisition of the Midwest pm1folio in the third quarter of2017 

Other 

Total Change in Gross Margin for PESCO for the six months ended June 30,2018 

$ 

$ 

Margin Impact 

5,713 

(I ,673) 

(3,284) 

(2,261) 

642 

273 

(18) 

(608) 

'"The 2018 Bomb Cyclone refers to the early January, high-intensity winter storms that impacted the Company's Mid-Atlantic service territory and 
which had a residual impact on the Company's businesses through the month of February. The exceedingly high demand and associated impacts on 
pipeline capacity and gas supply in the Delmarva Peninsula region created significant, unusual costs for PESCO. While such concerted impacts will 
recur infrequently, the Company's management revisited and refined its risk management strategies and implemented additional controls. 

Aspire Energy- increased margin driven by growth and other factors 
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Gross margin increased by $585,000, due to customer growth, increased deliveries of natural gas because of an upgrade of 
pipeline pressure and improved margins on natural gas liquid sales. 

Wholesale Propane Margins 

Gross margin increased by $333,000, due to a higher margin per &allon and an increase in volume delivered for the 
Delmarva Peninsula propane distribution operations. 
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Other Operating Expenses 

Other operating expenses increased by $4.1 million. The significant components of the increase in other operating 
expenses included: 

$1.7 million in higher expenses as a result of increased staffing, infrastructure and risk management system costs 
to ensure the profitable future growth of PESCO; 

$996,000 in higher staffing and associated costs for additional personnel to support growth and increased 
deliveries driven by the colder weather in the first six months of 2018, compared to the same period in 20 17; 

$646,000 in higher expenses, including vehicle fuel costs, sales and advertising, taxes other than income taxes 
and credit collections costs; 

$594,000 in higher incentive compensation costs as a result of improved period-over-period results; 

$443,000 in higher maintenance costs as a result of ongoing compliance activities; 

$266,000 in higher depreciation and amortization expense due to increased investments; offset by 

the absence of $870,000 in 2017 Xeron wind-down expenses. 

OTHER EXPENSE, NET 

For the quarter ended June 30, 2018 compared to the quarter ended June 30,2017 
Other expense, net, which includes non-operating investment income (expense), interest income, late fees charged to 
customers, gains or losses from the sale of assets and pension and other benefits expense, decreased by $740,000 in the 
second quarter of 2018, compared to the same period in 2017, due pmtly to the recognition of Xeron lease termination 
expenses in 2017. 

For the sLY months ended June 30, 2018 compared to the six months ended June 30, 2017 
Other expense, net, which includes non-operating investment income (expense), interest income, late fees charged to 
customers, gains or losses from the sale of assets and pension and other benefits expense, decreased by $1.5 million for the 
first six months of 2018, compared to the same period in 2017, due partly to the recognition of Xeron lease termination 
expenses in 2017. 

INTEREST CHARGES 

For tile quarter ended June 30,2018 compared to the quarter ended June 30,2017 
Interest charges for the three months ended June 30, 2018 increased by $808,000, compared to the same period in 2017, 
attributable primarily to an increase of $804,000 in interest on higher short-term bmTowings, and an increase of $273,000 
in interest on long-term debt, largely as a result of the issuance of the NYL ShelfNotes (Series A) in May 2018. 

For the six months ended June 30, 2018 compared to the six months ended June 30, 2017 
Interest charges for the six months ended June 30,2018 increased by $1.7 million, compared to the same period in 2017, 
attributable primarily to an increase of $1.4 million in interest on higher short-term borrowings, and an increase of 
$804,000 in interest on long-term debt, largely as a result ofthe issuance of the Prudential ShelfNotes in April2017 and 
the issuance of the NYL Shelf Notes (Series A) in May 2018. 

INCOME TAXES 

For the quarter ended June 30, 2018 compared to tile quarter ended June 30, 2017 
Income tax expense was $2.7 million for the three months ended June 30, 2018, compared to $3.9 million in the same 
period in 2017. The decrease in income tax expense was due primarily to the impact of the TCJA in the second quarter of 
2018. Our effective income tax rate was 29.9 percent and 39.5 percent, for the three months ended June 30, 2018 and 
2017, respectively. 

For the six months ended June 30, 2018 compared to tile sLY months ended June 30, 2017 
Income tax expense was $12.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018, compared to $16.5 million in the same 
period in 2017. The decrease in income tax expense was due primarily to the impact of the TCJA in the first six months of 
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2018. Our effective income tax rate was 27.6 percent and 39.5 percent for the six months ended June 30,2018 and 2017, 
respectively. 
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FINANCIAL POSITION, LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 

Our capital requirements reflect the capital-intensive and seasonal nature of our business and are principally attributable to 
investment in new plant and equipment, retirement of outstanding debt and seasonal variability in working capital. We 
rely on cash generated from operations, short-term borrowings, and other sources to meet normal working capital 
requirements and to temporarily finance capital expenditures. We may also issue long-term debt and equity to fund capital 
expenditures and to more closely align our capital structure with our target capital structure. 

Our energy businesses are weather-sensitive and seasonal. We normally generate a large portion of our annual net income 
and subsequent increases in our accounts receivable in the first and fourth quarters of each year due to significant volumes 
of natural gas, electricity, and propane delivered by our distribution operations, and our natural gas gathering and 
processing operation to customers during the peak heating season. In addition, our natural gas and propane inventories, 
which usually peak in the fall months, are largely drawn down in the heating season and provide a source of cash as the 
inventory is used to satisfy winter sales demand. 

Capital expenditures for investments in new or acquired plant and equipment are our largest capital requirements. Our 
capital expenditures were $134.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018. 

We originally budgeted $181.6 million for capital expenditures in 2018, and we currently project capital expenditures of 
approximately $216.4 million in 2018. Our current capital projection by segment and by business line is shown below: 

(dollars in thousands) 

Regulated Energy: 

Natural gas distribution 

Natural gas transmission 

Electric distribution 

Total Regulated Energy 

Unregulated Energy: 

Propane distribution 

Other unregulated energy 

Total Unregulated Energy 

Other: 

Corporate and other businesses 

Total Other 

Total 2018 Budgeted Capital Expenditures 

$ 

$ 

2018 

65,594 

110,813 

8,930 

185,337 

13,359 

7,413 

20,772 

10,289 

10,289 

216,398 

The capital expenditure projection is subject to continuous review and modification. Actual capital requirements may vary 
from the above estimates due to a number of factors, including changing economic conditions, customer growth in 
existing areas, regulation, new growth or acquisition opportunities and availability of capital. Historically, actual capital 
expenditures have typically lagged behind the budgeted amounts. 

The timing of capital expenditures can vary based on delays in regulatory approvals, securing environmental approvals 
and other permits. The regulatory application and approval process has lengthened in the past few years, and we expect 
this trend to continue. 
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Capital Structure 

We are committed to maintaining a sound capital structure and strong credit ratings to provide the financial flexibility 
needed to access capital markets when required. This commitment, along with adequate and timely rate relief for our 
regulated energy operations, is intended to ensure our ability to attract capital from outside sources at a reasonable cost. 
We believe that the achievement of these objectives will provide benefits to our customers, creditors and investors. 

The following table presents our capitalization, excluding and including short-term borrowings, as of June 30, 2018 and 
December 31, 2017: 

June 30, 2018 December 31, 2017 

(in thousands) 

Long-term debt, net of current maturities $ 241,596 32% $ 197,395 29% 
Stockholders' equity 507,986 68% 486,294 71% 
Total capitalization, excluding short-term debt $ 749,582 100% $ 683,689 100% 

June 30, 2018 December 31,2017 

(in thousands) 

Short-term debt $ 235,288 24% $ 250,969 26% 
Long-term debt, including cun·ent maturities 251,573 25% 206,816 22% 
Stockholders' equity 507,986 51% 486,294 52% 

Total capitalization, including short-term debt $ 994,847 100% $ 944,079 100% 

Included in the long-term debt balances at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, was a capital lease obligation associated 
with Sandpiper's capacity, supply and operating agreement (at June 30, 2018, zero excluding current maturities and $1.4 
million including current maturities and, at December 31, 2017, $620,000 excluding current maturities and $2.1 million 
including current maturities). At the closing of the ESG acquisition in May 2013, Sandpiper entered into this agreement, 
which has a six-year term ending in May 2019. The capacity portion ofthis agreement is accounted for as a capital lease. 

Our target ratio of equity to total capitalization, including short-term borrowings, is between 50 and 60 percent. From time 
to time, we may go below the lower end of the target range as we seek to align, as much as feasible, any long-term debt or 
equity issuance(s) with the commencement of service, and associated earnings, for larger revenue generating capital 
projects. In addition, the exact timing of any long-te1m debt or equity issuance(s) will be based on market conditions. 

Shelf Agreements 

In October 2015, we entered into the $150.0 million Prudential Shelf Agreement, under which we may request that 
Prudential purchase up to $150.0 million of our unsecured senior debt. As of June 30, 2018, we have issued $70.0 million 
of 3.25% Prudential Shelf Notes. 

In March 2017, we entered into the MetLife Shelf Agreement and the NYL Shelf Agreement, under which we may request 
that MetLife and NYL, through March 2, 2020, purchase up to $150.0 million in Met Life Shelf Notes and $100.0 million 
in NYL Shelf Notes, respectively. The unsecured senior debt would have a fixed interest rate and a maturity date not to 
exceed 20 years from the date of issuance. MetLife and NYL are under no obligation to purchase any unsecured senior 
debt. The interest rate and terms of payment of any series of unsecured senior debt will be determined at the time of 
purchase. 

In November 2017, NYL agreed to purchase $50.0 million of3.48% Series A notes and $50.0 million of3.58% Series B 
notes. The Series A notes were issued in May 2018, and the Series B notes will be issued on or before November 20, 
2018. The proceeds received from the issuances of these NYL Shelf Notes will be used to reduce borrowings under the 
Revolver and/or lines of credit and/or to fund capital expenditures. The NYL Shelf Agreement has been fully utilized. 
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As of June 30,2018, we have $230.0 million of additional potential borrowing capacity under the Prudential and MetLife 
Shelf Agreements. The Prudential Shelf Agreement and the NYL Shelf Agreement set forth certain business covenants to 
which we are subject when any note is outstanding, including covenants that limit or restrict our ability, and the ability of 
our subsidiaries, to incur indebtedness, or place or permit liens and encumbrances on any of our property or the property 
of our subsidiaries. 
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Short-term Borrowings 

Our outstanding short-tenn borrowings at June 30,2018 and December 31,2017 were $235.3 million and $251.0 million 
at weighted average interest rates of 2.98 percent and 2.42 percent, respectively. Our current short-term borrowing limit, 
authorized by our Board of Directors, is $350.0 million. 

We utilize bank lines of credit to provide funds for our short-tenn cash needs to meet seasonal working capital 
requirements and to temporarily fund portions of the capital expenditure program. As of June 30, 2018, we had five 
unsecured bank credit facilities with four financial institutions totaling $220.0 million in available credit. In addition, since 
October 2015, we have $150.0 million of additional short-term debt capacity available under the Revolver. The terms of 
the Revolver are described in further detail below. None of the unsecured bank lines of credit requires compensating 
balances. 

The $150.0 million Revolver is available through October 8, 2020 and is subject to the terms and conditions set forth in 
the Credit Agreement. Borrowings under the Revolver will be used for general corporate purposes, including repayments 
of short-tenn borrowings, working capital requirements and capital expenditures. Borrowings under the Revolver will bear 
interest at: (i) the LIBOR Rate plus an applicable margin of 1.25 percent or less, with such margin based on total 
indebtedness as a percentage of total capitalization, both as defined by the Credit Agreement, or (ii) the base rate plus 
0.25% or less. Interest is payable quarterly, and the Revolver is subject to a commitment fee on the unused portion of the 
facility. We have the right, under certain circumstances, to extend the expiration date for up to two years on any 
anniversary date of the Revolver, with such extension subject to the Lenders' approval. We may also request the Lenders 
to increase the Revolver to $200.0 million, with any increase at the sole discretion of each Lender. 

Cash Flows 

The following table provides a summary of our operating, investing and financing cash flows for the six months ended 
June 30, 2018 and 2017: 

(in thousands) 

Net cash provided by (used in): 

Operating activities 

Investing activi.ties 

Financing activities 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents-beginning of period 

Cash and cash equivalents-end of period 

Cash Flows Provided By Operating Activities 

Six Months Ended 

June 30, 

2018 2017 

$ 108,352 $ 96,370 

(126,661) (88,577) 

17,207 (9,552) 

(1,102) (1,759) 

5,614 4,178 

$ 4,512 $ 2,419 

Changes in our cash flows from operating activities are attributable primarily to changes in net income, adjusted for non­
cash items such as depreciation and changes in deferred income taxes, and working capital. Changes in working capital 
are determined by a variety of factors, including weather, the prices of natural gas, electricity and propane, the timing of 
customer collections, payments for purchases of natural gas, electricity and propane, and deferred fuel cost recoveries. 

During the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, net cash provided by operating activities was $108.4 million and 
$96.4 million, respectively, resulting in an increase in cash flows of $12.0 million. Significant operating activities 
generating the cash flows change were as follows: 

Changes in net accounts receivable and accrued revenue and accounts payable and accrued liabilities decreased 
cash flows by $20.5 million, due primarily to the timing of the receipt of customer payments as well as the timing 
of payments to vendors. 
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Net income, adjusted for reconciling activities, increased cash flows by $8.2 million, due primarily to the higher 
performance during the period. 

Net cash flows from changes in propane inventories increased by approximately $12.4 million as a result of 
higher use of propane, which decreased our inventory levels. 
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Changes in net regulatory assets and liabilities increased cash flows by $6.8 million, due primarily to the change 
In fuel costs collected through the various cost recovery mechanisms. 

Changes in net prepaid expenses and other current assets, customer deposits and refunds increased cash flows by 
$5.2 million. 

Cash Flows Used in Investing Activities 

Net cash used in investing activities totaled $126.7 million and $88.6 million during the six months ended June 30, 2018 
and 2017, respectively, resulting in a decrease in cash flows of$38.1 million. Cash paid for capital expenditures increased 
by $3 8.2 million to $126.8 million for the first six months of 2018, compared to $88.6 million for the same period in 2017. 

Cash Flows Provided (Used) by Financing Activities 

Net cash provided by financing activities totaled $17.2 million during the six months ended June 30, 2018 compared to net 
cash of $9.6 million used in financing activities during the prior year period resulting in an increase in cash flows of $26.8 
million. The increase in net cash provided by financing activities resulted primarily from the following: 

Increased cash flows from lower repayments of short-term borrowing of $45.6 million under our line of credit 
arrangements; 

Receipt of $74.9 million in net cash proceeds from the Revolver and the issuance of the NYL Shelf Notes (Series 
A) in January and May 2018, respectively, which increased cash flow by $5.1 million during the six months 
ended June 30, 2018, compared to the same period in 2017. For the six months ended June 30, 2017, we received 
$69.8 million in net proceeds from the issuance of the Prudential Shelf Notes; 

Increased cash flows of $3.0 million as a result of changes in cash overdrafts; partially offset by 

Higher repayment of long-term debt of $25.0 million during the six months ended June 30, 2018, compared to the 
same period in 2017. 

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 

We have issued corporate guarantees to certain vendors of our subsidiaries, primarily PESCO. These corporate guarantees 
provide for the payment of propane and natural gas purchases in the event of the respective subsidiary's default. These 
subsidiaries have never defaulted on their obligations to pay their suppliers. The liabilities for these purchases are recorded 
in our financial statements when incurred. The aggregate amount guaranteed at June 30, 2018 was $72.5 million, with the 
guarantees expiring on various dates through June 2019. 

We have issued letters of credit totaling $5.0 million related to the electric transmission services for FPU's northwest 
electric division, the firm transpmtation service agreement between TETLP and our Delaware and Maryland divisions, 
and to our current and previous primary insurance cmTier. These letters of credit have varying expiration dates through 
December 2019. There have been no draws on these letters of credit as of June 30, 2018. We do not anticipate that the 
letters of credit will be drawn upon by the counterparties, and we expect that they will be renewed to the extent necessary 
in the future. Additional information is presented in Note 6, Other Commitments and Contingencies in the condensed 
consolidated financial statements. 

Contractual Obligations 

There has been no material change in the contractual obligations presented· in our 2017 Annual Report on Form I 0-K, 
except for long-term debt and commodity purchase obligations entered into in the ordinary course of our business. The 
following table summarizes long-term debt and commodity purchase contract obligations at June 30, 2018: 

(in thousands) 

Long-term debt< 1l 

Payments Due by Period 

Less than 1 year 1 - 3 years 3- 5 years More than 5 years Total 

$ 8,626 $ 31,200 $ 38,700 $ 172,200 $ 250,726 
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Purchase obligations - Commodity (2) 

Total 
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116,416 39,752 77 156,245 
--------~-- --------------
$ 125,042 $ 70,952 $ 38,777 $ 172,200 $ 406,971 
===== 

(I) Excludes capital lease obligation, debt issuance costs and an unamortized discount of$847,000. 
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(2) 
In addition to the obligations noted above, we have agreements with commodity suppliers that have provisions with no minimum purchase 
requirements. There are no monetary penalties for reducing the ari10unts purchased; however, the propane contracts allow the suppliers to 
reduce the amounts available in the winter season if we do not purchase specified amounts during the summer season. Under these contracts, 
the commodity prices will fluctuate as market prices fluctuate. 

Rates and Regulatory Matters 

Our natural gas distribution operations in Delaware, Maryland and Florida and electric distribution operation in Florida are 
subject to regulation by the respective state PSC; Eastern Shore is subject to regulation by the FERC; and Peninsula 
Pipeline is subject to regulation by the Florida PSC. At June 30, 2018, we were involved in regulatory matters in each of 
the jurisdictions in which we operate. Our significant regulatory matters are fully described in Note 4, Rates and Other 
RegulafmJ' Activities, to the condensed consolidated financial statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. 

Recent Authoritative Pronouncements on Financial Reporting and Accounting 

Recent accounting developments applicable to.us and their impact on our financial position, results of operations and cash 
flows are described in Note I, Summm)' of Accounting Policies, to the condensed consolidated financial statements in this 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. 

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Marl<et Risk 

INTEREST RATE RISK 

Long-term debt is subject to potential losses based on changes in interest rates. Our long-term debt at June 30, 2018, 
consists of fixed-rate Senior Notes and $8.0 million of fixed-rate secured debt. We evaluate whether to refinance existing 
debt or pe1manently refinance existing short-term borrowings based in part on the fluctuation in interest rates. Additional 
information about our long-term debt is disclosed in Note 14, Long-term Debt, in the condensed consolidated financial 
statements. 

COMMODITY PRICE RISK 

Regulated Energy Segment 

We have entered into agreements with various wholesale suppliers to purchase natural gas and electricity for resale to our 
customers. Our regulated energy distribution businesses that sell natural gas or electricity to end-use customers have fuel 
cost recovery mechanisms authorized by the PSCs that allow us to periodically adjust fuel rates to reflect changes in the 
wholesale cost of natural gas and electricity and to ensure that we recover all of the costs prudently incurred in purchasing 
natural gas and electricity for our customers. Therefore, our regulated energy distribution operations have limited 
commodity price risk exposure. 

Unregulated Energy Segment 

Sharp and Flo-gas are exposed to commodity price risk as a result of the competitive nature ofretail pricing offered to our 
customers. In order to mitigate this risk, we utilize propane storage activities and forward contracts for supply. 

We can store up to approximately 6.9 million gallons of propane (including leased storage and rail cars) during the winter 
season to meet our customers' peak requirements and to serve metered customers. Decreases in the wholesale price of 
propane may cause the value of stored propane to decline, particularly if we utilize fixed price forward contracts for 
supply. To mitigate the risk of propane commodity price fluctuations on the inventory valuation, we have adopted a Risk 
Management Policy that allows our propane distribution operation to enter into fair value hedges, cash flow hedges or 
other economic hedges of our inventory. 

Aspire Energy is exposed to commodity price risk, primarily during the winter season, to the extent we are not successful 
in balancing our natural gas purchases and sales and have to secure natural gas from alternative sources at higher spot 
prices. In order to mitigate this risk, we procure firm capacity that meets our estimated volume requirements and we 
continue to seek out new producers in order to fulfill our natural gas purchase requirements. 

PESCO is a party to natural gas swap and futures contracts. These contracts provide PESCO with the right to purchase 
natural gas at a fixed price at future dates. Upon expiration, the contracts can be settled financially without taking delivery 
of natural gas, or PESCO can take delivery of natural gas for its customers. 
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PESCO is subject to commodity price risk on its open positions to the extent that market prices for natural gas liquids and 
natural gas deviate from fixed contract settlement prices. Market risk associated with the trading of futures and forward 
contracts is monitored daily for compliance with our Risk Management Policy, which includes volumetric limits for open 
positions. To manage exposures to changing market prices, open positions are marked up or down to market prices and 
reviewed daily by our oversight officials. In addition, the Risk Management Committee reviews periodic reports on 
markets, approves any exceptions to the Risk Management Policy (within limits established by the Board of Directors) 
and authorizes the use of any new types of contracts. 
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The following table reflects the changes in the fair market value of financial derivatives contracts related to natural gas 
and propane purchases and sales from December 31,2017 to June 30,2018: 

Increase 
Balance at (Decrease) in Fair Less Amounts Balance at 

(in thousands) December 31,2017 Marl<et Value Settled June 30, 2018 

PESCO $ (6,153) $ 14,607 $ (9,099) $ (645) 

Sharp 1,192 (1,553) 655 294 

Total $ (4,961) $ 13,054 $ (8,444) $ (351) 

There were no changes in methods of valuations during the six months ended June 30, 2018. 

The following is a summary of fair market value of financial derivatives as of June 30, 2018, by method of valuation and 
by maturity for each fiscal year period. ' 

Total Fair 
(in thousands) 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 Value 

Price based on ICE- PESCO $ (750) $ (541) $ 972 $ (329) $ 3 $ (645) 

Price based on Mont Belvieu - Sharp 244 65 (8) (7) 294 

Total $ (506) $ (476) $ 964 $ (336) $ 3 $ (351) 

WHOLESALE CREDIT RISK 

The Risk Management Committee reviews credit risks associated with counterparties to commodity derivative contracts 
prior to such contracts being approved. 

Additional information about our derivative instruments is disclosed in Note 12, Derivative Instruments, in the condensed 
consolidated financial statements. 

Item 4. Controls and Procedures 

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures 

The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of Chesapeake Utilities, with the participation of other Company 
officials, have evaluated our "disclosure controls and procedures" (as such term is defined under Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-
15(e), promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) as of June 30, 2018. Based upon their 
evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures 
were effective as of June 30, 2018. 

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
Beginning January 1, 2018, we adopted ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The impacts of the 
adoption are discussed in detail in Note 1, Summary of Accounting Policies, and Note 3, Revenue Recognition, in the notes 
to the condensed consolidated financial statements within this Form 1 0-Q. In conjunction with this adoption, we 
implemented changes to our controls related to revenue that were not material to our internal controls over financial 
reporting. These included the development of new policies based on the five-step model provided in the new revenue 
standard, enhanced contract review requirements, and other ongoing monitoring activities. These controls were designed 
to provide assurance, at a reasonable level, of the fair presentation of our condensed consolidated financial statements and 
related disclosures. During the quarter ended June 30, 2018, there was no change in our internal control over financial 
reporting that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial 
reporting. 
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PART II-OTHER INFORMATION 

Item 1. Legal Proceedings 

As disclosed in Note 6, Other Commitments and Contingencies, of the condensed consolidated financial 
statements in this Quarterly Report on Fmm 1 0-Q, we are involved in certain legal actions and claims arising in 
the normal course of business. We are also involved in certain legal and administrative proceedings before 
various govemmental or regulatory agencies conceming rates and other regulatory actions. In the opinion of 
management, the ultimate disposition of these proceedings and claims will not have a material effect on our 
condensed consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows. 

Item lA. Risk Factors 

Our business, operations, and financial condition are subject to various risks and uncertainties. The risk factors 
described in Part I, "Item 1A. Risk Factors" in our Annual Report on Fonn 10-K, for the year ended 
December 31, 2017, should be carefully considered, together . with the other information contained or 
incorporated by reference in this Quarterly Repmt on Form 1 0-Q and in our other filings with the SEC in 
connection with evaluating Chesapeake Utilities, our business and the forward-looking statements contained in 
this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. Additional risks and uncertainties not known to us at present, or that we 
cuJTently deem immaterial, also may affect Chesapeake Utilities. The occurrence of any of these known or 
unknown risks could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of 
operations. 

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds 

(I) 

(2) 

Total Total Number of Shares Maximum Number of 
Number of Average Purchased as Part of Shares That May Yet Be 

Shares Price Paid Publicly Announced Plans Purchased Under the Plans 

Period Purchased per Share or Programs (2) or Programs (2) 

April I, 2018 
through April 30, 2018 <IJ 406 $ 73.05 

May I, 2018 
through May 31, 2018 $ 

June 1, 2018 
through June 30,2018 $ 

Total 406 $ 73.05 

Chesapeake Utilities purchased shares of common stock on the open market for the purpose of reinvesting the dividend on deferred stock 
units held in the Rabbi Trust accounts for certain directors and senior executives under the Deferred Compensation Plan. The Deferred 

'Compensation Plan is discussed in detail in Item 8 under the heading "Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements-Note 16, Employee 
Benefit Plans" in our latest Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017. During the quarter ended June 30, 2018, 406 
shares were purchased through the reinvestment of dividends on deferred stock units. 
Except for the purposes described in Footnote 0

', Chesapeake Utilities has no publicly announced plans or programs to repurchase its shares. 

Item 3. Defaults upon Senior Securities 

None. 

Item 5. Other Information 

None. 
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Item 6. 

I 0.1 

31.1 * 

31.2* 

32.1 * 

32.2* 

10l.INS* 

10l.SCH* 

IOI.CAL* 

10l.DEF* 

IOI.LAB* 

IOI.PRE* 

*Filed herewith 
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Exhibits 

Separation Agreement and Release, effective as of June 7, 2018, by and between Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation and Elaine B. Bittner, which was filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Cunent Report on Fmm 8-K 
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 8, 2018, and is incorporated herein by 
reference thereto. 

Certificate of Chief Executive Officer of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) 
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. 

Certificate of Chief Financial Officer of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) 
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. 

Certificate of Chief Executive Officer of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation pursuant to I 8 U .S.C. 
Section 1350. 

Certificate of Chief Financial Officer of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation pursuant to 18 U .S.C. 
Section 1350. 

XBRL Instance Document. 

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document. 

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document. 

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document. 

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document. 

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document. 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this repmt to be signed 
on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION 

Is/ BETH W. COOPER 

Beth W. Cooper 
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial 
Officer 

Date: August 9, 2018 
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